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DeO³e#eer³e ceveesiele
mevceeveveer³e meYeemeo yebOet Je Yeefieveer, vecemkeÀej,

DenJeeue Je<e& yeBkesÀmeeþer DeveskeÀ yeeyeeR®ee efJe®eej keÀjlee mebmcejCeer³e þjues Deens. DenJeeue Je<ee&le Deeheu³ee 

yeBkesÀves þsJeer, keÀpex, efjìsue keÀpe&, Jemegueer, Provision Coverage Ratio DeMee meJe&®e DeeIee[îeebJej 

SsefleneefmekeÀ keÀeceefiejer kesÀueer Deens. cee®e& 2023 DeKesj yeBkesÀ®ee J³eJemee³e he´Lece®e `30,000 

keÀesìeRhes#ee DeefOekeÀ Peeuee Deens. ieleJe<eea®³ee leguevesle yeBkesÀ®³ee J³eJemee³eeceO³es `1,930.74 keÀesìer®eer 

Jee{ Peeueer Deens. lemes®e cee®e& 2023 DeKesj yeBkesÀ®ee Dee@hejsìeRie he´e@efHeÀì `514 keÀesìer, keÀjhetJe& veHeÀe 

`213 keÀesìer Je efveJJeU veHeÀe `151 keÀesìer Peeuee Deens. lemes®e yeBkesÀ®es {esyeU Deveglheeefole keÀpee¥®es 

he´ceeCe 4.80% Je vekeÌle Deveglheeefole keÀpee¥®es he´ceeCe 1.74% Deens.

efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee ceeie&oMe&keÀ meg®eveebvegmeej, cee®e& 2024 DeKesj yeBkesÀleerue `1 keÀesìer he³e¥le®³ee efjìsue keÀpee¥®es he´ceeCe SketÀCe keÀpee¥®³ee 50% DemeCes 

DeeJeM³ekeÀ Deens. meoj GefÎä JesUsle hetCe& keÀjC³eekeÀjerlee Deeheueer yeBkeÀ meelel³eeves he´³elve keÀjerle Deens. ³ee meJe& he´³elveeb®es HeÀefuele cnCepes yeBkesÀleerue efjìsue 

keÀpee¥ceO³es DenJeeue Je<ee&le ̀ 1,348 keÀesìeR®eer Jee{ Peeueer Deens. efo.31 cee®e& 2023 DeKesj yeBkesÀleerue SketÀCe keÀpex ̀ 13,116.60 keÀesìer Deensle. 

³eeceO³es `1 keÀesìerhe³e¥le®eer efjìsue keÀpex `4,866.45 keÀesìeR®eer Deensle.  

efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee ceeie&oMe&keÀ meg®eveebvegmeej cee®e& 2023 DeKesj Deie´¬eÀce #es$eeme keÀjC³eele Deeuesu³ee helehegjJeþîee®es SketÀCe keÀpee¥Meer Demeuesues he´ceeCe 

60% DemeCes DeeJeM³ekeÀ Deens. Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀceO³es cee®e& 2023 DeKesj meoj®es he´ceeCe 64.29% Deens.  menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebveer cee®e& 2024 DeKesj 

Deie´¬eÀce #es$eeme keÀjeJe³ee®³ee keÀpe&hegjJeþîee®³ee GefÎähetleeame efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves vegkeÀleer®e cee®e& 2026 he³e¥le cegoleJee{ efoueer Deens. menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebvee ne 

ceesþe efoueemee efceUeuee Deens.  

yeBkesÀves DenJeeue Je<ee&le efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee ceev³elesvegmeej ef[meWyej 2022 ceO³es Long Term Subordinated Bonds -1 FM³et kesÀues nesles. ³ee Debleie&le 

yeBkesÀves cee®e& 2023 DeKesj `50.16 keÀesìer jkeÌkeÀce mebkeÀefuele kesÀueer Deens.

DenJeeue Je<ee&le Jemegueermeeþer ³eg×heeleUerJej he´³elve keÀjC³eele Deeues.  keÀpe&oejebMeer ®e®ee&, DeeJeM³ekeÀlesvegmeej SkeÀjkeÀceer jkeÌkeÀce Ye©ve keÀpe&Keeles yebo 

keÀjC³ee®eer efouesueer meJeuele, hee$e keÀpe&oejeb®³ee keÀpe&Keel³eeb®es hegveie&þve, LekeÀerle keÀpe&oejeb®³ee leejCe efceUkeÀleeR®eer pehleer, efueueeJe Dee³eesefpele keÀ©ve ³ee 

leejCe efceUkeÀleeR®eer efJe¬eÀer F.meJe& ceeie& he´YeeJeerheCes Jeehe©ve DenJeeue Je<ee&le yeBkesÀves `469.46 keÀesìer jkeÀces®eer Jemegueer kesÀueer Deens.

þsJeer Je keÀpee¥Jejerue J³eepeojeb®eer yeBkeÀebleie&le DemeCeejer mheOee& ner Deelee SkeÀ efvel³ee®eer®e yeeye Peeueer Deens. ner ieesä ie=nerle Oe©ve®e yeBeEkeÀie J³eJemee³e 

keÀjeJee ueeiele Deens. yeBkesÀleerue þsJeer, cegole mebheCeeN³ee þsJeer, vetleveerkeÀjCe nesCeeN³ee þsJeer, keÀpe&ceeieCeer, lejuelee lemes®e Dev³e yeBkeÀeb®es J³eepeoj 

F.yeeyeeR®ee legueveelcekeÀ efJe®eej keÀ©ve yeBkesÀves DeeJeM³ekeÀlesvegmeej þsJeeRJejerue J³eepeojele Jee{ kesÀueer. DenJeeue Je<ee&le yeBkesÀ®³ee SketÀCe þsJeeRceO³es  

`1,107.05 keÀesìeR®eer Jee{ Peeueer Demetve cee®e& 2023 DeKesj yeBkesÀleerue SketÀCe þsJeer `17,629.42 keÀesìer Peeu³ee Deensle.

leerJe´ yeBeEkeÀie mheOee&, veJeveJeerve leb$e%eeve, l³eemeeþer®eer ceesþer Deee|LekeÀ iegbleJeCetkeÀ Je mesJekeÀ-DeefOekeÀeN³eeb®es %eeve F.yeeyeeRcegUs ueneve menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebvee keÀecekeÀepe 

keÀjCes efoJemesefoJeme DeJeIe[ nesle Deens.  DeveskeÀ Je<e& veeiejer menkeÀejer yeBeEkeÀie #es$eeceO³es keÀe³e&jle Demeu³eecegUs ³ee #es$eemeeþer p³esÿlJee®eer peyeeyeoejer 

Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀme he´ehle Peeueer Deens. ³eecegUs®e DeMeehe´keÀejs De[®eCeerle Deeuesu³ee menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebvee Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves menkeÀeje®es cetU lelJe meebYeeUtve 

keÀe³ece®e meene³³e kesÀues Deens.  Dee@keÌìesyej 2022 ceO³es hegC³eeleerue YekeÌkeÀce Deee|LekeÀ eqmLeleer Demeuesu³ee Þeer Meejoe menkeÀejer yeBkesÀ®es Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀceO³es 

efJeefueveerkeÀjCe keÀjC³eele Deeues Deens.  meoj yeBkesÀ®³ee hegC³eele 8 MeeKee Demetve l³ee MeeKee keÀe@mecee@me yeBkesÀ®³ee MeeKee cnCetve keÀe³e&jle keÀjC³eele Deeu³ee 
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Deensle.  lemes®e ces 2023 ceO³es cegbyeF& ³esLeerue cejeþe menkeÀejer yeBkesÀ®es Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀceO³es efJeefueveerkeÀjCe keÀjC³eele Deeues Demetve ³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee 7 MeeKee 

keÀe@mecee@me yeBkesÀ®³ee MeeKee cnCetve keÀe³e&jle keÀjC³eele Deeu³ee Deensle.  ³eeÜejs ³ee yeBkeÀeb®³ee þsJeeroejeb®es efnle Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves peheues Demetve ³ee yeBkeÀebceO³es 

keÀe³e&jle Demeuesu³ee hee$e mesJekeÀebveener meceeJetve Iesleues Deens.  DeMeehe´keÀejs Deelee yeBkesÀ®³ee 159 MeeKee keÀe³e&jle Deensle.

³eeJ³eefleefjkeÌle cegbyeF&eqmLele efo meensyejeJe osMecegKe menkeÀejer yeBkesÀ®³ee efJeefueveerkeÀjCee®ee he´mleeJe yeBkesÀves efjPeJn& yeBkesÀkeÀ[s meeoj kesÀuee Demetve lees efjPeJn& 

yeBkesÀ®³ee efJe®eejeOeerve Deens.   

³ee meYesceO³esosKeerue cegbyeF&leerue efo efmeìer keÀes-Dee@he yeBkesÀ®³ee efJeefueveerkeÀjCee®³ee he´mleeJeeme ceev³elee osC³ee®eer meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueves efMeHeÀejme kesÀueer Deens.

owvebefove keÀecekeÀepeeceO³es Dev³e yeBkeÀebmeeþer DeeoMe& Ieeuetve osleevee yeBkesÀves ³eehetJeeaner DeveskeÀ veeceJeble mebmLeebkeÀ[tve hegjmkeÀej he´ehle kesÀues Deensle. ³ee Je<eeaosKeerue 

yeBkesÀme Dee³eìer, Jemegueer, Dee@ef[ì keÀecekeÀepe DeMee DeveskeÀ #es$eebceO³es hegjmkeÀej efceUues Deensle. ³ee DenJeeueele l³eeyeeyele mJeleb$eefjl³ee GuuesKe kesÀuee Deens.  

³eeceO³es yeBkesÀme peeieeflekeÀ heeleUerJejerue ceev³eleehe´ehle Guinness World Records ³eeb®eskeÀ[tve yeBkesÀ®es meYeemeoeme efJeéeefJeK³eele keÀeceefiejer keÀjleevee 

yeBkesÀves kesÀuesu³ee keÀpe&hegjJeþ³eeyeÎue Certification of Participation he´ehle Peeues Demeu³ee®es cee$e efJeMes<elJeeves veceto keÀjCes iejpes®es Deens.

keÀeUe®eer iejpe DeesUKetve yeBkesÀceO³es Jeehejele Demeuesues leb$e%eeve JesUesJesUer DeÐe³eeJele keÀjC³eele ³esles. DenJeeue Je<ee&le yeBkesÀves WhatsApp Banking, 

Internet Banking, Mobile Banking F.mesJeeb®eer veJeervelece DeeJe=Êeer ie´enkeÀebmeeþer GheueyOe keÀ©ve efoueer Deens.

DenJeeue Je<ee&leerue yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀeceefiejercegUs yeBkesÀ®ee Deee|LekeÀ hee³ee YekeÌkeÀce Peeuee Demetve Deeieeceer keÀeUele yeBkesÀme hetJeeahe´ceeCes Financially Sound 

and Well Managed Bank ne opee& he´ehle nesF&ue Demee efJeéeeme Deens. ³eeheg{s yeBkesÀme he´ieleer®eer / J³eJemee³eJee{er®eer DeveskeÀ oeueves Kegueer nesleerue ns 

cee$e vekeÌkeÀer. 

Deeheu³ee meJee¥®³ee menkeÀe³ee&ves yeBkesÀ®eer he´ieleer DeefOekeÀ Jesieeves nesF&ue ³ee®eer ceuee Kee$eer Deens.

Oev³eJeeo!

DeeHeuee mvesnebefkeÀle

meerS  efceeEueo keÀeUs
DeO³e#e



117th  Annual Report  2022–2023

3

Chairman’s Address 
DEAR MEMBERS,

During the year under review, Bank has made outstanding progress in all segments. Bank has registered 
remarkable performance in Deposit Mobilization, Loans, Retail Loans, NPA Recovery, Provision Coverage 
Ratio, Net & Gross Profit etc. As on 31 March 2023, Bank’s total business set-up crossed milestone of `30,000 
Crores. Business setup of the Bank increased by `1,930.74 Crores over previous year. Bank has earned 
historic profit in the year under review. Bank’s operative profit is `514 Crores and Profit before Tax is `213 
Crores while Net Profit is `151 Crores. The percentage of Gross NPA is 4.80% while net NPA is 1.74%. 

As per the Directives of Reserve Bank of India, out of the total loans, retail loans upto `1 Crore should be 
50% by March 2024. Our Bank is working relentlessly to achieve this target. In this FY, there is a net growth of  
`1,348 Crores in retail loans portfolio of the Bank. At the end of 31 March 2023, total advances of Bank stand 
at `13,116.60 Crores. The retail loans upto 1 Crore are `4,866.45 Crores. 

During the year under review, the Advances in Priority Sector stood at 64.29 % of the Total Advances against 
the regulatory target of 60%. Recently, Reserve Bank of India has extended the timeline for achievement of 
Priority Sector Lending targets upto 31st March 2026, which is a big relief to all UCBs.

According to the permission of Reserve Bank of India, Bank had launched Long Term Subordinated Bonds-1 
in the month of December 2022. Under this issue, Bank has garnered amount of `50.16 Crores up till  
March 2023.

Right from the beginning of the year, effective mechanism was put in place for Recovery and with these efforts 
Bank could achieve recovery of `469.46 Crores. Bank aggressively took steps for negotiation with defaulters, 
considering options of closing the loan accounts by paying a lumpsum amount, restructuring of loan accounts 
of eligible borrowers, taking possession of secured assets and arranging auction of these assets etc., which 
proved helpful.

Taking into consideration the changes happening in banking sector, interest rates on deposits and loans 
were reviewed and revised. Our Bank increased the interest rates from time to time taking into consideration, 
deposit profile, renewal ratio of deposits, increase in credit off-take, liquidity required to meet the credit needs, 
expectations of depositors and the increase in rate of interest by peer banks. During the year under review 
the deposits of Bank increased by `1,107.05 Crores and at the end of the year, the deposits of Bank stand at 
`17,629.42 Crores.

Increasing competition in Banking sector, adopting latest technology, required cost outlay for technological 
upgradation and enhancing skill sets of human assets through continuous training, etc. are some of 
the challenges faced by small co-operative banks in India. Cosmos Bank, being one of the oldest and 
leading co-operative Bank in the sector, assumes the responsibility to guide and support small UCBs 
to cope up with the challenges. Cosmos Bank, has always taken initiative to nurture the co-operative 
values and help small UCBs. In the month of October 2022, Pune based financially strong Bank,  
Shree Sharada Sahakari Bank Ltd., was amalgamated with our Bank. The said Bank had 8 branches in Pune 
which are now operational as Cosmos Bank branches. As per Reserve Bank of India’s permission, Maratha 
Sahakari Bank Ltd, Mumbai was amalgamated with our Bank in the month of May 2023 and 7 branches 
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in Mumbai of erstwhile Maratha Sahakari Bank are now functioning as Cosmos Bank branches. The Bank 
through these amalgamations has protected the interest of their depositors and has absorbed the eligible 
employees of these erstwhile Banks. Thus now the Bank has 159 branches.

Additionally, the Bank has sent proposal for amalgamation of The Sahebrao Deshmukh Co-operative Bank 
Ltd, Mumbai (11 branches) to Reserve Bank of India, which is under active consideration at Reserve Bank of 
India. 

Also, the proposal for amalgamation of The City Co-operative Bank Ltd., Mumabi into our Bank is on the 
agenda of this meeting. 

Bank received many prestigious awards for technological initiatives and Banking achievements in the past. This 
year also, the Bank is honored with various awards in the field of IT, Recovery, Audit, etc., which are mentioned 
in detailed in annexed report. To mention specifically, the Bank has received the Certificate of Participation 
from Guinness World Records, for financial assistance provided to Bank’s Member for an infrastructure project 
which set the world record. 

In order to adapt to changing technology, the Bank keeps updating and strengthening Digital offerings. During 
the year under report, the Bank implemented upgraded version of Whatsapp Banking, Internet Banking, Mobile 
Banking, etc. for the benefit of Bank’s customers.

Achievements in the F.Y. 2022-23 have strengthened the foundation of the Bank and this assures our progress 
towards the status of Financially Sound and Well Managed Bank – FSWM, which will open many business 
overnues for Bank. With support and co-operation of you all, I am confident about sustained growth of the 
Bank.

Thank you!

   With regards,

 

CA Milind Kale
Chairman



117th  Annual Report  2022–2023

5

Name of the Bank: The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Multistate Scheduled Bank)

Registered Office: Cosmos Tower, Plot No. 6, S. No. 132/B, ICS Colony, University Road, Ganeshkhind, Pune 411 007

Registration No. & Date: Under the Co-operative Credit Societies Act, 1904. Reg. No.20, dated 18th January 1906

Under Multistate Co-op Soc. Act, 1984, MSCS/CR/72/97 dated 28.11.1997

Under Banking Regulation Act, 1949, ACD/MH/188 P dated 11.03.1980

Incorporated in the Second Schedule as per Reserve Bank of India (RBI) Act, 1934

UBD/BR.324/A-9-90/91, dated 01.11.1990

Area of Operation: States of Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh, Karnataka, Gujarat, Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh and Telangana

HIGHLIGHTS
As on 31st March, 2023

 De)	 Deee|LekeÀ / Financials	                                                                                                                    (` keÀesìerle) (Amt. in Crores)

leheMeerue / Particulars As on 31.03.2023 As on 31.03.2022

YeeieYeeb[Jeue / Paid Up Share Capital 332.77 335.34

SketÀCe efveOeer / Reserves and other Funds  1,691.07 1,765.27

Yeeb[Jeue he³ee&hlelee ÒeceeCe / Capital Adequacy Ratio (CRAR)  13.54% 13.19%

þsJeer /  Deposits  

ye®ele þsJeer / Savings 3,530.50 3,289.03

®eeuet þsJeer / Current 1,445.53 1,256.60

cegole þsJeer / Term 12,653.39 11,976.74

SketÀCe / Total 17,629.42 16,522.37

helehegjJeþe / Advances

leejCeer helehegjJeþe / Secured 12,820.73 12,091.17

efyeveleejCeer helehegjJeþe / Unsecured 295.87 201.74

SketÀCe / Total 13,116.60 12,292.91

keÀpex  / Borrowings 617.92 719.18

SketÀCe iegbleJeCetkeÀ / Total Investments 5,623.64 5,292.00

LekeÀyeekeÀer he´ceeCe / Overdues (Percentage) 4.41% 5.85%

veHeÀe / Profit for the Year 151.41 65.91

ceeieerue Je<ee¥®ee efMeuuekeÀ veHeÀe / Previous Years' Profit C/F 74.14 37.19

KesUles Yeeb[Jeue / Working Capital 20,453.11 19,310.39

ye)	 Flej / Others                                               

leheMeerue / Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

MeeKee / Total Branches 152 140

meYeemeo / Members 98,027 91,691

veececee$e meYeemeo (keÀpe&oej) / Nominal Members (Borrowers) 5,578 6,400

SketÀCe mesJekeÀ / Total Staff 2,708 2,657
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Management Team

Managing Director

Mrs. Apekshita Thipsay

Chief General Managers

          Mrs. Nayan Lagad              Mr. Avinash Rana           Mr. Ravindra Subhedar 
                                                                                               (from 12th December 2022)

  
Chief Information Technology Officer 

Mrs. Arti Dhole 

Deputy Chief General Manager

Mr. Vishwas Agale Mr. Anand Chalke Mr. Sunil Panse Mrs. Aakanksha Rane
(Till 30th November 2022)

General Managers

Mr. Rajendra Pandit 
(Till 31st May 2023)

Mr. Manoj Shah
(Till 30th April 2023)

Mr. Sanjay Sawant

Statutory Auditors 

M/s. G. D. Apte and Company, Chartered Accountants, Pune 
M/s. M. P. Chitale & Company, Chartered Accountants 

Internal Auditor

M/s. Gunwani and Kolapkar, Chartered Accountants, Pune

Mr. Avinash Chavan Mr. Vinayak Joshi  
(Chief Risk Officer)
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Jeee|<ekeÀ meJe&meeOeejCe meYes®eer veesìerme 
(kesÀJeU meYeemeoebkeÀefjlee)

efo keÀe@mecee@me keÀes-Dee@he. yeBkeÀ efue. ®³ee meYeemeoeb®eer 117 Jeer Jeee|<ekeÀ meJe&meeOeejCe meYee meesceJeej efo.10 peguew 2023 jespeer 
mekeÀeUer 10.00 Jeepelee efMeJeMebkeÀj meYeeie=n, me.veb.698/1, cene|<eveiej, hee³eieg[s yeeie, hegCes 411 037 ³esLes nesCeej 
Deens.  l³eeJesUer heg{erue keÀecekeÀepe nesF&ue.  lejer meoj meYesme DeeheCe DeJeM³e GheeqmLele jneJes DeMeer efJevebleer Deens.

meYesHeg{erue efJe<e³e ë

1. 	efo.27 mehìWyej 2022 jespeer Peeuesu³ee 116 J³ee Jeee|<ekeÀ meJe&meeOeejCe meYes®ee Je efo.30 cee®e& 2023 jespeer Peeuesu³ee efJeMes<e  
	 meJe&meeOeejCe meYes®ee Je=Êeeble keÀe³ece keÀjCes.

2. 	De) heg{erue he´mleeJeeb®ee efJe®eej keÀjCes Je l³eeme ceev³elee osCes.

   		  1.   meve 2022-2023 ³ee Deee|LekeÀ Je<ee&®ee Jeee|<ekeÀ Je=Êeevle.

  		  2.   efo.31 cee®e& 2023 jespeer mebheuesu³ee Je<ee&®es veHeÀeleesìe he$ekeÀ.

   		  3.   efo.31 cee®e& 2023 jespeer mebheuesu³ee Je<ee&®ee leeUsyebo.

   	 ye)  meve 2022-2023 ³ee Je<ee&leerue iebieepeUer Je Flej efveOeeR®³ee he´l³e#e JeehejemebyebOeer ceeefnleer IesCes.

3. 	meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueves meg®eefJeuesu³ee meve 2022-23 ®³ee veHeÀe efJeYeeieCeermebyebOeer efJe®eej keÀjCes Je l³eeme ceev³elee osCes.

4.	 meve 2022-2023 ®³ee JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeehejer#eCe DenJeeueeJej efJe®eej keÀjCes. 

5. 	efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee ceev³elesvegmeej, meve 2023-2024 ³ee Deee|LekeÀ Je<ee&meeþer JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeehejer#ekeÀeb®eer efve³egkeÌleer keÀjCes. l³eeb®es  
	 ceeveOeve þjefJeC³ee®ee DeefOekeÀej meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueme osCes. 

6. 	yeBkesÀ®es meb®eeuekeÀ Je l³eeb®es veelesJeeF&keÀ ³eeb®eskeÀ[s meve 2022-2023 ³ee Deee|LekeÀ Je<ee&le ³esCesyeekeÀer Demeuesu³ee keÀpee¥®eer ceeefnleer  
	 IesCes. (ceequìmìsì keÀes-Dee@he. meesmee³eìerped De@keÌì 2002 keÀuece 39 (3) Devegmeej)

7. 	efo efmeìer keÀes-Dee@he.yeBkeÀ efue., cegbyeF& ³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee efo keÀe@mecee@me keÀes-Dee@he yeBkeÀ efue. ceOeerue efJeefueveerkeÀjCe ³eespevesme (Scheme of  
	 Amalgamation) ceev³elee osCes Je efjPeJn& yeBkesÀkeÀ[s l³eeme ceev³elee osCesyeeyele efMeHeÀejme keÀjCes.

8.	 117 J³ee Jeee|<ekeÀ meJe&meeOeejCe meYesme GheeqmLele jent ve MekeÀuesu³ee meYeemeoeb®eer DevegheeqmLeleer ceev³e keÀjCes.

9. 	cee. DeO³e#e ³eeb®³ee mebceleerves Dee³el³eeJesUer ³esCeeN³ee efJe<e³eeb®ee efJe®eej keÀjCes.

			   cee. meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee Dee%esJeªve

efo. 17 petve 2023 	  meew. Dehesef#elee efþhemes
hegCes	 J³eJemLeehekeÀer³e meb®eeefuekeÀe
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met®evee

01.	 Jejerue meYesme mekeÀeUer þerkeÀ 10.00 Jeepelee he´ejbYe nesF&ue. l³eemeeþer DeeJeM³ekeÀ ieCemebK³ee hetCe& Peeueer vemesue lej ner meYee mLeefiele 
kesÀueer peeF&ue. DeMee mLeefiele meYes®es keÀecekeÀepe l³ee®e efoJeMeer, l³ee®e efþkeÀeCeer mekeÀeUer 10.30 Jeepelee meg© nesF&ue Je ³ee mLeefiele 
meYesme ieCemebK³ee hetleea®eer DeeJeM³ekeÀlee jenCeej veener. ³ee meYesle Jejerue veesefìMeerceO³es veceto kesÀuesu³ee efJe<e³eeb®ee efJe®eej keÀjC³eele ³esF&ue.

02.	 efo.10 peguew 2023 jespeer nesCeeN³ee Jeee|<ekeÀ meJe&meeOeejCe meYesheg{erue efJe<e³eemebyebOeer®eer keÀeieohe$es yeBkesÀ®³ee cegK³e keÀe³ee&ue³eele  
efo.4 peguew 2023 he³e¥le keÀecekeÀepee®³ee efoJeMeer mekeÀeUer 11.00 les ogheejer 4.00 ³ee JesUsle heeneJe³eeme efceUleerue.

03. 	 Jeee|<ekeÀ meJe&meeOeejCe meYesheg{erue efJe<e³eebyeeyele meYeemeoebvee keÀener he´Mve efJe®eejeJe³ee®es Demeu³eeme les uesKeer mJe©heele yeBkesÀ®³ee cegK³e 
keÀe³ee&ue³eeceO³es efo.4 peguew 2023 he³e¥le keÀecekeÀepee®³ee efoJeMeer mekeÀeUer 11.00 les ogheejer 4.00 ³ee JesUsle DeeCetve ÐeeJesle ner 
efJevebleer.

04.	 yeBkesÀ®ee DenJeeue yeBkesÀ®³ee mebkesÀle mLeUeJej (www.cosmosbank.com) GheueyOe Deens. leLeeefhe, meYeshetJeea pes meYeemeo mebhetCe& 
DenJeeue efceUC³ee®eer uesKeer ceeieCeer keÀjleerue, l³eebvee yeBkesÀ®ee mebhetCe& DenJeeue mebyebefOele MeeKesceeHe&Àle GheueyOe keÀ©ve  osC³eele ³esF&ue.

05.	 meYesme ³esleevee meYeemeo DeesUKehe$e ke=Àhe³ee pe©j meesyele DeeCeeJes.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
(FOR MEMBERS ONLY)

The 117th Annual General Meeting of the members of THE COSMOS CO-OPERATIVE BANK LTD., will be 
held on Monday, 10th July 2023 at 10.00 a.m. at Shivshankar Sabhagruha, S.No.698/1, Maharshinagar, 
Paigude Baug, Pune 411 037 for transacting following business. Your presence therefore is highly solicited.

Agenda of the Meeting:

1.	 To confirm the minutes of the 116th Annual General Meeting held on 27th September 2022 and Special  
	 General Meeting held on 30th March 2023.

2.	 A)	 To Consider and adopt,

		  i)		  Annual Report for the financial year 2022-2023.

		  ii)		  Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March 2023.

		  iii)		  Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2023.

	 B)	 To review the actual utilisation of reserves and other funds during the year 2022-2023

3.	 To consider and approve the appropriation of profit for the financial year 2022-2023 as proposed by the  
	 Board of Directors.

4.	 To consider the Report of Statutory Auditors for the FY 2022-2023.

5.	 As per approval from Reserve Bank of India to appoint Statutory Auditors for the year 2023-2024 and to  
	 authorize Board of Directors to decide their remuneration.

6.	 To take note of the loans and advances outstanding from the Directors and their relatives during the year  
	 2022-2023 (Pursuant to section 39(3) of the Multistate Co-operative Societies Act, 2002).

7.	 To consider and approve the scheme of Amalgamation of The City Co-operative Bank Ltd., Mumbai into  
	 The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Ltd and to send the recommendation to Reserve Bank of India for approval  
	 of the scheme.

8.	 To grant leave of absence of members who are not able to attend the 117th Annual General Meeting.

9.	 Any other matter, with the permission of the Chair.

By order of the Board of Directors

Date: 17th June 2023		  				     Mrs. Apekshita Thipsay
Pune	 Managing Director
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Notes

1.		  The meeting shall commence at 10.00 a.m. sharp. If the required quorum of the members is not present 
at the commencement of the meeting, it shall be adjourned. The adjourned meeting will resume business 
on the same day, at the same place at 10.30 a.m., irrespective of the quorum, in which, only the business 
mentioned in the Notice of the Meeting shall be transacted.

2.		  All documents and information relating to the business to be transacted at this Annual General Meeting 
to be held on 10th July 2023 will be available at Bank’s Head Office up to 4th July 2023 on working days, 
between 11.00 a.m. to 4.00 p.m.

3.		  Members are requested to submit their queries, if any, regarding the business to be transacted at this 
Annual General Meeting, in writing at the Bank’s Head Office up to 4th July 2023 on working days, 
between 11.00 a.m. to 4.00 p.m.

4.		  Bank’s Annual Report for FY 2022-2023 will be available on Bank’s website (www.cosmosbank.com). 
Members will be provided with hard copy of the Annual Report through the concerned branch, upon 
written request,

5.		  Members are requested to carry their Membership Photo Identity Card for the meeting



117th  Annual Report  2022–2023

11

ceev³eJej meYeemeo,

Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2022-23 ®ee 117 Jee Jeee|<ekeÀ DenJeeue 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®esJeleerves DeeheCeeheg{s meeoj keÀjerle Deens.

2022-23 ³ee Deee|LekeÀ Je<ee&le peeieeflekeÀ efJeÊeer³e yeepeejele DeeqmLejlee efometve 
Deeueer. ³eg¬esÀve-jefMe³ee ³eeb®esceO³es ³eg× Peeues lesJne vegkeÀleer®e peeieeflekeÀ DeLe&J³eJemLee 
keÀesefJe[r®³ee OekeÌ³eeceOetve meeJejle nesleer. ³ee®ee heefjCeece DeVe DeeefCe FbOeve ojJee{erle 
meelel³eeves Peeuee. Jee{l³ee ceneieeF&Jej efve³eb$eCe þsJeC³eemeeþer, DecesefjkesÀ®³ee ceO³eJeleea 
yeBkesÀves 2022 DeeefCe 2023 ceO³es HesÀ[ HebÀ[ jsì 500 yesefmeme hee@F&vìmeves 
Jee{Jeuee Deens DeeefCe efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ Dee@HeÀ Fbef[³eeves jshees oj 250 yesefmeme hee@F&vìmeves 
Jee{Jeuee Deens. Je<ee&®³ee DeKesjerme he´iele DeLe&J³eJemLesleerue keÀener yeBkeÀeb®³ee [yeIeeF&cegUs 
yeepeejeleerue DeeqmLejlesuee neleYeej ueeJeuee, hejbleg peieeleerue He´cegKe ceO³eJeleea yeBkeÀeb®³ee 
OeesjCeecegUs heg{erue vegkeÀmeeve ìUues.

DeMee ³ee DeMeeble peeieeflekeÀ Deee|LekeÀ JeeleeJejCeele Yeejleele cee$e J³eehekeÀ Deee|LekeÀ 
eqmLejlee efometve Deeueer. ³ee ceeieerue cegK³e keÀejCe cnCepes Yeejleele Demeuesueer J³eehekeÀ 
Deee|LekeÀ OeesjCee®eer Je=Êeer Je DeLe&J³eJemLesceOeerue ueJeef®ekeÀlee. SkeÀe heeþesheeþ SkeÀ 
³esCeeN³ee peeieeflekeÀ OekeÌkeÌ³eebheemetve Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLee l³eecegUs®e megjef#ele jeefnueer. 

iesu³ee 5 Je<ee¥le peeieeflekeÀ efJekeÀemeeceO³es 12% hes#ee peemle ³eesieoeve DemeCeeN³ee Je 
meJee&le Jesieeves Jee{CeeN³ee he´cegKe DeLe&J³eJemLeebceO³es Yeejlee®es mLeeve Deens. ®eueveJee{ 
efve³eb$eCe, Yeejleeuee cegK³e Glheeove keWÀêele ©heebleefjle keÀjC³eemeeþer®es he´³elve DeeefCe 
mesJee #es$eeuee hegve©ppeerefJele keÀjC³eemeeþer Iesleuesu³ee OeesjCeelcekeÀ efveCe&³eebcegUs 
Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLesuee veefpekeÀ®³ee keÀeUele DeefOekeÀ yeUkeÀìer efceUC³ee®eer MekeÌ³elee 
efvecee&Ce Peeueer Deens. 

Yeejleer³e Yeeb[Jeueer yeepeejeletve Jesieeves hejle iesuesueer hejkeÀer³e iegbleJeCetkeÀ DeeefCe ©he³ee®es 
Peeuesues DeJecetu³eve Demes Demetvener Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLes®ee YekeÌkeÀce hee³ee Je Jee{leer 
osMeebleie&le iegbleJeCetkeÀ ³eecegUs Yeejleer³e Yeeb[Jeueer yeepeejele efkeÀjkeÀesU Jee{ Peeueer. ³ee 
Je<eea yeBeEkeÀie #es$eeves meJe& he´cegKe #es$eebvee meeceeJetve Iesle HeleHegjJeþîeeceO³es oesve DebkeÀer Jee{ 
veeWoefJeueer. {esyeU Je vekeÌle Deveglheeefole keÀpee¥®es he´ceeCe keÀceer Peeu³eecegUs Mes[îegu[ 
keÀcee|Me³eue yeBkeÀeb®³ee ceeueceÊes®eer iegCeJeÊee megOeejueer l³ee®eHe´ceeCes Provision 
Coverage Ratio Je NIM ceO³esner Jee{ Peeueer.

efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves veeiejer menkeÀejer yeBkeÀeb®³ee le%e meefceleer®³ee efMeHeÀejMeer menkeÀejer yeBeEkeÀie 
#es$eeme ueeiet kesÀu³ee DeeefCe veeiejer menkeÀejer yeBkeÀeb®eer Deee|LekeÀ efmLeleer DeefOekeÀ cepeyetle 
keÀjC³ee®³ee GÎsMeeves ®eej mlejer³e efve³eecekeÀ mebj®evee mJeerkeÀejueer. efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves 
me#ece veeiejer menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebvee keÀe³e&He×leerleerue ueJeef®ekeÀlee He´oeve keÀ©ve ³ee #es$eeuee 
yeUkeÀì keÀjC³eemeeþer®³ee GHee³e³eespevee ueeiet kesÀu³ee.

meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U 

meve 2022-2023 ³ee Deee|LekeÀ Je<ee&le meerS efceeEueo keÀeUs ³eebveer DeO³e#e cnCetve 
lej Þeer.meef®eve Deeheìs ³eebveer GheeO³e#e cnCetve keÀecekeÀepe heeefnues.  

ces 2023 ceO³es Þeer.meef®eve Deeheìs ³eebveer GheeO³e#e heoe®ee jepeerveecee efouee. 
efo.20 ces 2023 jespeer Peeuesu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee meYesceO³es, yeBkesÀ®es 
meb®eeuekeÀ Þeer. he´efJeCekegÀceej ieebOeer ³eeb®eer yeBkesÀ®³ee GheeO³e#eheoer SkeÀceleeves efveJe[ 
keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deens.  

lemes®e keÀe@mecee@me yeBkeÀ mesJekeÀ mebIeeves SkeÀceleeves efveeq½ele kesÀu³eevegmeej petve 2023 
heemetve meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueleerue mesJekeÀ he´efleefveOeer heoeJej Þeer.Deveble heeO³es ³eebvee mJeerke=Àle 
keÀjC³eele Deeues Deens.

yees[& Dee@HeÀ ce@vespecesvì -

DenJeeue Je<ee&le yees[& Dee@HeÀ ce@vespecesvì®³ee SketÀCe 22 meYee Peeu³ee. yees[& Dee@HeÀ  
ce@vespecesvì®³ee meom³eeb®ee yeBeEkeÀie #es$eeleerue keÀecekeÀepee®ee DevegYeJe Je l³eeb®es %eeve 
³eeb®ee yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀecekeÀepeeceO³es Dehesef#ele Ghe³eesie nesle Deens.

yeBkesÀ®eer meebheefÊekeÀ heefjeqmLeleer Je Deee|LekeÀ efve<keÀ<e&

yeBkesÀ®eer mebheuesu³ee Deee|LekeÀ Je<ee&®eer heefjeqmLeleer heg{eruehe´ceeCes Deens-
 						       (` keÀesìerle)
leheMeerue 2021-2022 2022-2023
YeeieYeeb[Jeue 335.34 332.77

SketÀCe efveOeer 1,765.27 1,691.07
mJeefveOeer 2,100.61 2,023.84
vekeÌle Deveglheeefole keÀpex  
(Net NPA)

4.74% 1.74%

{esyeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpex 
(Gross NPA)

6.86% 4.80%

SketÀCe GlheVe 1,908.53 2,222.09
De)	 efceUeuesues J³eepe 1,397.96 1,473.32
ye) 	 Flej GlheVe 191.35 279.10
keÀ) 	 Flej pecee 319.21 469.67
SketÀCe Ke®e& 1,842.62 2,070.68
De)	 efouesues J³eepe 805.41 795.26
ye) 	 mesJekeÀebJejerue Ke®e& 208.32 215.79
keÀ) 	Flej Ke®e& 205.77 227.07
[) 	 lejlegoer � jeF&ì Dee@HeÀ 623.12 832.56
efveJJeU veHeÀe / leesìe 65.91 151.41
vesì mejhueme / Mee@ì&HeÀe@ue 77.91 151.41

veHeÀe efJeYeeieCeer -
DenJeeue Je<ee&le yeBkesÀme `151,40,47,499.00 (` SkeÀMes SkeÌkeÀeJeVe keÀesìer 
®eeUerme ueeKe meÊes®eeUerme npeej ®eejMes veJ³eeCCeJe) efveJJeU veHeÀe Peeuesuee Demetve 
³ee efveJJeU veHeÌ³ee®eer heg{eruehe´ceeCes efJeYeeieCeer keÀjC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U 
meJe&meeOeejCe meYesme keÀjerle Deens.

meve 2022-23 meeþer efveJJeU veHeÀe `151,40,47,499.00
efJeYeeieCeer
1.	 iebieepeUer (25%) `37,85,11,875.00
2.	� efMe#eCeefveOeer (1%) `1,51,40,475.00    
3.	 DeekeÀeqmcekeÀ leesìîeebmeeþer jeKeerJe  
	 (10%)

`15,14,04,750.00 

4.  iegbleJeCetkeÀ ®e{Gleej efveOeer `7,30,00,000.00
`61,80,57,100.00

efMeuuekeÀ veHeÀe `89,59,90,399.00 

ceeieerue Je<eea®ee efMeuuekeÀ veHeÀe `74,14,25,677.00
heg{erue Je<ee&meeþer efMeuuekeÀ veHeÀe `163,74,16,076.00
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(¬eÀ.1 les 3 efJeYeeieCeer ceequìmìsì keÀes-Dee@he.meesmee.De@keÌì 2002 keÀuece 63(1) 
ceOeerue lejlegoeRvegmeej DenJeeue Je<eea®ee veHeÀe `151,40,47,499.00 ®³ee 
he´ceeCeele meg®eefJeueer Deens.)

DenJeeue Je<ee&le yeBkesÀme Peeuesu³ee `151,40,47,499.00 veHeÌ³eeletve 
JewOeeefvekeÀ lejlegoer kesÀu³eeveblej efMeuuekeÀ `89,59,90,399.00 veHeÌ³eeletve 
ueeYeebMe peenerj keÀ©ve JeeìheekeÀjerlee efjPeJn& yeBkesÀkeÀ[s efJevebleer Depe& keÀjC³eeme Je 
DeeJeM³ekeÀ lees heeþhegjeJee keÀjC³eeme ceev³elee osC³ee®eer Jeeee|<ekeÀ meJe&meeOeejCe meYesme 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®eer efJevebleer Deens.

þsJeer -

2022-23 ³ee Deee|LekeÀ Je<ee&leerue Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLesceOeerue Jee{ he´ecegK³eeves 
Keepeieer Jeehej (private consumption) Je Yeeb[Jeue efvee|celeer ³eecegUs Peeuesueer 
efomeles.  lemes®e ³eecegUs jespeieej efvee|celeerner Peeuesueer Deens. keÀpe&ceeieCeer Jee{u³eecegUs 
þsJeeRceO³es Jee{ keÀjC³eemeeþer yeBkeÀebleie&le mheOee& DeefOekeÀ yeUeJeueer Deens.  

þsJeJee{ermeeþer Demeuesu³ee hetjkeÀ JeeleeJejCeecegUs yeBkesÀ®³ee þsJeeRceO³es cee®e& 2023 
DeKesj ue#eCeer³e Jee{ Peeueer.  cee®e& 2023 DeKesj yeBkesÀ®³ee þsJeer ̀ 17,629.42 
keÀesìer Peeu³ee Demetve ieleJe<eea®³ee leguevesle yeBkesÀ®³ee þsJeeRceO³es  `1107.05 
keÀesìeRveer Jee{ Peeueer Deens.

þsJeJee{ermeeþer yeBkesÀves DenJeeueJe<ee&le heg{erue þsJe ³eespevee keÀe³ee&eqvJele kesÀu³ee nesl³ee-

Dece=le DeePeeoer þsJe ³eespevee De Je Dece=le DeePeeoer þsJe ³eespevee ye-
osMee®ee 75 Jee mJeeleb$³eefove Je ieCesMeeslmeJe ³eeb®es Deewef®el³e meeOetve yeBkesÀves ³ee oesve 
þsJe³eespevee meg© kesÀu³ee nesl³ee.  Dece=le DeePeeoer þsJe ³eespevee De ³ee ³eespevesleerue þsJe 
keÀeueeJeOeer 990 efoJeme Je Dece=le DeePeeoer þsJe ³eespevee ye ³ee ³eespevesleerue þsJe 
keÀeueeJeOeer 75 ceefnves neslee.

Long Term Subordinated Bonds - 1 efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee hetJe&ceev³elesveblej 
yeBkesÀves efo.16 ef[meWyej 2022 les 31 cee®e& 2023 ³ee keÀeueeJeOeermeeþer Long 
Term Subordinated Bonds - 1 FM³et kesÀues nesles. ³ee Debleie&le `50.16 
keÀesìer jkeÌkeÀce mebkeÀefuele Peeueer.

keÀpex -
cee®e& 2022 DeKesj `12,292.91 keÀesìer Demeuesueer yeBkesÀleerue keÀpes& DenJeeue 
Je<ee&le `823.69 keÀesìeRveer Jee{tve cee®e& 2023 DeKesj `13,116.60 
keÀesìer Peeueer Deensle. meoj®eer Jee{ ner 6.70% Deens. DenJeeue Je<ee&le  
`188.23 keÀesìeR®eer keÀpex jeF&ì Dee@HeÀ keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deensle.

efo.31 cee®e& 2023 DeKesj CD Ratio 74.40% Deens. lemes®e yeBkesÀ®³ee 
keÀpee¥®es mJeefveOeer DeefOekeÀ þsJeer ³eeb®esMeer Demeuesues he´ceeCe efo.31 cee®e& 2023 DeKesj 
66.95% Demetve efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee ³eeyeeyele®³ee ceeie&oMe&keÀ leÊJeebvegmeej Deens.

efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee ceeie&oMe&keÀ meg®eveebvegmeej, efo.31 cee®e& 2022 DeKesj®³ee 
uesKeeheefjef#ele Deee|LekeÀ he$ekeÀebJej DeeOeeefjle yeBkesÀ®eer SkeÀe keÀpe&oejemeeþer (J³ekeÌleer 
DeLeJee kebÀheveer) DeefOekeÀlece keÀpe&ce³ee&oe `145 keÀesìer Demetve mecetn keÀpe&oejebmeeþer 
DeefOekeÀlece keÀpe&ce³ee&oe `240 keÀesìer Deens. efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee meO³ee®³ee ceeie&oMe&keÀ 
meg®eveebvegmeej SkeÀe keÀpe&oeje®eer DeefOekeÀlece keÀpe&ce³ee&oe Je mecetn keÀpe&oejeb®eer 
DeefOekeÀlece keÀpe&ce³ee&oe ner Tier I Yeeb[JeueeJej efveeq½ele keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deens. 
³eecegUs ³ee DeefOekeÀlece keÀpe&ce³ee&osceO³es keÀheele Peeueer Deens.

meve 2022-23 ceO³es yeBkeÀebleie&le Demeuesueer keÀpee&®³ee J³eepeoje®eer mheOee& meg©®e 
nesleer. ³eeme meeceesjs peeC³eemeeþer, Flej mheOe&keÀ yeBkeÀeb®es J³eepeoj, ceekexÀìceOeerue 

heefjeqmLeleer F.yeeyeeR®ee efJe®eej keÀ©ve, yeBkesÀceeHe&Àle ie=nkeÀpe&, SME keÀpex, leejCeer keÀpex, 
®eej®eekeÀer Jeenve keÀpex, Mew#eefCekeÀ keÀpex, keÀe@mcees ¬esÀef[ì F. efJeefJeOe he´keÀej®eer keÀpex 
Del³eble JeepeJeer Je mheOee&lcekeÀ J³eepeojeceO³es GheueyOe keÀ©ve osC³eele ³esle Deensle.  
lemes®e keÀceer GlheVe ieìebmeeþer yeBkeÀ mJe³ebmene³³elee ye®ele ieìebvee Je meb³egkeÌle os³elee 
mecegnebvee keÀpe&hegjJeþe keÀjerle Deens. yeBkesÀ®ee mJeleb$e efJeÊeer³e meceeJesMeve efJeYeeie ³eemeeþer 
keÀe³e&jle Deens.

efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves Prudential Exposure Norms yeeyele ueeiet kesÀuesu³ee ceeie&oMe&keÀ 
meg®eveebvegmeej, yeBkesÀleerue `1 keÀesìerhe³e¥le®eer keÀpex yeBkesÀleerue SketÀCe keÀpee¥®³ee 50% 
he³e¥le DemeCes DeeJeM³ekeÀ Deens. ³eeme efo.31 cee®e& 2024 ®eer cegole osC³eele Deeueer 
Deens.  l³eemeeþer yeBkesÀleerue `1 keÀesìerhe³e¥le®eer keÀpex Jee{efJeC³eemeeþer J³eehekeÀ he´³elve 
keÀjC³eele ³esle Deensle.  `1 keÀesìer, `1 keÀesìer les `10 keÀesìer Je `10 keÀesìerhes#ee 
DeefOekeÀ jkeÀces®eer keÀpex ³ee he´leJeejerceO³es Demeuesu³ee yeBkesÀleerue keÀpee¥®³ee he´ceeCeeceO³es 
Dehesef#ele yeoue nesle Demeleevee efometve ³esle Deens. l³ee®ee leheMeerue heg{erue he´ceeCes,

JeÀpe& ce³ee&oe jJeÌJeÀce SketÀCe keÀpee¥Meer Demeuesues he´ceeCe %

efo.31 cee®e& 
2022 DeKesj

efo.31 cee®e& 
2023 DeKesj

yeoue

`1 keÀesìerhe³e¥le 29% 38% 9%

`1 keÀesìer les `10 
keÀesìerhe³e¥le

18% 22% 4%

`10 keÀesìerhes#ee DeefOekeÀ 53% 40% -13%

DenJeeue Je<ee&le Deie´¬eÀce #es$eeme keÀjC³eele Deeuesuee helehegjJeþe ̀ 8,691.08keÀesìer 
Demetve yeBkesÀ®³ee SketÀCe keÀpee¥Meer Demeuesues l³ee®es he´ceeCe 64.29% (efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves 
efveeq½ele kesÀuesues GefÎä 60%) Deens. lemes®e ogye&ue IeìkeÀ #es$eeme keÀjC³eele Deeuesu³ee 
helehegjJeþîee®es SketÀCe keÀpee&Meer Demeuesues he´ceeCe 14.53 % (efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves efveeq½ele 
kesÀuesues GefÎä 11.50%) Deens lej Microsector uee keÀjC³eele Deeuesu³ee 
keÀpee&®es he´ceeCe 11.18% (efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves efveeq½ele kesÀuesues GefÎä 7.50%) Deens. 
Deie´¬eÀce #es$eeceO³es DebleYet&le nesCeeN³ee keÀpee¥®es DeefOekeÀeefOekeÀ efJelejCe keÀjC³eemeeþer 
J³eehekeÀ he´³elve keÀjC³eele ³esle Deensle. lemes®e Deie´¬eÀce #es$eeceO³es Je ogye&ue IeìkeÀ 
#es$eeceO³es Jeieeake=Àle nesCeeN³ee efjìsue keÀpee¥ceO³es Jee{ nesC³eemeeþer DeMee ³eespeveeb®es 
ceekexÀìeRie keÀjC³eele ³esle Deens.

efjìsue keÀpex - 

2022-23 ³ee Deee|LekeÀ Je<ee&ceO³es yeBkesÀleerue efjìsue keÀpee¥ceO³es  
`1346.17 keÀesìer®eer SsefleneefmekeÀ DeYetlehetJe& Jee{ Peeueer Deens. efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee 
ceeie&oMe&keÀ meg®eveebvegmeej, cee®e& 2024 DeKesj yeBkesÀleerue efjìsue keÀpee¥®es SketÀCe 
keÀpee¥Meer Demeuesues he´ceeCe 50% DemeCes DeeJeM³ekeÀ Deens.  ³ee®³ee leguevesle cee®e& 
2023 DeKesj yeBkesÀleerue efjìsue keÀpee¥®es SketÀCe keÀpee¥Meer Demeuesues he´ceeCe 37% 
Deens.  meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U Je J³eJemLeeheve ³eebveer meg© kesÀuesu³ee DeveskeÀ Ghe¬eÀceebcegUs 
lemes®e Glmeener Je he´sefjle Demeuesues yeBkesÀ®es mesJekeÀ - DeefOekeÀejer ³eecegUs cee®e& 2024 
DeKesj efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves efveeq½ele kesÀuesues efjìsue keÀpee¥yeeyele®es GefÎä efveeq½ele®e hetCe& nesF&ue.

ceekexÀìceOeerue heefjeqmLeleer Je ceeieCeer ³eeb®ee efJe®eej keÀ©ve yeBkesÀceO³es efjìsue keÀpee¥meeþer 
meg© Demeuesu³ee efJeefJeOe keÀpe&³eespeveebceO³es megOeejCee / yeoue keÀjC³eele Deeues, lemes®e 
veJeerve keÀpe&³eespeveener meg© keÀjC³eele Deeu³ee Deensle. mheOe&keÀ yeBkeÀeb®³ee J³eepeojeb®ee 
efJe®eej keÀ©ve Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀceO³es efJeefJeOe efjìsue keÀpee¥meeþer ueeiet Demeuesu³ee 
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J³eepeojebceO³es yeoue keÀjC³eele Deeues Deensle. efjìsue keÀpee¥®³ee ceekexÀìeRie®ee efJe®eej 
keÀ©ve J³eepeoj mheOee&lcekeÀ keÀjleevee®e keÀpe&³eespeveebceOeerue keÀener JewefMeäîeebceO³esner 
yeoue keÀjC³eele Deeues Deensle.

ie´enkeÀmesJee DeefOekeÀ meceeOeevekeÀejkeÀ nesC³eemeeþer keÀpe&he´keÀjCeer lJejerle efveCe&³e efceUtve 
JesUsle keÀpe&efJelejCe keÀjlee ³eeJes ³eemeeþer he´l³e#e ie´enkeÀebyejesyej keÀece keÀjCeejs 
DeefOekeÀejer Je yeBkesÀleerue Dev³e Jeefjÿ DeefOekeÀejer ³eeb®es ojc³eeve efve³eefceleheCes 
mebJeeo Ie[Jetve DeeCeC³eele Deeuee. efjìsue keÀpee¥meeþer MeeKeebkeÀ[s keÀece keÀjCeejs 
DeefOekeÀejer Je J³eJemLeehekeÀer³e meb®eeuekeÀ DeeefCe efjìsue J³eJemee³ee®es he´cegKe ³eeb®³ee 
Peeuesu³ee ojcene Dee{eJee meYeeb®ee ³ee J³eJemee³eJee{ermeeþer GHe³eesie Peeuee  
Deens.

DenJeeue Je<ee&le efjìsue keÀpee¥ceOeerue cenÊJeekeÀeb#eer Jee{eryeeyele efveeq½ele kesÀuesues efveJJeU 
Jee{er®es GefÎä hetCe& JneJes ³eemeeþer yeBkesÀleerue mesJekeÀ Je DeefOekeÀejer ³eeb®es ceveesyeue 
Jee{efJeCes Je l³eebvee he´sefjle keÀjCes ³eemeeþer meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueves mesJekeÀ Je DeefOekeÀeN³eeb®³ee 
performance vegmeej keÀener yeef#emes peenerj kesÀueer nesleer. ³eeDebleie&le GÊece keÀece 
kesÀuesu³ee he´l³eskeÀ mesJekeÀ Je DeefOekeÀejer ³eeb®es keÀewlegkeÀ keÀjC³eele Deeues.  

efjìsue keÀpee¥ceOeerue Jee{ermeeþer 2022-23 ceO³es efjìsue keÀpe& efJeYeeieeves heg{erue 
he´³elve kesÀues Deensle,

01.	 `1 keÀesìer les `5 keÀesìerhe³e¥le®³ee keÀpee¥meeþer keÀe@mcees mcee@ue efyePevesme  
keÀpe&³eespevee meg© kesÀueer.

02.	 yeBkesÀkeÀ[s oeKeue keÀpe&he´keÀjCeeb®eer Deee|LekeÀ Je Dev³e efvekeÀ<eebJej íeveveer  
keÀjC³eemeeþer yeBkesÀceO³es efJeefJeOe Automation Tools meceeefJeä Demeuesueer  
veeefJev³ehetCe& Score Me mebieCekeÀ he´Ceeueer keÀe³ee&eqvJele keÀjC³eele Deeueer.

03.	 `1 keÀesìerhe³e¥le®³ee CRE keÀpe&he´keÀjCeer lJejerle efveCe&³e efceUC³eemeeþer  
³eemeeþer®³ee keÀpe&cebpegjer®³ee keÀ#esceO³es yeoue keÀjC³eele Deeues.

04.	 ef[meWyej 2022 heemetve meJe& MeeKeeb®ee efjìsue keÀpe&Jee{er®³ee¢äerves Dee{eJee  
IesC³eele ³eslees. ³eeceO³es MeeKeeb®³ee efjìsue keÀpee¥®³ee GefÎähetleeavegmeej  
MeeKeeb®es 60% les 100% Demes JeieeakeÀjCe keÀjC³eele ³esles.  ³eecegUs leguevesves  
keÀceer performance Demeuesu³ee MeeKeebJej DeefOekeÀ ue#e keWÀefêle keÀ©ve  
DeMee MeeKee 85% hes#ee DeefOekeÀ GefÎä hetCe& kesÀuesu³ee MeeKeebceO³es Jeieeake=Àle  
nesleerue ³ee®ee he´³elve keÀjC³eele ³eslees.

05.	 Whatsapp, Instagram, Facebook and Print Media DeMee 
efJeefJeOe ceeO³eceebceOetve efjìsuekeÀpee¥®³ee ceekexÀìeRie®eer meg©Jeele keÀjC³eele  
Deeueer.

06.	 J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ keÀpex, efjìsue keÀpex ³eebmeeþer efJeefJeOe he´efMe#eCe me$es Dee³eesefpele  
keÀjC³eele Deeueer. lemes®e MeeKeeb®³ee performance yeeyele keÀe@vHeÀjvme  
keÀe@ue®³ee ceeO³eceeÜejs oj 15 efoJemeebveer Dee{eJee IesC³eele Deeuee.

³ee J³eefleefjkeÌle efjìsue keÀpee&ceOeerue Jee{ermeeþer MeeKeebleie&le heg{erue mheOee¥®es Dee³eespeve 
keÀjC³eele Deeues nesles Je l³eeceOeerue ³eMemJeer mesJekeÀ Je DeefOekeÀejer ³eeb®es keÀewlegkeÀ 
keÀjC³eele Deeues. 

Lakshya 23 (efo.1 HesÀye´gJeejer 2023 les efo.31 cee®e& 2023)

³ee mheOexDebleie&le J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ keÀpex, `35 ueeKeehe³e¥le®eer ie=nkeÀpex, leejCe keÀpex 
DeeefCe Jeenve keÀpex ³eeb®es GefÎä osC³eele Deeues nesles. ³eeJesUer `517 keÀesìeR®es  
keÀpe&efJelejCe keÀjC³eele Deeues Deens.

The Cosmo Champ 22 (efo.1 veesJnWyej 2022 les efo.14 peevesJeejer 
2023)

³ee mheOexDebleie&le ie=nkeÀpe&, leejCe keÀpex DeeefCe keÀe@mcees mcee@ue efyePevesme keÀpe& Je  
keÀe@mcees GÐeesie keÀpe& ³eeb®es GefÎä osC³eele Deeues nesles. ³eeDebleie&le `317.72 keÀesìer 
keÀpe&cebpetj keÀjC³eele Deeues.

Josh 2.0 – Keep Marching (efo.1 Dee@iemì 2022 les  
efo.30 mehìWyej 2022)

³ee mheOexDebleie&le CASA Keeleer meg© keÀjCes, `1 keÀesìerhe³e¥le®eer efjsìsue keÀpex, efJecee 
J³eJemee³e Je ef[efpeìue he´e@[keÌìdme ³eeyeeyele®eer GefÎä osC³eele Deeueer nesleer. ³ee 
mheOexDebleie&le heg{eruehe´ceeCes yeeyeer meeO³e Peeu³ee Deensle,

	 SketÀCe 12,685 CASA Keeleer meg© keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deensle.

	 ³ee veJeerve Keel³eebceO³es `36.41 keÀesìer jkeÌkeÀce pecee Peeueer Deens.

	 `955.43 keÀesìer jkeÀces®eer efjìsue keÀpex cebpetj keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deensle.

	 yeBkesÀceO³es ³ee keÀeUele SketÀCe 2,196 efjìsue keÀpe&he´keÀjCes oeKeue keÀjC³eele  
Deeueer nesleer.

	 `9.36 keÀesìer®es efJecee efHe´efceDece mebkeÀ}ve Peeues Deens.

Focus – (efo.15 peguew 2022 les efo.30 mehìWyej 2022)

efMe#eCekeÀpee¥meeþer meoj mheOee& Dee³eesefpele keÀjC³eele Deeueer nesleer. ³eeojc³eeve SketÀCe 
`53.72 keÀesìer jkeÀces®eer keÀpex cebpetj keÀjC³eele Deeueer Demetve `20.59 keÀesìer 
jkeÀces®eer keÀpex efJelejerle keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deensle.

Formula one Contest (efo.23 ces 2022 les efo.31 peguew 2022)

keÀe@mcees GÐeesie Je he´e@heìea leejCe keÀpee¥meeþer meoj®eer mheOee& Dee³eesefpele keÀjC³eele 
Deeueer nesleer. ³eeceO³es SketÀCe `102.35 keÀesìer jkeÀces®ee J³eJemee³e efceUeuee Demetve 
³eeceO³es `24.40 keÀesìer jkeÀces®eer keÀe@mcees GÐeesie keÀpex Je `77.95 keÀesìeR®eer  
he´e@heìea leejCe keÀpex Deensle.

2022-23 ³ee Deee|LekeÀ Je<ee&®eer þUkeÀ JewefMeäîes-

	 efjìsue keÀpee&leerue meJeex®®e efveJJeU Jee{ `1,346.17 keÀesìer

	 keÀpe&efJelejCe `2,304.48 keÀesìeR®es Peeues Deens.

ceeieerue leerve Je<ee¥ceOeerue efjìsue keÀpee¥ceOeerue efveJJeU Jee{ heg{eruehe´ceeCes Deens,

Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2020-21	 `229.24 keÀesìer	 efveJJeU Jee{ 21.48%

Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2021-22	 `970.33 keÀesìer	 efveJJeU Jee{ 28.64%

Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2022-23	 `1,346.17 keÀesìer	 efveJJeU Jee{ 37%

¬esÀef[ì meghejeqJnpeve efJeYeeie -

yeBkesÀves cebpetj kesÀuesu³ee keÀpee¥®eer osKejsKe ner SkeÀ meelel³eeves nesCeejer he´ef¬eÀ³ee Deens.  
yeBkesÀves cebpetj kesÀuesueer keÀpex efve³eefcele jneJeerle DeeefCe l³eeceO³es meceeOeevekeÀejkeÀ 
KeelesJeehej JneJee ³eemeeþer ¬esÀef[ì meghejeqJnpeve efJeYeeieeceeHe&Àle ³eesi³e les efve³eb$eCe 
þsJeC³eele ³esles.  

`25 keÀesìer Je l³eehes#ee DeefOekeÀ jkeÀces®³ee keÀpee¥®es ³ee efJeYeeieeceeHe&Àle cee@efveìjeRie 
keÀjC³eele ³esles. efJeMes<e GuuesefKele keÀpe&Keel³eebceO³es JesUsle Jemegueer nesC³ee®es¢äerves 
DeMee keÀpe&Keel³eebyeeyele DeeJeM³ekeÀ leer ceeefnleer ³ee efJeYeeieeceeHe&Àle mebyebefOele efJeYeeieer³e 
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keÀe³ee&ue³eebvee oj 15 efoJemeebveer GheueyOe keÀ©ve osC³eele ³esles.  efJeYeeieer³e keÀe³ee&ue³eebveer 
mebYeeJ³e Deveglheeefole keÀpe&oejebkeÀ[s DeeJeM³ekeÀ lees heeþhegjeJee keÀ©ve JesUsle LekeÀerle 
jkeÌkeÀce Jemetue JneJeer ³eemeeþer DeMee keÀpe&Keel³eeb®eer ³eeoer ³ee efJeYeeieeceeHe&Àle ojjespe 
mebyebefOele efJeYeeieer³e keÀe³ee&ue³eebkeÀ[s heeþefJeC³eele ³esles.

yeBkesÀleerue efJeMes<e GuuesefKele keÀpe&Keeleer (Special Mention Accounts-SMA) 
SMA 0, SMA 1 Je SMA 2 keÀceer JneJeerle lemes®e keÀpe&Keeleer veJ³eeves Deveglheeefole 
ve nesC³eeJej MeeKeeb®es efve³eb$eCe jneJes ³eemeeþer efJeYeeieer³e keÀe³ee&ue³eeb®³ee ceoleerves ³ee 
efJeYeeieeceeHe&Àle He´³elve keÀjC³eele Deeues.

³ee J³eefleefjkeÌle keÀpe&oejeb®es mìe@keÀ Dee@ef[ì, [îet ef[ueerpevme F.keÀecesner ³ee 
efJeYeeieeceeHe&Àle keÀjC³eele ³esle Deensle. hegveie&þve (Restructure) kesÀuesu³ee 
keÀpe&Keel³eeb®³ee J³eJenejebJej efJeMes<e ue#e þsJeC³ee®es keÀece ³ee efJeYeeieeceeHe&Àle 
keÀjC³eele ³esles.  ³eeÜejs hegveie&þve kesÀu³eeveblej efJeefMeÿ keÀeueeJeOeer (specified 
period) ceO³es efve³eefceleheCes keÀpe&hejleHesÀ[ nesle Deens, keÀpe&oejebkeÀ[s / 
efJeYeeieer³e keÀe³ee&ue³eebkeÀ[s meelel³eeves heeþhegjeJee keÀ©ve keÀpe&Keel³eebyeeyele Date 
of Commencement of Commerical Operations - DCCO - 
heeUuee peele Deens DeMee yeeyeeR®eer ³ee efJeYeeieeceeHe&Àle Kee$eer keÀjC³eele ³esle Deens. 
keÀpe&Keel³eebyeeyele ³eesi³e leer keÀeUpeer IesTve Je mebyebefOele keÀpe&oejebMeer JesUsle ®e®ee& 
keÀ©ve keÀpe&Keel³eebceO³es keÀener De[®eCeer Demeu³eeme l³eeceOetve ceeie& keÀe{C³eeme l³eebvee 
ceole keÀjC³eele ³esles. ³eeÜejs DeMeehe´keÀej®eer keÀpe&Keeleer efve³eefcele þsJeC³eeme ceole  
nesles.

yeBkesÀ®ee osMeeleerue meele jep³eebceO³es Demeuesuee efJemleej efJe®eejele Ieslee, cegK³e 
keÀe³ee&ue³eeleerue ¬esÀef[ì meghejeqJnpeve efJeYeeieeJ³eefleefjkeÌle cegbyeF& Je iegpejele 
efJeYeeieeceO³esner ¬esÀef[ì meghejeqJnpeve efJeYeeie keÀe³e&jle Deens. lemes®e nwojeyeeo ³esLesner 
Demee efJeYeeie keÀe³e&jle keÀjCesyeeyele yeBkeÀ efJe®eejeOeerve Deens.

meoj®ee efJeYeeie Lesì J³eJemLeehekeÀer³e meb®eeefuekeÀe ³eeb®es DeefOehel³eeKeeueer keÀe³e&jle Deens. 

LekeÀyeekeÀer Je Deveglheeefole keÀpex - 
DenJeeue Je<ee&ceO³es Deveglheeefole keÀpee¥ceO³es ̀ 273.11 keÀesìer, jeF&ì Dee@HeÀ kesÀuesu³ee 
keÀpee¥ceO³es `172.37 keÀesìer Je Asset Reconstruction Company keÀ[s 
Jeie& kesÀuesu³ee keÀpee¥ceO³es `23.98 keÀesìer DeMeer SketÀCe `469.46 keÀesìer Jemegueer 
keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deens. ³eeceO³es `137.91 keÀesìer®eer Deheie´s[ Peeuesueer keÀpex 
meceeefJeä Deensle.  

2022-23 ³ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&ceO³es keÀpe&Keel³ee®es cee@efveìjeRie Je efJeMes<e GuuesefKele 
(SMA) keÀpe&Keel³eebceOetve keÀpex DevegHleeefole ÞesCeerceO³es Jeie& nesT ve³esle ³eemeeþer 
efJeMes<e ue#e osC³eele Deeues. Jemegueermeeþer keÀjC³eele ³esle Demeuesu³ee ³ee He´³elveebcegUs 
cee®e& 2023 DeKesj LekeÀyeekeÀer®es he´ceeCe 4.41%, {esyeU Deveglheeefole keÀpex 
4.80% Je vekeÌle Deveglheeefole keÀpee¥®es he´ceeCe 1.74% Deens. 

Deveglheeefole keÀpee¥ceO³es he´YeeJeer Jemegueer nesC³eekeÀjerlee efmekeÌ³egefjìe³ePesMeve keÀe³eÐeebleie&le 
keÀejJeeF& keÀjCes, lemes®e cee. efpeune ob[eefOekeÀejer ³eeb®esheg{s keÀuece 14 Debleie&le 
ceeueceÊee leey³eele IesC³eemeeþer Depe& oeKeue keÀ©ve Jemegueermeeþer keÀe³e&Jeener keÀjCes, 
ceequìmìsì keÀes-Dee@he. meesmee³eìerped De@keÌì Debleie&le Deee|yeì^sìj ³eeb®esheg{s oeJes oeKeue 
keÀjCes, DRT keÀ[s oeJes oeKeue keÀjCes, NCLT ³eeb®esheg{s Depe& oeKeue keÀjCes DeMee 
efJeefJeOe keÀe³eosMeerj ceeiee¥®ee yeBkesÀleHexÀ DeJeuebye keÀjC³eele ³eslees. lemes®e LekeÀerle keÀpee¥®³ee 
Jemegueermeeþer SkeÀjkeÀceer jkeÌkeÀce Ye©ve IesTve keÀpe&Keeleer yebo keÀjC³ee®ee he³ee&³ener 
keÀpe&oejebvee osC³eele ³eslees. efJeueerveerke=Àle yeBkeÀeb®³ee LekeÀerle keÀpee¥®³ee Jemegueermeeþer 
cenejeä^ keÀes-Dee@he. meesmee³eìerped De@keÌì®³ee keÀuece 156 Debleie&le keÀejJeeF& keÀjC³eele 
³esle Deens.

LekeÀerle keÀpee¥ceO³es he´YeeJeer Jemegueer nesC³eemeeþer Jemegueer efJeYeeie [sh³egìer ®eerHeÀ pevejue 
ce@vespej heoeJejerue DeefOekeÀeN³ee®³ee DeefOehel³eeKeeueer keÀe³e&jle Demetve efJeYeeieer³e 
keÀe³ee&ue³eebvegmeej pevejue ce@vespej heoeJejerue oesve DeefOekeÀejer l³eeb®es meene³³ekeÀ cnCetve 
keÀece henele nesles. lemes®e ³ee efJeYeeieeceO³es Jemegueermeeþer DeeJeM³ekeÀ keÀewMeu³e Demeuesues 
DeefOekeÀejer Je Dev³e mesJekeÀ keÀe³e&jle Deensle.

LekeÀerle keÀpee¥®³ee Jemegueermeeþer keÀpe&oejebefJe©× keÀejJeeF& keÀjC³eemeeþer me#ece JekeÀerue/ 
JekeÀerue HeÀcme& yeBkesÀmeeþer keÀe³e&jle Demetve l³eeb®esÜejs efJeefJeOe keÀpe&he´keÀjCeebceO³es lJejerle 
efveCe&³e efceUtve heg{erue keÀejJeeF& keÀjC³eemeeþer ceole nesle Deens.

efJeefJeOe keÀpee¥ceOeerue LekeÀerle jkeÀces®³ee Jemegueermeeþer keÀjC³eele ³esle Demeuesu³ee 
keÀejJeeF&®eer DeÐe³eeJele ceeefnleer IesC³eemeeþer J³eJemLeehekeÀer³e meb®eeefuekeÀe Jemegueer 
DeefOekeÀeN³eeb®eer oj DeeþJe[îeeceO³es efceìeRie Iesleele Je Jemegueer®³ee¢äerves DeefOekeÀeN³eebvee 
ceeie&oMe&ve keÀjleele. lemes®e ³ee Jemegueer keÀe³e&Jeener®eer DeÐe³eeJele ceeefnleer meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[Ue®³ee meefceleer meYesceO³esner meeoj keÀjC³eele ³esles. ³eeJesUer LekeÀerle keÀpee¥®³ee 
Jemegueer®³ee¢äerves keÀe³ee&ue³eeme met®evee osC³eele ³esleele. 

LekeÀerle keÀpee¥®³ee Jemegueermeeþer mebyebefOele keÀpe&oejebefJe©× efJeefJeOe keÀe³eÐeebleie&le 
keÀjC³eele ³esle Demeuesu³ee keÀejJeeF&®eer ceeefnleer heg{eruehe´ceeCes,

cee.efpeune v³ee³eeue³e ³eeb®esheg{s 678 kesÀmesme meg© Demetve l³eeceO³es cegÎue Je J³eepe 
efceUtve SketÀCe `1,212.51 keÀesìer jkeÌkeÀce DebleYet&le Deens.

efo.31 cee®e& 2023 DeKesj  mebK³ee

ueJeeo DeefOekeÀjCe ³eeb®esheg{s ®eeuet Demeuesues oeJes 43

efpeune v³ee³eeue³eeceO³es ®eeuet Demeuesu³ee ojKeemle 678

meve 2022-23 DeKesjerme efmekeÌ³egefjìe³ePesMeve keÀe³eÐeebleie&le 109 
keÀpe&oejebefJe©× keÀejJeeF& keÀjC³eele ³esle Demetve ³eeceO³es ̀ 194.81 keÀesìer (cegÎue 
Je J³eepe) jkeÌkeÀce DebleYet&le Deens.

keÀejJeeF& mebK³ee

01.13 (2) keÀueceebleie&le heeþefJeuesu³ee ceeieCeer veesefìmee 109

02. yeBkesÀves leeyee Iesleuesu³ee efceUkeÀleer 72

03. leeyee IesC³ee®eer he´ef¬eÀ³ee meg© 112

04. efceUkeÀleeR®ee leeyee Iesleuee Demetve efJe¬eÀer he´ef¬eÀ³ee meg© 113

Yeeb[Jeue he³ee&hlelee (CRAR)

efo.31 cee®e& 2023 DeKesj yeBkesÀ®es Tier I Yeeb[Jeue `1,337.89 keÀesìer 
Je Tier II Yeeb[Jeue `454.99 keÀesìer Deens. efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves þjJetve efouesu³ee 
efvekeÀ<eevegmeej, Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer efkeÀceeve Yeeb[Jeue he³ee&hlelee 12% DemeCes 
DeeJeM³ekeÀ Deens. efo.31 cee®e& 2023 DeKesj Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer Yeeb[Jeue he³ee&hlelee 
meceeOeevekeÀejkeÀ cnCepes 13.54 % FlekeÀer Deens.

Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Shares (PNCPS)  
- Series 1 - Issue and Regulation of share capital and Securities 
yeeyele veeiejer menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebmeeþer®³ee efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee efo. 8 cee®e& 2022 jespeer®³ee 
HeefjHe$ekeÀevegmeej yeBkesÀves kegÀHeve jsì 8% ojeves  Perpetual Non Cumulative 
Preference Shares (PNCPS)- Series 1 meg© kesÀueer. ³ee Perpetual 
Non Cumulative Preference Shares ®ee yeBkesÀ®³ee Tier I Yeeb[JeueeceO³es 
meceeJesMe nesCeej Deens.
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iegbleJeCetkeÀ Je efveOeer J³eJemLeeheve Je efJeosMeer ®eueve efJeefvece³e 
J³eJemee³e -

iegbleJeCetkeÀ efJeYeeieekeÀ[s yeBkesÀ®³ee DeefleefjkeÌle efveOeer J³eJemLeehevee®eer peyeeyeoejer Deens.  
efjPeJn& yeBkesÀuee Dehesef#ele Demeuesu³ee efJeefJeOe yeeyeeR®eer hetle&lee keÀjC³eeyejesyej®e yeBkesÀ®³ee 
DeefleefjkeÌle efveOeer®eer ³eesi³e Je veHeÀeos³ekeÀ Demes J³eJemLeeheve keÀjC³ee®eer peyeeyeoejer ³ee 
efJeYeeiee®eer Deens. efveOeer®³ee owvebefove lejueles®³ee J³eJemLeeheveeJ³eefleefjkeÌle meO³ee®³ee 
meelel³eeves yeouele Demeuesu³ee ceekexÀìceO³es iegbleJeCegkeÀer®³ee GheueyOe Demeuesu³ee efJeefJeOe 
he³ee&³eebhewkeÀer ³eesi³e he³ee&³ee®eer efveJe[ keÀ©ve l³eeceO³es yeBkesÀ®³ee DeefleefjkeÌle efveOeer®eer 
iegbleJeCetkeÀ keÀ©ve DeefOekeÀeefOekeÀ hejleeJee efceUefJeC³eemeeþer yeBkesÀ®ee iegbleJeCetkeÀ efJeYeeie 
keÀe³e&jle Deens.

³ee Je<ee&le peieeleerue meJe& ceO³eJeleea yeBkeÀebveer Dee¬eÀcekeÀheCes J³eepeoj Jee{efJeues.  
efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves meg×e jshees jsì 250 yesefmeme hee@F¥ìdmeves Jee{efJeuee. ³eeJe<eea yeBeEkeÀie 
J³eJemLesceOeerue lejuelee keÀceer Peeu³eecegUs DeeefCe keÀpee&®eer ceeieCeer Jee{u³eecegUs ceveer 
ceekexÀì®es J³eepeoj Jee{ues.  efo.31 cee®e& 2022 jespeer 6.84% Jej Demeuesuee 
10 Je<ee¥®ee mejkeÀejer keÀpe&jesKee efo.31 cee®e& 2023 uee 7.31% Jej yebo 
Peeuee.  

keWÀê DeeefCe jep³e mejkeÀejeb®es keÀpe&GYeejCeer®es efve³eespeve J³eJeeqmLeleheCes heej he[ues.  
peeieeflekeÀ Deefveeq½elelee DemetveosKeerue peieeleerue Flej MesDej yeepeejeb®³ee leguevesle 
Yeejleer³e MesDej yeepeej eqmLej jeefnuee.

DenJeeue Je<ee&le DecesefjkeÀve [e@uej®³ee leguevesle Yeejleer³e ©he³eeceO³es 75.74 
heemetve 82.17 he³e¥le IemejCe Peeueer. ieleJe<eea®³ee SketÀCe hejkeÀer³e ®eueveeb®³ee 
J³eJenejeleerue (ce®e¥ì Je FbìjyeBkeÀ) Guee{eueerceO³es 51.87% Jee{ nesTve DenJeeue 
Je<ee&le leer `34,197.43 keÀesìer Peeueer.

Debleie&le uesKeehejer#eCe

Jesieeves yeoueles yeBkeÀeRie #es$e DeeefCe l³eeceOeerue Jee{leer DeeJneves, l³ee®eyejesyej efjPeJn& 
yeBkeÀ Je Dev³e efve³eecekeÀ mebmLee ³eeb®eer ceeie&oMe&keÀ lelJes ³eecegUs yeBkeÀeRie #es$ee®³ee Jee{l³ee 
J³eeHleerme me#ece leHeemeCeer®eer pees[ DeeJeM³ekeÀ Deens. Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀceO³es l³ee¢äerves 
heg{erue heeJeues G®eueC³eele Deeueer Deensle,

 	keÀvkeÀjvì Dee@[erì, JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeeHeefj#eCe, Risk based Internal 
audit-RBIA, IS Audit, VAPT, Source code, Migration 
Audit F. efJeefJeOe He´keÀej®eer Dee@ef[ìdme yeBkesÀceeHe&Àle keÀjC³eele ³esleele. 

	 yeBkesÀves 2022-23 ³ee Deee|LekeÀ Je<ee&meeþer ces peer [er Deeheìs De@v[ kebÀheveer, 
®eeì&[& DekeÀeQìbì DeeefCe ces. Sce heer ef®eleUs De@v[ kebÀheveer ®eeì&[& DekeÀeQìbì 
³ee oesve he´efleeqÿle Je veeceJeble ®eeì&[& DekeÀeQìbì HeÀcme&®eer meb³egkeÌle JewOeeefvekeÀ 
uesKeehejer#ekeÀ cnCetve efve³egkeÌleer kesÀueer nesleer.

	 efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee meg®eveebvegmeej yeBkesÀ®³ee MeeKee Je cegK³e keÀe³ee&ue³eeleerue 
efJeYeeie ³eeb®ee ³ee JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeehejer#eCeeceO³es meceeJesMe keÀjC³eele Deeuee 
neslee.

	 efve³eecekeÀ mebmLeeb®³ee ceeie&oMe&keÀ met®eveeb®ee yeBkesÀleerue concurrent audit  
®³ee J³eehekeÀ mkeÀesheceO³es meceeJesMe Deens. meoj®ee mkeÀesHe yeoueleer OeesjCes Je 
keÀe³e&He×leeRvee Devegme©ve yeou³eele ³eslees.

	 leheemeCeerceOeerue MekeÀeb®eer hetle&lee Je efve³eb$eCe ³ee yeeyeer efve³eefceleheCes keÀjC³eele 
³esle Deensle. leheemeCeerceOeerue MekeÀebkeÀ[s JesUsle ue#e osC³eele ³esle Deens.

	 efJeYeeieekeÀ[erue DeefOekeÀeN³eebveer MeeKeebvee efouesu³ee YesìeRojc³eeve MeeKeskeÀ[erue 
mesJekeÀ Je DeefOekeÀejer ³eeb®esyejesyej Dee³eesefpele ®e®ee&me$es lemes®e efJeefJeOe he´efMe#eCe 
me$es ³eeÜejs leheemeCeer DenJeeueeleerue MekeÀeb®eer JesUsle hetle&lee keÀjCesyeeyele mesJekeÀ 
Je DeefOekeÀeN³eebceO³es peeie©keÀlee efvecee&Ce keÀjC³eele ³esle Deens.

	 SketÀCe J³eJemee³eevegmeej MeeKeeb®es JeieeakeÀjCe keÀjC³eele ³esle Demetve l³eevegmeej 
keÀvkeÀjvì Dee@[erì®eer JeejbJeejlee þjefJeC³eele ³esles.

Risk Based Internal Audit- (RBIA)

	 efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee ceeie&oMe&keÀ meg®eveebvegmeej, yeBkesÀceO³es RBIA keÀe³ee&eqvJele 
keÀjC³eele Deeues Deens. Je l³eevegmeej MeeKee DeeefCe cegK³e keÀe³ee&ue³eeleerue 
efJeYeeieeb®es RBIA DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2022-23 ceO³es HetCe& keÀjC³eele Deeues 
Deens.

	 Debleie&le leheemeCeermeeþer meJe& efJeYeeieer³e keÀe³ee&ue³eebceO³es mJeleb$e leheemeCeer  
keÀecekeÀepe keÀjC³eele ³esles. ³eeÜejs owvebefove yeBeEkeÀie J³eJenej, keÀeieohe$eeb®eer 
hetle&lee Je keÀecekeÀepeeleerue efJeefJeOe peesKeceer yeÎue®ee DenJeeue meeoj keÀjC³eele 
³eslees. DevegYeJeer Je he´efMeef#ele DeefOekeÀeN³eeb®eer ³eemeeþer vesceCetkeÀ keÀjC³eele 
Deeueer Deens.

	 MeeKeeb®³ee Risk Rating vegmeej MeeKeeb®³ee leheemeCeer®eer JeejbJeejlee 
þjefJeC³eele ³esles. ³eemeeþer RBIA Hee@efuemeer Je Standard Operating 
Procedure (SOP) le³eej keÀjC³eele Deeues Deens.

leheemeCeermebyebOeer keÀecee®es mebieCekeÀerkeÀjCe-
Debleie&le leheemeCeer keÀecekeÀepee®es mebieCekeÀerkeÀjCe hetCe& Peeues Demetve Sefhe´ue 2022 
heemetve l³eeceO³es keÀecekeÀepe meg© keÀjC³eele Deeues Deens.  lemes®e keÀvkeÀjvì Dee@ef[ì®³ee 
keÀecekeÀepee®es mebieCekeÀerkeÀjCe hetCe& Peeues Demetve peguew 2022 heemetve l³eeceO³es 
keÀecekeÀepee®eer meg©Jeele keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deens. ³eecegUs Heg{erueHe´ceeCes yeoue Peeues 
Deensle. 

	 Dee@[erìceOeerue MekeÀ Je l³eeb®eer ueJekeÀj hetle&lee nesCes.

	 Dee@ef[ìme& Je yeBkesÀ®es mesJekeÀ-DeefOekeÀejer ³eebvee menpelesves ner efmemìerce neleeUlee 
³esCes.

	 yeoueleer OeesjCes Je keÀe³e&He×leeRvee Devegme©ve software ceO³es yeoue keÀjCes.

eqJnefpeuevme efJeYeeie - 

yeBkesÀceO³es eqJnefpeuevme efJeYeeie mJeleb$eheCes keÀe³e&jle Deens. MeeKeebvee DeekeÀeqmcekeÀ Yesìer 
osCes, efmemìerceÜejs le³eej keÀjC³eele Deeuesu³ee keÀener efjheesìd&me®³ee DeeOeejs Keel³eeb®es 
Je l³eeceOeerue J³eJenejeb®es cee@efveìjeRie keÀjCes, yeBkesÀleerue He´Àe@[dme®es efjPeJn& yeBkesÀme  
efjheese\ìie keÀjCes lemes®e yeBkesÀleerue He´Àe@[dmeyeeyele keÀjC³eele Deeuesueer keÀe³e&Jeener 
Je l³eeceOeerue Peeuesues yeoue ³eeyeeyele efjPeJn& yeBkesÀme JesUsle keÀUefJeC³eeyeeyele®es 
keÀecekeÀepe ³ee efJeYeeieeÜejs keÀjC³eele ³esles.

ceeveJe mebmeeOeve Je he´efMe#eCe efJeYeeie -
yeBkesÀ®es keÀce&®eejer DeeefCe DeefOekeÀejer Jeie& ns yeBkesÀ®es meJee&le cenlJee®es IeìkeÀ Demetve, 
yeBkesÀ®³ee he´ieleerceO³es l³eeb®ee ceesuee®ee Jeeìe Deens. l³eecegUs yeBkesÀceO³es keÀecekeÀepeemeeþer 
³eesi³e DeeefCe DeeJeM³ekeÀ #ecelee DemeCeejs keÀce&®eejer efvecee&Ce keÀjCes ³eekeÀ[s J³eJemLeeheve 
efJeMes<e ue#e hegjefJeles Deens.

DenJeeue Je<ee&le yeBkesÀkeÀ[s SketÀCe 2,527 mesJekeÀ keÀe³e&jle nesles. ³eehewkeÀer 1,226 
DeefOekeÀejer Demetve 1,301 Dev³e mesJekeÀ Deensle, lej cee®e& 2023 DeKesj SketÀCe 
181 mesJekeÀ DeeTìmeesme& SpevmeerceeHe&Àle keÀe³e&jle nesles.
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yeBkesÀceO³es keÀece keÀjerle Demeuesu³ee keÀce&®eeN³eebvee heoesVeleer®³ee mebOeer GheueyOe keÀ©ve 
efou³ee peeleele. lemes®e l³eeb®eer Mew#eefCekeÀ iegCeJeÊee Jee{efJeC³eemeeþer l³eebvee he´eslmeeefnle 
kesÀues peeles.

meO³ee®³ee keÀeueeJeOeerle yeBeEkeÀie #es$eeceO³es nesCeejs efJeefJeOe yeoue DeeefCe DeeJneves ³eebvee 
meeceesjs peeC³eemeeþer keÀce&®eejer Jeie& me#ece DemeCes DeeJeM³ekeÀ Demeles, ³eekeÀjerlee 
l³eeb®³eemeeþer JesieJesieÈ³ee he´keÀej®es he´efMe#eCe Dee³eesefpele kesÀues peeles. ³eeceO³es cenlJee®es 
efJe<e³e cnCepes Cyber Security, Digital Banking DeeefCe Retail Loans 
assessment. ³eeefMeJee³e ie´enkeÀebvee meceeOeevekeÀejkeÀ mesJee osC³eemeeþer DeeJeM³ekeÀ 
leer DeÐe³eeJele ceeefnleer DeeefCe mebYee<eCe keÀewMeu³e, ns keÀce&®eeN³eebvee he´ehle nesF&ue ³eemeeþer 
efJeMes<e he´³elve kesÀues peeleele.

DenJeeue Je<ee&leerue SkeÀ cenlJee®eer Ieìvee cnCepes Þeer Meejoe menkeÀejer yeBkesÀ®es Deeheu³ee 
yeBkesÀceOeerue efJeefueveerkeÀjCe. ³ee efJeefueve Peeuesu³ee yeBkesÀleerue keÀce&®eeN³eebvee he´efMe#eCe osCes 
Je keÀecekeÀepeemeeþer DeeJeM³ekeÀ les meene³³e osCes ns keÀece efJeMes<elJeeves keÀjC³eele Deeues.
DenJeeue Je<ee&le yeBkeÀ J³eJemLeeheve Je Debleie&le mesJekeÀ mebIeìvee ³eeb®esceO³es meewneo&hetCe& 
mebyebOe jeefnues Deensle.

peesKeerce J³eJemLeeheve 
1. ®eerHeÀ efjmkeÀ Dee@efHeÀmej- 
peeieeflekeÀ mlejeJej Demeuesu³ee he´®eefuele he×leer, yeBeEkeÀie #es$eeleerue Jee{leer eqkeÌueälee 
DeeefCe DeLe&J³eJemLesJej nesT MekeÀCeeje efJeheefjle heefjCeece ìeUCes ³eemeeþer efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves 
leheemeCeer Je efve³eb$eCeekeÀjerlee peesKeerceefvene³e¢äerkeÀesve mJeerkeÀejuee Deens. l³eevegmeej 
petve 2021 ceO³es efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves `5,000 keÀesìerhes#ee DeefOekeÀ keÀpe& Demeuesu³ee 
veeiejer menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebveer mJeleb$e peesKeerce J³eJemLeeheve J³eJemLee keÀ©ve l³eemeeþer 
®eerHeÀ efjmkeÀ Dee@efHeÀmej®eer efo.31 cee®e& 2022 hetJeea vesceCetkeÀ keÀjC³ee®³ee met®evee  
efou³ee nesl³ee.

³eehetJeeaner Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀceO³es peesKeerce J³eJemLeehevee®es keÀece keÀjC³eele ³esle nesles®e.  
hejbleg efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee ³ee heefjhe$ekeÀecegUs ³eeme Deewhe®eeefjkeÀ Je ceO³eJeleea mJe©he 
osC³eele Deeues.  l³eevegmeej meb®eeuekeÀeb®eer efjmkeÀ ce@vespecesvì meefceleer Je keÀe³ee&ue³eerve 
mlejeJejerue ¬esÀef[ì efjmkeÀ ce@vespecesvì meefceleer, Dee@hejsMeveue efjmkeÀ ce@vespecesvì meefceleer 
DeMee keÀener meefcel³ee keÀe³e&jle keÀjC³eele Deeu³ee Deensle. keÀe³ee&ue³eerve mlejeJejerue  
De@mesì uee³eefyeueerìer meefceleer ³eehetJeeaheemetve yeBkesÀceO³es keÀe³e&jle nesleer®e.  ³ee meefceleerceO³es 
Deelee ceekexÀì Je lejuelesyeeyele®eer peesKeerce ³eeyeeyelener efJe®eej keÀjC³eele ³eslees.  Dee³eìer 
mebyebOeer efJeefJeOe peesKeceeR®ee efJe®eej keÀjC³eemeeþer yeBkesÀceO³es FvHeÀcexMeve efmekeÌ³egefjìer 
meefceleer keÀe³e&jle Deens.

keÀe³ee&ue³eerve mlejeJejerue ³ee meefcel³ee keÀecekeÀepeeleerue peesKeceer DeesUKetve l³eeb®ee 
he´YeeJe keÀceer keÀjCesyeeyele meb®eeuekeÀ meom³eeb®³ee efjmkeÀ ce@vespecesvì meefceleerme DenJeeue 
meeoj keÀjleele Je Debleerceleë meoj®eer efjmkeÀ ce@vespecesvì meefceleer meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueme 
DenJeeue meeoj keÀjles. ³ee meJee¥®³ee ceeie&oMe&veeKeeueer yeBkesÀceO³es SkeÀeeqlcekeÀ peesKeerce 
J³eJemLeeheve he×leer jeyeefJeCesyeeyele keÀe³e&Jeener meg© Deens.

DenJeeue Je<ee&ceO³es peesKeerce J³eJemLeeheveeves ³eeyeeyele®es keÀecekeÀepe DeefOekeÀ me#ece 
keÀjC³eemeeþer efJeefJeOe Ghe¬eÀce jeyeefJeues nesles. ³eeceO³es heg{erue he´cegKe yeeyeer meceeefJeä 
Deensle,

	 keÀpe&, lejuelee DeeefCe Dee@hejsMevme ¿ee functions meeþer Risk Appetite 
framework keÀjCes.

	 Debleie&le ¬esÀef[ì jsìeRie cee@[sueceO³es Industry Je Management ®³ee 
efvekeÀ<eeb®ee meceeJesMe keÀ©ve l³eeceO³es keÀener yeoue keÀ©ve ceesþîee keÀpe&oejebmeeþer 
ueeiet Demeuesu³ee J³eepeojebmeeþer®³ee efvekeÀ<eebceO³es yeoue keÀjCes.

	 Liquidity Ratios DeeefCe stress testing ³eeb®ee þjeefJekeÀ JeejbJeejlesves 
Dee{eJee IesCes.

³eeJ³eefleefjkeÌle, peeieeflekeÀ DeLe&J³eJemLesceOeerue Je yeBeEkeÀie #es$eeleerue yeoue/ Guee{eueer 
³eeb®ee efJe®eej keÀjC³eele ³eslees. DenJeeue Je<ee&le Expected Credit Loss, 
nJeeceeveeleerue yeouee®eer peesKeerce, ef[efpeìue ®eueve F.Deeieeceer keÀeUele cenÊJehetCe& 
þjuesu³ee efJe<e³eeb®eener keÀe³ee&ue³eerve meefceleerceO³es efJe®eej keÀjC³eele Deeuee.

héYeeJeer efve³eb$eCe, yeBkesÀ®³ee J³eJemee³eJee{er®³ee¢äerves mecevJe³e meeOeCes Je mebmLes®³ee 
mLew³ee&®³ee¢äerves keÀecekeÀepe keÀjCes ³eeceO³es J³eJemLeeheveeme meene³³e keÀjC³eemeeþer 
yeBkesÀceO³es peesKeerce J³eJemLeehevee®eer mLeehevee keÀ©ve les keÀe³ee&eqvJele keÀjC³eele  
Deeues Deens.

2. ®eerHeÀ FvHeÀcexMeve efmekeÌ³egefjìer Dee@efHeÀmeme&-
meelel³eeves Je Jesieeves efJekeÀefmele nesCeeN³ee JeeleeJejCeele yeBkesÀ®es keÀecekeÀepe nesle Demeleevee 
J³eJemee³eeleerue Je heefjeqmLeleerleerue DebieYetle DeMee efJeefJeOe he´keÀej®³ee peesKeceeRvee yeBkesÀme 
meeceesjs peeJes ueeieles.   ¿eeleerue keÀener peesKeceer yeBeEkeÀie #es$eeleerue Je yeBeEkeÀie J³eJemee³eeleerue 
DebieYetle Deensle.  yeBeEkeÀie J³eJemee³ee®eer peeieeflekeÀ / jeä^er³e heeleUerJejerue heesnes®e, 
J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ mheOee&, ef[efpeìe³ePesMeve, Jesie Je yeBeEkeÀie keÀe³e&he×leerceOeerue eqkeÌueälee 
³eecegUs efJeefJeOe peesKeceer efvecee&Ce Peeu³ee Demetve ojjespe veJeveJeerve peesKeceer / OeeskesÀ 
meceesj ³esle Deensle.  yeBeEkeÀie J³eJemee³e keÀjleevee GÓJeCeeN³ee DeMee efJeefJeOe he´keÀej®³ee 
peesKeceer JesUsle DeesUKetve l³eeb®es efJeMues<eCe keÀjCes Je l³eeb®es nesCeejs efJeheefjle heefjCeece 
ìeUCes Deiej efkeÀceevehe#eer keÀceer keÀjCes ³eemeeþer keÀener keÀe³e&he×leer yeBkesÀceO³es jeyeefJeCes 
peesKeerce J³eJemLeehevee®es cegK³e GefÎä Deens.

yeBkesÀ®es keÀecekeÀepe efveeq½ele kesÀuesu³ee hee@efuemeerpe Je OeesjCeebvee megmebiele Demeu³ee®eer 
Kee$eer yeBkesÀleerue Dev³e efJeYeeieeb®³ee ceoleerves peesKeerce J³eJemLeeheve efJeYeeieeceeHe&Àle kesÀueer  
peeles.

J³eJemee³eeleerue efJeefJeOe peesKeceeR®³ee meJe&meceeJesMekeÀ cetu³eebkeÀveecegUs yeBkesÀ®ee 
J³eJemee³e, ie´enkeÀmesJee lemes®e Debleie&le efve³eb$eCe Je efJeefJeOe keÀe³e&he´CeeueeR®eer osKejsKe ³ee 
yeeyeer megkeÀj Peeu³ee Deensle.  yeBeEkeÀie J³eJemee³eeceO³es GÓJeCeeN³ee efJeefJeOe he´keÀej®³ee 
peesKeceeRyeeyele yeBkesÀ®es mesJekeÀ Je DeefOekeÀejer ³eeb®esceO³es peeie©keÀlee efvecee&Ce keÀjC³ee®es 
keÀecener ³ee efJeYeeieeceeHe&Àle keÀjC³eele ³esles.

yeBkesÀ®³ee J³eJemee³ee®es Deveg<ebieeves Dee@hejsMeveue efjmkeÀ, HeÀe³eveeeqvMeDeue efjmkeÀ lemes®e 
Dee³eìer efmekeÌ³egefjìer efjmkeÀ DeMee efJeefJeOe peesKeceer efveeq½ele keÀjC³eele Deeu³ee Deensle.  
³eemeeþer yeBkesÀceO³es Operational Risk policy, Principal Risk Policy, 
Business Continuity policy, Information Security Policy, Cyber 
Security Policy DeMeer efJeefJeOe OeesjCes keÀe³ee&eqvJele keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deensle.  ³ee 
OeesjCeeb®ee JesUesJesUer Dee{eJee IesTve ³eeceO³es DeeJeM³ekeÀlesvegmeej yeoue keÀjC³eele 
³esleele.

yeBkesÀleerue Dee³eìer efmekeÌ³egefjìerceOeerue megOeejCee-
yeBeEkeÀie J³eJemee³e keÀjleevee mee³eyej Deì@keÀmebyebOeer OeeskesÀ Je mebyebefOele peesKeceer 
meO³ee DeveskeÀheìerves Jee{uesu³ee efometve ³esle Deensle. DeMeehe´keÀej®³ee peesKeceer keÀceer 
keÀjC³eemeeþer yeBkesÀceOeerue he´®eefuele keÀe³e&he×leer Je efve³eb$eCe J³eJemLee ³eebceO³es megOeejCee 
keÀjC³eemeeþer DeefJejle he´³elve keÀjC³eele ³esle Deensle. meO³ee peieeceO³es mee³eyej 
nuu³ee®³ee peesKeceerceO³es ue#eCeer³e Jee{ Peeueer Deens. DeMee mee³eyej OeeskeÌ³eeb®eer 
MekeÌ³elee keÀceer keÀjC³ee®es¢äerves efJeefJeOe control systems DeefOekeÀ meMekeÌle Je 
DeÐe³eeJele keÀjC³eemeeþer yeBkeÀ keÀe³ece he´³elveMeerue Deens.  meO³ee®³ee heefjeqmLeleerceO³es 
ie´enkeÀmesJes®³ee¢äerves SKeeoer veJeerve ef[efpeìue mesJee keÀe³ee&eqvJele keÀjC³eehetJeea l³eeceO³es 
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GÓJet MekeÀCeeN³ee mee³eyej OeeskeÌ³ee®ee efJe®eej keÀjC³eele ³esTve l³eeJej Ghee³e³eespevee 
keÀjC³eele ³esles.  yeBkesÀleerue Cyber Security Framework DeeefCe Cyber 
Crisis Management Plan DeefOekeÀ meMekeÌle Je keÀe³e&#ece keÀjC³eele Deeues  
Deensle.

Society for Worldwide Interbank Financial Telecommunication 
(SWIFT) ³eebveer peenerj kesÀuesu³ee megj#ee ceeie&oMe&keÀ meg®eveeb®es yeBkesÀceO³es mekeÌleerves 
heeueve nesle Demeu³ee®eer Kee$eer keÀjC³eele ³esles.  yeBkesÀleerue efJeefJeOe he´keÀej®eer ceeefnleer 
peleve keÀjCes, neleeUCes lemes®e DeveeJeM³ekeÀ ceeefnleer JesUsle veä keÀjCes F.®³ee Deveg<ebieeves 
megjef#eleles®es efJeefJeOe hewuet Information Security Policy ceO³es meceeefJeä 
keÀjC³eele Deeues Deensle.  ceeefnleerhe$ekesÀ, Fcesue, he´efMe#eCes F.ceeO³eceeb®ee Jeehej keÀ©ve 
mee³eyej megjef#eleles®³ee¢äerves yeBkesÀ®es mesJekeÀ Je DeefOekeÀejer ³eeb®esceO³es peeie©keÀlee 
efvecee&Ce kesÀueer peeles. lemes®e ceeefnleerhe$ekesÀ, heesmìme&, SmeSceSme F.ceeO³eceebÜejs 
ie´enkeÀebceO³esner mee³eyej megjef#eleles®³ee¢äerves peeie©keÀlee efvecee&Ce keÀjC³eele ³esle Deens.  
yeBkesÀceO³es megjef#elelesmeeþer veJeveJeerve Ghee³e ³eespeCes Jee DeeqmlelJeele Demeuesues Ghee³e 
DeefOekeÀ me#ece keÀjCes ³eemeeþer Information Security Risk Team Je IT 
Team meelel³eeves Je mecevJe³eeves keÀece keÀjerle Deens.  efJeefJeOe he´keÀej®³ee Dee³eìer 
efjmkeÀ®ee OeeskeÀe keÀceer keÀjC³eemeeþer yeBkesÀ®es [sìe meWìj Je ef[Peemìj efjkeÀJnjer meWìj 
³eeb®es JesUesJesUer Information System (IS) Audit keÀjC³eele ³esles.  yeBkesÀceO³es 
Jeehejele Demeuesu³ee efJeefJeOe mebieCekeÀ he´Ceeueer efJe®eejhetJe&keÀ Je hegjsMee megjef#elelesceO³es 
jeyeefJeC³eele ³esle Demeu³ee®eerner ³ee Dee@ef[ìojc³eeve Kee$eer keÀ©ve IesC³eele ³esles.  lemes®e 
DeeJeM³ekeÀlesvegmeej megj#eeGhee³eebceO³es Jee{ keÀjCes iejpes®es Demeu³eeme ³eeyeeyele 
efMeHeÀejme ³ee Dee@ef[ìÜejs keÀjC³eele ³esles. yeBkesÀceO³es Vulnerability Analysis 
and Penetration Testing ³ee yeeyeer efve³eefceleheCes jeyeefJeC³eele ³esleele Je 
l³eeceO³es keÀener $egìer Dee{Utve Deeu³eeme lJejerle Ghee³e³eespevee keÀjC³eele ³esles. yeBkesÀleerue 
keÀesDej yeBeEkeÀie meesu³etMeve DeefOekeÀ cepeyetle keÀjC³eemeeþer yeBkesÀceO³es l³eeyeeyele®es  
Dee@ef[ì keÀjC³eele ³esles. ³eecegUs meoj®eer keÀe³e&he´Ceeueer DeefOekeÀ me#ece Je megOeeefjle 
nesTve ie´enkeÀebvee DeefJejle Je efyevele¬eÀej ie´enkeÀmesJee oslee ³esles.

ie´enkeÀebvee osC³eele ³esCeeN³ee mesJeeb®ee opee& megOeejC³eemeeþer yeBkesÀceO³es veJeerve leb$e%eeve Je 
DeÐe³eeJele yeBeEkeÀie ³eb$eCee jeyeefJeC³eele ³esles.  lemes®e GÊece mee³eyej megj#ee keÀe³e&he×leer 
jeyeJetve yeBkesÀleerue megj#ee Ghee³e DeefOekeÀ me#ece keÀjC³eele ³esle Deensle. ³ee Debleie&le 
heg{erue yeeyeer yeBkesÀceO³es he´®eefuele Deensle,

01.	 yeBkesÀ®es mesJekeÀ Je DeefOekeÀejer ³eeb®esceO³es mee³eyej megjef#eleles®³ee¢äerves 
peeie©keÀlee efvecee&Ce JneJeer lemes®e l³eeb®es %eeve DeÐe³eeJele jneJes ³eemeeþer l³eebvee 
Fcesume, ceeefnleerhe$ekesÀ F.Üejs meelel³eeves he´efMeef#ele keÀjC³eele ³esle Deens.  
lemes®e ie´enkeÀebceO³esner DeMeehe´keÀej®eer peeie©keÀlee efvecee&Ce keÀjC³eele ³esle Deens.

02.	 HeÀmeJ³ee Fcesume®es he´³elve efJeHeÀue JneJesle ³eemeeþer Fcesue iesìJes JesUesJesUer 
DeefOekeÀ megjef#ele keÀjC³eele ³esle Deens. DeMee Fcesume yeBkesÀceOeerue 
JeehejkeÀl³ee¥he³e¥le heesnes®et ve³esle ³eemeeþer Demes Fcesume MeesOetve keÀe{tve l³eebvee 
efve<he´Ye keÀjCeejer ³eb$eCee (Spam Filters) keÀe³ee&eqvJele keÀjC³eele Deeueer 
Deens.  Email spoofing ìeUC³eemeeþer Debleie&le Fcesume®³ee mel³eles®eer 
he[leeUCeer keÀjC³eemeeþer GÊece leb$e%eevee®ee DeJeuebye keÀjC³eele Deeuee Deens.

03.	 Cyber Crisis Management Plan yeBkesÀceO³es jeyeefJeC³eele ³esle Deens.

04.	 yeBkesÀleerue efJeefJeOe he´esmesmesme ceO³eJeleeaefjl³ee neleeUC³eemeeþer yeBkesÀceO³es 
Cyber Security Framework DeeefCe hee@efuemeer®es heeueve keÀjC³eele ³esles.

05.	 efJeefJeOe efve³eecekeÀ mebmLeebkeÀ[tve JesUesJesUer peenerj keÀjC³eele ³esCeejer heefjhe$ekesÀ/ 
ceeie&oMe&keÀ met®evee ³eeceOeerue meJe& yeeyeer yeBkesÀceO³es jeyeefJeC³eele ³esle Deensle.  
lemes®e ³ee yeeyeeR®es heeueve nesle Demeu³eeJejner osKejsKe þsJeC³eele ³esles.

06.	 J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ¢äîee cenÊJee®³ee hee³eeYetle megefJeOeebmeeþer DeÐe³eeJele Demes 
Security Operations Centre (SOC) yeBkesÀceO³es keÀe³ee&eqvJele 
keÀjC³eele Deeues Deens. lemes®e yeBkesÀceO³es Debleie&le SOC incident 
response team keÀe³e&jle Deens.

07.	 efve³eecekeÀ mebmLeebkeÀ[tve peenerj nesCeeN³ee ceeie&oMe&keÀ met®evee Je He´sÀceJeke&À 
F.®eer hetle&lee nesle Demeu³ee®eer keÀe³ee&ue³eerve mlejeJejerue efJeefJeOe meefcel³ee Je 
meb®eeuekeÀ meom³eeb®eer meefceleer ³eeceeHe&Àle Kee$eer keÀjC³eele ³esles.

08.	 megjef#elelesmeeþer DeÐe³eeJele DeMee Firewalls, Deception Technology 
DeeefCe  Anti Virus ³eemeejK³ee megj#ee ³eb$eCee yeBkesÀceO³es keÀe³ee&eqvJele keÀjC³eele 
Deeu³ee Deensle.

09.	 yeBkesÀceO³es Red Team Exercise kesÀuee peelees.

10.	 yeBkesÀceO³es Anti phishing DeeefCe anti rouge applications IesC³eele 
Deeueer Deensle.

11.	 yeBkesÀceO³es Brand Protection monitoring solution jeyeefJeC³eele ³esle 
Deens.

12.	 yeBkesÀceO³es Access Control mechanism keÀe³ee&eqvJele keÀjC³eele Deeues 
Demetve ³eeDebleie&le yeBkesÀ®es mesJekeÀ Je DeefOekeÀejer ³eebvee l³eeb®³ee keÀecekeÀepee®es 
mJe©he Je DeeJeM³ekeÀlesvegmeej Debleie&le keÀe³e&he´CeeueeR®ee Jeehej keÀjC³ee®es 
ce³ee&efole DeefOekeÀej osC³eele Deeues Deensle.

13.	 ATM, SWIFT Je CBS ³ee keÀe³e&he´Ceeueer SkeÀceskeÀebheemetve efJeYekeÌle 
þsJeC³eele Deeu³ee Deensle.

14.	 yeBkesÀceO³es PIM Solution for server DeeefCe network devices 
access management jeyeefJeC³eele Deeu³ee Deensle.

15.	 yeBkesÀleerue meJe& cenÊJee®³ee keÀe³e&he´CeeueeRmeeþer 2F Authentication 
jeyeefJeC³eele ³esle Deens.

16.	 yeBkesÀleerue cenÊJee®³ee applications ®ee Source Code Review 
IesC³eele ³eslees.

17.	 yeBkesÀceO³es End point disk encryption solution keÀe³ee&eqvJele keÀjC³eele 
Deeues Deens.

18.	 cenÊJee®³ee meJn&me&meeþer yeBkesÀceO³es Host Intrusion Prevention 
System (HIPS) keÀe³e&jle Deens.

19.	 yeBkesÀceO³es Data Leak Prevention (DLP) Technology, Network 
Access Control (NAC) System DeeefCe Database Access 
Monitoring (DAM) keÀe³e&jle keÀjC³eele Deeues Deens.

Dee³eìermebyebOeer mesJee megefJeOee-

01.	 SìerSce Jee hee@meceefMeveÜejs nesCeejs J³eJenej jÎ nesC³ee®³ee he´ceeCeeleerue 
Ieì-

	 SìerSce Jee hee@me ceefMeveÜejs keÀjC³eele ³esCeejs J³eJenej jÎ nesC³ee®eer DeveskeÀ 
keÀejCes Deensle. ³ee®ee Lesì heefjCeece yeBkesÀ®³ee yeW®eceee\keÀieJej neslees. Dev³e 
yeBkeÀeb®³ee ATM, POS ìe|ceveume F.megefJeOee JeehejCeeN³ee Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee 
ie´enkeÀebmeeþer ³eesi³e he´ceeCeerkeÀjCe ueeiet kesÀu³eecegUs SìerSce Jee hee@meceefMeveÜejs 
nesCeejs J³eJenej jÎ nesC³ee®³ee he´ceeCeele Ieì nesF&ue.
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02.	 Yeejle F&keÀe@ceme& hesceWì iesìJes -

	 [sefyeì keÀe[&Üejs mLee³eer met®evee/EMI Deoe keÀjCes, efjkeÀeEjie hescesvì keÀjCes, 
ìeskeÀvee³ePesMeve F. mesJeeb®³ee megkeÀjlesmeeþer yeBkesÀves NPCI ®ee veJeerve hesceWì 
iesìJes BEPG (Dee@veueeFve hesceWìmeeþer) ueeiet kesÀuee Deens. 

03.	 Fbìjvesì yeBeEkeÀie megefJeOesceOeerue DeefOekeÀ JewefMeäîes -

	 DeeOegefvekeÀ yeBeEkeÀie®ee DevegYeJe Demeuesu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee ie´enkeÀebmeeþer meO³ee®³ee 
Fbìjvesì yeBeEkeÀie megefJeOesceO³es DeÐe³eeJele leb$e%eeve Je JewefMeäîes meceeefJeä keÀ©ve 
megOeeefjle Fbìjvesì yeBeEkeÀie megefJeOee GheueyOe keÀ©ve osC³eele Deeueer Deens.  l³eeceO³es  
DeekeÀ<e&keÀ Je veeefJev³ehetCe& FbìjHesÀme, ie´enkeÀeb®³ee ceeieCeervegmeej DeeJeM³ekeÀ 
yeeyeer, meesMeue efceef[³eeyejesyej mecevJe³e, jesKe jkeÀces®³ee J³eJemLes®eer meeOeves Je 
Del³eeJeM³ekeÀ megj#ee JewefMeäîes ³eeb®ee meceeJesMe keÀjC³eele Deeuee Deens.

04. 	 ef[efpeìue keÀpe& 

	 uesKeer keÀpe& Depe& Ye©ve oeKeue keÀjC³ee®³ee he´ef¬eÀ³esleerue ueeieCeeje JesU keÀceer 
keÀjC³eemeeþer, Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀceO³es veJeerve De@eqhuekesÀMeve efJekeÀefmele keÀjC³eele 
³esle Demetve ³eecegUs ie´enkeÀebkeÀ[tve keÀpe& ceeieCeer ³esCes Je Keeles lJeefjle GIe[Ces 
menpe MekeÌ³e nesCeej Deens. 

05.	 Keeles GIe[C³ee®³ee he´ef¬eÀ³esmeeþer ueeieCeeje JesU keÀceer keÀjCes

	 Keeles GIe[C³ee®³ee he´ef¬eÀ³esmeeþer ueeieCeeje JesU keÀceer keÀjC³eemeeþer Deeheu³ee 
yeBkesÀves MeeKeebceO³es Keeles GIe[C³ee®eer he´ef¬eÀ³ee mJe³eb®eefuele kesÀueer Deens. 
³eeÜejs ie´enkeÀeuee lJeefjle Keeles ¬eÀceebkeÀ efceUsue DeeefCe lJejerle KeelesJ³eJenej 
keÀjCes MekeÌ³e nesCeej Deens. ³eeÜejs DeeOeej ¬eÀceebkeÀ eEkeÀJee he@ve Jeehe©ve Keeles 
GIe[lee ³esCeej Deens. UIDAI API ®³ee meene³³eeves ie´enkeÀe®³ee ceesyeeF&ue 
vebyejJej OTP heeþJetve DeeOeej he´ceeCeerkeÀjCe kesÀues peele Deens.

06.	 TimePay EVOK - API mesJee hue@ìHeÀe@ce&

	 TimePay EVOK ns ef[efpeìue mesJee ceeO³ece ueneve, ceO³ece Je ceesþîee 
J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀebvee hesceWì Je keÀueskeÌMeveyeeyele mesJee hegjefJeC³eemeeþer efJekeÀefmele 
kesÀues iesues Deens. TimePay EVOK ceO³es cetU leb$e%eeve ³egheerDee³e mebyebefOele 
Jeehejues Deens. ³eeJej DeefleefjkeÌle efJeefJeOe mesJeeb®eer j®evee kesÀuesueer Deens. Goe. 
QR Solution, mJe³eb®eefuele hesceWì (Auto Pay), ie´enkeÀ he[leeUCeer, 
hesceWì iesìJes, Jee@uesì YejCee, Reconciliation, Sound Box F.meJe& mesJee 
TimePay EVOK ceOetve J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀebvee l³eeb®³ee iejpesvegmeej efceUefJelee 
³esleele. TimePay EVOK ns yeBkesÀme DeefleMe³e Ghe³egkeÌle Deens, keÀejCe 
³eeceOetve ceesþîeehe´ceeCeeJej ef[efpeìue J³eJenej neleeUlee ³esleele, lemes®e l³eeJej 
yeBkesÀmeeþer DeefleefjÊeÀ GlheVe m$eesle efvecee&Ce neslees.

07. 	 ie´enkeÀeb®³ee ceeieCeervegmeej Fbmìe keÀe[& -

	 ie´enkeÀeb®³ee efJevebleervegmeej l³eebvee leelkeÀeU [sefyeì keÀe[& osC³eemeeþer, yeBkesÀceeHe&Àle 
Fbmìe keÀe[& osC³ee®eer megefJeOee GheueyOe keÀ©ve osC³eele Deeueer Deens. MeeKeebceO³es 
GIe[Cee´³ee meJe& veJeerve Keel³eebmeeþer lemes®e efJeÐeceeve ie´enkeÀebmeeþer Fvmìe keÀe[& 
oslee ³esCeej Deens. Keeles GIe[u³eeveblej, ie´enkeÀeuee lJejerle meoj®es keÀe[& efoues 
peeF&ue DeeefCe les 48 leemeeble meef¬eÀ³e kesÀues peeF&ue.

Fvmìe keÀe[& megefJeOescegUs,

	 ie´enkeÀeuee MeeKesle leeye[leesye [sefye[ keÀe[& efceUsue DeeefCe keÀecekeÀepee®³ee oesve 
efoJemeeble keÀe[& l³eeb®es Keel³eeMeer mebueive kesÀues peeF&ue.

	 UPI meeþer lJeefjle veeWoCeer keÀjlee ³esT MekesÀue.

	 SkeÀoe ie´erve efheve mesì kesÀu³eeJej, ie´enkeÀebvee ns keÀe[& meJe& keÀe[& J³eJenejebmeeþer 
lJeefjle Jeehejlee ³esT MekesÀue.

Fvmìe keÀe[dme& ie´enkeÀebvee osC³eemeeþer Fvmìe keÀe[& ce@vespeceWì De@eqhuekesÀMevemeg×e 
efJekeÀefmele DeeefCe keÀe³ee&eqvJele kesÀues Deens.

08. WhatsApp yeBeEkeÀie

keÀe@mecee@me yeBkesÀ®³ee ie´enkeÀebmeesyele®e Deeheueer Jne@ìdmeDe@he yeBeEkeÀie mesJee Dev³e 
veeiejerkeÀebmeeþerner GheueyOe keÀ©ve osC³eele Deeueer Deens.

³eeceO³es Keeles efMeuuekeÀ heneCes, Keeles J³eJeneje®es ueneve mìsìceWì DeeefCe mìe@he ®eskeÀ 
³eeJ³eefleefjÊeÀ, heg{erue megefJeOeener GheueyOe keÀ©ve osC³eele Deeu³ee Deensle,

 	 efjJee@[& hee@Fbìdme efj[erce keÀjCes.

	 FASTag Dee@veueeFve peejer keÀjCes.

	 JesyemeeFìuee Yesì osCes.

	 ie´enkeÀ Dee³e[er leheemeCes.

yeBkesÀ®es ie´enkeÀ vemeuesu³ee veeiejerkeÀebmeeþer heg{erue megefJeOee GheueyOe keÀ©ve osC³eele 
Deeu³ee Deensle.

	 ye®ele Keeles GIe[Ces.

 	 JesyemeeFìuee Yesì osCes.

	 keÀe@mecee@me yeBkesÀ®es ATM MeesOeCes.

	 keÀe@mecee@me yeBkesÀ®eer MeeKee MeesOeCes.

09.	 WAIU De@hemen keÀe@mecee@me yeBkesÀ®eer Yeeieeroejer

Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves WAIU ³ee De@eqhuekesÀMeveÜejs yeBkesÀ®³ee ie´enkeÀebvee jsmìe@jbì mesJee 
osC³eemeeþer Truevibez Pvt. Ltd. meesyele Yeeieeroejer kesÀueer Deens. ³ee megefJeOes®eer 
JewefMeäîes heg{eruehe´ceeCes Deensle,

	 WAIU ner Yeejleeleerue heefnueer `Dine Now, Pay Later' mesJee he´oelee 
Demetve leer Deelee hegC³eeleosKeerue meg© Peeueer Deens. WAIU Üejs, lelkeÀeU 
hesceWì keÀjC³ee®³ee yebOeveeefMeJee³e ie´enkeÀebvee hegC³eeleerue veeceJeble jsmìe@jbì®³ee 
mesJeeb®ee ueeYe Ieslee ³esCeej Deens. 18 efoJeme eEkeÀJee 35 efoJemeeveblej  
jsmìe@jbì®³ee efyeuee®es hescesvì keÀjCes Jee meoj®es efyeue 3 nhl³eebceO³es Deoe 
keÀjCes Demes J³eepecegÊeÀ hescesvì keÀjC³ee®es he³ee&³e ie´enkeÀebvee ³ee megefJeOesDebleie&le 
GheueyOe DemeCeej Deensle.

	 ³eeJ³eefleefjkeÌle, keÀe@mecee@me yeBkesÀ®es mesJekeÀ- DeefOekeÀejer DeeefCe ie´enkeÀebmeeþer, 
WAIU ves SkeÀ efJeMes<e Dee@HeÀj efJekeÀefmele kesÀueer Deens, p³eeÜejs ie´enkeÀebveer 
WAIU De@heJej keÀe@mecee@me yeBkesÀ®es efJeefJeOe ef[efpeìue hescesvì he³ee&³e Jeehe©ve 
jsmìe@jbìd®es efyeue lJeefjle Deoe kesÀu³eeme, meoj efyeue cetu³eeJej 12… meJeuele 
efceUsue.

	 lemes®e, jsmìe@jbìceO³es ³esC³eehetJeea ie´enkeÀ l³eeb®es ìsyeue hetJe&Deejef#ele keÀ© 
MekeÀleerue.

10. 	 UPI hueie-Fve

	 J³eeheeN³eebmeeþer hesceWì mJeerke=Àleer DeeefCe UPI SkeÀ$eerkeÀjCe megOeejC³eemeeþer 
NPCI Üejs UPI hueie-Fve mesJee megª keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deens. hescesvì 
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mesJee osCeeN³ee yeBkesÀves efJekeÀefmele kesÀuesu³ee cegK³e De@eqhuekesÀMeve®es SDK 
(Software Development Kit) Yeeieeroej De@eqhuekesÀMeveceO³es meceeefJeä 
keÀjC³eemeeþer GheueyOe Deens. Deeheueer yeBkeÀ hetJeeaheemetve®e UPI Channel 
meeþer acquirer cnCetve keÀece keÀjerle Demetve Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®es mJeleë®es 
’SoPay” ns UPI Application keÀe³e&jle Deens. 

11. 	 HeÀe@ce& 15G - 15H DeeefCe ie=nkeÀpe& J³eepe mee|ìefHeÀkesÀìmeeþer API ®ee 
efJekeÀeme

	 Fbìjvesì yeBeEkeÀieÜejs HeÀe@ce& 15G-15H DeeefCe ie=nkeÀpe& J³eepe he´ceeCehe$e 
³eeb®es eEhe´ì keÀjlee ³eeJes ³eemeeþer Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves API efJekeÀefmele kesÀues Deens. 
³eeÜejs yeBkesÀ®³ee Fbìjvesì yeBeEkeÀie mesJee JeeHejCeeN³ee ie´enkeÀebvee MeeKesuee he´l³e#e 
Yesì osC³eeSsJepeer Fbìjvesì yeBeEkeÀie megefJeOee Jeehe©ve Dee@veueeF&ve Depee&Üejs l³eeb®es 
HeÀe@ce& 15G-15H DeeefCe ie=nkeÀpe& J³eepe mee|ìefHeÀkesÀì GheueyOe nesT 
MekesÀue.

12. 	 Dee³e ìer he´efMe#eCe mesìDehe®eer mLeehevee - 

	 yeBkesÀves Dee³e ìer meboYee&leerue he´efMe#eCeemeeþer meJe& DeeJeM³ekeÀ hee³eeYetle 
megefJeOeebmen keÀe@mecee@me ìe@JejceO³es  keÀe³ecemJe©heer mesìDehe mLeeheve kesÀuee Deens. 
³eeÜejs SkeÀe JesUsme 25 he´efMe#eCeeLeeAvee Dee³eìer mebyebefOele he´efMe#eCe oslee ³esT 
MekesÀue. 

13. 	 [sìe JesDejneTme - 

	 yeBkesÀves efJeefJeOe DenJeeueebmeeþer [sìe JesDejneTme mebkeÀuhevee Jeehe©ve visual 
analytical DenJeeue ³eb$eCee jeyeefJeueer Deens. ³ee visual analytical 
DenJeeueebÜejs yeBkesÀ®³ee G®®e J³eJemLeeheveeme [@Meyees[& mJe©heele ceeefnleer 
GheueyOe nesT MekesÀue. lemes®e efJeefJeOe DeeuesKeeb®³ee DeeOeejs peueo efveCe&³e 
IesC³eeme ceole nesF&ue. leejKee, efJeYeeie, GheefJeYeeie DeeefCe MeeKee ³eeb®³eeleerue 
ceeefnleer®eer leguevee keÀjlee ³esT MekesÀue. ³eeheg{s keÀceerle keÀceer JesUele he´YeeJeer 
efveCe&³e IesC³eeme yeBkesÀ®³ee G®®e J³eJemLeeheveeme ceole nesF&ue.

14. 	 Sbìjhe´eF&pe Deee|keÀìskeÌ®ej efve³eespeve - 

	 yeBeEkeÀie leb$e%eeveele nesle Demeuesues peueo yeoue Je ef[efpeìue yeBeEkeÀieJej 
Demeuesues efve³eecekeÀ DeefOekeÀeN³eeb®es ue#e lemes®e ie´enkeÀeb®³ee ceeieC³eeb®eer 
hetle&lee, J³eJemee³ee®³ee iejpee peueoieleerves hetCe& keÀjC³eemeeþer Meeéele DeeefCe 
YeefJe<³eeleerue DeeOegefvekeÀ leb$e%eevee®ee efJe®eej kesÀuesuee Dee³eìer mesìDehe 
DemeC³ee®eer iejpe ue#eele IesTve yeBkesÀves Sbìjhe´eF&pe Deee|keÀìskeÌ®ej efve³eespeve 
le%e meuueeieeje®³ee ceoleerves keÀ©ve Iesleues Deens. ³eeÜejs J³eJemee³eJe=×er Je 
keÀe³e&#ecelesuee ieleer osC³ee®³ee¢äerves meoj efve³eespeve yeBkesÀme Ghe³egkeÌle þjsue.

15. 	 Dee@ìescesMeve / ìskeÌvee@uee@peer Deheie´s[sMeve Ghe¬eÀce - 

	 leb$e%eeveeceO³es meelel³eeves nesle Demeuesu³ee megOeejCee Je veJeveJeerve yeeyeeR®ee 
meceeJesMe ³eeb®ee efJe®eej keÀ©ve yeBkesÀ®eer Dee³e ìerce meO³ee keÀe³ee&eqvJele Demeuesu³ee 
he´CeeueeRceO³es / leb$e%eeveeceO³es DeeJeM³ekeÀ megOeejCee keÀjC³eemeeþer vesnceer Deie´Ceer 
Demeles. yeBkesÀle efJeefJeOe he´Ceeueer / ne[&JesDej mesìDehe keÀe³ece DeÐe³eeJele kesÀues 
peeleele. lemes®e keÀener veJeerve mee@HeÌìJesDej he´Ceeueer jeyeefJeu³ee peeleele. ³ee 
Deheie´s[sMevecegUs ie´enkeÀebvee hegjefJeC³eele ³esCeeN³ee mees³eer / megefJeOee Depetve 
Je=×eRiele nesC³eeme ceole Peeueer Deens.

i) 	 yeBkesÀves NACH he´CeeueerceOeerue Glke=Àälesmeeþer Heg{erue veJeerve ¢äerkeÀesve 
efJe®eejele IesTve meoj he´Ceeueer Deheie´s[ kesÀueer Deens.

	 	 J³eJenej he´ef¬eÀ³esle Dee@ìescesMeve

	 	 Corporates meeþer J³eJenejeb®eer Dee@ìes F&cesue efveefce&leerr

	 	 Mandate Authorisation meeþer ie´enkeÀeuee SMS

	 	 Mandate jÎ keÀjC³eeyeeyele F&cesue

	 	 JesU DeeefCe ceveg<³eyeUeceO³es Ieì

	 veJeerve NACH he´Ceeueer ie´enkeÀeb®³ee meJe& iejpee hetCe& keÀjC³eeme me#ece Deens.

ii) 	 Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves Kejsoer DeeefCe ceeueceÊee J³eJemLeeheveemeeþer veJeerve mee@
HeÌìJesDej he´Ceeueer jeyeefJeueer Deens. meoj he´CeeueercegUs ye@keÀ Dee@efHeÀme ìerce®es 
keÀece megkeÀj nesC³eeme  DeeefCe Dee@hejsMeveue Ke®e& keÀceer nesC³eeme ceole nesCeej  
Deens.

iii) 	 Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves meO³ee®³ee 27 SìerSce®³ee peeieer veJeerve Recyclers Iesleues 
Deensle. meoj Recyclers Üejs ie´enkeÀ megjef#eleheCes jesKe jkeÌkeÀce pecee keÀ© 
MekeÀleerue Je keÀe{t MekeÀleerue. ie´enkeÀebvee DeefleefjÊeÀ megj#esmen l³eeb®es SìerSce 
keÀe[& Jee Keeles ¬eÀceebkeÀ Jeehe©ve jesKe jkeÌkeÀce pecee keÀjlee ³esT MekesÀue.

iv) 	 yeBkesÀves YeefJe<³eeleerue ef[peerìue megOeejCee efJe®eejele IesTve keÀe³e&#ecelee DeeefCe 
efJeéemeveer³elee Jee{efJeC³eemeeþer Power servers, Blade servers 
DeeefCe [smkeÀìe@he Deheie´s[ kesÀues Deensle.

v) 	 yeBkesÀves DeeOegefvekeÀ JewefMeäîeebmen veJeerve Sbìjhe´eF&pe ye@keÀDehe meesu³egMeve jeyeefJeues 
Deens. ³ee DeeOegefvekeÀ Je he´iele ye@keÀDehe meesu³egMevecegUs ie´enkeÀ [sìe megjef#eleheCes 
mebie´nerle kesÀuee peeF&ue DeeefCe DeeJeM³ekeÀlesvegmeej menpe GheueyOe keÀ©ve oslee 
³esT MekesÀue. 

vi) 	 yeBkesÀves Sbìjhe´eF&pe F&cesue meesu³egMeve jeyeefJeues Deens, pes yeepeejeleerue GheueyOe 
ceneie meesu³egMevmeSsJepeer Del³eble efkeÀHeÀe³eleMeerj Deens.

vii) 	 yeBkesÀves p³ee MeeKeeb®eer he´eLeefcekeÀ DeeefCe og³³ece link keÀceer bandwidth ®eer 
Deens, DeMee MeeKeeb®eer bandwidth Deheie´s[ kesÀueer Deens. Bandwidth 
Deheie´s[sMevecegUs MeeKeeb®es keÀecekeÀepe megjUerle Je DeKebef[le ®eeueC³eeme 
ceole nesF&ue Je ie´enkeÀebvee lelhej DeeefCe DeKebef[le mesJee oslee ³esT  
MekesÀue.

viii) 	 MeeKeeb®eer keÀceerle keÀceer bandwidth Jeehejueer peeJeer DeeefCe [smkeÀìe@he®eer 
keÀe³e&#ecelee®ee Jee{eJeer ³eemeeþer yeBkesÀves he´l³eskeÀ MeeKesceO³es SkeÀ Super 
Node mebkeÀuhevee DeeCeueer Deens. Super Node cnCetve configure 
kesÀuesu³ee MeeKes®ee SkeÀ [smkeÀìe@he HeÀÊeÀ antivirus Dehe[sì keÀjsue. ³eecegUs 
MeeKeebceOeerue Flej [smkeÀìe@he®³ee keÀe³e&#ecelesceO³es megOeejCee nesF&ue DeeefCe 
ie´enkeÀebvee lelhej mesJee oslee ³esT MekesÀue.

16. 	 efJeefJeOe megj#ee Ghee³eeb®eer DebceueyepeeJeCeer/megj#ee ³eb$eCesceOeerue Jee{-

	 HeÀmeJeCegkeÀer®es J³eJenej nesT ve osCes, Deee|LekeÀ vegkeÀmeeve ìeUCes DeeefCe 
ie´enkeÀeb®³ee yeBeEkeÀie ceeueceÊes®es j#eCe keÀjCes ³eemeeþer yeBkesÀves efJeefJeOe cepeyetle 
megj#ee Ghee³eeb®eer DebceueyepeeJeCeer kesÀueer Deens.

	 	 SWIFT he´Ceeueer®eer Disaster Recovery Site.

	 	 yeBkesÀle Jeehejle Demeuesu³ee mebieCekeÀeleerue Data Encrption.

	 	 Data Base ceOeerue ef¬eÀ³ee leheemeCeermeeþer DAM Security 	
	 Solution
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	 	 efHeÀve@keÀue keÀesDej he´Ceeueer®eer User Authentication he´CeeueerMeer 	
	 meebie[

	 	 MeeKeeb®³ee vesìJeke&ÀceO³es vesìJeke&À eqmJe®e®ee meceeJesMe

	 	 HeÀeF&ue osJeeCeIesJeeCe he´ef¬eÀ³esle megjef#elelee ³esC³eemeeþer Managed 	
	 File Transfer ³ee he´Ceeueer®ee meceeJesMe.

17.	 hetJee&Þeceer®³ee Þeer Meejoe yeBkesÀ®³ee [sìe®es keÀe@mecee@me he´Ceeueerle 
efJeefueveerkeÀjCe -

	 Þeer Meejoe menkeÀejer yeBkesÀ®es Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀceO³es efJeefueveerkeÀjCe Peeu³eeveblej 
Þeer Meejoe yeBkesÀ®ee [sìe Deeheu³ee efmeeqmìceceO³es meceeefJeä keÀjCes DeeJeM³ekeÀ 
nesles. meoj®eer mebhetCe& he´ef¬eÀ³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee Dee³eìer efJeYeeieeves hetCe& kesÀueer Deens.  
hetJee&Þeceer®³ee Þeer Meejoe menkeÀejer yeBkesÀ®³ee 8 MeeKee nesl³ee. lemes®e l³ee 
yeBkesÀ®es SketÀCe 60,000 ie´enkeÀ Je 50,000 Keeleer nesleer. ³ee [sìe 
meceeefJeä keÀjC³ee®³ee keÀeceeJ³eefleefjÊeÀ ³ee yeBkesÀ®es mesJekeÀ Je DeefOekeÀejer ³eebvee 
efHeÀve@keÀue Jeeheje®es he´efMe#eCe osCes, [sìe ce@eEheie, Dee³eìeryeeyele®ee mesìDehe, 
vesìJeke&À mesìDehe, SìerSce keÀe[& F.meJe& yeeyeeR®eerner yeBkesÀ®³ee Dee³eìer efJeYeeieeves 
³eMemJeerefjl³ee hetle&lee kesÀueer Deens.

keÀjvmeer ®esmì -

yeBkesÀceO³es keÀjvmeer ®esmì keÀe³ee&eqvJele nesTve Deelee 9 Je<ex Peeueer Deensle. keÀjvmeer ®esmì 
®eeuet keÀ©ve he´l³e#e keÀecekeÀepe meg© keÀjC³eeme efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves ceev³elee efouesueer Deeheueer 
yeBkeÀ cenejeä^eleerue SkeÀcesJe veeiejer menkeÀejer yeBkeÀ Deens. ³ee keÀjvmeer ®esmìceeHe&Àle 
hegCes - cegbyeF&, yeejeceleer, HeÀueìCe, meeleeje, efMe©j Je veefpekeÀ®³ee heefjmejeceOeerue 
meJe& MeeKeebvee ®eebieu³ee he´leer®³ee veesìe Je veeC³eeb®ee hegjJeþe keÀjC³eele ³eslees. keÀjvmeer 
®esmìceO³es mebkeÀefuele nesCeeN³ee jesKe jkeÀcesletve yeveeJeì veesìe DeesUKetve l³ee yeepetuee 
keÀe{Ces lemes®e Kejeye Peeuesu³ee veesìe Jeehejeletve yeepetuee keÀe{Ces Je efjPeJn& yeBkesÀkeÀ[s 
heeþefJeC³ee®es keÀecener keÀjvmeer ®esmìceeHe&Àle keÀjC³eele ³esles.  ³eecegUs yeBkesÀ®³ee ie´enkeÀebvee 
®eebieu³ee he´leer®³ee veesìe efceUleele.

yeBkeÀ ³ee keÀjvmeer®esmìceeHe&Àle yeBkesÀ®es ie´enkeÀ Je Dev³e veeiejerkeÀ ³eeb®esmeeþer 
JeejbJeej veeCeer Jeeìhe cesUeJ³ee®es Dee³eespeve keÀjles. DenJeeue Je<ee&leosKeerue 
Demes cesUeJes Dee³eesefpele keÀjC³eele Deeues nesles. l³eeme GÊece he´eflemeeo efceUeuee 
Demetve ³eeceO³es megceejs `2.38 keÀesìer jkeÀces®³ee veeC³eeb®es Jeeìhe keÀjC³eele  
Deeues.

Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀ®es ie´enkeÀ®e veener lej Dev³e veeiejerkeÀeb®³ee iejpeeb®eerner keÀeUpeer 
yeBkesÀceeHe&Àle IesC³eele ³esles. DenJeeue Je<ee&ceO³es yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀjvmeer ®esmìceeHe&Àle 
`86.91 keÀesìer jkeÌkeÀce Dev³e yeBkeÀeb®³ee ceeieCeervegmeej GheueyOe keÀ©ve 
efoueer Demetve ³eeÜejs veeieefjkeÀeb®³ee DeeJeM³ekeÀlesvegmeej jesKe jkeÌkeÀce GheueyOe  
Peeueer.

DenJeeue Je<ee&ceO³es yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀjvmeer ®esmìÜejs SketÀCe `3,795 keÀesìer jkeÀces®eer 
Guee{eue keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deens.

efJecee J³eJemee³e -

yeBkeÀ 2 ueeF&HeÀ FvMegjvme kebÀhev³ee (HDFC Life Je ICICI Prudential Life), 
3 pevejue FvMegjvme kebÀhev³ee (HDFC Ergo, ICICI Lombard Je Bajaj 
General) DeeefCe 2 nsuLe FvMegjvme kebÀhev³ee (Care Health Je Manipal 
Cigma Health) ³eeb®eer J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ Yeeieeroej Deens. ³ee efJecee kebÀhev³eeb®ee 
ie´enkeÀmesJesyeeyele®ee DevegYeJe GÊece Demetve ie´enkeÀkeWÀêerle efJecee he³ee&³e Je keÌuesce 
mesìuecesvì ³ee yeeyele FvMegjvme ceekexÀìceO³es ³ee kebÀhev³ee veeceJeble Deensle.

Jew³eefkeÌlekeÀ Deee|LekeÀ efve³eespeve DeeefCe oerIe&cegoleer®ee ye®ele Je iegbleJeCetkeÀ he³ee&³e 
cnCetve efJec³eeme Del³eble cenÊJe he´ehle Peeues Deens. yeBkesÀleerue meJe& keÀpe&oejeb®³ee 
keÀpe&jkeÀcesvegmeej DeeJeM³ekeÀ efJeefJeOe efJecee hee@efuemeer yeBkesÀves GheueyOe keÀ©ve efou³ee  
Deensle.

DeLe&ceb$eeue³eekeÀ[tve peenerj keÀjC³eele Deeuesu³ee he´Oeeveceb$eer peerJeve p³eesleer efJecee 
³eespevee Je he´Oeeveceb$eer megj#ee efJecee ³eespevee ³ee oesvner ³eespeveebleie&le yeBkesÀleHexÀ 100…
keÌuesce mesìue keÀjC³eele Deeues Deensle.

DenJeeue Je<ee&le MeeKeebveer efJecee J³eJemee³eJee{ermeeþer meef¬eÀ³e he´³elve kesÀues Demetve 
ie´enkeÀeb®³ee DeeJeM³ekeÀlesvegmeej efJeefJeOe efJecee he³ee&³e GheueyOe keÀ©ve efoues Je yeBkesÀ®³ee 
efJecee J³eJemee³eele GÊece Jee{ kesÀueer Deens. ³ee efJecee J³eJemee³eeletve yeBkesÀme cee®e& 
2023 DeKesj `4.26 keÀesìer keÀefceMeve he´ehle Peeues Deens.

keÀe@heexjsì keÀc³egefvekesÀMeve mesue Je ceekexÀìeRie efJeYeeie-

³ee efJeYeeieeÜejs yeBkesÀ®eer ye´B[ Jn@u³et Je peveceevemeeleerue he´eflecee Gb®eeJeC³eemeeþer 
peeefnjele ceeO³ece Je meesMeue efce[er³ee®ee Jeehej he´YeeJeerheCes kesÀuee peelees. yeBkesÀ®³ee 
efJeefJeOe mesJee, megefJeOee, þsJe Je keÀpe& ³eespevee ³eeb®eer ceeefnleer veJeerve ie´enkeÀebhe³e¥le melele 
heesnes®eefJeC³eemeeþer ne efJeYeeie keÀe³e&jle Deens.

Jele&ceevehe$eeleerue peeefnjeleer, jsef[Dees - otjoMe&veJejerue peeefnjeleer, nese\[ipe 
lemes®e ef[efpeìue efce[er³ee, meesMeue efce[er³ee hue@ìHeÀe@cme& cnCepes®e Facebook, 
Instagram, LinkedIn, Twitter, YouTube DeMee efJeefJeOe ceeO³eceeletve 
yeBkesÀ®³ee peeefnjeleer he´efme× kesÀu³ee peeleele.

yeBkesÀleerue veJeerve þsJe-keÀpex Je Dev³e ³eespeveeb®eer ceeefnleer ie´enkeÀebhe³e¥le heesnes®eefJeC³eemeeþer 
SmeSceSme, Fcesume F.®ee Jeehej keÀjC³eele ³eslees.  efJeefJeOe meCeeb®es lemes®e Jew³eefkeÌlekeÀ 
MegYes®íeb®es mebosMe ie´enkeÀebvee heeþJetve l³eeb®³eeMeer Demeuesueer yeebefOeuekeÀer DeefOekeÀ 
¢{ kesÀueer peeles. keÀe@heexjsì keÀc³egefvekesÀMeveefJeYeeieeceeHe&Àle DeeJeM³ekesÀvegmeej he$ekeÀej 
heefj<eoeb®es Dee³eespeve kesÀues peeles.

mesJekeÀ keÀueeef¬eÀ[e-

	 hegCes ef[eqmì^keÌì ef¬eÀkesÀì DemeesefmeSMeve ³eeb®esceeHe&Àle Dee³eesefpele mecej efueie 
ef¬eÀkesÀì mheOexceO³es yeBkesÀ®³ee ef¬eÀkesÀì mebIeeves 4 hewkeÀer 3 meeceves eEpekeÀues Demetve 
³eeceO³es yeBkesÀme meebefIekeÀ efJepeslesheo efceUeues Deens.

	 ³eeje mheesì&med keÀesLe©[ hegCes ³eeb®esceeHe&Àle Dee³eesefpele keÀjC³eele Deeuesu³ee ³eeje 
efhe´efceDej efueie 2022 mheOexceO³es yeBkesÀ®³ee ef¬eÀkesÀì mebIeeves efJepeslesheo he´ehle 
kesÀues Deens. ³eeceO³es Dee³eìer, HeÀe³eveevme, yeBeEkeÀie F.efJeefJeOe #es$eeleerue 16 
mebIe menYeeieer Peeues nesles.

JeOee&heveefove-

efo.18 peevesJeejer 2023 jespeer yeBkesÀ®ee JeOee&heveefove heejbheefjkeÀ efleUietU 
meceejbYee®es Dee³eespeve keÀ©ve meepeje keÀjC³eele Deeuee.  mJeeceer efJeJeskeÀevebo pe³ebleer Je 
³egJeeefoveeefveefceÊe efJeefJeOe ceneefJeÐee³eueebceO³es yeBkesÀleHexÀ Dee³eesefpele efJeefJeOe mheOee¥ceOeerue 
efJepesl³eebvee ³eehe´mebieer heeefjleesef<ekesÀ osC³eele Deeueer.  

MeeKee mLeueeblej-
yeBeEkeÀie #es$eele meO³ee jespe veJ³eeves ³esle Demeuesueer DeÐe³eeJele ef[efpeìue he´Ceeueer 
Goe.³egheerDee³e, ceesyeeF&ue yeBeEkeÀie F.lemes®e l³eecegUs yeBeEkeÀie keÀe³e&he×leerceO³es nesCeejs 
yeoue ³ee yeeyeeRcegUs ie´enkeÀeb®es yeBkesÀ®³ee MeeKesceO³es he´l³e#e ³esTve J³eJenej keÀjC³ee®es 
he´ceeCe ue#eCeer³eefjl³ee keÀceer Peeues Deens. meyeye Yee[slelJeeJej Iesleuesu³ee p³ee MeeKeeb®eer 
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peeiee DeeJeM³ekeÀleshes#ee peemle Deens, DeMee MeeKeeb®³ee Ke®ee&le ye®ele nesC³ee®es¢äerves 
J³eJemLeeheveeves l³eeb®es mLeueeblej keÀjC³ee®ee efveCe&³e Iesleuee Demetve l³eevegmeej Deee|LekeÀ 
Je<e& 2022-23 ceO³es heg{erue MeeKeeb®es leguevesves ueneve peeiesceO³es DeÐe³eeJele mees³eer 
megefJeOeebmen mLeueeblej kesÀues Deens -

efo.19 mehìWyej 2022 -  Ssjesueer MeeKee

efo.23 veesJnWyej 2022 - yeesefjJeueer (het) MeeKee

efo.8 ces 2023 - ceguegb[ (het) MeeKee

yeBkesÀ®³ee J³eJemee³eJee{er®³ee¢äerves keÀener MeeKeeb®es meO³ee keÀe³e&jle Demeuesu³ee peeieshes#ee 
DeefOekeÀ ®eebieu³ee peeiesle DeÐe³eeJele mees³eer megefJeOeebmen mLeueeblej keÀjC³eele Deeuesues 
Deens. l³ee®ee leheMeerue-

01.	 efo.1 peguew 2022 - jepekeÀesì MeeKee

efJeefueveerkeÀjCe-

efo.30 Dee@keÌìesyej 2022 - hegC³eeleerue Deee|LekeÀ¢äîee me#ece Demeuesu³ee  Þeer Meejoe 
menkeÀejer yeBkeÀ efue. ³ee yeBkesÀ®es Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀceO³es efJeefueveerkeÀjCe keÀjC³eele Deeues.  
³eecegUs yeBkesÀ®³ee MeeKeebceO³es hegCeseqmLele 8 MeeKeeb®eer Yej he[ueer Deens.

efo.29 ces 2023 - cegbyeF& ³esLeerue cejeþe menkeÀejer yeBkeÀ efue. ³ee yeBkesÀ®es Deeheu³ee 
yeBkesÀceO³es efJeefueveerkeÀjCe keÀjC³eele Deeues. ³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee cegbyeF&ceOeerue 7 MeeKee keÀe@mecee@me 
yeBkesÀ®³ee MeeKee cnCetve keÀe³e&jle keÀjC³eele Deeu³ee Deensle.

³ee J³eefleefjkeÌle cegbyeF& ³esLeerue efo meensyejeJe osMecegKe keÀes-Dee@he. yeBkeÀ efue. ³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee 
efJeefueveerkeÀjCee®ee he´mleeJe yeBkesÀves efjPeJn& yeBkesÀkeÀ[s meeoj kesÀuee Deens. meoj he´mleeJe 
efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee efJe®eejeOeerve Deens. ³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee 11 MeeKee Deensle. 

lemes®e cegbyeF& ³esLeerue efo efmeìer keÀes-Dee@he yeBkeÀ efue. ³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee efJeefueveerkeÀjCee®ee efJe<e³e 
Jeee|<ekeÀ meJe&meeOeejCe meYes®³ee efJe<e³e heef$ekesÀceO³es ®e®exmeeþer meceeefJeä keÀjC³eele Deeuee 
Deens. ³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee 10 MeeKee Deensle.

ie´enkeÀ megefJeOee-

MeeKesle ³esCeeN³ee ie´enkeÀ Je Keelesoejebvee Del³eeOegefvekeÀ mesJee-megefJeOee oslee ³eeJ³eele 
lemes®e MeeKesle he´meVe JeeleeJejCe jenC³ee®³ee¢äerves MeeKeebvee keÀeheexjsì uegkeÀ osC³eele 
Deeuesuee Deens. l³eeDebleie&le meJe& MeeKeebceO³es DeeOegefvekeÀ mLeehel³eMeem$eehe´ceeCes 
HeÀe|ve®ej, S.meer. F. keÀeces kesÀuesueer Deensle. MeeKeskeÀ[erue peeoe®es jskeÀe@[& peleve 
keÀjC³eemeeþer DeeTìmeesme& Spevmeer®eer vesceCetkeÀ keÀjC³eele Deeueer Demetve l³eeb®esceeHe&Àle 
JesUesJesUer peeoe®es jskeÀe@[& vesC³ee®eer J³eJemLee kesÀuesueer Deens.  meoj J³eJemLescegUs 
MeeKeskeÀ[erue peeies®ee Jeehej DeefOekeÀ ³eesi³ehe´keÀejs ie´enkeÀ megefJeOee osC³eekeÀefjlee  
keÀjlee ³eslees. 

yeBkeÀ ieewjJe-

01.		  DecejeJeleer les DekeÀesuee ojc³eeve jeä^er³e ceneceeie& ¬eÀ.53 Jej yeBkesÀ®es ie´enkeÀ 
jepeheLe FvHe´ÀekeÀe@ce he´e. efue. ³eebveer efo.3 petve 2022 les efo.7 petve 
2022 ³ee keÀeUele meueie 109 leemeele 42.2 efkeÀceer efyeìtefceefveDeme 
keÀeBef¬eÀì®es heseEJeie keÀ©ve efJeéeefJe¬eÀce he´mLeeefhele kesÀuee Deens. yeBkesÀme peeieeflekeÀ 
HeeleUerJejerue ceev³eleeHe´eHle Guinness World Records ³eeb®eskeÀ[tve 
yeBkesÀ®es meYeemeo jepeHeLe FvHe´ÀekeÀe@ce He´e.efue. ³eebvee efJeMJeefJeK³eele keÀeceefiejer 
keÀjleevee yeBkesÀves kesÀuesu³ee keÀpe&HegjJeþîeeyeÎue Certification of 
Participation he´ehle Peeues Deens.

02.		  yeBkesÀme `10,000 keÀesìerhes#ee DeefOekeÀ mesìDehe Demeuesu³ee yeBkeÀeb®³ee 
ÞesCeerceO³es yeBeEkeÀie He´bÀefìDeme& ³eeb®esleHexÀ Best NPA Management, 
Best Audit Initiative DeeefCe Best SOC Initiative hegjmkeÀej 
efceUeues Demetve yeBkesÀme meghej ì^e@HeÀer 2022 ves mevceeefvele kesÀues Deens. 
meoj®ee HegjmkeÀej ceepeer keWÀêer³e ceb$eer meerS megjsMe He´Yet ³eeb®es nmles He´oeve 
keÀjC³eele Deeuee

03.		  yeBkesÀme Fbef[³eve yeBkeÌme DemeesefmeSMeve ³eeb®esceeHe&Àle keÀes-Dee@he. yeBkeÀ ÞesCeerceO³es 
Best IT Risk Management, Best Technology Bank 
DeeefCe Best Technology Talent meeþer®ee hegjmkeÀej he´ehle Peeuee  
Deens.

04.		  yeBkesÀme ̀ Urban Co-operative Banks having deposit of more 
than `15,000 CR' ³ee ÞesCeerceO³es Banco Blue Ribbon Best 
Technology Award 2022 ne hegjmkeÀej he´oeve keÀjC³eele Deeuee Deens.

05.		  Employer Branding Institue & World HR Congress 
³eeb®esleHexÀ yeBkesÀme Excellence in Training meeþer Best Employer 
Brand Award 2022 ne hegjmkeÀej he´oeve keÀjC³eele Deeuee  
Deens.

06.		  7 J³ee All India UCBs Summit and Award efJelejCe meceejbYeeceO³es 
Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀme Best Cyber Security Initiative DeeefCe Best 
NPA Management ³ee ÞesCeeRceO³es meve 2023 meeþer®ee hegjmkeÀej 
efceUeuee Deens.

07.		  yeBkesÀceeHe&Àle efJekeÀefmele keÀjC³eele Deeuesu³ee veeefJev³ehetCe& yeeyeeR®eer veeWo IesTve  
Infosys Finacle Innovation Award 2023 ³eeb®esleHexÀ yeBkesÀme 
Maximising Customer engagement ³ee ÞesCeerceO³es ieesu[  
ì^e@HeÀer efceUeueer Deens.  ³eemeeþer peeieeflekeÀ mlejeJe©ve megceejs 200 
veeceebkeÀves oeKeue Peeueer nesleer. veeiejer menkeÀejer yeBeEkeÀie #es$eeceO³es ne 
hegjmkeÀej efceUeuesueer Deeheueer SkeÀcesJe yeBkeÀ Deens.

meb®eeuekeÀ efJeMes<e-

DeO³e#e meerS efceeEueo keÀeUs ³eeb®eer,

 		keÀes-Dee@hejsefìJn yeBkeÀ Dee@HeÀ Fbef[³ee, veJeer efouueer ³ee mebmLes®³ee GHeeO³e#eHeoer 
SkeÀceleeves efveJe[ Peeueer Deens. 

 		efo cenejeä^ Deye&ve keÀes-Dee@he. yeBkeÌme HesÀ[jsMeve ³ee mebmLesJej mJeerke=Àle 
meb®eeuekeÀ cnCetve efve³egkeÌleer keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deens.

meb®eeuekeÀ [e@.cegkegbÀo DeY³ebkeÀj ³eebvee hegC³eeleerue he´efme× vetleve cejeþer efJeÐeeue³eeceeHe&Àle 
ceepeer efJeÐeeLeea ³ee veel³eeves peerJeveieewjJe hegjmkeÀejeves mevceeefvele keÀjC³eele Deeues Deens.

DeefOekeÀejer efJeMes<e-

 		  J³eJemLeehekeÀer³e meb®eeefuekeÀe meew. Dehesef#elee efþhemes ³eeb®eer Fbef[³eve yeBkeÌme 
DemeesefmeSMeve ³eeb®³ee J³eJemLeehekeÀer³e meefceleer®³ee meom³eheoer efveJe[ 
keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deens.

 		  keÀe@ch³egìj meesmee³eìer Dee@HeÀ Fbef[³ee, cegbyeF& ³eeb®esleHexÀ yeBkesÀ®es Chief 
Information Security Officer Þeer. meleerMe uesues ³eebvee 
Outstanding Chief Information Security Officer (CISO)
hegjmkeÀej efceUeuee Deens.
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efJeMes<e Ghe¬eÀce-

01.		  efo.24 Dee@iemì 2022 - yeBkesÀ®es heefnues DeO³e#e meeefnl³emece´eì  
ve.eE®e.kesÀUkeÀj ³eeb®³ee 150 J³ee pe³ebleerefveefceÊe efJeMes<e keÀe³e&¬eÀcee®es 
yeBkesÀ®³ee cegK³e keÀe³ee&ue³eeceO³e Dee³eespeve keÀjC³eele Deeues nesles. ³eehe´mebieer 
kewÀ.ve.eE®e.kesÀUkeÀj ³eeb®es kegÀìgbefye³e GheeqmLele jeefnues nesles. kewÀ.ve.eE®e.kesÀUkeÀj 
³eeb®³ee 150 J³ee pevceMeleeyoer Je<ee&efveefceÊe Je<e&Yej efJeefJeOe keÀe³e&¬eÀceeb®es 
Dee³eespeve keÀjC³eele ³esCeej Demetve l³ee®eer ©hejs<ee ³ee keÀe³e&¬eÀceeceO³es efveeq½ele 
keÀjC³eele Deeueer.

02.		  efo.15 Dee@keÌìesyej 2022 - Yeejlejlve [e@.Sheerpes Deyotue keÀueece 
³eeb®³ee pe³ebleerefveefceÊe yeBkesÀves ie´erve Jeu[& heeqyuekesÀMeve ³eeb®³ee meb³egkeÌle efJeÐeceeves 
`Reading Inspiration Day' ®es Dee³eespeve kesÀues nesles. ³eehe´mebieer 
keÀefceMevej Dee@HeÀ keÀes-Dee@hejsMeve Je jefpemì^ej, keÀes-Dee@he.meesmee³eìerpe  
cee.Deveerue keÀJe[s GheeqmLele nesles. Jee®eve Je Jee®euesu³ee yeeyeeR®ee 
Dee®ejCeeceO³es meceeJesMe ³eeyeeyele l³eebveer GheeqmLeleebvee ceeie&oMe&ve  
kesÀues.

03.		  veesJnWyej 2022 Je ef[meWyej 2022 - keÀe@mecee@me yeBkeÀ mesJekeÀ 
mebIeeceeHe&Àle mesJekeÀ keÀuee ef¬eÀ[e ³eeb®³ee meb³egÊeÀ efJeÐeceeves yeBkesÀ®es mesJekeÀ 
Je DeefOekeÀejer ³eeb®esmeeþer veesJnWyej 2022 Je ef[meWyej 2022 ³ee 
keÀeueeeJeOeerceO³es efJeYeeieefvene³e mvesnmebcesueveeb®es Dee³eespeve keÀjC³eele Deeues 
Deens. ³ee ojc³eeve yeBkesÀ®³ee mesJekeÀebceOeerue keÀueeiegCeebvee JeeJe osC³eemeeþer 
efJeefJeOe mheOee¥®es Dee³eespeve keÀjC³eele Deeues nesles. l³eeme mesJekeÀ-DeefOekeÀejer 
³eebveer GlmHetÀle& he´eflemeeo efouee.

04.		  efo.14 veesJnWyej 2022 les efo.20 veesJnWyej 2022 - ³ee 
keÀeueeJeOeerceO³es hegCes efpeune veeiejer menkeÀejer yeBkeÌme DemeesefmeSMeve efue., 
hegCes ³eeb®esceeHe&Àle menkeÀej mehleene®es Dee³eespeve keÀjC³eele Deeues nesles. 
³eeceO³es yeBkesÀves menYeeie Iesleuee neslee. efo.14 veesJnWyej 2022 jespeer 
keÀe@mecee@me ìe@Jej ³esLeerue leUcepeu³eeJej ³eeefveefceÊe menkeÀej OJepeejesnCe  
keÀjC³eele Deeues. 

05.		  efo.12 peevesJeejer 2023 - mJeeceer efJeJeskeÀevebo pe³ebleerefveefceÊe meepeN³ee 
nesCeeN³ee ³egJeeefovee®es Deewef®el³e meeOetve hegC³eeleerue ceneefJeÐeeue³eerve 
³egJekeÀebmeeþer yeBkesÀleHexÀ SkeÀe efJeMes<e mheOex®es Dee³eespeve keÀjC³eele Deeues 
nesles.  ³ee mheOexojc³eeve, ef[efpeìue yeBeEkeÀie Je Deepe®ee ³egJekeÀ, efMe#eCe 
he×leer Je ³egJekeÀ DeeefCe keÀefjDejceOeerue DeeJneves ³ee leerve efJe<e³eebhewkeÀer 
SkeÀe efJe<e³eeJej efveyebOe, He´sPeWìsMeve Jee heLeveeìîe ³ee ceeO³eceeb®ee 
Jeehej keÀ©ve efJe®eej J³ekeÌle keÀjC³ee®eer mebOeer osC³eele Deeueer nesleer. 
³ee mheOex®³ee efJepesl³eebvee yeBkesÀ®³ee JeOee&heveefoveer heeefjleesef<ekesÀ osC³eele  
Deeueer.

06.		  efo.20 cee®e& 2023 - ieg{er hee[J³ee®es Deewef®el³e meeOetve yeBkesÀves 
iéenkeÀebmeeþer yeBkesÀ®eer cejeþer Yee<esleerue JesyemeeF&ì GheueyOe keÀ©ve efoueer 
Deens. ³eeÜejs yeBkesÀ®³ee efJeefJeOe ³eespevee, mesJee megefJeOee, þsJeer Je keÀpee¥Jejerue 
J³eepeoj F.meJe& ceeefnleer iéenkeÀebmeeþer cejeþer Yee<esceO³es GheueyOe Peeueer  
Deens.

efveiece J³eJemLeeheve (Corporate Governance)

yeBkesÀ®es owvebefove keÀecekeÀepe, keÀpe&cebpegjer Je OeesjCeefJe<e³ekeÀ yeeyeer F.keÀecekeÀepeemeeþer 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee heg{erue meefcel³ee DenJeeue Je<ee&le keÀe³e&jle nesl³ee,

01.	 cee.keÀe³e&keÀejer meefceleer		

02.	 cee.leheemeCeer meefceleer	

03.	 cee.keÀpe&cebpegjer Je Jemegueer meefceleer 

04.	 cee.He´Àe@[ cee@efveìjeRie meefceleer

05.	 cee.Dee³e ìer mì^@ìspeer meefceleer

06.	 cee.efjmkeÀ ce@vespecesvì meefceleer

³ee Deee|LekeÀ Je<ee&ceO³es meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee SketÀCe 32 meYee Je heesìmeefcel³eeb®³ee 
SketÀCe 82 meYee Peeu³ee. l³eeb®³ee GheeqmLeleer®ee leheMeerue heg{eruehe´ceeCes,

meb®eeuekeÀe®es veeJe meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U meYee heesìmeefcel³ee meYee

SketÀCe 
meYee

hewkeÀer 
GheeqmLele

SketÀCe 
meYee

hewkeÀer 
GheeqmLele

01. meerS efceeEueo keÀeUs 32 30 82 63

02. Þeer. he´efJeCekegÀceej ieebOeer 32 30 57 52

03. [e@.cegkegbÀo DeY³ebkeÀj 32 32 47 47

04. meerS pe³eble yeJex 32 32 52 52

05. Þeer.meef®eve Deeheìs 32 30 41 41

06. he´es.jepeséejer Oees$es 32 31 17 16

07.De@[.he´uneo keÀeskeÀjs 32 32 54 54

08.he´es.vebokegÀceej keÀeefkeÀ[x 32 32 33 33

09.De@[.DevegjeOee ie[eUs 32 30 18 16

10.Þeer.Deefpele efiepejs 32 31 25 24

11.meerS ³eMeJeble keÀemeej 32 24 37 31

12.Þeer.efceeEueo heeskeÀUs 32 32 17 15

13.Þeer.DejeEJeo leeJejs 32 32 37 37

meYeemeo-

DenJeeue Je<ee&le Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀves 9,399 J³eÊeÀer Je mebmLeebvee veJeerve meYeemeolJe 
efoues. jepeerveecee Je Dev³e keÀejCeebcegUs 3,063 meYeemeo heìeJe©ve keÀceer Peeues.  
l³eecegUs efo.31 cee®e& 2023 DeKesj yeBkesÀ®eer meYeemeo mebK³ee 98,027 FlekeÀer 
Peeueer Deens.

Deeheuee ie´enkeÀ peeCetve I³ee -Know Your Customer (KYC) Je  Anti 
Money Laundering (AML) - KYC Je AML ³eeyeeyele yeBkesÀceO³es 
meJe&meceeJesMekeÀ hee@efuemeer le³eej keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deens. meoj hee@efuemeervegmeej, 
KYC mebyebOeer efve³ece, AML ceevekesÀ, Ghee³e³eespevee Je Prevention of Money 
Laundering Act (PMLA) 2002 DevJe³es Demeuesueer yebOeves yeBkesÀceO³es 
ueeiet keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deensle. ³ee Deveg<ebieeves efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves JesUesJesUer ueeiet 
kesÀuesu³ee ceeie&oMe&keÀ meg®eveeb®es Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀceO³es keÀeìskeÀesjheCes heeueve keÀjC³eele  
³esle Deens. 
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yeBkeÀ Unique Identification Authority of India-UIDAI ³eeb®eer DeefOeke=Àle 
Spevì Demetve ³eeÜejs yeBkesÀ®³ee ie´enkeÀebvee Aadhar Authentication facility 
GheueyOe keÀ©ve osC³eele ³esle Deens. UIDAI ®³ee ceeie&oMe&keÀ meg®eveebvegmeej, 
ie´enkeÀebyeeyele®eer ceeefnleer megjef#ele jeKeC³eemeeþer yeBkesÀceO³es meJe& DeeJeM³ekeÀ l³ee 
Ghee³e³eespevee keÀjC³eele ³esle Deensle.

yeBkesÀceO³es ie´enkeÀeb®eer ye®ele Je ®eeuet Keeleer meg© keÀjC³eemeeþer oesve DekeÀeQì DeesheeEveie 
mesume keÀe³e&jle Deensle.  ye®ele Je ®eeuet Keeleer meg© keÀjC³eemeeþer ie´enkeÀebveer MeeKeebceO³es 
Ye©ve efouesues HeÀe@cme& Je kesÀJee³emeeryeeyele®eer DeeJeM³ekeÀ leer keÀeieohe$es ³eeb®es ³ee DekeÀeQì 
DeesheeEveie mesumeceO³es íeveveer Je mke@ÀeEveie keÀjC³eele ³esTve mke@Àve kesÀuesueer keÀeieohe$es 
[e@keÌ³egcesvì ce@vespecesvì efmeeqmìceceO³es peleve keÀjC³eele ³esleele. l³eeveblej efmeeqmìceceO³es 
ie´enkeÀeb®eer ye®ele Je ®eeuet Keeleer meg© keÀjC³eele ³esleele.  ³ee DekeÀeQì DeesheeEveie mesueceO³es 
meve 2022-23 ceO³es 61,301 Keel³eebyeeyele keÀe³e&Jeener hetCe& keÀjC³eele ³esTve 
efmeeqmìceceO³es ie´enkeÀeb®eer ye®ele Je ®eeuet Keeleer meg© keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deensle. ³eeveblej 
veJeerve Jew³eefkeÌlekeÀ Keelesoejeb®eer Je kebÀhev³ee, Yeeieeroejer memLee, he´eshe´e³eìjer HeÀcme&, 
ì^mì, menkeÀejer meesmee³eìîee ³eeb®eer kesÀJee³emeermebyebOeer ceeefnleer Je mebyebefOele keÀeieohe$es 
CERSAI ®³ee Central KYC registry – CKYCR- ³ee heesì&ueJej yeBkesÀceeHe&Àle 
Deheuees[ keÀjC³eele ³esleele.   

cee@efveìjeRiemeeþer þjeefJekeÀ keÀeueeJeOeerveblej efjheesìd&me le³eej keÀjCes, ie´enkeÀeb®³ee veeJeeb®es 
Negative List yejesyej eqm¬eÀeEveie keÀjCes lemes®e Cash Transaction Report 
(CTR), Non-Profit Organization Transaction Report (NTR), 
Cross Border Wire Transfer Report (CBWT), Counterfeit 
Currency Report (CCR) and Suspicious Transaction Report 
(STR) Demes efJeefJeOe JewOeeefvekeÀ efjheesìd&me le³eej keÀjCes ³eemeeþer yeBkesÀceO³es Anti 
Money Laundering yeeyele mebieCekeÀ he´Ceeueer keÀe³ee&eqvJele keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deens.  
meoj®es efjheesì&med Financial Intelligence Unit-India – FIUIND – ³eeb®eskeÀ[s 
efJenerle keÀeueeJeOeerceO³es heeþefJeC³eele ³esle Deensle.

efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee ³eeyeeyele®³ee ceeie&oMe&keÀ meg®eveebceO³es lemes®e mebyebefOele keÀe³eÐeebceO³es 
JesUesJesUer nesCeejs yeoue yeBkesÀleerue efmemìerceceO³es DeÐe³eeJele keÀjC³eele ³esle Deensle.

yeBkesÀleerue mesJekeÀ Je DeefOekeÀejer ³eebvee KYC Je  AML ³ee Deveg<ebieeves DeÐe³eeJele ceeefnleer 
DemeeJeer lemes®e yeBkesÀ®³ee efveOeer®ee iewjJeehej nesT ve³es Je yeBkesÀceeHe&Àle onMeleJeeoemeeþer 
kegÀþuesner Deee|LekeÀ J³eJenej nesT ve³esle ³ee¢äerves l³eeb®esceO³es peeie©keÀlee ³esC³eemeeþer 
yeBkesÀ®es mesJekeÀ Je DeefOekeÀejer ³eeb®esmeeþer Jej®esJej he´efMe#eCe me$eeb®es Dee³eespeve keÀjC³eele 
³esles.

Chief Compliance Officer-
yeBkesÀleerue Corporate Governance ceO³es compliance ®eer cenÊJehetCe& 
YetefcekeÀe Demeles. yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueves cebpetj kesÀuesueer Compliance 
Policy yeBkesÀceO³es keÀe³e&jle keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deens. yeBkesÀceO³es efJeefJeOe JewOeeefvekeÀ 
yeeyeeR®eer JesUsle hetle&lee keÀjCesyeeyele mepeielee efvecee&Ce keÀjCes Je l³eeceO³es meelel³e 

jeKeCes, keÀecekeÀepeeceO³es he´eceeefCekeÀheCee®eer Je=Êeer ©peefJeCes, keÀeceeleerue DeKeb[lee 
jeKeCes lemes®e Compliance Risk Je mebyebefOele yeeyeer efveeq½ele keÀ©ve l³eeJejerue 
Ghee³e³eespevee keÀjCes ³eemeeþer keÀe³e&he×leer GheueyOe keÀ©ve osCes Demes ³ee hee@efuemeer®es 
GÎsMe Deensle. SketÀCe®e Compliance yeeyele®es keÀecekeÀepe yeBkesÀceO³es he´YeeJeerheCes 
©peefJeCes Je efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee efve³eecekeÀ yeeyeeR®eer JesUsle hetle&lee nesCes ³eemeeþer yeBkesÀves 
mJeleb$e efJeYeeie keÀe³e&jle kesÀuee Deens.

ie´enkeÀ mesJee-

meO³ee®³ee mheOex®³ee ³egieele GÊece ie´enkeÀ mesJee ner keÀewMeu³ehetCe& yeeye Demetve 
Del³eeJeM³ekeÀner Peeueer Deens. ie´enkeÀe®es Dev³e yeBkesÀceO³es Keeles Demet MekeÀC³ee®eer 
peeCeerJe meJee¥vee Demeu³eecegUs meO³ee®es ie´enkeÀ jeKeCes Je veJeerve ie´enkeÀebvee DeekeÀe|<ele 
keÀjCes ³eemeeþer meJe&®e yeBkeÀe ie´enkeÀeefYecegKe ¢äerkeÀesve þsJele Deensle.  ³ee mheOee&lcekeÀ 
³egieele ner keÀeUe®eer iejpe efJe®eejele IesTve ie´enkeÀeb®es ceeieCeervegmeej mesJeemegefJeOee osCes 
Je efJeefMeä le¬eÀej efveJeejCe ³eb$eCee jeyeefJeCes ³eemeeþer yeBkesÀceeHe&Àle meelel³eeves he´³elve 
keÀjC³eele ³esle Deensle.

ie´enkeÀebMeer mebJeeo meeOeCes, ie´enkeÀebMeer Demeuesues veeles Jee{efJeCes lemes®e efJeefJeOe 
þsJe Je keÀpe&³eespeveeb®eer ceeefnleer ³ee Deveg<ebieeves yeBkesÀ®es mesJekeÀ Je DeefOekeÀejer ³eebvee 
DeveskeÀ he´efMe#eCe me$eeb®es Dee³eespeve keÀjC³eele ³esle Deens. he´l³eskeÀ ie´enkeÀebme GÊece 
ie´enkeÀ mesJee osC³ee®es¢äerves meoj he´efMe#eCeeb®ee Ghe³eesie nesle Deens. keÀpex, KYC 
– AML lemes®e ef[efpeìue yeBeEkeÀie ®e@veume DeMee cenÊJehetCe& efJe<e³eebyeeyele yeBkesÀ®es 
mesJekeÀ Je DeefOekeÀejer ³eeb®es %eeve DeÐe³eeJele jneJes ³eemeeþer mesJekeÀ Je DeefOekeÀejer 
³eebvee Dee@veueeF&ve he´efMe#eCener osC³eele ³esles. ³eecegUs yeBeEkeÀie #es$eeleerue DeÐe³eeJele 
Ie[ecees[eRyeeyele mesJekeÀebvee ceeefnleer efceUtve ie´enkeÀ mesJesJej l³ee®ee mekeÀejelcekeÀ heefjCeece  
neslees.

ie´enkeÀmesJesyeeyele ie´enkeÀeb®ee Demeuesuee DeefYehe´e³e, met®evee lemes®e MebkeÀe ³eeyeeyele 
ie´enkeÀ yeBkesÀMeer customercare@cosmosbank.in ³ee mJeleb$e Fcesue 
Dee³e[erÜejs mebhekeÀe&le jnele Deensle. Banking Ombudsman Office men Dev³e 
ceeO³eceebceOetve ie´enkeÀ veeWoefJele Demeuesu³ee le¬eÀejeR®es JesUsle efveJeejCe keÀjC³eemeeþer 
yeBkesÀceO³es keÀmìcej kesÀDej efJeYeeie keÀe³e&jle Deens. ie´enkeÀebkeÀ[tve oeKeue Peeuesueer 
SkeÀner le¬eÀej DevegÊeefjle jenCeej veener ³ee®eer ³ee efJeYeeieeceeHe&Àle keÀeUpeer IesC³eele 
³esles. le¬eÀejeR®es lJejerle efveJeejCe JneJes ³eemeeþer mJeleb$e le¬eÀej efveJeejCe ³eb$eCee 
yeBkesÀceO³es keÀe³e&jle Demetve ÞesCeerye× DeefOekeÀejer ³eemeeþer keÀece keÀjerle Deensle.  
he´l³eskeÀ DeefOekeÀeN³ee®³ee mlejeJej le¬eÀej efveJeejCeemeeþer JesUs®eer ce³ee&oe efveeq½ele 
keÀjC³eele Deeueer Deens. ³eecegUs JesUs®³ee l³ee l³ee efveeq½ele ce³ee&osceO³es ie´enkeÀeb®³ee 
le¬eÀejeR®es efveJeejCe nesTve le¬eÀej oerIe&keÀeU DevegÊejerle jenC³ee®eer MekeÌ³elee jnele  
veener.

Fbìjvesì yeBeEkeÀie Je ceesyeeF&ue yeBeEkeÀie ³ee mesJee Jeehejleevee yeBkesÀ®³ee ie´enkeÀebvee keÀener De[®eCeer 
Deeu³eeme l³eeb®³ee efveJeejCeemeeþer ìesue He´Àer ¬eÀceebkeÀ (18002330234) Je 
mJeleb$e Fcesue Dee³e[er (ibhelp@cosmosbank.in) ³eeÜejs DeKeb[ meene³³e mesJee 
yeBkesÀves ie´enkeÀebvee GheueyOe keÀ©ve efoueer Deens.  
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ceeieerue leerve Jeee|<ekeÀ meJe&meeOeejCe meYeeb®ee leheMeerue 

01. Deee|LekeÀ Je<e& 2019-20

leejerKe Je efþkeÀeCe meesceJeej, efo.23 veesJnWyej 2020, keÀe@mecee@me ìe@Jej, huee@ì veb.6, Dee³emeerSme keÀe@ueveer, ³egefveJne|meìer jes[, ieCesMeeEKe[, hegCes 
411 007 ³esLes Dee@ef[Dees eqJnp³egDeue ceervme (OAVM) / eqJnef[Dees keÀe@vHeÀjvme (VC) Üejs Dee³eesefpele.

meYesves cebpetj kesÀuesues þjeJe- 01.	 2020-21 ³ee Deee|LekeÀ Je<ee&meeþer JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeehejer#ekeÀ cnCetve ces.peer [er Deeheìs De@v[ kebÀheveer ®eeì&[& DekeÀeQìbì Je 
ces.efkeÀle&ves De@v[ hebef[le SueSueheer, ®eeì&[& DekeÀeQìbì ³eeb®eer efve³egkeÌleer keÀjC³eeme ceev³elee osC³eele Deeueer.

02. 		  yeBkesÀ®es heesìefve³ece ¬eÀ. 4(xviii), 4(xxiii)(b), 4(xxviii)(a), 6(b)(i), 6(c), 7(iii), 7(iv)(b), 8, 31 A, 
31 B, 41, 41(ix), 45(i)(c) ³eeceO³es meg®eefJeuesu³ee og©ml³eebmen meoj®es heesìefve³ece ceev³e keÀjC³eele Deeues.

02.  Deee|LekeÀ Je<e&- 2020-21

leejerKe Je efþkeÀeCe ieg©Jeej, efo.30 mehìWyej 2021, efMeJeMebkeÀj meYeeie=n, cene|<eveiej, hegCes 411 037

meYesves cebpetj kesÀuesues þjeJe- 01.		  2021-22 ³ee Deee|LekeÀ Je<ee&meeþer ces.efkeÀle&ves De@v[ hebef[le, SueSueheer, ®eeì&[& DekeÀeQìbìdme Je ces.peer [er Deeheìs De@v[ 
kebÀ., ®eeì&[& DekeÀeQìbìdme ³ee 2 uesKeehejer#ekeÀ HeÀcme&®eer meb³egkeÌle JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeehejer#ekeÀ cnCetve hegvee|ve³egkeÌleer keÀjC³eeme 
ceev³elee osC³eele Deeueer.

02. 		  yeBkesÀ®es heesìefve³ece ¬eÀ. 6(a) (i), 6(a)(vi), 6(b)(ii) Je 31 (A) ³eeceO³es meg®eefJeuesu³ee og©ml³eebmen meoj®es 
heesìefve³ece ceev³e keÀjC³eele Deeues.

03.		  Þeer Meejoe menkeÀejer yeBkeÀ efue. ³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee efo keÀe@mecee@me keÀes-Dee@he. yeBkeÀ efue. ³ee yeBkesÀceOeerue efJeefueveerkeÀjCe ³eespevesme 
ceev³elee osCesyeeyele®ee þjeJe yengceleeves cebpetj keÀjC³eele Deeuee.

03. 	 Deee|LekeÀ Je<e&- 2021-22

leejerKe Je efþkeÀeCe cebieUJeej, efo.27 mehìWyej 2022, efMeJeMebkeÀj meYeeie=n, cene|<eveiej, hegCes 411 037

meYesves cebpetj kesÀuesues þjeJe- 01. 		  2022-2023 ³ee Deee|LekeÀ Je<ee&meeþer meb³egkeÌle JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeehejer#ekeÀ cnCetve ces.peer.[er.Deeheìs De@v[ kebÀheveer, 
®eeì&[& DekeÀeQìbìdme ³eeb®eer hegvee|ve³egkeÌleer Je ces.Sce heer ef®eleUs De@v[ kebÀheveer, ®eeì&[& DekeÀeQìbìdme ³eeb®eer heefnu³ee Je<ee&meeþer 
efve³egkeÌleer keÀjC³eeme ceev³elee osC³eele Deeueer.

efJeMes<e meJe&meeOeejCe meYee

01. leejerKe Je efþkeÀeCe Meg¬eÀJeej, efo.26 veesJnWyej 2021, efMeJeMebkeÀj meYeeie=n, cene|<eveiej, hegCes 411 037

meYesves cebpetj kesÀuesues þjeJe- 01.  		 cejeþe menkeÀejer yeBkeÀ efue ³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee efo keÀe@mecee@me keÀes-Dee@he. yeBkeÀ efue. ³ee yeBkesÀceOeerue efJeefueveerkeÀjCe ³eespevesme ceev³elee 
osCesyeeyele®ee þjeJe yengceleeves cebpetj keÀjC³eele Deeuee.

02. leejerKe Je efþkeÀeCe ieg©Jeej, efo.30 cee®e& 2023, keÀe@mecee@me ìe@Jej, 4 Lee cepeuee, hegCes 411 007

meYesves cebpetj kesÀuesues þjeJe- 01.   efo meensyejeJe osMecegKe keÀes-Dee@he. yeBkeÀ efue. ³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee efo keÀe@mecee@me keÀes-Dee@he. yeBkeÀ efue. ³ee yeBkesÀleerue efJeefueveerkeÀjCe 
³eespevesme ceev³elee osCesyeeyele®ee þjeJe yengceleeves cebpetj keÀjC³eele Deeuee.

02.   	 cejeþe menkeÀejer yeBkeÀ efue ³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee efo keÀe@mecee@me keÀes-Dee@he. yeBkeÀ efue. ³ee yeBkesÀceOeerue megOeeefjle efJeefueveerkeÀjCe ³eespevesme 
ceev³elee osCesyeeyele®ee þjeJe yengceleeves cebpetj keÀjC³eele Deeuee.

03.		  yeBkesÀ®es heesìefve³ece ¬eÀ.4(i), 4(xx)(a), 4, 6, 6 (a)(i), 6(a)(vi), 6 (aa), 6(b)(ii), 6, 7(i), 7 (ii), 12, 
14, 19, 35, 50 Je 51 (iv) ³eeceO³es meg®eefJeuesu³ee og©ml³eebmen meoj®es heesìefve³ece ceev³e keÀjC³eele Deeues.

Þe×ebpeueer
DenJeeue Je<ee&le efoJebiele Peeuesu³ee yeBkesÀMeer mebyebefOele J³eÊeÀer, %eele-De%eele meYeemeo / Keelesoej, yeBkeÀ keÀce&®eejer Je Dev³e J³eÊeÀer ³eebvee efJevece´ Þe×ebpeueer.  

Yesìerieeþer Je DeeYeej
DenJeeue Je<ee&le Deeheu³ee yeBkesÀme efJeefJeOe ceev³eJejebveer keÀe³e&¬eÀceeb®³ee efveefceÊeeves Yesìer efou³ee. ³eeceO³es he´ecegK³eeves heg{erue ceev³eJejeb®ee meceeJesMe Deens,

meerS megjsMe he´Yet - ceepeer keWÀêer³e ceb$eer

Þeer. meleerMe cejeþs - menkeÀej Yeejleer®es mebmLeehekeÀ meom³e, efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ meb®eeuekeÀ

Þeer.p³eeseEleêYeeF& cesnlee, DeO³e#e - ve@Meveue HesÀ[jsMeve Dee@HeÀ Deye&ve keÀes-Dee@he yeBkeÌme De@v[ meesmee³eìerpe, veJeer efouueer.

[e@.Go³e peesMeer - menkeÀej Yeejleer®es jeä^er³e ceneceb$eer 
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Þeer.[er.ke=À<Cee - ceepeer cegK³e keÀe³e&keÀejer DeefOekeÀejer - ve@Meveue HesÀ[jsMeve Dee@HeÀ Deye&ve keÀes-Dee@he yeBkeÌme De@v[ meesmee³eìerpe, veJeer efouueer.

Þeer.Deevebo GheeO³ee³e, He@ÀkeÀuìer - efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ Dee@HeÀ Fbef[³ee, keÀe@uespe Dee@HeÀ De@ie´erkeÀu®ejue yeBeEkeÀie.

Þeer.Deveerue keÀJe[s, keÀefceMevej Dee@HeÀ keÀes-Dee@hejsMeve, cenejeä^ jep³e

Þeer.megefceleOegle Yeesueen, cee@efjMeme®es DeewÐeesefiekeÀ Je menkeÀej ceb$eer Je l³eeb®es menkeÀejer

meerS meceerj cesnlee - DeO³e#e - Sydney Australia, Chapter of ICAI

Þeer.ogiexMe ®eboeJejkeÀj - DeO³e#e - MeecejeJe efJeÇue menkeÀejer yeBkeÀ

Þeer.Mejo ieebieue - DeO³e#e - þeCes pevelee menkeÀejer yeBkeÀ efue.

Þeer.efJeJeskeÀpeer pegieeos - menkeÀej Yeejleer®es he´osMe ceneceb$eer cenejeä^ he´osMe

Þeer.DeMeeskeÀ HeÀUosmeeF& - DeefYeveslee

$eÝCeefveoxMe
DenJeeue Je<ee&le meWì^ue jefpemì^ej, ke=À<eer Je menkeÀej efJeYeeie, Yeejle mejkeÀej veJeer efouueer Je lesLeerue DeefOekeÀejer, efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®es DeefOekeÀejer, cenejeä^, ceO³ehe´osMe, keÀvee&ìkeÀ, 
iegpejele, leeefceUvee[t, DeebOe´he´osMe Je lesuebieCee ³ee jep³eeb®es menkeÀej Dee³egkeÌle Je efveyebOekeÀ, menkeÀej Keel³ee®es DeefOekeÀejer F.meJee¥®es DeeYeej !

DenJeeue Je<ee&le Debleie&le, keÀvkeÀjbì Je JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeehejer#ekeÀ ³eebveer kesÀuesu³ee ceeie&oMe&veeyeÎue DeeYeej !

yeBkesÀ®³ee Jeeì®eeueerceO³es keÀe@mecee@me yeBkeÀ mesJekeÀ mebIeìves®eener ceesuee®ee Jeeìe Demetve mebIeìves®es heoeefOekeÀejer Je mesJekeÀ ³eebveerner JesUesJesUer efouesu³ee menkeÀe³ee&yeÎue meJee¥®es DeeYeej!

DenJeeue Je<ee&le yeBkesÀ®es meYeemeo, þsJeeroej Je Keelesoej ³eeb®es menkeÀe³e& lemes®e yeBkesÀ®es mesJekeÀ Je DeefOekeÀejer ³eeb®es efceUeuesues ³eesieoeve cenÊJee®es Deens, ³ee meJee¥vee ceveëhetJe&keÀ 
Oev³eJeeo !

DeeHeuee mvesnebefkeÀle

meerS  efceeEueo keÀeUs

efoveebkeÀ ë 17 petve 2023	 DeO³e#e

meYeemeoebvee efJevebleer-

01. 		  DeeheCeebMeer heesmìeves keÀjeJe³ee®³ee he$eJ³eJenejekeÀjerlee DeeJeM³ekeÀ heÊ³eeceO³es lemes®e ceesyeeF&ue ¬eÀceebkeÀ Jee Fcesue heÊee ³eeceO³es keÀener yeoue Demeu³eeme lees MeeKeskeÀ[s 
keÀUefJeC³ee®eer efJevebleer Deens.

02.		  efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee ceeie&oMe&keÀ meg®eveebvegmeej, meYeemeoebveer KYC mebyebefOele DeÐe³eeJele keÀeieohe$es MeeKeskeÀ[s oeKeue keÀjeJeerle.

03. 		  ie´enkeÀeb®³ee Keel³eeleerue jkeÀces®³ee megj#es®³ee¢äerves lemes®e veJ³eeves meg© keÀjC³eele ³esCeeN³ee efJeefJeOe ³eespeveeb®eer ceeefnleer ie´enkeÀebhe³e¥le heesnes®eC³ee®es¢äerves yeBkesÀceeHe&Àle 
³eeyeeyele SmeSceSme heeþefJeC³eele ³esle Deensle. lejer Deeheues DeÐe³eeJele ceesyeeF&ue ¬eÀceebkeÀ Je Fcesue Dee³e[er mebyebefOele MeeKeebceO³es jefpemìj keÀjeJesle.

04. 		  ceequìmìsì keÀes-Dee@he.meesmee³eìerpe De@keÌìceOeerue lejlegoervegmeej ceequìmìsì keÀes-Dee@he.meesmee³eìer®ee meYeemeo meueie leerve Je<ex Jeee|<ekeÀ meJe&meeOeejCe meYesme DevegheeqmLele 
Demeu³eeme Je l³ee®eer DeMeer DevegheeqmLeleer Jeee|<ekeÀ meJe&meeOeejCe meYesves ceev³e ve kesÀu³eeme l³ee®es meYeemeolJe DeeheesDeehe mebhegäele ³esles. meYeemeoebveer ³ee lejlegoer®eer veeWo 
IesTve meYesme GheeqmLele jneJes.  lemes®e DevegheeqmLele jneCeej Demeu³eeme lemes uesKeer keÀUJeeJes.

05. 		  yeBkesÀ®³ee heesìefve³ece ¬eÀ.4 (xxix) (a) Devegmeej Deeheues meYeemeolJe keÀe³ece jenC³eemeeþer he´l³eskeÀ meYeemeoeves yeBkesÀleerue l³eeb®³ee ye®ele Jee ®eeuet Keel³eebceO³es efkeÀceeve 
`5,000/- mejemejer efleceener efMeuuekeÀ þsJeCes DeeJeM³ekeÀ Deens  eEkeÀJee meYeemeoeves efkeÀceeve `5,000/- cegoleþsJe þsJeCes Jee keÀpe& IesCes DeeJeM³ekeÀ Deens. yeBkesÀ®ee 
heesìefve³ece ¬eÀ.7 (iv)(b) Devegmeej, Jejerue yeeyeeR®eer hetle&lee ve keÀjlee, meYeemeoeves meueie oesve Je<ex yeBkesÀ®³ee mesJee megefJeOeeb®ee ueeYe Iesleuee Demesue lej meoj J³ekeÌleer 
meYeemeo cnCetve Dehee$e nesF&ue.  lejer p³ee meYeemeoebveer ³ee yeeyeer®eer hetle&lee kesÀueer vemesue DeMee meYeemeoebvee efJevebleer keÀjC³eele ³esle Deens keÀer l³eebveer meoj yeeyeer®eer lJejerle 
hetle&lee keÀjeJeer.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,
On behalf of the Board of Directors of your Bank, I hereby 
present before you the 117th Annual Report of your Bank for 
the financial year 2022-23

The financial year 2022-23 was marked by volatility in global 
financial markets. The global economy was recovering from 
successive waves of the Covid pandemic by early 2022 when 
the Russia Ukraine war took place. This resulted in persistent 
rise in food and energy inflation. To control rising inflation, the 
U.S Federal Reserve raised the Fed funds rate by 500 bps 
throughout 2022 and 2023 and the Reserve Bank of India raised 
the Repo rate by 250 bps. At the end of the year, the failure of 
some Banks in advanced economies contributed to volatility in 
markets but resolute action by Central Banks prevented further 
damage. 

In this turbulent global economic environment India has 
witnessed macroeconomic and financial stability with a steady 
pickup in growth. This reflects a sound macroeconomic 
policy environment and the innate resilience of the economy 
which fortified it against recurring global shocks. India has 
remained among the fastest growing major economies 
contributing more than 12% to global growth in the last 
5 years. Medium term prospects for the Indian economy 
have brightened due to policy initiatives to control inflation, 
transform India into a manufacturing hub and a resurgence 
in the services sector. Equity markets in India gained 
marginally inspite of portfolio outflows and pressure on the 
rupee, reflecting India’s innate strength and rising domestic  
investment. 

This year the Banking sector saw double digit credit growth 
encompassing all major sectors. The asset quality of Scheduled 
Commercial Banks continued to improve with GNPA and NNPA 
ratios declining. The provision coverage ratio and Net Interest 
Margin of SCBs also increased. 

In the area of cooperative Banking, Reserve Bank of India 
implemented the recommendations of Expert Committee 
on UCBs and adopted a four tiered regulatory framework 
aimed at strengthening the financial soundness of UCBs. 
The measures for strengthening the sector are also being 
supplemented by offering more operational flexibility to stronger  
UCBs. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In the financial year 2022-2023, CA Milind Kale led the Board 
as Chairman and Shri. Sachin Apte as the Vice Chairman.

After this in May 2023, Shri. Sachin Apte resigned from the 
post of Vice Chairman. In the meeting of the Board of Directors 
of the Bank held on May 20, 2023, the Director of the Bank 
Shri Praveenkumar Gandhi has been unanimously appointed 
as the Vice Chairman of the Bank.

Also, Mr. Anant Padhye has been elected to the post of Staff 
Representative in the Board of Directors from June 2023 as 
decided unanimously by the Cosmos Bank Sevak Sangh.

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
Total 22 meetings of the Board of Management were held 
during the reporting year. The experience and expertise of 
the members of the Board of Management have been proved 
useful in working of the Bank.

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS
(Amt in Crores)

Particulars 2021-2022 2022-2023
Share Capital 335.34 332.77

Reserves and other Funds 1765.27 1691.07

Own funds 2100.61 2023.84

Net NPA 4.74% 1.74%

Gross NPA 6.86% 4.80%

Total Income 1908.53 2222.09
a.	 Interest Received 1397.96 1473.32

b.	 Other Income 191.35 279.10

c.	 Other Credits 319.21 469.67

Total Expenditure 1842.62 2070.68
a.	 Interest Paid 805.41 795.26

b.	� Establishment Expenditure 208.32 215.79

c.	 Other Expenditure 205.77 227.07

d.	 Provisions + write off 623.12 832.56

Net Profit / Loss 65.91 151.41
Net Surplus / Shortfall 77.91 151.41

APPROPRIATION OF PROFIT –
The Board of Directors has proposed the appropriation of profit 
as follows, 					                           (Amt. in `)

Net Profit for the year 2022-23 `1,51,40,47,499.00

Less:- Appropriation

Reserve Fund @ 25% `37,85,11,875.00

Education Fund @1% `1,51,40,475.00
Reserve for Unforeseen 
Losses @ 10% `15,14,04,750.00
Investment Fluctuation 
Reserve `7,30,00,000.00

`61,80,57,100.00

Balance Profit `89,59,90,399.00

Profit C/F (Of previous years’) `74,14,25,677.00
Net Surplus C/F (to next Year) `1,63,74,16,076.00

(The appropriation in Points 1 to 3 is as per Section 63(1) 
of Multi State Co-operative Societies Act 2002, in proportion 
to the net profit of `151,40,47,499.00 for the year under  
review)
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The Board of Directors hereby appeal to the General Body to 
accord its approval to submit a request application to Reserve 
Bank of India for declaration of dividend out of the remaining 
profit of `89,59,90,399.00 after appropriation towards statutory 
provisions out of net profit of `151,40,47,499.00

DEPOSITS
Indian economic growth in F.Y 2022-2023 has been principally 
led by private consumption and capital formation and they 
have helped generate employment. Increased demand for 
credit has created strong competition amongst the Banks for 
raising deposits. Bank credit has also been influenced by the 
shift in borrowers funding choices from volatile bond markets 
and external commercial borrowings to Banks.

This deposit boosting environment has resulted in marking 
significant growth in total deposits of the Bank. The Bank 
has achieved the deposit position of `17,629.42 Crores as on  
31 March 2023, with significant deposit growth of  
`1,107.05 Crores during the year. 

To boost inflow of deposits, Bank launched follwing two 
schemes.

Launch of new Schemes during the Year – 
•	 Amrut Azadi Deposit Scheme A & B - On the occasion 

of 75th anniversary of Independence & Ganesh Festival; 
Bank had launched two special Deposit schemes viz. 
Amrut Azadi Deposit Scheme A with deposit period of 990 
days & Amrut Azadi Deposit Scheme B with deposit period 
of 75 months. 

•	 Launch of Long Term Subordinated Bonds – 1  
Bank had launched Long Term Sub-ordinated Deposit  
Bonds - 1 as per Reserve Bank of India Permission. The 
issue was launched on 16 December 2022 and closed on 
31 March 2023 after collection of `50.16 Crores.

LOANS AND ADVANCES
During the year under review, the Loans and Advances of the 
Bank stood at `13,116.60 Crores from last year’s `12,292.91 
Crores. Loans & Advances increased by `823.69 Crores i.e. 
6.70%. Loans of `188.23 Crores were written-off during the 
year for which 100% provision was made. 

The Credit Deposit (CD) Ratio as on 31 March 2023 stood at 
74.40%. The percentage of loans with own funds plus deposits 
was 66.95% as on 31 March 2023 which was within the 
prescribed limits as per the Reserve Bank of India guidelines.

As per Reserve Bank of India guidelines, Bank’s maximum 
Single Party Exposure (Individual / Company) was `145.00 
Crores and Maximum Group Exposure was `240.00 Crores 
which is based on the Audited Financials as on 31 March 2022. 
As per guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India Single Party 
Exposure & Group Exposure is calculated on Tier I capital for 
all Banks, which has resulted in decrease in Exposure limit for 
Bank. 

In F.Y. 2022-23 Rate of Interest competition was continued 
in the Banking Sector. The Bank offers wide range of loan 
schemes like Home Loans, SME Loans, Mortgage Loans, 

Car Loans, Education Loans, Cosmo Credit Loans, etc. at 
very competitive and reasonable interest rates. The Bank is 
providing loans to lower income group i.e. Self-help Group, 
Joint Liability Group for which separate Financial Inclusion Cell 
is functioning. 

As per Reserve Bank of India guidelines on Prudential 
Exposure norms, bank is required to increase the Retail Loans 
portfolio i.e. loans up to `1.00 Crore to the extent of 50% of 
aggregate advances portfolio of the Bank by 31 March 2024. 
Accordingly, efforts are taken for increasing the loans portfolio 
up to `1.00 Crore.

The portfolio shift among advances of `1 Crore. `1 Crore to  
`10 Crores & above `10 Croces is illustrated below:

Loan Range % In Total Advances
31.03.2022 31.03.2023 Change

Up to `1.00 Crore 29% 38% 9%
Above `1.00 Crore to  
`10.00 Crores 18% 22% 4%

Above `10.00 Crores 53% 40% -13%

During the year under review, the Advances in Priority Sector 
stood at `8,691.08 Crores which is 64.29 % of the Total   
Advances, against Reserve Bank of India prescribed target of 
60%. The advances to weaker section stood at 14.53 % of the 
total portfolio, against Reserve Bank of India target of 11.50%. 
The advances to Micro Enterprises stood at 11.18%, against 
Reserve Bank of India prescribed target of 7.50%. Extensive 
efforts are taken for disbursing new credit proposals under 
Priority Sector. Retail Loan Products were marketed which are 
eligible to be classified under Priority Sector/ Weaker Section. 

RETAIL LOANS - 
Retail Credit Growth
In the F.Y.2022-23 the Bank has experienced a phenomenal 
growth of `1,346.17 Crores in Retail Loans. The Central Bank 
has mandated the Urban Co-operative Banks to achieve 50% 
Retail Loans up to `1.00 Crore to Total Loans portfolio till 
31.03.2024. In response to this, the Bank has achieved 37 % 
Retail Loans portfolio to Total Advances of the Bank as on 31 
March 2023. With all the initiatives taken by the Board and the 
Top Management, and a very enthusiastic and motivated team, 
the Bank is confident of achieving the 50% Retail Portfolio on 
or before 31 March 2024.

The Retail Loan schemes were designed and modified based 
on the market sentiments and prevailing situations from time 
to time. The rate of interest on Retail Loans were modified and 
made competitive for all the products and the scheme features 
were modified for easy salability. 

A routine dialogue of the Field Executives with the Top 
Executives was established to create a comfort which 
facilitated quick decisions and timely disbursements resulting  
into increased customer satisfaction levels. Monthly business 
review meetings of the Field Executives with the Managing 
Director and the Retail Business Head made a turnaround in 
business.
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As per Directives given by Hon. Board Members, to boost 
up the morale and to motivate the employees to achieve the 
ambitious net growth targets set for Retail Loans, performance 
based Reward and Recognition program was introduced. 
Each individual was recognized and rewarded for the business 
achieved. 

In F.Y. 2022-23, Retail Credit Department has taken following 
efforts : 

1	 Launched Cosmo Small Business Loan Scheme for above 
`1.00 Crore to `5.00 Crores 

2	 Introduced innovative software “Score Me” having various 
automation tools which can be helpful in financial & non-
financial screening of proposal.

3	 Amendment done in delegation for CRE Exposure up to 
`1.00 Crore for quick decisions.

4	 Started day wise branch progress from December-2022, 
in which branches were divided into various range from 
below 60% up to 100%. This helped to concentrate more 
on lower range branches and convert them into more than 
85% target achievement. 

5	 Started marketing of Retail products on Social Media - 
WhatsApp, Instagram, Facebook and Print Media.

6	 Conducted Training Sessions about commercial loans, 
retail products and detailed review of branch performance 
on conference call at regular interval of 15 days. 

Bank had launched various contests during the year and the 
winners were felicitated by Top Management Detail of which 
are as below :-

	 Lakshya 23 - (1 February 2023 to 31 March 2023) 

	 For disbursement of Commercial Loan (under any 
scheme), Home Loan up to `35 Lakhs, Mortgage Loan 
and Vehicle Loan. Disbursment under this contest stood 
to `517.00 Crores.

	 The Cosmo Champ 22 (1 November 2022 to 14 January 
2023) 

	 For disbursement of Retail product - Home Loan, Mortgage 
Loan and Commercial product – Cosmo Small Business 
Loan, Cosmo Udyog Loan. Branches achieved total 
business of Sanctioned Amount `317.72 Crores under this 
contest.  

	 Josh 2.0 - Keep Marching… (1 August 2022 to 30 
September 2022)

	 CASA account opening, Retail loans up to `1.00 Crore, 
Insurance Business and Digital Products.

	 •	 Total No. of CASA accounts opened 12685.

	 •	 CASA Amount mobilized in new accounts opened 
`.36.41 Crores.

	 •	 Retail Loan achievement `955.43 Crores.

	 •	 Retail loan proposals sourced in the context period 
are 2196.

	 •	 Insurance premium achievement `9.36 Crores.

	 “Focus” Education Loan Contest (15 July 2022 to	
	 30 September 2022)
	 Branches achieved total business of Sanctioned Amount 

`53.72 Crores and Disbursed Amount `20.59 Crores.  

	 “Formula One” Contest (23 May 2022 to 31 July 2022)
	 Product allotted for the contest, i.e., Cosmo Udyog and 

Property Mortgage.  Branches achieved total business of 
`102.35 Crores, out of which `24.40 Crores was achieved 
in Cosmo Udyog and `77.95 Crores was achieved in 
Property Mortgage loan.  

Highlights of Financial Year 2022-23  

	 Highest Net Growth of `1,346.17 Crores in Retail Loans

	 Actual Disbursements were `2,304.48 Crores. 

	 Net growth in last three years:- 

	 F.Y.2020-21              ̀ 229.24 Crores             Net rise 21.48%

	 F.Y.2021-22              ̀ 970.33 Crores             Net rise 28.64%

	 F.Y.2022-23              ̀ 1346.17 Crores           Net rise 37.00%

CREDIT SUPERVISION DEPARTMENT-
Credit Supervision and its monitoring is a continuous ongoing 
process. Appropriate control is maintained by the Department 
over the regularity of the loan accounts and smooth conduct of 
the transactions.

Accounts having limits of `25 Crores & above are being 
monitored by this Department. SMA (Special Mention Accounts)
data is sent on fortnightly basis to respective regional offices. 
List of probable NPA accounts is also sent on daily basis to 
respective regional offices for follow-up of timely recovery. 

In order to reduce SMA-0, 1 & 2 & arrest new NPA slippage, 
Department had launched Campaign for “ZERO SMA” for all 
branches during the previous year.

Stock audit, due diligence reports, etc., are handled through 
this Department. Special attention is given to the restructured 
accounts and it is ensured that all the parameters of the 
accounts, such as repayment during specified period, 
achievement of Date of Commencement of Commercial 
Operations (DCCO) remain regular by constantly following-
up with the borrowers / regional offices. Proper precautions 
and in-time discussion with the borrowers help to resolve the 
problems of the account and keeps it productive / performing. 

Considering the expanse of the Bank in seven states, apart 
from Head Office, Credit Supervision Department is constituted 
in Mumbai, Gujarat & proposed to start at Hyderabad. 

This department is directly working under the guidance of the 
Managing Director of the Bank.
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OVERDUES AND NPA RECOVERY-
During the year under review, the bank has recovered  
`273.11 Crores in NPA (including accounts upgraded of  
`137.91 Crores) and `172.37 Crores in Write-off Accounts 
& ARC Recovery of `23.98 Crores thus the total amount of 
recovery being `469.46 Crores.  

In financial year 2022-23, Bank had given thrust on the 
monitoring the loan accounts and on movement of SMA 
category. By taking the above measures, at the end of March 
31, 2023, percentage of over dues was 4.41%, gross NPA was 
4.80% and net NPA was 1.74%. 

To take action for recovery of NPA's, various legal actions are 
being taken under SARFAESI Act including filling of application 
under section 14 before the District Magistrate. Also under the 
Multistate Co-op. Societies Act, various legal actions are being 
such as filing claims before arbitrators, filing claims before 
DRT, filing applications before NCLT etc. 

The option of closing the loan account by paying a lump sum to 
the arrears was also been made available. 

Efforts are being made to recover the arrears of the merged 
banks under Section 156 of the Maharashtra Co-operative 
Societies Act.

For the effective recovery during the year under review, 
necessary recovery actions being initiated by Recovery 
Department which is headed by Dy. CGM who is well assisted 
by two General Managers appointed for Region I & III and for 
Region II respectively with appropriate officers and staff.  

The Bank is taking effective help from competent Lawyer / 
Solicitor firm, to take prompt decision on various claims pending 
against the defaulters for recovering the arrears involved.  

The Managing Director conducts weekly meetings to guide the 
Recovery Officers by keeping them updated on the recovery 
from time to time. A review meeting being conducted with all 
the concerned officers through the Committee of the Directors  
and they give necessary instructions. 

The following is a summary of the action taken by the bank 
against the arrears under various laws.

Total 678 awarded cases are under trial in Hon’ble District 
Court for the total amount of `1,212.51 Crores (principal + 
interest).

As on 31/3/2023 Cases
Cases filed with the Arbitrator 43
Cases filed with “Darkhast” 678
At the end of the year 2022-23 under Securitization Act, 
action was taken on 109 defaulters for the total amount of  
` 194.81 Crores (Principal + Interest)
Actions initiated Cases
1.	 Demand notice under section 13(2) 109
2.	 Taken possession of property 72
3.	 Process of possession under progress 112
4.	 Possession taken, sale process initiated 113

CAPITAL ADEQUACY (CRAR)-
At the end of March 31, 2023, the Bank's Tier I Capital was 
`1,337.89 Crores and Tier II `454.99 Crores.

Bank’s Capital Adequacy Ratio (CRAR) as on 31st March 2023 
stands at 13.54% which is well above the benchmark of CRAR 
of 12% as stipulated by Reserve Bank of India.

Bank has launched the Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference 
Shares (PNCPS)-Series 1 with coupon rate upto 8% p.a., in 
accordance with the Reserve Bank of India Circular dated 
08th March 2022 on Issue and regulation of share capital and 
securities - Primary (Urban) Co-operative Banks.

Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Shares are Considered 
as Tier-I Capital of the Bank.

TREASURY AND FOREX BUSINESS –
The Treasury Department is responsible for the proper 
management of the Bank’s Investments and liquidity while 
complying with regulatory requirements. In addition to day 
to day liquidity management, the Treasury Department also 
seeks to maximize returns by investing the Bank’s surplus 
funds using the various investment options available in the 
ever changing debt market.

During the year, global central Banks raised rates aggressively 
to control rising inflation. Reserve Bank of India also raised the 
Repo rate by 250 bps. The money market rates during the year 
rose due to the reduction in surplus liquidity in the Banking 
system and improved credit demand. The 10 year benchmark 
of G-Sec which had closed on 31st March 22 at 6.84% rose to 
7.31% on 31st March 23.  

The Borrowing programme of the Central and state 
governments were conducted in an orderly manner. The Indian 
equity market exhibited resilience during 2022-23 despite 
heightened global uncertainties. 

During the year under review the Indian Rupee depreciated 
from `75.74 to `82.17 against the U.S. Dollar. Our total forex 
turnover (Merchant and Interbank) rose to `34197.43 Crores in 
this year from `22517.45 Crores last year with an increase of 
51.87% over year 

INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT - 

Emergence of numerous & complex risks and subsequent 
Reserve Bank of India / regulatory guidelines so as to mitigate 
these risks, has necessitated strengthening of Audit Function 
across the Banking Sector.

Accordingly, following steps are taken in this direction:-

	 •	 Various types of Audit viz. Concurrent audit, 
statutory audit, Risk Based Internal Audit (RBIA), 
information system audit, VAPT, Source code, 
migration audit, etc. are covered under internal audit  
department.
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	 •	 Bank has appointed two reputed / renowned Chartered 
Accountant firms as Joint Statutory Auditors, 
for FY 2022-23, M/s G.D. Apte & Co, Chartered 
Accountants and M/s M P Chitale & Co. Chartered  
Accountants.

	 •	 Branches and Head Office Departments of the Bank 
are covered by the Statutory Auditors, as per Reserve 
Bank of India guidelines. 

	 •	 Exhaustive scope of Concurrent Audits covers all the 
regulatory instructions/ guidelines & mitigates the 
risks. Audit scope is revised from time to time as per 
changes in policies.

	 •	 Compliance based on audit observations is done on 
regular basis and reports are closed by placing them 
before Audit Committee of Board.

	 •	 Awareness is created in branches about compliance 
by trainings, interactive sessions with branch staff 
during the branch inspections by our Officers.

	 •	 Branches are categorized based on volume of 
business and accordingly frequency of concurrent 
audit is decided.

Risk Based Internal Audit (RBIA) 

•	 As per Reserve Bank of India guidelines, Risk Based 
Internal Audit (RBIA) is implemented for F.Y. 22-23 and all 
head office departments/support functions and branches 
are also covered under RBIA from F.Y. 22-23.

 •	 Separate Inspection Teams are functioning in all the 
regional offices, for RBIA. These teams are functioning 
to maintain effective control over day to day banking 
transactions, documentation & risks. Experienced & 
qualified staff is deputed for this task.

•	 Frequency of RBIA of branch is based on risk ratings. RBIA 
audit policy is prepared and modifications are done in it as 
per the changes in procedures and practices. Separate 
Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) is also prepared for 
smooth working of RBIA.

AUDIT AUTOMATION -
Automation of Internal Inspection is completed and 
implemented from April 2022. Automation of Concurrent 
Audit is also completed and implemented w.e.f. July, 2022. It 
has strengthened and will continue to strengthen the overall 
system of audit. 

Summary of benefits reaped through automation is as follows: 

	 01.	 Raising & resolving the audit queries on  real time 
basis.

	 02.	 Mobility in access to the system to the auditors and 
auditees.

	 03.	 Upgradation in system according to requirements & 
needs. 

VIGILANCE DEPARTMENT - 
Vigilance Department is functioning separately in the Bank. 
The department is making surprise visits to the branches, 
monitoring transactions / accounts based on system generated 
reports, reporting of frauds to Reserve Bank of India, if any, 
reporting of the actions taken & the changes if any in the fraud 
cases to Reserve Bank of India, is undertaken by Vigilance 
department.

HUMAN RESOURCES & TRAINING 
DEPARTMENT - 
Human Resources is the most important Asset of the Bank. 
It is necessary to ensure that every employee of the Bank is 
contributing in the Banks’s progress. So, constant focus on 
its Human Resource is an integral part of the Bank’s values. 
Attracting, Retaining and Developing our workforce to meet the 
current and future needs of the Business is the key focus area. 

Our Cosmos family is having total staff strength of 2527 
employees, consisting of 1226 Officers and 1301 other staff. 
181 candidates are recruited through outsourced agency as of  
year end March 2023. The Bank is committed to achieve the 
above goals by providing in house career growth opportunities 
and constant training.

In the constant changing Business scenario, continuous 
Training plays an important role in keeping the employees 
updated and ready to face the challenges. The Training 
department arranges various trainings through Online and 
Offline mode. The topics covered include Cyber Security, 
Digital Banking, Retail Loans assessment, etc. In order to 
ensure effective Customer Service, every time Customer avails 
any service from the Bank, soft skills training and product 
information training is also provided to the Employees.

Amalgamation of erstwhile Shri Sharada Sahakari Bank 
Ltd was the highlight activity of this financial year 2022-23. 
Absorption of staff of erstwhile Shri Sharada Sahakari Bank 
Ltd into our Bank, imparting necessary trainings to the staff, 
providing support to these newly added branches and its staff 
is being handled by the department on priority. During the year 
under review, the Bank is successful in maintaining the cordial 
relations with The Cosmos Bank Sevak Sangh.

RISK DEPARTMENT 
01. Chief Risk Officer -
In line with the global practices, increasing complexity in 
banking and to arrest material consequence that may affect the 
overall financial system, Reserve Bank of India has adopted the 
risk-based approach in its supervision and control. Accordingly 
in June 2021 Reserve Bank of India directed UCBs having 
asset size more than `5,000 Crores, to put in place appropriate 
risk management mechanism with appointment of Chief Risk 
Officer before 31st March, 2022.    

Your Bank was already having segment wise risk function 
embedded in respective functions. However, Reserve Bank of 
India circular gave the shape of formal and centralized structure to 
this function. Accordingly Risk Management Committee of Board 
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and office level sub-committees viz. Credit Risk Management 
Committee, Operational Risk Management Committee were 
formed.   Asset- Liability Committee was already in existence, 
which now covers Market and Liquidity Risk. Information 
Security Committee was also in existence to take care of IT  
related risk.  

Sub-committees report to Risk Management Committee of 
Board, which in turn reports to the Board of Directors about 
various risks identified and mitigation plan for the same.

Under the leadership/guidance of the Risk Management 
Committee of your Bank, the Risk Department is working 
towards implementing an Integrated Risk Management System 
in the Organization. 

During the year, Risk Department has undertaken various 
initiatives in order to strengthen Risk Management Function of 
the Bank for e.g. 

(i)	 Formulation of Risk Appetite covering the key areas of 
banking viz Credit, Liquidity and Operations, 

(ii) 	 Modification in internal Credit Rating model with industry 
and management parameters for pricing of the loan to big 
borrowers.  

(iii) 	Periodic review of certain liquidity ratios and stress testing 
are major initiatives among them.

Apart from risk related function, Risk Management Committee 
also takes cognizance of economic and banking updates 
regularly.  During the year under review, upcoming subjects 
like sensitization of Climate Risk, Expected Credit Loss, Digital 
Currency etc. have been discussed in the Committee. 

The establishment and operation of Risk Department is 
another step to aid management for effective control, co-
ordination towards overall organizational growth and work 
towards stability of organisation. 

02. Chief Information Security Officers -
The Bank operates in a rapidly evolving environment and hence 
is exposed to various risks that are inherent to the business 
and environment in which it operates. Some of these risks are 
inherent in the banking business as well as for the banking 
sector. National/Global Reach, Competition, Digitization, 
Speed & complexity of banking processes has given rise to 
plentiful risks and day by day novel risks are getting added.  
The main objective of risk management is to detect and analyze 
various types of risks in a timely manner and to implement 
control systems accordingly to avoid or mitigate the possible 
adverse effects of these risks and moderate the possibility of 
unexpected outcomes. 

The risk management function works in collaboration with 
other departments of the Bank to ensure business activities 
are consistent with laid down policies and strategies.

A comprehensive assessment of various risks is facilitating 
the Bank's business as well as customer service coupled 

with internal control and monitoring of various systems. The 
risk management ensures that the various businesses in the 
Bank follow the same set of policies. It also helps in creating 
awareness among all the employees of the Bank about the 
various risks that may arise while doing the Banking business. 

There are different types of risks which have been identified 
in relation to the banking business such as operational risk, 
financial risk as well as IT security risk. Various Policies 
like Operational Risk policy, Principal Risk policy, Business 
continuity policy, Information Security policy, Cyber Security 
policy etc. have been implemented for this purpose. These 
policies are approved by the Board of Directors and are 
reviewed from time to time in the Board of Directors meeting 
and changes / amendments thereof are made if required. 

IT SECURITY DEVELOPMENTS IN BANK - 

Cyber threats and the associated risks in the external 
environment have increased manifold. Bank in its incessant 
endeavor strives for improving the processes and controls to 
mitigate these emerging risks. Currently, there is a significant 
increase in the risk of cyber-attacks world-wide. To reduce such 
cyber threats, the Bank is constantly striving to strengthen and 
improve its various control systems. 

In the current scenario, before launching any new digital 
services for the convenience of the customers, cyber threats 
are being considered and remedied before roll out. The Cyber 
Security Framework and Cyber Crisis Management Plan of the 
Bank have been strengthened and made more efficient in the 
current year. 

The Bank has assured that the security guidelines as 
issued by the Society for Worldwide Interbank Financial 
Telecommunication (SWIFT) are being followed scrupulously. 
The Information Security Policy covers the security aspect 
of the information in any form in the Bank, its handling, 
storage and timely destruction of such information. Your bank 
religiously is into creating Cyber security awareness for staff 
in form of Newsletters, emails, online and personal trainings. 
Cyber Security Awareness for customers is created in the 
form of Newsletters, Posters, periodic SMSs, etc. Information 
Security Risk team works in co-ordination with the IT team to 
implement / enhance various security measures for your Bank. 
Your Bank also undertakes Information System (IS) Audit of 
Bank’s Data center and Disaster Recovery Site for moderating 
the impact arising due to IT Risk. IS Audit also contributes in 
ensuring that Information Systems in use are being managed 
prudently along with reasonable security and provide 
recommendations to implement required enhancements where 
ever necessary. Vulnerability Analysis and Penetration Testing 
(VAPT) is conducted by your bank on a regular basis wherein 
vulnerabilities if any, are identified and accordingly patched, 
penetration testing helps organizations meet compliance 
requirements and uncover security risks.  Also, with a view 
to make the Core Banking Solution (CBS) more robust, your 
bank has undertaken CBS audit. This has helped in further 
strengthening / betterment of the CBS system for rendering 
smooth, secure and hassle free customer service. 
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Your Bank has adopted new technologies and advanced 
banking tools to add value to its services and further 
strengthening the security measures by following best Cyber 
security practices.       

Accordingly, following best security practices and measures 
are prevalent in your Bank:  

01.	 Conducting Education and Awareness training programs 
for cultivating the cyber security awareness for all of 
its employees through trainings, emails / posters on a 
continuous basis.

02.	 Upgrading of Secure Email Gateway to thwart phishing 
and spamming attempts. Enablement of strong spam 
filters for preventing phishing emails from reaching the 
end users and authentication of inbound emails using best 
in class technologies to prevent email spoofing.

03.	 Cyber Security Crisis Management Plan is in place.

04.	 Establishment of Cyber security framework and policy for 
handling various processes in a centralized manner. 

05.	 Implementation of all advisories / circulars as received 
from time to time from various regulatory bodies and 
monitoring of the progress for the same.

06.	 Next Generation Security Operations Center (SOC) is in 
place for all business critical infrastructure. Presence of 
In-house SOC incident response team. 

07.	 Monitoring and compliance of various advisories, 
frameworks, etc. are looked after by various Officer Level 
Committees & Board Level Committees.

08.	 Next Generation firewalls are in place. Deception 
Technology is in place. Robust endpoint protection & 
detection by implementation of Next Generation Anti-
Virus.

09.	 Conducted Red team exercise.

10.	 Subscribed to Anti-phishing and anti-rouge applications 
services.

11.	 Brand protection monitoring solution is implemented.

12.	 Access control mechanism is in place. Restricted accesses 
to internal systems of the bank, are being provided as per 
the employee profile and need.  

13.	 Segregation of ATM, SWIFT, CBS etc., networks and 
production as well as test network is done.

14.	 Implementation of PIM Solution for server and network 
devices access management. 

15.	 Implementation of 2F authentication for all critical systems.

16.	 Source code review of critical applications is conducted.

17.	 End point disk encryption solution is implemented.

18.	 Host Intrusion Prevention System (HIPS) is in place for 
critical servers.  

19.	 Data Leak Prevention (DLP) technology is implemented 
Network Access Control (NAC) system is in place. 
Database Access Monitoring (DAM) is implemented.  

IT Related Services:- 
1.	 Reduction in the Transaction Declined percentage 

	 There are multiple reasons by which transactions get 
declined. This has the direct impact on the benchmarking 
of the bank. With application of the appropriate validations 
for our customers using other bank devices (ATMs / POS 
terminals) the percentage of the declining transaction has 
been reduced.  

2.	 Bharat Ecommerce Payment Gateway

	 Bank has implemented NPCI’s new payment gateway 
BEPG (for online payments) to support new features 
like standing instructions/EMI on debit card, recurring 
payment, tokenization, quick payment etc.

3.	 Additional features in Nextgen Internet Banking 
solution

	 Your Bank has revamped the existing NetBank application 
with latest technology and features to offer the next 
generation banking experience. It is enhanced with 
attractive & innovative user interface, necessary features 
on customer needs, integration with social media, 
money management tools and next generation security  
features. 

4.	 Digital Lending solution

	 To reduce the Turn Around Time of the underwriting process, 
Bank is under process of developing the new lending 
application which will be useful for loan lead generation 
on the fly as well as the account openinginstantly. 

5.    	Reduction of TAT for account opening process 

	 Bank has automated the process of account opening in 
the branches with an application in order to reduce the 
Turnaround time. With this, customer will get instant 
account number and he will be able to start transacting 
immediately. Account can be opened using either Aadhaar 
Number or PAN. Aadhaar authentication has been done 
by sending OTP to the customer's mobile number using 
UIDAI API integration.

6.	 TimePay EVOK  - API Services platform

	 TimePay EVOK has been designed to digitize Merchant 
operations and payments needs.  TimePay EVOK is an 
API based Payment platform empowering businesses 
with flexibility of real time transactions and innovative 
payment channel integrated with real time reconciliation 
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EVOK is the platform created for large, medium and small 
merchants to facilitate services around payments and 
collections. The Platform has UPI at its core layering with 
add-on services to serve their business under single roof. 
This platform will be useful to generate high volume of 
transactions, fund flow and commission-based income to 
the Bank

7.	 Insta Card for the needy customers 

	 To issue the cards on immediate basis upon customer’s 
request, Bank has come up with Insta Card Solution where 
INSTA cards will be generating in bulk. Insta Cards will be 
issued for all new account opening in Branches as well as 
for existing customers. Once an account is opened, card 
will be given to the customer immediately and same will be 
activated in 48 hours. 

	 Due to insta card facility, 

	 a.	 Customer will get card immediately at branch and 
Card will be attached to account within two working 
days

	 b.	 Immediate registration for UPI 

	 c.	 Once green pin is set,  customer can use the said 
card for all card transactions immediately

		  Insta Card management application is developed and 
implemented for issuing Insta Cards.

8.	 WhatsApp Banking 

	 Now along with the Cosmos Bank customers, WhatsApp 
Banking services will be available to non-customers as 
well.

	 In addition, to the  Mini statement and Stop cheque 
service, following services have been added for Cosmos 
customers – 

	 •	 Redeem Reward Points

	 •	 Fasting Online Issuance

	 •	 Visit Website

	 •	 Check Customer ID

	 We have also added below menus for non-customers -

	 •	 Open Saving Account  

	 •	 Visit Website

	 •	 Locate ATM

	 •	 Locate Branch

9.	 Cosmos Bank partnership with WAIU app

	 The Bank has entered into a partnership with Truevibez 
Private Limited, to co-promote a unique restaurant service 
offering and new features as given below to privileged 
customers, through their app WAIU.

	 01.	 WAIU is India’s first Dine Now, Pay Later service 
provider and is now launched in Pune. Through WAIU, 

customers will be able to dine in premium restaurant 
in Pune, without any immediate payment obligations. 
They will have flexible interest free repayment options 
to pay their bills at a later time, such as after 18 days 
or 35 days or convert the bill into 3 EMIs.

	 02.	 In addition, for Cosmos Bank staff and customers, 
WAIU has developed a special offer, through which 
if the customer pays immediately, customers will 
receive flat discount of 12% on total bill value, by 
using Cosmos bank Debit Card on App.

	 03.	 Also, customers will be able to reserve their tables in 
advance, before arriving at the restaurant.

10.  UPI Plug-In 

	 UPI Plug-In Service has been introduced by NPCI to 
improve payment acceptance and UPI integration for 
merchants. Sponsor bank extends PSP bank’s SDK 
(Parent App) to integrate with Merchant’s App (Partner 
App) available for users. Our Bank already has acquirer 
capacity for UPI channel and already having own UPI 
application `SoPay'. 

11.  Development of API for Form 15G/15H and Housing 
Loan Interest Certificate 

	 The Bank has developed API for Form 15G/15H and 
Loan Interest certificate printing through internet banking 
request. This will help our Internet Banking customers 
to get their Form 15G/15H and Loan Interest certificate 
online from Internet Banking application instead of visiting 
branch.

12.  Established the IT Training setup

	 Bank has implemented dedicated/permanent setup in 
COSMOS TOWER with all required infrastructure facilities. 
Now, at a time IT related trainings can be conducted for 25  
participants. 

13.  	Data warehouse (ETL /Reports Development)

	 The Bank has implemented visual analytical reports using 
data warehouse concepts for dynamic reports. Using 
these visual analytical reports, management will be  able to 
see data in the dashboard formats and can take the quick 
decisions based on the graphs, line charts, bar charts 
etc. compare data between dates, regions, sub regions & 
sol ids. This will help Bank’s Higher Management to take 
effective decision within minimal time.

14.  	Enterprise Architecture Review

	 Considering fast changes happening in the banking 
technology, focus of the regulators on Digital Banking, 
to fulfil expectations of the customers, need of creating 
sustainable & future ready IT Infrastructure to full fill 
business requirements at pace, the bank has conducted 
Enterprise Architecture Review through a professional 
consultant. This will be help the Bank to accelerate growth 
and operations efficiency via leading practices. 
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15.  	Automation/Technology upgradation initiatives 

	 Since there is a continuous evolution and upgradation in 
the technology as well as the compliances, the Bank’s 
IT team always takes initiatives to revamp / upgrade 
the solutions implemented. Bank has upgraded various 
systems/hardware setup and implemented some new 
applications. These upgradation helped to enhance 
customer experience/convenience as well as user  
comfort.

	 i)	 Your Bank has upgraded NACH application to give 
various new approaches towards the excellency in 
application like –

	 •	 Automation in Transaction Processing. 

	 •	 Auto Mail generation of Transactions to corporates

	 •	 SMS to customer for Mandate Authorization. 

	 •	 Mails on Mandate cancellation. 

	 •	 Reduction in time consumption and manpower.

The new application is capable of catering all the needs of the 
customers. 

	 ii)	 The Bank has implemented procurement and asset 
management software which will reduce the efforts 
of the back office team and will curtail the cost of the 
operations. 

	 iii)	 The Bank has replaced 27 ATMs with recyclers. This 
will facilitate our customers with cash deposit as well 
as cash withdrawal using the secure authentication 
method. The customer can deposit the cash using his 
ATM card or using his account number with additional 
security.

	 iv)	 The Bank has upgraded IT Infrastructure like power 
servers, blade servers and desktops to enhance 
performance and scalability for future digital 
enhancements.

	 v)	 The Bank has implemented new enterprise backup 
solution with advance features. Due to this advanced 
backup solution, Customer data will be stored 
securely and can be made available easily as and 
when required.

	 vi)	 The Bank has implemented enterprise email solution 
which is very cost effective alternative to top email 
solutions in the market which are too expensive.

	 vii) 	The Bank has upgraded bandwidths of branches 
having low bandwidth for primary and secondary 
links.  Due to bandwidth up gradation, branch working 
will become smooth and uninterrupted and will help to 
enhance customer convenience.

	 viii)	To reduce the bandwidth consumption of the 
branches and the slowness in desktop performance 

at branches, Bank has configured and introduced one 
super node at each branch. Now only one desktops 
of the branch which is configured as a super node 
will pull antivirus update. This has improved desktop 
performance at branches which resulted in quick 
customer service at branch counters.

16.	 Implementation of various Security Solutions/
Enhancements in Security posture

	 The Bank has enhanced/implemented various strong 
security measures to prevent fraudulent transactions, 
financial losses and safeguard banking assets of our 
esteemed customers. 

	 •	 The Bank has implemented SWIFT DR setup for 
redundancy.

	 •	 The Bank has implemented Data encryption solution 
to protect ourselves and our customers from data 
theft on the endpoints i.e. desktops or laptops. 

	 •	 The Bank has implemented Database activity 
monitoring (DAM) solution for observing, identifying 
and reporting database activities.

	 •	 The Bank has Integrated Finacle CBS with Active 
Directory for user login authentication.

	 •	 The Bank has implemented managed network 
switches.

	 • 	 The Bank has implemented Managed File Transfer 
Solution (MFT Solution) which is a dedicated & 
secured solution for transferring of files from one 
location to other location.

17.  Sharda Bank data migration 

	 Since, the Cosmos Bank has acquired the Sharda Bank, 
the data of Sharda Bank needs to be migrated to the 
Cosmos Bank Finacle. IT Team has successfully done 
migration activity of Sharda Bank. Erstwhile Sharda 
Bank had 8 branches, around 60000 customers & 
around 50000 accounts in various schemes like CASA, 
TD, CCOD & term loan. Apart from data migration, 
various other activities like Finacle training, data/scheme 
mapping, infrastructure setup, network setup, recycler 
terminal migration, ATM cards were also successfully  
carried out.

CURRENCY CHEST -
Cosmos Bank’s Currency Chest has completed Nine successful 
years of operations. Till date, In Maharashtra state, Cosmos 
Bank is the only co-operative bank having Reserve Bank 
of India permission to open and operate Currency Chest 
Department. 

Currency chest is providing fresh and sorted currency 
notes and coins to all the customers of our Bank in Pune-
Mumbai, Baramati, Phaltan, Satara, Shirur and nearby  
areas. 
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Currency Chest continuously carries out the task of detection 
and impounding of forged notes and removing soiled notes from 
circulation by sorting & remitting the soiled notes to Reserve 
Bank of India as per Reserve Bank of India Guidelines and 
Clean Note Policy. This ensures supply of issuable and good 
quality notes to our customers.

Also Currency Chest organized 'Coin Distribution Mela' (for 
customers and non-customers) throughout the year. Total coin 
distribution in the financial year 2022-2023 is `2.38 Crores.

We are not just serving our Bank's customers' but also taking 
care of other banks in their hour of need. In the last financial 
year 2022-2023 Currency Chest has diverted `86.91 Crores to 
other banks to help them handle their cash requirement and 
thereby ensuring availability of cash to general public.

During the Financial year 2022-23, total turnover of currency 
handled by the Currency Chest is `3,795 Crores.

INSURANCE BUSINESS -
Bank is acting as a Corporate Agent for 2 Life (HDFC Life & 
ICICI Prudential Life), 3 General Insurance (HDFC Ergo, ICICI 
Lombard & Bajaj General) and 2 Health Insurance Companies 
(Care Health and Manipal Cigna Health).

These companies have better customer satisfaction experience 
and good standing in insurance market with customer centric 
products and claim settlement. 

Insurance plays an important role in individual's financial 
planning as well as in their long term savings and investment 
options. Bank provides various master policies to cover all 
types of borrowers to the extent of their loan amount. 100% 
claims under social security schemes PMJJBY and PMSBY 
have been settled by the Bank.

Bank has registered excellent growth in insurance business 
in this financial year & have earned total commission of  
`4.26 Crores from Insurance Business.

All the branches have actively contributed in the insurance 
business and there is consistent growth with product offerings 
suited to customer needs.

Corporate Communications Group & Marketing 
Department -

The Corporate Communications Group and Marketing 
Department work in tandem to enhance Bank’s Brand 
Value by taking care of its advertising and social media 
handles. The focus is to identify and reach the target 
audience with Bank’s various products and services. Diverse 
and effective conventional as well as digital platforms, 
electronic media, outdoor media etc., are used to reach 
out to assorted customer base with product and services  
information.

Bank is active on digital media platforms and has its official 
pages on FaceBook, Instagram, LinkedIn, Twitter & YouTube. 
Images and videos of products as well as events are shared on 
these platforms for public engagement. 

Bank connects with the customers through SMS, Email etc to 
inform them about new products/schemes. The bonding with 
customers is increased by sending them festival messages 
and season’s greetings too.

Press conferences are also arranged through Corporate 
Communications Group.

SEVAK KALAKRIDA

Summer league was organized by Pune District Cricket 
Association. Bank’s Cricket Team has bagged the league title 
by winning 3 matches out of 4.

Yara Sports Kothrud, Pune organized Yara Premier League 
2022. In this competition Bank cricket team won the League 
wherein 16 teams from IT, Finance, Banking sectors had 
participated in the League.

ANNIVERSARY
On 18th January 2023 Bank’s Anniversary was celebrated by 
arranging “Tilgul Samarambha”. On the occasion of Swami 
Vivekanand Birth Anniversary and Youth day, competitions 
were arranged by the Bank in various colleges. The winners 
of these competitions were awarded on the occasion of Bank’s 
anniversary.

BRANCH RELOCATION -
Due to daily upgrading of technology and influx of digital 
systems like UPI, mobile banking etc., and the subsequent 
changing nature of banking processes, the number of 
customers visiting branches for banking transactions has 
reduced considerably. Hence, Bank's Management has taken 
prudent step to relocate branches having extra space and 
high rent. Thus following branches have been relocated to 
comparatively smaller premises with all the latest facilities and 
services:-

1. 19 September 2022 – Airoli Branch

2. 23 November 2022- Borivali East Branch

3. 08 May 2023- Mulund East Branch

Taking into consideration business expansion, some branches 
have been relocated to new and better premises, the details of 
which are as below :-

1. 01 July 2022- Rajkot Branch

AMALGAMATION

30 October 2022 - Shree Sharda Sahakari Bank Limited, a 
financially stable bank in Pune, has been amalgamated with 
our bank, adding 8 branches in Pune based branches. 

29 May 2023 - Maratha Sahakari Bank Limited of Mumbai 
has been amalgamated with our bank. Now, 7 branches of 
this bank in Mumbai have started functioning as branches of 
Cosmos Bank. 
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In addition, the Bank has submitted a proposal to the Reserve 
Bank of India for the amalgamation of The Sahebrao Deshmukh 
Co-operative Bank Limited, having 11 Branches in Mumbai. 
The said proposal is under consideration by Reserve Bank of 
India.

Also, the subject of amalgamation of The City Co-op. 
Bank Ltd, having 10 Branches in Mumbai has been 
included in the agenda of the Annual General Meeting for  
discussion.

CUSTOMER SERVICE

In order to provide advance services to the customers 
and account holders as well as to maintain a pleasant 
environment in the branch, the branches have been given 
a corporate look. Under which all the branches have been 
equipped with modern architecture, furniture, AC etc. An 
outsourced agency has been appointed to maintain the 
excess records in the branch and arrangements have been 
made to carry the excess records from time to time. Due to 
this Branch premises can be used more efficiently for customer  
services.

PROUD MOMENTS

01.	 Bank’s customer Rajpath Infracom Pvt. Ltd. has set world 
record by paving 42.2km of bituminous concrete in 109 
consecutive hours from 3rd June 2022 to 7th June 2022, 
on National Highway No.53 between Amravati and Akola. 
The Bank has received certificate of participation from 
Guinness World Records being a Finance partner of for 
this Project.

02.	 Bank has been honored with Super Trophy 2022 for 
the Best NPA Management, Best Audit Initiative and 
Best SOC Initiative award from Banking Frontiers in the 
category of Bank’s having more than `10,000 Crores  
setup. The said Prize was distributed by Former Union 
Minister CA Suresh Prabhu.

03.	 Bank has been awarded with winner trophy for the Best IT 
Risk Management and special awards for Best Technology 
Bank and Best Technology Talent in ‘Cooperative Banks’ 
category by Indian Banks’ Association. 

04.	 Under the category “Urban Co-operative Banks having 
Deposit of more than `15,000 crores”, Cosmos Bank 
was awarded the “Banco Blue Ribbon Best Technology  
Award 2022”.

05.	 From Employer Branding Institute & World HR Congress, 
Bank has received Best Employer Brand Award 2022 in 
the category of Excellence in Training.

06.	 Bank has bagged the Award in the 7th All India UCB 
Summit & Award 2023 “Best Cyber Security Initiative” and 
“Best NPA Management”

07.	 Bank has won Gold Trophy in the category of “Maximizing 
Customer Engagement” at infosys Finacle Innovation 
Award 2023. Cosmos Bank is the only Co-op. Bank 
receiving this Award, from approx 200 nominationsglobally.

DIRECTOR ACCOLADES
Chairman, CA Milind Kale – 

01.	 Elected unanimously as Vice Chairman of Co-operative 
Bank of India, New Delhi

02.	 Appointed as coopted Director of The Maharashtra Urban 
Co-operative Banks Federation 

Director, Dr. Mukund Abhyankar was honored with Lifetime 
Achievement Award as an alumni of the famous Nutan Marathi 
Vidyalaya, Pune. 

EXECUTIVES’ SPECIAL ACHIEVEMENTS 

•	 Managing Director, Mrs. Apekshita Thipsay has been 
elected as the member of Managing Committee of Indian 
Banks Association.

•	 Chief Information Security Chief Officer, Mr. Satish Lele 
has received “Outstanding Information Security Officer 
(CISO)” award from Computer Society of India, Mumbai.

DISTINCTIVE EVENTS-

01.	 24th August 2022 – On the occasion of 150th birth 
anniversary of first Chairman of the Bank N.C. Kelkar, a 
special program was organized at the Bank’s Head Office. 
His Family Members were present at occassion.

	 On 150th birth centenary of N.C.Kelkar various programs 
will be organized by Bank throughout the year and its 
outline has been fixed in this program.

02.	 15th October 2022 – On the occasion of birth anniversary 
of Bharat Ratna Dr. APJ Abdul Kalam Bank organized 
‘Reading Inspiration Day’ in association with Green 
World Publication. On this occasion Commissioner of 
Co-operation and Registrar, Co-op. Societies Hon. Anil 
Kawade  was present. He guided the audience about 
reading and incorporating the things read into practice.

03.	 Cosmos Bank Sevak Sangh jonitly with Sevak Kalakrida 
had organized region wise get togethers of staff and 
officers during November - December 2022. To encourage 
staff Participation, Many cultural event were arranged to 
which staff & officers responded enthusiastically.

04.	 Pune District Bank Association, Pune had declared 
`Sahakar Saptah' during 14 November 2022 to 20 
November 2022. On this occation, the Bank had 
organized Co-operative Flag hoisting at its head office, on 
14 November 2022.
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05.	 12th January 2023 – A special competition was organized 
by Bank for college youth of Pune on the occasion of 
Youth Day and birth anniversary of Swami Vivekanand. 
During this competition an opportunity was given to 
express thoughts on one of the three topics i.e.1) Digital 
Banking & Todays Youth,  2) Education System & Youth 
& 3) Career Challenges, by using medium of essay, 
PPT or street play. Winners were awarded on Bank’s  
Anniversary Day.

06.	 20th March 2023 – On the auspicious occasion of Gudhi 
Padwa, Bank has made Marathi website available for 
all its customers. Detail information of Bank’s various 
schemes, services, interest rates on deposits and loans is 
available in Marathi language.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year under review, following committee of Board of 
Directors were active to oversee day to day operations, loan 
sanctions and policy matters.

01.	 Hon. Executive Committee

02.	 Hon. Audit Committee

03.	 Hon. Loan and Recovery Committee

04.	 Hon. Fraud Monitoring Committee

05.	 Hon. IT Strategy Committee

06.	 Hon. Risk Management Committee

During the year under review, 32 meetings of Board of Directors 
and total 82 meetings of all the sub committees were held. 
Following are  the Directors attendance details.

Sr. No. Name of the Director Meetings of BOD Meetings of sub committees
Total No. of eetings Attendance Total No. of Meetings Attendance

1 CA Milind Kale 32 30 82 63

2 Shri. Praveenkumar Gandhi 32 30 57 52

3 Dr. Mukund  Abhyankar 32 32 47 47

4 CA Jayant Barve 32 32 52 52

5 Shri. Sachin  Apte 32 30 41 41

6 Prof. Rajaishwari  Dhotre 32 31 17 16

7 Adv. Pralhad Kokare 32 32 54 54

8 Prof. Nandkumar Kakirde 32 32 33 33

9 Adv. Anuradda Gadale 32 30 18 16

10 Shri. Ajit Gijare 32 31 25 24

11 CA Yashwant Kasar 32 24 37 31

12 Shri. Milind Pokale 32 32 17 15

13 Shri. Arvind  Tavare 32 32 37 37

MEMBERS
During the year under review, 9399 new individual and 
institutional members were enrolled as the members of the 
Bank. Whereas due to resignation and other reasons 3063 
members were removed from the member list. Therefore, by 
the end of 31st March 2023, the number of members of the 
Bank has reached 98027.

KNOW YOUR CUSTOMER (KYC) AND ANTI 
MONEY LAUNDERING (AML) - 

The Bank has well defined AML-KYC Policy. On the basis 
of this policy, KYC norms, AML standards, measures and 
obligations of the Bank under Prevention of Money Laundering 
Act (PMLA) 2002, are implemented. Our Bank is following the 
guidelines laid down by Reserve Bank from time to time. 

Our Bank is authorized Agency of the UIDAI to provide Aadhaar 
authentication facility to our esteem customers. As per UIDAI 
guidelines Bank has implemented and taken all necessary 
measures for the safety of customer data.

Two central Account Opening Cells have been set up in the 
Bank to facilitate opening of customer’s savings and current 
accounts. Account opening forms submitted by customer for 
opening of savings & current accounts and accompanying 
KYC documents are scrutinized, scanned and saved in the 
Document Management System and then accounts are 
opened. In Financial Year 2022-23 Account Opening Cells 
have processed and opened 61301 accounts. After account 
opening, information regarding KYC of all new individuals as 
well as of Legal Entities related documents are uploaded on 
the CKYCR (Central KYC Registry) portal of CERSAI by the 
Bank as required by the law. 
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The Bank has acquired the Anti -Money Laundering Software 
for generation of alerts electronically as well as generation 
of reports periodically for monitoring, screening of customer 
names with Negative List, generation of statutory reports i.e. 
Cash Transaction Report (CTR), Non-Profit Organization 
Transaction Report (NTR), Cross Border Wire Transfer Report 
(CBWT), Counterfeit Currency Report (CCR) and Suspicious 
Transaction Report (STR). All these reports are shared with 
Financial Intelligence Unit – India (FIU) in stipulated time frame.

Systems are periodically updated according to the guidelines 
issued by Reserve Bank of India or other Goverment Authorities 
from time to time.

In order to create awareness among employees and officers 
about KYC & AML and to prevent the Bank from being used as 
medium for money laundering and financing terrorism, frequent 
training sessions are organized for creating awareness 
amongst employees.

CHIEF COMPLIANCE OFFICER -

Compliance Function serves a critical role in overall structure 
of Corporate Governance. The Bank has well defined 
Compliance Policy duly approved by Board of Directors.  
The ultimate objective of the Policy is to create, develop and 
preserve the culture of compliance, maintain standard of 
honesty and integrity and provide mechanism to assess and 
address the Compliance Risk and matters related thereto. For 
effective implementation of Compliance function bank has set 
up Compliance Department. 

CUSTOMER CARE - 
Customer Service is a dynamic, demanding face of the banking 
industry. Banks in India are displaying a never before “all-for-

customer” approach in acquiring and retaining its customers, 
being conscious of the fact that each customer has a banking 
account elsewhere. Recognizing this need of the hour in 
competitive banking era, our Bank continued efforts of offering 
customer delight with customized products, and specific 
grievance redressal mechanism.

Bank organizes various types of trainings for staff such as 
behavioral trainings, soft skills training, training on product 
information etc. All these trainings are given with an aim to 
ensure better customer service every time customer avails 
any service from the Bank. Bank also gives online training 
to staff periodically to update their banking knowledge 
about crucial banking areas such as Credit, AML & KYC, 
and Digital Banking Channels etc. This helps in keeping the 
staff updated with all the latest developments in Banking 
World, which ultimately can be seen in the customer  
service. 

Customers connect to the Bank for their feedback, 
suggestions and queries through our mail id customercare@
cosmosbank.in. The Customer Care Department also 
handles the complaint’s received, including Banking 
Ombudsman office for timely resolution and ensuring zero  
pendency.

Bank has well defined customer grievance redressal mechanism 
along with well-defined hierarchy for quick customer complaint 
resolution. Each hierarchy is given a specific TAT for resolutions 
of customer complaints. This helps in resolving the complaints 
within the time frame. 

Further 24 x 7 customer support for internet and mobile baking 
services is provided by the Bank through our Toll Free No. 
18002330234 and dedicated mail ID’s ibhelp@cosmosbank.in
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DETAILS OF GENERAL BODY MEETINGS HELD FOR THE LAST THREE YEARS

01. FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-20

Date and Place Monday, 23 November 2020 at Cosmos Tower, Plot No.6, ICS Colony, University Road, 
Ganeshkhind, Pune - 411007

Via Audio Visual Media (OAVM) / Video Conference

Resolutions passed in the meeting:

01. 	Appointment of M/s. G.D. Apte & Company, Chartered Accountant and M/s. Kirtane & Pandit 
LLP , Chartered Accountant for the year 2020-21

02. 	By-laws of the Bank -. 4(xviii), 4(xxiii)(b), 4(xxviii)(a), 6(b)(i), 6(c), 7(iii), 7(iv)(b), 8, 31 A, 31 B, 
41, 41(ix), 45(i)(c) the said sub-rules were accepted with suggested amendments.

02. FINANCIAL YEAR- 2020-21

Date and Place Thursday, 30 September 2021 at Shivshankar Sabhagruh, Maharshi Nagar, Pune 411037

Resolutions passed in the meeting-

1. 	 Reappointment of M/s. Kirtane & Pandit, LLP, Chartered Accountant and  M/s. G.D. Apte & 
Co., Chartered Accountants as Joint Statutory Auditors for year 2021-22  

2. 	 Amendments suggested in the Bye Laws No.6 (a)(i), 6(a)(vi), 6(b)(ii) and 31 (A) were 
accepted.

3. 	 The resolution of amalgamation of Shree Sharada Sahakari Bank Ltd. in The Cosmos Co-op 
Bank Ltd. was approved by majority votes.

03. FINANCIAL YEAR- 2021-22

Date and Place Tuesday, 27 September 2022 at Shivshankar Sabhagruh, Maharshinagar, Pune 411 037

Resolutions passed by the meeting-

01. 	Reappointment of M/s. G.D. Apte & co., Chartered Accountants and appointment for first 
time M/s. M.P. Chitale & Co., Chartered Accountants as Joint Statutory Auditors for year 
2022-23  

SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING-

01. Date and Place Friday, 26 November 2021 at Shivshankar Sabhagruh, Maharshinagar, Pune 411 037

Resolutions passed by the meeting-

01.	 The Resolution regarding the scheme of amalgamation of Maratha Sahakari Bank Ltd. into 
The Cosmos Cooperative Bank Ltd. was approved by majority.

02. Date and Place Thurday, 30 March 2023 at Cosmos Tower, Plot No.6, ICS Colony, University Road, Ganeshkhind, 
Pune - 411007

Resolutions passed by the meeting-

01.	 The Resolution regarding the scheme of amalgamation of The Sahebrao Deshmukh Co-op 
Bank Ltd. into The Cosmos Cooperative Bank Ltd. was approved by majority

02.	 The Resolution regarding amended scheme of amalgamation of Maratha Sahakari Bank Ltd. 
into The Cosmos Cooperative Bank Ltd. was approved by majority

03.	 Amendments suggested in the Bye Laws No.4(i), 4(xx)(a), 4, 6, 6(a)(i), 6(a)(vi), 6(aa), 6(b)
(ii), 6, 7(i), 7(ii), 12, 14, 19, 35, 50 and 51 (iv) were accepted.
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OBITUARY

The Bank pays heartfelt homage to all the known and unknown members/ account holders, bank employees and other persons 
associated with the Bank who passed away during the year under review. 

VISITS OF DIGNITARIES

During the reporting year, various dignitaries visited our bank on the occasion of events. These mainly include the following 
dignitaries:

	 • 	 CA Suresh Prabhu – Former Union Minister

	 • 	 Mr. Satish Marathe – Founder Member of Sahakar Bharati, Director of Reserve Bank of India

	 • 	 Mr. Jyotindrabhai Mehta – President of The National Federation of Urban Co-op. Banks and Credit Societies, New Delhi.

	 • 	 Dr. Uday Joshi – National General Secretary of Sahakar Bharati

	 • 	 Mr. D.Krishna – Former Chief Executive Officer – The National Federation of  Urban Co-op. Banks and Credit Societies, 
New Delhi

	 • 	 Mr. Anand Upadhyay, Faculty – Reserve Bank of india, College of Agricultural Banking

	 • 	 Mr. Anil Kawade, Commissioner of Co-operation, Maharashtra State

	 •	 Mr.Sumitdhut Bolah, Minister of Commerce and Co-operative, Mauritius & delegates

	 • 	 CA Samir Mehta – Chairman of Sydney Australia, Chapter of ICAI

	 • 	 Mr. Durgesh Chandavarkar – Chairman of SVC Co-operative Bank Ltd.

	 • 	 Mr. Sharad Gangal – Chairman of Thane Janata Sahakari Bank Ltd.

	 •	 Mr. Vivekji Jugade – General Secretary of Sahakar Bharati Maharashtra Pradesh

	 • 	 Mr. Ashok Phaldessai – Actor

VOTE OF THANKS

We express sincere gratitude towards, Central Registrar, Co-operation Ministry, Government of India- New Delhi, and all its 
officials, officials of Reserve Bank of India, Ministry of Co-Operation, Commissioner of Cooperation and the officials of the states 
of Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh, Karnataka, Gujarat, Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh and Telangana.

Your Board would also like to place on record its appreciation for guidance offered by our internal, concurrent and statutory 
auditors during the year under review.

Your Board would also like to place on record its appreciation for the support from office bearers and all members of Cosmos 
Bank Sevak Sangh.

Last but not the least, heartfelt gratitude for the support by all the members, depositors, customers, executives and staff of the 
Bank.

With regards,

CA Milind Kale
Chairman

Date : 17 June 2023
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Requests to Members-

01.	 If there is any change in your correspondence address/Mobile No./E-mail we request you to updated the same at Branch.

02.	 As per Directives of Reserve Bank, Members should submit updated KYC documents at branch.

03.	 In order to disseminate new product information and to keep customers updated about their transactions, Bank sends SMS 
regularly. We request you to update your mobile number and email id with your home branch to receive the SMS.

04.	 As per the provision of the Multistate Co-op. Societies Act, if a member of the Multistate Co-op. Society is absent for the 
Annual General Meeting for three consecutive years and his absence is not approved by the Annual General Meeting, his 
membership is automatically terminated. Members should take note of this provision and attend the meeting. Also, if you are 
unable to attend the meeting, please let us know in advance in writing.

05.	 As per Bank’s bye law no.4(xxix)- (a) member should maintain average quarterly balance of `5000/- in their current/ savings 
account or total fixed or other deposits of `5000/- or loan facility aggregating to `5000/- and as per bye-law no. 7 (iv)(b) if 
member has availed facilities and services of Bank for 2 consecutive years without complying with above criteria, he/she will 
be disqualified as a Member. Hence, we request the Members who have not complied with the aforesaid criteria, to ensure 
compliance immediately.

Please note - The Marathi version of this Annual Report will be held authentic for all interpretations.

The words 'Bank', 'Cosmos Bank', 'We', 'Your Bank' have the same meaning i.e. The Cosmos Co-Operative Bank Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To,
The Members,
The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Ltd,
Report of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Ltd. (“the Bank”) as at March 31, 
2023, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the 
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Financial Statements 
together with the notes thereon give the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the Multi State Cooperative 
Societies Act, 2002 and the Rules made thereunder, the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) and the Central 
Registrar of Cooperative Societies, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Bank as at March 31, 2023 and its profit and its Cash Flows for 
the financial year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAI). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 
by the ICAI together with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions 
of the Banking Regulations Act, 1949 and the rules made thereunder and under the provisions of the Multi State Cooperative 
Societies Act, 2002 and the rules made thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Board of Directors Report including other explanatory information, but does not include Financial 
Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The report of the Board of Directors is expected to be made available to us after the 
date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Report of Board of Directors including other explanatory information, if we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and the members in the 
Annual General Meeting.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Accounting Standards issued by ICAI, provisions of Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the Rules made 
thereunder, provisions of Multi State Cooperative Societies Act, 2002 and the Rules made thereunder and circulars and guidelines 
issued by RBI and the Central Registrar of Cooperative Societies from time to time. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate records in accordance with the provisions of the Acts for safeguarding of assets of the Bank and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
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that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the Financial Statements that give true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Boards of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Financial Statements

 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement whether due to fraud or error and to issue auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 
high level of assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Bank for the previous year ended March 31, 2022 were jointly audited by M/s. Kirtane & Pandit 
LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No: 104215W / W100057) & M/s. G. D. Apte & Co., Chartered Accountants 
(ICAI Firm Registration No: 100515W), and had expressed an unmodified opinion vide their report dated June 10, 2022 on those 
financial statements. This report has been relied upon by M/s. M. P. Chitale & Co., Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration 
No: 101851W) (Joint Auditors) for the purpose of the audit of the financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements

1.	 The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in Forms A and B respectively of the Third Schedule 
to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, and the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, the Multi State Co-operative 
Societies Rules, 2002.

2.	 As required by Section 73(4) of the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, and section 30(3) of the Banking Regulation 
Act, 1949 (as amended), we report that:

	 a)	 We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purpose of our audit and have found to be satisfactory.

	 b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have been received from the 
branches or offices.

	 c)	 No separate audit of the branches has been conducted under the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and 
therefore no other auditor’s report has been received by us.

	 d)	 The transactions of the Bank which have come to our notice have been within the powers of the Bank.

	 e)	 The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report, are in agreement 
with the books of account and the returns.

	 f)	 The profit and loss account shows a true balance of profit for the period covered by such account.

3.	 As per the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the books of account and other record, 
we report as under on the matters specified in clause (d) and (e) of Rule 27 (2) of the Multi State Co-operative Societies 
Rules, 2002:

	 a)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have not noticed any material impropriety 
or irregularity in the expenditure or in the money due to the Bank.

	 b)	 During the course of Audit, we have generally not come across any violations of guidelines, conditions etc. issued by the 
RBI. The guidelines of National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development (“NABARD”) are not applicable to the Bank 
since the Bank has neither accepted deposits nor received subsidy from NABARD.

4.	 As required by Rule 27(3) of the Multi State Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002, we report on the matters specified in clauses 
(a) to (f) of the said Rule to the extent applicable to the Bank as under.

	 a)	 During the course of our audit, we have generally not come across transactions which appear to be contrary to the 
provisions of the Act, the Rules or the Bye-Laws of the Bank.

	 b)	 During the course of our audit, we have not come across material and significant transactions which appear to be 
contrary to the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”). The guidelines of National Bank for Agriculture 
and Rural Development (“NABARD”) are not applicable to the Bank since the Bank has neither accepted deposits nor 
received subsidy from NABARD.

	 c)	 Based on our examination of the books of account and other records and as per the information and explanations given 
to us, the money belonging to the Bank which appears to be bad or doubtful of recovery (Advances categorized as 
doubtful and loss assets as per prudential norms laid down by RBI) are as follows:

Category Outstanding Amount as on March 31 2023 (`In Crores)

Doubtful Advances (including Loss assets) 510.79

Non-Performing Investments 0.01

Other Assets 30.66
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	 d)	 As per the information provided to us and to the best of our knowledge, the following credit facilities have been sanctioned 
by the Bank to the members of the Board:

Particulars Outstanding Amount as on March 31, 2023 (`In Crores)

Fund Based 1.95
Non Fund Based NIL

	 e)	 During the course of our audit, we have generally not come across any violations of guidelines conditions etc. issued by 
the RBI. The guidelines of National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development (“NABARD”) are not applicable to the 
Bank since the Bank has neither accepted deposits nor received subsidy from NABARD.

	 f)	 To the best of our knowledge, no other matters have been specified by the Central Registrar of Co-operatives Societies, 
which requires reporting under this rule

FOR M/s. G. D. APTE & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
F.R. NO. 100515W

FOR M/s. M. P. CHITALE & CO.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No: 101851W

SANTOSH B. RASHINKAR
ICAI Membership No: 103483
UDIN: 23103483BGYBNV8567

SANAT ULHAS CHITALE	
ICAI Membership No: 143700
UDIN: 23143700BGXAWJ6635

PLACE:  PUNE
DATE:  May 20, 2023

PLACE:  PUNE
DATE:  May 20, 2023
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2023

No.
¬eÀ.

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES
keÀpe& Je osCeer SCH

AS AT 
31st March, 2023

`

AS AT 
31st March, 2022

`

 1) Capital / Yeeb[Jeue "A"  3,32,76,93,700  3,35,33,93,000 

 2) Reserve Fund and other Reserves
iebieepeUer Je Flej efveOeer "B"  16,91,07,02,887  17,65,27,06,016 

 3) Deposits and other Accounts / þsJeer Je Dev³e Keeleer "C"  1,76,29,42,38,436  1,65,22,37,36,117 

 4) Borrowings / keÀpex "D"  6,17,92,02,000  7,19,18,02,000 

 5) BILLS FOR COLLECTION BEING BILLS RECEIVABLE as 
per contra / Jemegueer mJeerkeÀejuesueer efyeues  4,00,35,51,222  4,30,86,71,313 

 6) Branch Adjustments / MeeKee efceUJeCeer  1,07,75,19,103  1,03,95,19,976 

 7) OVERDUE INTEREST RESERVE
A) 	 Overdue Interest Reserve on NPA
	 SveHeerS Jej LekeÀ yeekeÀer J³eepe lejlego  3,40,65,83,760  3,85,88,84,462 

B) 	 Overdue Interest on NPA Investment
	 SveHeerS iegbleJeCetkeÀerJejerue LekeÀerle J³eepe lejlego  -   -   

 8) Interest Payable / J³eepe osCes  6,99,43,107  4,39,92,905 

 9) Other Liabilities / Fjle osCeer "E"  4,12,47,22,402  2,81,02,86,389 

10)
Merged Banks Collection Account Payable
efJeueerefvekeÀjCe Peeuesu³ee yeBkeÀe®es keÀueskeÌMeve DekeÀeQì HesSyeue "F"  7,37,15,601  2,36,10,995 

 11) Profit & Loss Account / veHeÀe-leesìe Keeles "G"  2,25,54,73,176  1,15,09,79,938 

TOTAL  2,17,72,33,45,394  2,06,65,75,83,111 

SECURITIES PURCHASED UNDER REPO/LAF  27,08,79,208   8,11,77,31,318  

Contingent Liabilities: / mebYeeJ³e osCeer

Bank Guarantees / yeBkeÀ nceer  10,12,81,35,767  10,12,80,86,294 

Letters of Credit Issued / uesìj Dee@HeÀ ¬esÀef[ì  1,12,48,37,590  1,58,36,83,625 

Forward Exchange Contracts Purchase/Sale
HeÀe@jJe[& SkeÌme®eWpe keÀe@vì^@keÌì Hej®esme / mesue  4,07,22,48,561  4,17,47,35,931 

Others - Depositor Education & Awareness Fund
Flej - þsJeeroej efMe#eCe DeeefCe peeefCeJe efveOeer  64,61,58,757  53,50,29,669 

NOTES FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

"Q"

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE 		  FOR THE COSMOS CO-OPERATIVE BANK LTD. 

FOR M/s. G. D. APTE & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
F.R. NO. 100515W

FOR M/s. M. P. CHITALE & CO.	
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS	
F.R.NO.101851W	

SANTOSH RASHINKAR
PARTNER
M. NO. 103483
(STATUTORY AUDITOR)

SANAT ULHAS CHITALE	
PARTNER
M. NO: 143700	
(STATUTORY AUDITOR)

PLACE:  PUNE
DATE:  20 / 05 / 2023
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31.3.2023 DeKesj®ee leeUsyebo

No.
¬eÀ.

PROPERTY AND ASSETS
efpeboieer Je ³esCes

SCH
AS AT 

31st March, 2023
`

AS AT 
31st March, 2022

`

1) Cash and Bank Balances / Þeer efMeuuekeÀ Je yeBkesÀleerue efMeuuekeÀ "H"  13,99,37,90,792  9,67,29,68,798 

2) Balances with other Banks / Flej yeBkeÀeleerue efMeuuekeÀ "I"  3,68,00,13,539  2,74,29,56,208 

3) Money at Call and Short Notice 
ceeieCeer keÀjlee®e efceUCeeN³ee Jee DeuHe veesìerMeerves efceUCeeN³ee þsJeer

-    8,18,95,70,595 

4) Investments / iegbleJeCetkeÀ "J"  48,46,70,07,809  42,28,50,08,493 

5) Advances / keÀpex "K"  1,31,16,59,73,794  1,22,92,91,16,527 

6) Interest Receivable / J³eepe ³esCes
A) 	 Interest on Deposits & Securities
	 þsJeer Je jesK³eebJejerue J³eepe

 90,15,77,549  70,26,44,066 

B) 	 Interest on NPA Investment
	 SveHeerSJej iegbleJeCetkeÀerJejerue LekeÀerle J³eepe

 -    -   

C) 	 Overdue Interest on Loans & Advances
	 keÀpe& Keel³eeJejerue LeefkeÀle ³esCes J³eepe

 3,40,65,83,760  3,85,88,84,462 

7) Bills Receivable Being Bills for Collection as per contra
Jemegueermeeþer HeeþefJeuesueer efyeues

 4,00,35,51,222  4,30,86,71,313 

8) Property, Plant and Equipment
ceeueceÊee, Hueebì DeeefCe GHekeÀjCes

"L"  6,52,07,77,700  6,24,36,62,317 

9) Other Assets / Flej ³esCeer "M"  3,80,63,54,264  3,95,61,85,966 

10) NON BANKING ASSETS acquired in satisfaction of claims / 
keÀpe& HesÀ[erle yeBkesÀ ves Kejsoer kesÀuesu³ee efceUkeÀleer

 86,18,81,733  1,01,41,61,733 

11) Deffered Tax Asset / ef[HeÀ[& ì@keÌme De@mesì  90,25,98,665  73,75,98,665 

12) Goodwill A/C - Merged Banks / ieg[efJeue Keeles - efJeueerveerkeÀjCe yeBkeÀe  1,32,34,567  1,61,53,968 

TOTAL  2,17,72,33,45,394  2,06,65,75,83,111 

NOTES FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

"Q"

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE 		  FOR THE COSMOS CO-OPERATIVE BANK LTD. 

MILIND A. KALE
CHAIRMAN

SACHIN APTE
VICE CHAIRMAN

APEKSHITA THIPSAY
MANAGING DIRECTOR

MUKUND L. ABHYANKAR
DIRECTOR

PRALHAD B. KOKARE
DIRECTOR

JAYANT BARVE
DIRECTOR

RAJAISHWARI DHOTRE
DIRECTOR

PRAVEENKUMAR GANDHI
DIRECTOR

NANDKUMAR KAKIRDE
DIRECTOR

ANURADDA GADALE
DIRECTOR

AJIT GIJARE
DIRECTOR

YASHWANT KASAR
DIRECTOR

MILIND POKALE
DIRECTOR

ARVIND TAVARE
DIRECTOR

RAVISHANKAR KORE
(STAFF REPRESENTATIVE)

ARCHANA V. JOSHI
DY. GENERAL MANAGER
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

No.
¬eÀ.

INCOME
GlheVe SCH 31.03.2023

`

31.03.2022
`

1 Interest & Discount / J³eepe Je keÀmej "P"  14,73,32,13,812  13,97,95,94,006 

2 Profit on Sale of Securities (Net) / jesKes efJe¬eÀerJejerue veHeÀe  9,55,81,097  19,03,34,233 

3 Commission & Exchange / keÀefceMeve Je ngb[CeeJeU  1,06,12,98,380  90,94,34,620 

4 Other Receipts / Flej pecee

a)  	 Rent / Yee[s  62,071  62,071 

b)  	 Share Transfer Fee  Form Fee etc. /  Yeeie Jeie& HeÀe@ce& HeÀer F.  16,63,326  16,50,883 

c)  	 Locker Rent / uee@keÀj Yee[s  6,32,20,314  6,15,16,766 

d)  	 Other Income / Flej GlheVe  72,30,431  1,56,68,293 

e)  	 Depository Income / ef[hee@efPeìjer GlheVe  84,37,746  89,82,226 

f)  	 Principal Recovery in NPAs Written off

	 jeFì Dee@HeÀ kesÀuesu³ee Deveglheeefole keÀpee&ceOeerue cegÎuee®eer Jemegueer

 1,55,34,88,498  72,58,99,512 

5 PROFIT / (LOSS) ON SALE OF PPE  14,01,868  1,72,166 
6 Excess Provision for Merged Bank Losses Written Back

efJeueerve yeBkesÀ®eer peeoe lejleto hejle pecee

 29,19,401  1,26,18,154 

7 EXCESS ARC SURPLUS WRITTEN BACK 
SDeejmeer mejHueme Hejle pecee

 17,87,886  37,41,14,311 

8 EXCESS PROVISION FOR RESTRUCTURED ASSETS 
WRITTEN BACK 
Hetvej&ef®ele ceeuecellee peeoe lejleto Hejle pecee	

 3,63,26,050  -   

9 EXCESS INVESTMENT DEPRECIATION RESERVE WRITTEN 
BACK 
iegbleJeCetkeÀ IemeeN³eeJejerue peeoe lejleto Hejle pecee

 2,80,55,880  -   

10 EXCESS INVESTMENT DEPRECIATION RESERVE WRITTEN 
BACK - ARC RECEIPT

 1,72,42,83,613 

11 EXCESS PROVISION WRITTEN BACK  3,97,673  30,49,563 
12 CYBER SECURITY PROVISION WRITTEN BACK 

mee³eyej efmekeÌ³egefjìer lejleto Hejle pecee
 93,91,62,843  -   

13 AMARAVATI BANK SECURITIES PROVISION WRITTEN BACK 
DecejeJeleer yeBkeÀ efmekeÌ³egefjìerped lejleto Hejle pecee

 8,00,00,000  -   

14 B.D.D.R / FITL Provision Written Back / yeg[erle Je mebMeef³ele keÀpex  1,88,23,43,838  2,80,21,80,600 

TOTAL  22,22,08,74,727  19,08,52,77,404 

FOR M/s. G. D. APTE & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
F.R. NO. 100515W

FOR M/s. M. P. CHITALE & CO.	
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS	
F.R.NO.101851W	

SANTOSH RASHINKAR
PARTNER
M. NO. 103483
(STATUTORY AUDITOR)

SANAT ULHAS CHITALE	
PARTNER
M. NO: 143700	
(STATUTORY AUDITOR)

PLACE:  PUNE
DATE:  20 / 05 / 2023
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MILIND A. KALE
CHAIRMAN

SACHIN APTE
VICE CHAIRMAN

APEKSHITA THIPSAY
MANAGING DIRECTOR

MUKUND L. ABHYANKAR
DIRECTOR

PRALHAD B. KOKARE
DIRECTOR

JAYANT BARVE
DIRECTOR

RAJAISHWARI DHOTRE
DIRECTOR

PRAVEENKUMAR GANDHI
DIRECTOR

NANDKUMAR KAKIRDE
DIRECTOR

ANURADDA GADALE
DIRECTOR

AJIT GIJARE
DIRECTOR

YASHWANT KASAR
DIRECTOR

MILIND POKALE
DIRECTOR

ARVIND TAVARE
DIRECTOR

RAVISHANKAR KORE
(STAFF REPRESENTATIVE)

ARCHANA V. JOSHI
DY. GENERAL MANAGER

31.3.2023 DeKesj®es veHeÀe-leesìe He$ekeÀ

No.
¬eÀ.

EXPENDITURE
Ke®e& SCH 31.03.2023

`

31.03.2022
`

1 Interest on Deposits, Borrowings Etc.
"sJeer Je keÀpee&Jejer} efo}s}s J³eepe

 7,95,26,01,761  8,05,41,24,224 

2 Salaries, Allowances, PF Contribution & Gratuity Etc.
Heieej, YeÊes, Òee@. HebÀ[ Jeie&Ceer DeeefCe ûe@®³egìer F.

 2,15,78,89,764  2,08,32,00,100 

3 Directors Fees & Allowances / meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U HeÀer Je YeÊes  46,73,070  50,00,070 
4 Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Light Etc. / Yee[s, keÀj, efJecee Je Jeerpe F.  71,81,87,964  68,66,43,034 
5 Law Charges  2,69,37,595  4,06,18,859 
6 Postage, Telegram & Telephone / ìHee}, leej Je ìsefueHeÀesve  5,36,89,019  4,85,91,071 
7 Auditors Fee / Dee³eJ³e³e efvejer#ekeÀ HeÀer  3,27,75,269  2,62,80,398 
8 Depreciation, Repairs, Maintenance to Bank's PPE

Fceejle,HeÀefve&®ej, keÀe@cH³egìme& F.Jejer} Peerpe Je og©mleer Ke®e&
 44,15,93,363  41,92,09,779 

9 Stationery, Printing, Advt. Sadil Etc. 
}sKeve meeefnl³e, íHeeF&, peeefnjele, meeefo} F.

 12,07,48,628  9,07,62,003 

10 Amortisation of Premium on Securities
Deceesìe&³ePesMeve Dee@HeÀ efÒeefce³ece Dee@ve efmekeÌ³egefjìerpe 

 31,46,94,933  28,58,96,093 

11 Loss On Sale Of Non-Banking Assets  6,07,80,000 -   
12 Other Expenditure / Flej Ke®e& "N"  49,65,88,021  45,46,67,494 
13 Provision  for  Assets / Demesìmedmee"er lejleto "O"  3,08,39,73,718  3,24,52,79,229 
14 Bad Debts Written Off / yeg[erle keÀpex& jeFì Dee@HeÀ  1,88,23,43,838  2,80,21,80,600 
15 Arc Receipt Written Off /  1,72,42,83,613  -   
16 Cyber Security Loss Written Off/  93,91,62,843  -   
17 Amaravati Bank Securities Written Off/  8,00,00,000  -   

 TOTAL  20,09,09,23,399  18,24,24,52,954 
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax  2,12,99,51,328  84,28,24,450 
Income Tax Expenses
Current Year Tax  78,13,45,857  8,50,00,000 
Income Tax For Earlier Years (Excess)/Short, Net  (4,42,028)  22,36,96,657
Deferred Tax   (16,50,00,000)  (12,50,00,000)
Total  61,59,03,829  18,36,96,657 
Profit / (Loss) After Tax  1,51,40,47,499  65,91,27,793 
Transfer From Investment Fluctuation Fund  -    12,00,00,000 
Net Surplus  1,51,40,47,499  77,91,27,793 
NOTES FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

"Q"

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE FOR THE COSMOS CO-OPERATIVE BANK LTD.
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SCHEDULES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

PARTICULARS
leHeMeerue

AS AT 
31st March, 2023

`

AS AT 
31st March, 2022

`

SCHEDULE-"A"
CAPITAL  10,00,00,00,000  10,00,00,00,000 

 A) Authorised Capital
10,00,00,000  Shares of `100/- each 
DeefOeke=Àle YeeieYeeb[Jeue (he´l³eskeÀer `100/- he´ceeCes)

 B) Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up :
Jemetue YeeieYeeb[Jeue
Shares of `100/- each fully paid: 
held by : 
a) 	 Individuals - 2,18,07,162 (Previous Year: 2,22,85,841)  2,18,07,16,200  2,22,85,84,100 
b) 	 Co-operative Institutions  -    -   
c) 	 State Government  -    -   
d) 	 Others - 1,14,69,775 (Previous Year: 1,12,48,089)  1,14,69,77,500  1,12,48,08,900 

 3,32,76,93,700  3,35,33,93,000 

SCHEDULE-"B"
RESERVE FUND & OTHER RESERVES
iebieepeUer Je Flej efveOeer

 1) Statutory Reserve Fund / iebieepeUer  3,13,84,51,828  2,98,75,44,878 

 2) Building Fund / Fceejle efveOeer  1,22,46,62,052  1,22,46,62,052 

 3) Reserve for Infrastructure & Housing Development
Hee³eeYetle megefJeOee Je ie=nefJekeÀeme efveOeer

 11,95,72,666  11,34,11,266 

 4) Reserve for Unforeseen Losses/ DeekeÀefmcele leesìîeemeeþer jeKeerJe efveOeer  13,89,71,437  7,86,08,657 

 5) General Reserve / meJe&meeOeejCe efveOeer  1,88,33,71,999  1,53,22,38,998 

 6) ARC Surplus Fund / SDeejmeer mejHueme HebÀ[  -    17,87,886 

 7) Reserve for Bad & Doubtful Debts/ yeg[erle Je mebMeef³ele keÀpe& efveOeer  4,04,77,74,152  2,65,63,70,851 

 8) Provision for Standard Assets/ mìBF[ De@mesìJejerue mebYeeJ³e lejleto  43,54,13,135  41,62,77,559 

 9) Provision for Restructured Assets/ Hegvej&ef®ele ceeuecellee lejleto  9,02,04,206  12,65,30,256 

 10) Investment Depreciation Reserve/ iegbleJeCetkeÀ IemeeN³eeJejerue mebYeeJ³e lejleto  15,39,07,278  1,96,75,58,916 

 11) Investment Fluctuation Reserve / jesKes DeJecetu³eve efveJeejCe efveOeer  44,15,84,323  44,15,84,323 

 12) Provision for Investment Diminution/ jesKes DeJecetu³eve efveOeer  1,05,025  1,05,025 

 13) Staff Development Fund/ mesJekeÀ efJekeÀeme efveOeer -    48,90,879 

 14) Staff Death Benevolent Fund  54,94,302 -   
 15) Member Child Education Fund/ meYeemeo Heeu³e efMe#eCe efveOeer  -    4,42,37,204 

 16) Social / Member Commitment Reserve/ meYeemeo / meeceeefpekeÀ yeebefOeuekeÀer efveOeer  -    94,910 

 17) Revaluation Surplus  4,87,94,70,971  4,64,85,76,620 
18) Provision for Other Receivables  33,06,85,000  1,39,20,71,768 
19) Provision for Co-operative Bank of Ahmedabad Losses/

Denceoeyeeo yeBkesÀ®ee leesìe Je lejlegoeRmeeþer jeKeerJe
 1,32,34,567  1,61,53,968 

 20) Lease Rent Equalization Fund/ Yee[sHeìdìe meceeefvekeÀjCe efveOeer  77,99,946  -   

 16,91,07,02,887  17,65,27,06,016 
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SCHEDULES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

PARTICULARS
leHeMeerue

AS AT 
31st March, 2023

`

AS AT 
31st March, 2022

`

SCHEDULE - "C"
DEPOSIT AND OTHER ACCOUNTS / þsJeer Je Dev³e Keeleer

 (i) TERM DEPOSITS / cegole þsJeer
a)  	 From Individuals & Others / J³eefkeÌleiele  1,12,13,92,25,010  1,08,74,62,40,273 

b)  	 From Central Co-op Banks / ceO³eJeleea menkeÀejer yeBkeÀ  -    -   

c)  	 From Other Societies / Flej mebmLee  14,39,46,94,443  11,02,12,47,563 

 1,26,53,39,19,453  1,19,76,74,87,836 
(ii) SAVINGS BANK DEPOSITS / ye®ele Keeles þsJeer

a)  	 From Individuals & Others / J³eefkeÌleiele  33,95,65,57,101  31,33,22,58,042 

b)  	 From Central Co-op Banks / ceO³eJeleea menkeÀejer yeBkeÀe  -    -   

c)  	 From Other Societies / Flej mebmLee  1,34,84,63,586  1,55,80,12,685 

 35,30,50,20,687  32,89,02,70,727 
(iii) CURRENT DEPOSITS / ®eeuet Keeles þsJeer

a)  	 From Individuals & Others / J³eefkeÌleiele  13,93,30,70,029  12,12,53,53,675 

b)  	 From Central Co-op Banks / ceO³eJeleea menkeÀejer yeBkeÀe  -    -   

c)  	 From Other Societies / Flej mebmLee  52,22,28,267  44,06,23,879 

 14,45,52,98,296  12,56,59,77,554 
 1,76,29,42,38,436  1,65,22,37,36,117 

SCHEDULE-"D"
BORROWINGS / keÀpex

i) From the Reserve Bank of India / State / Central Co-op Bank
a) 	 Short Term Loans, Cash Credits and Overdrafts of which secured 

against -
 -    -   

	 A) 	 Government and Other Approved Securities  -    -   
	 B) 	 Other Tangible Securities  -    -   
b) 	 Medium -term loans of which secured against -  -    -   
	 A) 	 Government and other approved securities  -    -   
	 B) 	 Other Tangible securities  -    -   
c) 	 Long Term Loans of which secured against -  -    -   
	 A) 	 Government and other approved securities  -    -   
	 B) 	 Other Tangible securities  -    -   

ii) From the State Bank of India  -    -   
iii) From the State Government  -    -   
iv) Loans from other sources (source and securities to be specified)  -    -   

a) 	 RBI Repo (LAF)  -    -   
b) 	 Repo Borrowings  -    -   
c) 	 Repo Borrowing under TREPS (TRIPARTY)  -    -   
d) 	 Foreign Currency Borrowing from Banks  -    -   

e) 	 Long Term (Subordinated) Deposits / oerIe& cegoleer®³ee þsJeer  5,67,75,73,000  7,19,18,02,000 

f) 	 Long Term (Subordinated) Bonds  50,16,29,000  -   
 6,17,92,02,000  7,19,18,02,000 
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PARTICULARS
leHeMeerue

AS AT 
31st March, 2023

`

AS AT 
31st March, 2022

`

SCHEDULE-"E"

OTHER LIABILITIES / Flej osCeer
a)  Outstanding Payments / efyeues osCes  15,16,13,829  12,53,34,383 

b)  Dividend Payable / ueeYeebMe osCes  1,76,12,544  12,85,10,905 

c) Suspense Account / Deveecele  31,14,65,254  27,50,99,552 

d) Payslip Payable / HesmueerHe HesSyeue  1,11,98,40,408  73,26,15,517 

e) Other Liabilities / Flej osCeer  39,79,00,229  39,55,52,728 

f) Sundries / Flej  63,71,86,815  51,60,14,761 

g) Income Tax Provision / Dee³ekeÀj lejleto  81,70,59,857  8,50,00,000 

h) Interest Received in Advance on Export Credit
efve³ee&le keÀpee&Jejerue J³eepe DeeieeT pecee

 1,29,86,109  79,92,228 

i) Interest Provision for Funded Interest Term Loan (FITL)
Keel³eemeeþer J³eepee®eer lejleto

 9,16,55,122  17,65,22,604 

j) TDS Payable  18,84,11,084  17,14,00,855 
k) GST Payable  3,31,65,855  3,72,97,581 
l) Exchange Profit Adjustment Account  22,92,38,340  10,74,63,489 
m) Clearing account  11,65,86,939  5,14,81,769 
0) Unrecovered Charges  17  17 

 4,12,47,22,402  2,81,02,86,389 

SCHEDULE-"F"
MERGED BANKS  COLLECTION ACCOUNT PAYABLE
efJeueerveerkeÀjCe Peeuesu³ee yeBkeÀeb®es keÀueskeÌMeve DekeÀeQì hesSyeue

 1) Unnati Co-op. Bank Ltd., Baroda
GVeleer men. yeBkeÀ, ye[esoe

 -    1,86,22,770 

 2) Sushil Kumar Nahata Co-op. Bank ,Bhusawal
megMeeruekegÀceej veeneìe yeBkeÀ, YegmeeJeU

 -    49,88,225 

 3) Shree Sharada Sahakari Bank Ltd., Pune
Þeer Meejoe menkeÀejer yeBkeÀ, HegCes

 7,37,15,601 -   

 7,37,15,601  2,36,10,995 

SCHEDULES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
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SCHEDULES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

PARTICULARS
leHeMeerue

AS AT 
31st March, 2023

`

AS AT 
31st March, 2022

`

SCHEDULE-"G"
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Profit as per last Balance Sheet
ceeieerue leeUsyeboevegmeej veHeÀe
Balance c/f before appropriation  37,18,52,145  15,61,25,805 
Profit / Loss for the past year  65,91,27,793  56,77,83,371 

 1,03,09,79,938  72,39,09,176 
Add: Investment Fluctuation Reserve Written Back  12,00,00,000 -

 1,150,979,938  72,39,09,176 
Less : Provision of IDR against ARC Receipt as per RBI Circular  5,55,00,000  -   
Less : Special Reserve @ 20 % of Profit  61,61,400  1,91,44,112 
Less : Dividend Payable for FY 2020-21  13,05,86,851  12,85,10,905 

 95,87,31,687  57,62,54,159 
Less: Appropriation 

 a) Statutory Reserve Fund / iebieepeUer  15,09,06,950  14,19,45,843 

 b) Reserve for Unforeseen Losses / DeekeÀmceerle leesìîeemeeþer jeKeerJe efveOeer  6,03,62,780  5,67,78,337 

 c) Education Fund / efMe#eCe efveOeer  60,36,280  56,77,834 

 74,14,25,677  37,18,52,145 
Add/Less:  Net Profit / Loss for the year  1,51,40,47,499  65,91,27,793 

 2,25,54,73,176  1,03,09,79,938 
Add: Excess Investment Fluctuation Reserve Written Back  -    12,00,00,000 

 2,25,54,73,176  1,15,09,79,938 

SCHEDULE - "H"
CASH & BANK BALANCES
jesKe efMeuuekeÀ Je yeBkeÀebkeÀ[erue efMeuuekeÀ

 a)  Cash In Hand / jesKe efMeuuekeÀ  79,08,02,660  74,24,17,270 

 b)  Reserve Bank of India Current Account
efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ ®eeuet Keeles 

 7,78,04,09,913  7,57,34,79,663 

 c) Standing Deposit Facility/  4,02,00,00,000  -   
 d) Current Deposits with State Co-operative Bank Ltd.

mìsì keÀes-Dee@he yeBkeÀebkeÀ[erue ®eeuet Keeleer
 13,53,498  28,38,586 

 e) Current Deposits with Dist.Central Co-op. Bank Ltd.
ef[mì^erkeÌì meWì^ue keÀes-Dee@he yeBkesÀkeÀ[erue ®eeuet Keeleer

 22,94,81,448  15,37,76,170 

 f) Current Deposits SBI & Other Nationalised Banks 
mìsì yeBkeÀ Je Flej jeä^er³eerke=Àle yeBkeÀebkeÀ[erue ®eeuet Keeleer 

 19,04,46,345  24,15,99,776 

 g)  Fixed Deposits with Dist.Central Co-op. Bank Ltd.
(Includes `12,133 pledged for securing Funded / Non-funded facilities & 
Treasury operations P.Y. `11,545)
mìsì keÀes-Dee@he yeBkesÀkeÀ[erue cegole þsJeer

 12,133  11,545 

 h) Fixed Deposits with SBI & Other Nationalised Banks
(Includes `97,12,96,927 pledged for securing Funded / Non-funded 
facilities & Treasury operations P.Y. `95,88,45,788)
mìsì yeBkeÀ Je Flej jeä^er³eerke=Àle yeBkeÀebkeÀ[erue cegole þsJeer

 98,12,84,795  95,88,45,788 

 13,99,37,90,792  9,67,29,68,798 
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PARTICULARS
leHeMeerue

AS AT 
31st March, 2023

`

AS AT 
31st March, 2022

`

SCHEDULE - "I"

BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
Flej yeBkeÀebkeÀ[erue efMeuuekeÀ

 a) Current Deposits with other Banks
Flej yeBkeÀebkeÀ[erue ®eeuet Keeleer 

 91,19,46,908  1,25,63,50,445 

 b) Saving Deposits with other Banks  -    -   

 c) Fixed Deposits with other Banks
Flej yeBkeÀebkeÀ[erue cegole þsJeer

 2,76,80,66,631  1,48,66,05,763 

(Includes `1,47,48,49,848 pledged for securing Funded / Non-funded 
facilities & Treasury operations P.Y. `1,48,66,05,763)

 3,68,00,13,539  2,74,29,56,208 

SCHEDULE- "J"

INVESTMENTS / iegbleJeCetkeÀ

 (i) In Central & State Govt Securities
mejkeÀejer jesKes (meWvì^ue ieJnceXì Je mìsì ieJnceXì)  

 46,75,99,43,184  39,82,18,31,902 

Face Value `44,10,38,83,707 (Previous Year: `36,71,25,19,011)

Market Value `44,90,40,21,553 (Previous Year: `38,61,27,23,072)

[Including `53,40,72,009 (Previous Year: `98,27,58,196)

Pledged for Treasury Operations]

 (ii) Other Approved Securities / Flej efJeMJemle jesKes  -    -   

 (iii) Shares / menkeÀejer yeBkesÀ®es Yeeie  1,59,57,275  1,56,47,225 

 (iv) PSU Bonds / heeqyuekeÀ meskeÌìj Deb[jìseEkeÀie yeeB[med  60,39,10,000  2,60,00,000 

 (v) Others (Other Bonds & Security Receipt under ARC, CDs, MSE 
Refinance Fund with SIDBI)
Flej

 1,08,71,97,350  2,42,15,29,366 

 48,46,70,07,809  42,28,50,08,493 

SCHEDULES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
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PARTICULARS
leHeMeerue

AS AT 
31st March, 2023

`

AS AT 
31st March, 2022

`

SCHEDULE-"K"

ADVANCES / keÀpex
1) Short Term Loan, Cash Credit, Overdraft and Bill Discounted of 

which secured against:
Deuhecegole keÀpex- ke@ÀMe ¬esÀ[erì, DeesJnj[^eHeÌì, ngb[er KejsoerhewkeÀer mebjef#ele keÀpex
a) 	 Government & Other approved securities
	 mejkeÀejer Je efvece mejkeÀejer jesKes 

 7,24,98,769  5,62,29,389 

b) 	 Other Tangible Securities / Flej leejCe  43,43,90,54,312  48,49,70,96,816 

c) 	 Personal Sureties / keÀpe&oeje®³ee Jew³eefkeÌlekeÀ peyeeyeoejer Je peeefcevekeÀerJejerue  5,06,588  38,059 

 43,51,20,59,669  48,55,33,64,264 
i)Amount overdue `2,70,39,64,485 (Previous Year: `3,60,27,36,831)
/ HewkeÀer LekeÀyeekeÀer
ii)  	� Amounts considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery `2,48,80,97,675                                             
     	 (Previous Year: `3,53,10,21,117) ³eehewkeÀer mebMeef³ele Je yeg[erle                                              

 2) Medium Term Loan of which Secured against:
ceO³ece cegole keÀpee&hewkeÀer mebjef#ele keÀpex
a) 	 Government & Other approved Securities
	 mejkeÀejer Je efvece mejkeÀejer jesKes 

 7,27,05,552  7,39,38,739 

b) 	 Other Tangible Securities / Flej leejCe  20,00,88,13,362  20,32,09,09,569 

c) 	 Personal Sureties / keÀpe&oeje®³ee Jew³eeqkeÌlekeÀ peyeeyeoejer Je peeefcevekeÀerJejerue  4,05,08,27,885  3,18,86,23,658 

	 (of the above amount receivable from State / Central Govt. of  24,13,23,46,799  23,58,34,71,966 
	 India against Debt Waiver Scheme is `94,946)
	 i)	 Amount overdue `1,26,92,22,262 
		  (Previous Year: `1,00,99,23,188) /HewkeÀer LekeÀyeekeÀer
	 ii)	 Amounts considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery
     		  `1,46,99,64,030 (Previous Year: `1,44,36,79,371)
		   / ³eehewkeÀer mebMeef³ele Je yeg[erle

 3) Long Term Loans of which Secured against: 
oerIe& cegole keÀpee&hewkeÀer mebjef#ele keÀpex 
a) 	 Government & Other approved Securities
	  mejkeÀejer Je efvece mejkeÀejer jesKes

 -    -   

b) 	 Other Tangible Securities / Flej leejCe  61,90,16,62,971  49,86,98,78,733 

c) 	 Personal Suretieis / keÀpe&oeje®³ee Jew³eeqkeÌlekeÀ peyeeyeoejer Je peeefcevekeÀerJejerue  1,61,99,04,355  92,24,01,564 

 63,52,15,67,326  50,79,22,80,297 
	 i)	 Amount overdue `1,80,78,60,478 
		  (Previous Year: `2,57,64,71,437) / hewkeÀer LekeÀyeekeÀer 

		     

	 ii)	 Amounts considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery
     		  `2,33,43,23,627 (Previous Year: `3,45,69,87,009)
		   / ³eehewkeÀer mebMeef³ele Je yeg[erle
  1,31,16,59,73,794  1,22,92,91,16,527 

SCHEDULES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
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SCHEDULE - "L"											        

Fixed Assets

Gross Block Depreciation Net Block

Opening 
Additions /  
Adjustment
During Year

Revaluation Deletions 
During Year

Closing 
Upto

31.03.2022
For the 

Year 22-23
Deletion Total

Wdv as on 
31.03.2023

Wdv as on
31.03.2022

1. 	 Freehold Land 2,15,65,52,820 - 4,65,47,100 - 2,20,30,99,920 - - - - 2,20,30,99,920 2,15,65,52,820

2. 	 Buildings * 4,61,51,91,486 74,82,066 24,65,50,342 - 4,86,92,23,894 93,52,68,452 8,09,65,036 - 1,01,62,33,488 3,85,29,90,406 3,67,99,23,034

3.	 Furniture & Fixtures 82,63,22,203 3,78,11,215 - 1,30,38,938 85,10,94,480 66,10,71,594 5,40,91,362 1,29,49,573 70,22,13,383 14,88,81,097 16,52,50,608

4.	 ATM 2,10,51,200 2,61,89,975 - 8,63,794 4,63,77,381 1,60,45,197 36,99,628 8,63,792 1,88,81,033 2,74,96,348 50,06,003

5.	 Computer & 
Hardware 

43,29,75,202 9,00,09,072 - 9,08,80,676 43,21,03,598 39,01,94,046 2,85,92,026 9,08,78,532 32,79,07,540 10,41,96,058 4,27,81,156

6.	 Electric Items 56,42,09,730 1,95,91,846 - 1,58,93,580 56,79,07,996 42,63,81,280 4,27,90,846 1,55,11,160 45,36,60,966 11,42,47,030 13,78,28,450

7.	 Vehicle 3,28,88,524 95,20,208 - 23,36,587 4,00,72,145 2,56,24,148 24,61,494 23,36,580 2,57,49,062 1,43,23,083 72,64,376

8.	 Intangible Assets 40,30,81,416 2,34,99,396 - - 42,65,80,812 37,48,27,005 1,76,42,850 - 39,24,69,855 3,41,10,957 2,82,54,410

9.	 Solar Equipments 61,63,632 - - - 61,63,632 50,62,742 2,59,576 - 53,22,318 8,41,314 11,00,890

10.	 Work In Progress 
including Capital 
Advance

1,30,76,491 15,87,25,471 - 15,77,02,970 1,40,98,992 - - - - 1,40,98,992 1,30,76,491

11.	 Leasehold Properties 66,24,078 19,25,698 - - 85,49,776 - 20,57,281 - 20,57,281 64,92,495 66,24,078

	 Grand Total 9,07,81,36,782 37,47,54,947 29,30,97,442 28,07,16,545 9,46,52,72,626 2,83,44,74,464 23,25,60,099 12,25,39,637 2,94,44,94,926 6,52,07,77,700 6,24,36,62,316

* Depreciation of `6,22,03,092 is on Building Revaluation Surplus.			 

SCHEDULES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

PARTICULARS
leHeMeerue

AS AT 
31st March, 2023

`

AS AT 
31st March, 2022

`
SCHEDULE - "M"

OTHER ASSETS / Flej ³esCeer
a) Security Deposits / megj#ee þsJe 9,89,91,886 9,15,11,086
b)  Tasalmat / lemeueceele 2,85,06,395 2,85,13,795
c) Adhesive Stamp & Silver Coins Stock / DeOesefmeJn mì@che Je ®eeboer®³ee cegefêkeÀe 9,66,654 2,05,75,667
d) Advance to Suppliers / efJeefJeOe Kejsoerheesìer efouesueer DeeieeT jkeÌkeÀce 75,62,193 51,77,395
e) TDS - Invest. Interest, Others / ìer[erSme jesKes J³eepeeJejerue Je Flej GlheVeeJejerue 2,05,44,535 4,22,18,364
f) Other Receivable / Flej ³esCeer 30,61,34,191 1,24,70,05,808
g) Landlord Rent Deposit / peeiee ceeuekeÀebvee peeiee Yee[sheesìer efouesueer DeeieeT jkeÌkeÀce 17,16,72,625 16,37,26,885
h) Stationery Stock in hand / mìsMevejer efMeuuekeÀ 45,95,193 32,06,225
i) Income Tax / Dee³ekeÀj 1,62,24,37,600 91,41,14,775
j) Sundries / Flej 18,01,466 18,02,881
k) Other Assets / Flej De@mesìmed 1,55,27,634 74,63,087
l) Interest Equalisation claim Receivable from RBI

efjPeJn& yeBkesÀkeÀ[tve efve³ee&leoejemeeþer J³eepeeheesìer ³esCeejer jkeÌkeÀce
2,70,17,065 1,08,13,929

m) Prepaid Expenses / DeeieeT Ke®e& 4,48,76,878 3,94,10,742
n) GST Input Tax Credit 3,70,08,153 2,88,83,192
o) Cash margin with CCIL / meermeerDee³eSue keÀ[erue ke@ÀMe ceee|peve 3,34,00,000 3,24,00,000
p) Position Account Merchant 1,38,39,18,258 1,23,83,15,190
q) Securities with Court (Amravati Bank)

keÀesìe&keÀ[s pecee Demeuesues jesKes (DecejeJeleer yeBkeÀ)
- 8,00,00,000

r) DEAF Claim Receivable /  [sHeÀ keÌuesce efjefmeJnsyeue 13,93,538 10,46,945
3,80,63,54,264 3,95,61,85,966
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SCHEDULES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

PARTICULARS
leHeMeerue

AS AT 
31st March, 2023

`

AS AT 
31st March, 2022

`

SCHEDULE- "N"

OTHER EXPENDITURE / Flej Ke®e&
 i) Subscription & Contribution / Flej mebmLeeb®eer Jeie&Ceer 1,33,21,428 1,28,68,472

 ii) Society Charges / mebmLee osKeYeeue Ke®e& 24,04,183 23,19,335

 iii) Fuel Expenses on Vehicle / Jeenve FbOeve Ke®e& 44,26,308 39,59,573

 iv) Cash Van  Exps. / ke@ÀMe Jn@ve Ke®e& 96,37,775 71,46,314

 v) Meeting Expenses / meYee Ke®e&  12,05,420 13,79,088

 vi) Security Service Charges / megj#ee Ke®e& 10,19,59,071 10,13,25,481

 vii) Clearing Charges / meceeMeesOeve Ke®e& 52,46,361 54,93,384

 viii) Depository Expenditure / ef[hee@efPeìjer Ke®e& 10,46,758 15,65,626

 ix) Outsourcing Expenses / DeeTìmeese\meie Ke®e& 4,18,64,017 4,41,78,173

 x) Inauguration / Anniversary Day Expenses / GodIeeìve Je JeOee&heveefove Ke®e& 16,00,137 6,38,140

 xi) NFS & Bancs service charges / SveSHeÀSme Je ye@bkeÌmed meeqJn&me Ke®e& 6,61,55,014 6,01,92,178

 xii) Bank Charges / ye@bkeÀ ®eepexmed 3,76,40,826 5,73,48,916

 xiii) Board Of Directors Lodging / Boarding / Travelling Exps. 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U uee@eEpeie, yeese\[ie Je he´Jeeme Ke®e&

10,37,387 2,59,892

 xiv) Staff Travelling , Lunch  etc. / mesJekeÀ he´Jeeme Je Yeespeve F. Ke®e& 28,60,569 20,22,158

 xv) Sundries / Flej Ke®e& 12,55,94,515 5,60,45,194

 xvi) Transaction Charges (CCIL) / meer.meer.Dee³e.Sue. J³eJenej ®eepexme 25,17,410 22,38,119

 xvii) Provision For Other Receivable / Flej ³esCes lejleto 56,34,933 3,55,38,094

 xviii) Software Expenses 91,54,608 80,26,729
 xix) Visa Expenses / eqJnmee ®eepexmed 2,19,91,776 1,48,72,972

 xx) IT. Services Consultancy & Maintenance charges
Dee³e.ìer. keÀvmeuìvmeer Je cesìWvevme Ke®e&

58,43,075 30,33,447

 xxi) Tax & Other Consultancy Charges  / ì@keÌme Je Flej keÀvmeuìvmeer Ke®e& 63,37,541 49,25,015

 xxii) Record Keeping / Data Maintenance Expenses
jskeÀe[& efkeÀefHebie / [sìe cesìsvevme Ke®e&

1,19,92,888 1,15,87,116

 xxiii) ATM/SWIFT/Internet Banking/Mobile Banking/Rupay Charges
SìerSce /efmJeHeÌì / Fbìjvesì ye@efkebÀie / ceesyeeF&ue yeQefkebÀie / ªHes ®eepexme

61,77,355 1,58,36,484

 xxiv) Financial Inclusion & Business Promotion Expenses
efJeÊeer³e meceeJesMeve Je J³eJemee³e Je=×er Ke®e&

1,09,38,666 18,67,594

 49,65,88,021 45,46,67,494
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PARTICULARS
leHeMeerue

AS AT 
31st March, 2023

`

AS AT 
31st March, 2022

`

SCHEDULE- "O"    

PROVISION  FOR  ASSETS / De@mesìdmeeþer lejleto

 a) Bad & Doubtful Debts Reserve / yeg[erle Je mebMeef³ele keÀpe& efveOeer 3,05,70,38,196 2,61,92,36,150

 b) Provision for Standard Assets / mìB[[& De@mesìJejerue mebYeeJ³e lejleto 1,91,35,576 3,25,62,559

 c) Investment Depreciation Reserve / iegbleJeCetkeÀ IemeeN³eemeeþer mebYeeJ³e lejleto - 51,34,71,264

 d) Provision for Restructured Assets / efjmì^keÌ®e[& De@mesìJejerue lejleto - 7,16,45,256

 e) Provision for Investment Diminution / iegbleJeCetkeÀ ef[c³egefveMevemeeþer lejleto - 83,64,000

 f) Lease Rent Equalization Fund / Yee[sHeìdìe meceeveerkeÀjCe efveOeer 77,99,946 -

3,08,39,73,718 3,24,52,79,229

SCHEDULE- "P"

INCOME FROM INTEREST & DISCOUNT / J³eepe Je keÀmej GlheVe 

 1) Interest on Loans and Advances / keÀpee&Jejerue J³eepe 11,00,70,66,342 10,78,78,19,467

 2) Interest from Investments / iegbleJeCetkeÀerJejerue J³eepe 3,72,23,72,166 3,18,80,25,239

 3) Dividend on Shares / ueeYeebMe 37,75,304 37,49,300

14,73,32,13,812 13,97,95,94,006

SCHEDULES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

SCHEDULE “Q”

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2023 AND PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023.

I.	 1.	 OVERVIEW

		  The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Ltd. (“the Bank”) was established on 18th January, 1906. The bank is a multi-state 
scheduled co-operative bank having 152 branches in 7 states as on 31st March, 2023. The Bank is licensed by the 
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as ‘Authorized Dealers’ in Foreign Exchange transactions under category-1.

	 2.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION

		  The Financial Statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention on accrual basis 
of accounting, unless otherwise stated, and comply with generally accepted accounting principles in India, statutory 
requirements prescribed under the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, and the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, 
and rules made there under, circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) from time to time, 
the Accounting Standards (AS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and current practices 
prevailing within the banking industry in India.

	 3.	 USE OF ESTIMATES

		  The preparation of the Financial Statements, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues 
and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the Financial Statements. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the Financial Statements are 
prudent and reasonable. Any revision to the accounting estimates is recognized prospectively.
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II. 	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

	 1.	 Accounting Convention

		  The Financial Statements are drawn up in accordance with historical cost convention and on Going Concern basis.

	 2.	 Revenue Recognition

		  Items of income and expenditure are accounted on accrual basis except for the following:

		  a.	 Interest and other income on Advances classified as ‘Non-performing assets’ is recognized to the extent realized, 
as per the directive issued by the RBI. Unrealized interest on non-performing advances is shown under ‘Overdue 
Interest Reserve’ and as ‘Interest Receivable’ on liability side and asset side respectively.

		  b.	 Commission and Exchange are fully recognized as income on realization.

		  c.	 Locker Rent is recognized on receipt basis, to the extent of income accrued and due.

		  d.	 Loan Processing Fee is accounted upfront when it becomes due.

		  e.	 Dividend is recognized as income when right to receive payment is established.

Interest on Government Securities, debentures and other fixed income securities is recognized on a time proportion basis taking 
into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Income generated from sale of insurance and mutual funds products are recognized on accrual basis.

	 3.	 Investments

		  Categorisation, Classification and Valuation of the Investments is carried out as per the guidelines of the RBI which are 
applicable to Urban Co-Operative Banks.

	 a.	 Categorisation of Investments:

		  As per the RBI guidelines, Urban Co-operative Banks require to categorize its Investments in the following categories:

		  i.	 Held to Maturity (HTM): Securities acquired by the Bank with the intension to hold till Maturity.

		  ii.	 Held for Trading (HFT): Securities acquired by the Bank with the intension to Trade.

		  iii.	 Available for Sale (AFS): Securities which do not fall within the above two categories are classified as ‘Available for 
Sale’.

	 b.	 Classification of Investments:

		  For the purpose of the Disclosure in the Balance Sheet, Investments are classified as per RBI guidelines which are as 
follows -:

		  i.	 Central & State Government Securities

		  ii.	 Other Approved Securities

		  iii.	 Shares (Shares of Co-operative Banks & Subsidiary Company)

		  iv.	 Bonds in PSU

		  v.	 Others (Other Bonds, CDs & MSE Refinance Fund with SIDBI)

	 c.	 Valuation of the Investments:

		  i.	 Investments purchased under HTM category are accounted at acquisition cost. Investment transferred from AFS 
category to HTM category are accounted at lower of cost or depreciated value on the date of shifting. Any premium 
paid on acquisition, if any, on investments under HTM category is amortized over the residual life of the investment.

		  ii.	 Investments under HFT and AFS categories are marked-to-market on the basis of guidelines issued by the RBI. The 
securities are valued scrip-wise and depreciation / appreciation are aggregated for each category. Net depreciation, 
if any, under each of the category is provided for, and net appreciation, if any, is ignored.
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		  iii.	 For the purpose of valuation, Market value in the case of Government securities, is determined as per price list 
issued by RBI or price periodically declared by the Financial Benchmark India Pvt. Ltd. (FBIL).

		  iv.	 Market Value of the other approved securities is determined on the basis of the ‘Yield to Maturity’ indicated by 
Primary Dealers Association of India (PDAI) / Fixed Income and Money Market Derivatives Association of India 
(FIMMDA), and Financial Benchmark India Pvt. Ltd. (FBIL).

		  v.	 Unquoted Investments including Investment in the Subsidiary Company are stated at cost.

		  vi.	 Quoted Mutual Fund investments are valued as per the Stock Exchange quotations and Un-quoted Mutual Funds 
are valued at last available re-purchase price or Net Asset Value (NAV) where re-purchase price is not available.

		  vii.	 Transfer between categories:

			   Transfer of scrips from one category to another, under all circumstances, is done at the acquisition cost/book value/
market value on the date of transfer, whichever is the least, and the depreciation, if any, on such transfer is fully 
provided for.

		  viii.	 Treasury Bills under all the categories are valued at carrying cost.

		  ix.	 Security Receipts (SR)

			   1.	 Investment in Security Receipts (SRs) are valued as per the NAV declared by the issuing Asset Reconstruction 
Company (ARC) or net book value of loans transferred whichever is lower.

			   2.	 Further, in case of investment in SRs issued against loans transferred by it is more than 10 percent of all SRs 
issued against the transferred asset, then the valuation of the SRs on the books of the transferor is lower of the 
following:

				    a.  value arrived at in terms of clause (ix) 1) above; and

				    b. � face value of the SRs reduced by the notional provisioning rate applicable if the loans had continued on the 
books of the transferor.

		  x.	 Broken period interest and costs such as brokerage, commission paid at the time of acquisition of the security are 
charged to Profit and Loss Account and excluded from cost / sale consideration.

		  xi.	 Overdue interest in respect of Non-performing Investment is recognized under “Overdue Interest Reserve” on 
Investment.

	 d.	 Disposal of Investments

		  Investments classified under the HTM category: The Bank does not resort to sale of securities held in HTM category 
pursuant to RBI Master Circular on Investments by Primary (Urban) Co-operative Banks - Ref. No. RBI/2022-23/05 
DOR.MRG.REC.10/21.04.141/2022-23 Dated 01st April 2022. However, if due to liquidity stress, if securities from HTM 
portfolio are sold with prior approval of Board of Directors on a specific rationale, Profit on sale of investments from HTM 
category is first taken to the Profit and Loss account and, thereafter, the amount of such profit is appropriated to ‘Capital 
Reserve’ from the net profit for the year after statutory appropriations. Loss on sale is recognized in the Profit and Loss 
account in the year of sale.

		  Investments classified under the AFS and HFT categories: Realized gains/losses are recognized in the Profit and Loss 
Account.

	 e.	 Accounting for Re-purchase (Repo) / Reverse Re-purchase (Reverse Repo), Liquidity Adjustment Facility (LAF) 
and Tri-Party Repo (TREPS)

		  The securities sold and purchased under Repo/Reverse Repo are accounted as collateralized lending and borrowing 
transactions. However, securities are transferred as in the case of normal outright sale / purchase transactions and 
such movement of securities is reflected using Repo/Reverse Repo Accounts and contra entries. The above entries are 
reversed on the date of maturity. Cost and revenues are accounted as interest expenditure / income, as the case may 
be. Balance under Repo account, TREPS and LAF is reported under Borrowings. Lending under Reverse Repo, LAF & 
TREPS is shown under Money at call and short notice.
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	 4.	 Advances & Provisions thereon

	 a.	 Classification:

		  i.	 Advances are primarily classified as Performing and Non-performing Assets (NPAs). And NPAs are further classified 
into Sub-Standard, Doubtful & Loss Assets as per guidelines issued by the RBI from time to time.

		  ii.	 Advances are disclosed net of write off in the Balance Sheet & divided into Short Term, Medium Term & Long Term.

	 b.	 Provisions:

		  i.	 Provisions are made for Advances under Sub-Standard, Doubtful and Loss Assets as per criteria stipulated by the 
RBI. In addition, a general provision is made on following categories of standard assets as per RBI guidelines, as 
under:

Sr. No. Category Provision (%)
1 Direct advances to Agricultural and SME Sectors 0.25
2 Commercial Real estate loans 1.00
3 CRE – RH 0.75
4 Other advances 0.40

		  ii.	 Provision is made for restructured accounts in accordance with RBI guidelines which require diminution in the fair 
value of assets to be provided for at the time of restructuring.

	 5.	 Property Plant & Equipment (PPE) & depreciation

	 a.	 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) other than premises of the Bank and merged Banks are stated in Balance Sheet 
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price including 
non-refundable purchase taxes and any cost attributable for bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended 
use after deducting trade discount and rebates. Subsequent expenditure incurred on assets put to use is capitalized, 
only when it increases the future benefit/ functioning capability from / of such assets.

	 b.	 Revaluation of Premises:

		  i.	 Premises are carried at revalued amount, being fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated 
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses in accordance with AS 10 Property, Plant & Equipment 
(PPE) issued by ICAI. Revaluations made with sufficient regularity as decided by the management as per the 
valuation reports of Registered Government Approved Valuers to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ 
materially from the value which would be determined using fair value at the balance sheet date.

		  ii.	 The surplus arising out of revaluation of premises carried out is credited to the Revaluation Surplus in the Balance 
Sheet.

		  iii.	 In respect of premises kept in use by the Bank, yearly amortization of revaluation surplus of the premises is debited 
to Profit and Loss Account along with depreciation on original cost of premises and credited to premises account. 
Correspondingly, yearly amortization of revaluation surplus of the premises is debited to revaluation surplus with 
identical credit to General Reserve. In case of de-recognition of asset, the revaluation surplus / deficit is treated as 
per the guidelines prescribed in AS 10 (Revised) Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) issued by ICAI.

	 c.	 Premises of the merged Bank are recorded at carrying value upon merger and PPE and equipment other than premises 
are recorded at book value as on date of merger as per Due Diligence Report.

	 d.	 Premises are depreciated over the residual life of premises not exceeding 60 years. Accordingly, the Bank has a policy 
of assessing the residual life of premises periodically to present the realistic value of premises from time to time.

	 e.	 Subsequent costs are included in carrying amount of asset or recognized as separate asset, as appropriate only when 
it is probable that future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured 
reliably.
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	 f.	 Depreciation:

		  Depreciation on PPE is recognized based on cost of asset less their residual values over their useful lives, using the 
Straight Line Method. The useful life of PPE is considered as per the management’s estimate. The estimated useful 
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the each Balance Sheet date, with the effect 
of any changes in estimate accounted for on prospective basis.

		  The estimated useful lives of PPE and depreciation rates considering the useful life of an individual asset as determined 
by the management is as follows:

Sr. No. Property, Plant and Equipment Useful lives of an individual Asset
1 Building 60
2 Furniture & fixtures 10
3 Vehicles 6.67
4 Electrical items 10
5 ATM 5
6 Computer hardware 3
7 Renewable Energy Equipment 5

	 g.	 The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over 
which the assets are likely to be used. These estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experiences 
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

	 h.	 Whenever there is a revision in the estimated useful life of the asset, the unamortized depreciable amount is charged 
over the revised remaining useful life of the said asset.

	 i.	 An item of PPE is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the 
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as 
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit and loss.

	 j.	 The cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under “Capital work in progress”.

	 k.	 Depreciation is not provided on the freehold land. Leasehold land is amortized over the period of the lease.

	 l.	 Capital expenditure on leasehold land & building is amortized over a period of 10 years.

	 m.	 Stamp duty and registration charges on leasehold premises are booked, when actually incurred.

	 n.	 The items of PPE whose written down value has become NIL due to charge of depreciation over the years are stated at 
nominal value of Re. 1/- to facilitate their identification.

	 o.	 Impairment of PPE

		  PPEs are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date for impairment. If any indication exists, the bank estimates the recoverable 
amount of the asset. An asset’s recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. If, such 
recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable 
amount. The reduction is considered as an impairment loss and is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account.

	 6.	 Foreign Currency Transactions

	 a.	 The bank has no foreign branches. Foreign currency transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the 
rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

	 b.	 Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated at the Balance Sheet date at rates notified by Foreign 
Exchange Dealers Association of India (FEDAI). All gains / losses resulting from year-end revaluations are recognized 
in the Profit and Loss Account. Non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost, are reported using the rates at 
the date of initial recognition.

	 c.	 Outstanding forward exchange contracts and spot exchange contracts are revalued at year-end exchange rates notified 
by FEDAI for specified maturities. The resulting gains/losses on revaluation are included in the Profit and Loss account 
in accordance with RBI/FEDAI guidelines.
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	 d.	 Contingent liabilities in foreign currencies on account of guarantees, acceptances, endorsements and other obligations 
are reported using closing spot rates on the Balance Sheet date as notified by FEDAI.

	 7.	 Accounting for Amalgamation

	 Accounting for Amalgamation in case of amalgamated banks with the Bank is carried out as per the scheme approved by the 
RBI, from time to time in consonance with AS 14 ‘Accounting for Amalgamation’ issued by ICAI.

	 8.	 Employee Benefits

	 a.	 Provident Fund:

		  It is a defined contribution scheme. The eligible employees of the Bank are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident 
Fund, where, both the employee and the Bank contribute monthly at a stipulated rate to the Government Provident Fund. 
The Bank has no liability for future Provident Fund benefits other than its annual contribution and recognizes such 
contributions as an expense to Profit and Loss Account in the period in which employee renders the related service.

	 b.	 Gratuity:

		  The Bank provides for the Gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan, covering all employees. The plan provides for lump 
sum payments to employees upon death while in employment or on separation from employment after serving for the 
stipulated years mentioned under ‘The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972’. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are 
determined by Actuarial Valuation at each Balance Sheet date using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

		  The Bank funds for the plan asset in the form of qualifying insurance policy. The fair value of plan asset is reduced from 
the gross obligation under the defined benefits plans to recognize the net obligation of the Gratuity plan in the Balance 
Sheet as liability, in accordance with AS-15 ‘Employee Benefits’. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in 
which they arise.

	 c.	 Compensated Absences:

		  The Bank provides for Compensated Absence liability of its employees who are eligible for encashment accumulated 
leave. Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as Short Term 
Employee Benefits. The Bank measures the cost of such absences at the amount it expects to pay as a result of 
the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The accumulated leave expected to be carried 
forward beyond twelve months is Other Long Term Employee Benefit. The same is provided for based on the Actuarial 
Valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to 
the Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deferred.

	 9.	 Segment Reporting

		  In accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI, Segment Reporting is made as under:

	 a.	 Treasury includes all investment portfolio, profit/loss on sale of investments, profit/loss on foreign exchange transactions, 
equities and money market operations. The expenses of this segment consist of interest expenses on funds borrowed 
from external sources as well as internal sources and depreciation/amortization of premium on Held to Maturity category 
investments.

	 b.	 Corporate / Wholesale Banking includes all advances to trusts, partnership firms, companies, and statutory bodies, 
which are not included under ‘Retail Banking’ & considers 1) Institutional Exposure up to `7.50 Crores but sales turnover 
above `50.00 Crores 2) Institutional Exposure above `7.50 Crores.

	 c.	 Retail Banking includes exposures which fulfil the four criteria of orientation, product, granularity, and low value of 
individual exposures for retail exposures as per Master Directions on Basel III: Capital Regulations. Individual housing 
loans is also a part of Retail Banking segment. In retail banking 1) individual exposure is considered up to `7.50 Crores 
2) Proprietor Exposure up to 7.50 Crores & having sales turnover up to `50.00 Crores 3) Institutional Exposure up to 
`7.50 Crores & having sales turnover up to `50.00 Crores is considered.

	 d.	 Other Banking Business includes all other banking operations not covered under ‘Wholesale Banking’ and ‘Retail 
Banking’ segments. In Other Banking 1) Individual Exposure above `7.50 Crores 2) Proprietor Exposure above  
`7.50 Crores & sales turnover above `50.00 Crores
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		  Segment information is prepared in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the 
Financial Statements of the Bank as a whole.

	 10.	 Operating Lease

		  Lease payments for assets taken on operating lease are recognized in the Profit and Loss Account over the lease term 
in accordance with the AS 19 ‘Leases’, issued by the ICAI. Initial direct costs are charged to Profit and Loss Account.

	 11.	 Earnings Per Share

		  The Bank reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with AS 20 ‘Earnings per Share’ issued by the 
ICAI.

	 a.	 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Net Profit or Loss after Tax and before appropriation for the year, 
attributable to shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

	 b.	 The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period are calculated by aggregating the equity 
shares outstanding at the beginning of the period adjusted by the number of shares surrendered / forfeited or issued 
during the period multiplied by the time-weighting factor, which is the number of days for which the shares are outstanding 
as a proportion of total number of days during the year.

	 c.	 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the Net Profit or Loss after Tax for the year attributable to 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential shares.

	 12.	 Taxation

	 a.	 Income Tax expenses is the aggregate amount of current and deferred tax expenses incurred by the Bank. Current 
Income Tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the Tax Authorities in accordance with the Income Tax 
Act, 1961. Deferred Income Tax reflect the impact of 31st March, 2023 timing differences between taxable income and 
accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

	 b.	 Deferred Tax is recognized, subject to consideration of prudence, on timing differences between taxable income & 
accounting income that originate in one period and is capable of reversal in subsequent period. DTA is recognized only 
to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that asset can be realized in future. Income of unabsorbed depreciation, 
carried forward losses under tax laws, deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that there is virtual certainty 
supporting by convincing evidences. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and appropriately adjusted to 
reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain to be realized.

	 c.	 Current tax is debited to the Profit and Loss Account. The impact of changes in DTA and DTL is recognized in the Profit 
and Loss Account.

	 d.	 DTAs are reassessed at each reporting date, based upon management’s judgment as to whether the realization is 
reasonably certain.

	 13.	 Intangible Assets

		  An intangible asset is recognized if and only if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the 
asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible asset is measured initially 
at cost and stated in balance-sheet at historical cost less accumulated amortization.

		  Amortization

		  Amortization of intangible assets is provided on Straight Line Method (SLM) @ 33.33% in line with the RBI circular 
RBI/2005-06/286 UBD.BPD.PCB Cir. No. 28/12.05.001/2005-06.

	 14.	 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Asset

		  A provision is recognized when Bank has a present obligation as a result of past event where it is probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value except in case of 
decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities that are recognized as cost of PPE and determined based on best 
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at 
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
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		  A disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is:

		  a.	 A possible obligation arising from a past event, the existence of which will be confirmed by occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the Bank; or

		  b.	 A present obligation arising from a past event which is not recognized, as it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount 
of the obligation cannot be made.

			   When there is a possible or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

			   Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statement.

	 15.	 Non-Banking Assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

		  Non-Banking Assets (NBA’s) acquired in satisfaction of claims are carried at lower of net book value and net realizable 
value.

	 16.	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

		  Cash & Cash Equivalents include cash in hand, balances with RBI and with Other Bank and an investment has a 
short maturity of, say, three months or less from the date of acquisition. Cash flow statement is prepared using indirect 
method.

III. NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023.

	 1.	 Long Term Subordinated (Tier-II) Deposits (LTDs) / Long Term Subordinated (Tier-II) Bonds (LTSB)

		  In accordance with the approval granted by RBI vide its letter no. HeefJe.kesÀkeÀe.efJemesme. /S5569/12-01-034/2022-23 dated 
December 1, 2022 and further mail dated January 1, 2023 granting extension till 31.03.2023, the bank has raised `50.16 
Crores by way of Long Term Subordinated (Tier-II) Bonds during the year. The said approval was intimated to CRCS vide 
letter dated December 2, 2022.

		  During the Financial year the Bank has serviced `47.98 Crores (Previous Year: `51.82 Crores) towards interest on total 
outstanding portfolio of LTDs / LTSB.

		  The outstanding balance of Long Term Subordinated (Tier-II) Deposits (LTDs) / Long Term Subordinated (Tier-II) Bonds 
(LTSB) as on 31.03.2023 is included in the Tier-II capital of the Bank for Capital Adequacy purposes as per RBI guidelines 
after applying relevant discounting factors.

	 2.	 The Bank has written off an amount of `188.23 Crores (Previous year: `280.22 Crores) towards Bad debts, `172.43 
Crores (Previous year: NIL) towards ARC receipts and `93.92 Crores towards loss from cyber-attack.

	 3.	 Suppliers / Service providers covered under Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSME), have not 
furnished the information regarding filing of necessary memorandum with the appropriate authority. As such, information 
relating to cases of delays in payments to such enterprises or of interest payments due to delays in such payments, 
cannot be given.

	 4.	 Prior Period Items - AS 5

		  There are no items of material significance in the prior period account requiring disclosure.

	 5.	 Property Plant and Equipment – AS 10

		  Bank has revalued immovable properties on 31.03.2023 based on the valuation reports of the external independent 
valuers and closing balance of revaluation reserve as on 31.03.2023 (net of amount transferred to general reserve) is  
`487.95 Crores.

		  Revaluation reserve is not available for distribution of dividend.
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		  Capital Commitments

		  Estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account as at 31.03.2023 aggregate to `2.18 Crores.

	 6.	 Gain / (Loss) on Foreign Exchange Transactions – AS 11

		  The Bank has revalued the Forward Exchange Contracts & Spot Exchange Contracts as per the FEDAI rates as on the 
date of Balance Sheet. Unrealized gain on account of such revaluation amounting to `22.92 Crores (Previous period 
`10.75 Crores) has been recognized in the balance sheet. Realized gains from Forex transactions of `5.11 Crores 
(Previous Period: `5.62 Crores) is credited to Profit & Loss account in accordance with AS-11 issued by ICAI.

	 7.	 Accounting for Amalgamation - AS 14

		  a.	 Merger of Co-operative Bank of Ahmedabad Ltd.:

			   As per the merger scheme, there is no period limit for recovery of loss on merger in case of Co-op. Bank of 
Ahmedabad Ltd (CBA). During the year, on comparison of losses provided up to 31st March,2023 with credits 
received on account of recovery, the excess provision of `0.29 Crores (31st March, 2022: `1.26 Crores) on account 
of amortization of losses is written back to Profit and Loss Account, the details of which are as under.

(`in Crores)

Co-Operative Bank of Ahmedabad Ltd. 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Accumulated losses on merger 22.07 22.07
Net credit to Accumulated losses on account of Recovery etc. 20.75 20.46
Losses carry forwarded to be provided 1.33 1.62
Loss Provided up to last year 1.62 2.88
Excess Provided written back during year  0.29 1.26
Accumulated loss pending to be Provided over the next year  -  -

			   The balance loss of `1.33 Crore in respect of CBA will be adjusted against the further recovery received as there is 
no time limit prescribed for such recovery of loss in merger scheme of CBA.

		  b.	 Merger of Shree Sharada Sahakari Bank Limited with Cosmos Co-operative Bank Limited

			   i.	 Name of the amalgamated Bank: Shree Sharada Sahakari Bank Limited

			   ii.	 Effective date of Merger: October 30, 2022

			   iii.	 Reserve Bank of India has sanctioned the Scheme of Amalgamation in exercise of the powers under the 
provisions of Section 44A read with Section 56 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as amended vide the 
Banking Regulation (Amendment) Act, 2020 (39 of 2020).

			   iv.	 As per guidelines contained in Accounting Standard AS 14 – Accounting for amalgamations issued by The 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the amalgamation is in the nature of merger and accordingly the 
accounting has been made under pooling of interest method.

			   v.	 Equity of shares of the amalgamated Bank were exchanged in the proportion of the face value and swap value 
ratio of 1:1.42 as per the final due diligence.

			   vi.	 Amount of `2.55 Crores being difference between the consideration and the value of net identifiable assets 
acquired has been adjusted in the reserves.

	 8.	 Employee Benefits – AS 15

		  a.	 Defined Contribution Schemes

			   Bank’s contribution to Provident Fund – `12.49 Crores (Previous Year: `12.00 Crores)

		  b.	 Defined Benefit Schemes
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			   i.	 The Bank has defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service 
is eligible for a gratuity on separation at 15 days basic salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of 
service. The Bank funds for the plan asset in the form of qualifying insurance policy.

				    The liability towards leave encashment and Gratuity is assessed on the basis of actuarial valuation report of 
Actuary.

		  Disclosures required by AS-15 are given as under:

(`in Crores)

Sr. No. Particulars Gratuity
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

I Discount Rate 7.52% 7.23%
II Expected return on plan assets 7.52% 7.23%
III Salary Escalation rate 4.00% 4.00%
IV Attrition Rate

- For service 4 years and below  10 % p.a. 10 % p.a.
- For service 5 years and above 2 % p.a. 2 % p.a.

V Mortality Table Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

2012-14 (Urban)

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

2012-14 (Urban)
 The estimates of future salary income increases considered in the actuarial valuation takes into account 

inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.
VI Opening Present value of obligation 70.81 67.41
 Interest cost 5.12 4.58
 Current service cost 3.86 3.81
 Past service cost
 Liability transfer in /Acquisitions 2.53 -
 Benefits paid (8.85) (7.45)
 Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations (2.15) 2.46
 Closing Present value of obligation 71.32 70.81

VII Opening Fair value of plan assets 64.43 63.50
 Expected return on plan assets 4.66 4.32
 Contributions 6.61 4.06
 Transfer from other entity/Acquisitions 3.34 -
 Benefits paid (8.85) (7.45)
 Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets 0.01 -
 Closing Fair value of plan assets 70.20 64.43

VIII Present value of obligation 71.32 70.81
 Fair value of plan assets (70.20) (64.43)
 (Assets) / liability as at 1.12 6.38
IX Current service cost 3.86 3.81
 Past service cost
 Interest cost 5.12 4.58
 Expected Return of Plan Assets (4.66) (4.32)
 Net actuarial (gain) / loss (2.16) 2.46
 Expenses recognized in P & L Account included in Salaries, 

Allowances, PF contribution and Gratuity etc.
2.16 6.53
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Sr. No. Particulars Gratuity
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

X Category of fair value of Plan Assets:
 Insurer Managed Funds 70.20 64.43
 Total 70.20 64.43
 The Plan assets are marked to market on the basis of the yield 

curve derived from government securities. Hence, the expected 
rate of return has been kept the same as the discount rate.

XI Expected Contribution for next year 4.87 10.24

		  Experience Adjustment for 31st March, 2023 and previous 4 years

(`in Crores)

Particulars March 31, 
2023

March 31, 
2022

March 31, 
2021

March 31, 
2020

March 31, 
2019

Defined benefit obligation 71.32 70.81 67.41 64.76 54.97
Plan assets 70.20 64.43 63.5 54.15 47.92
Surplus/(deficit) (1.12) (6.38) (3.91) (10.61) (7.05)
Experience adjustments
On plan liabilities [Gain/(Loss)] 2.15 (2.46) 0.12 (7.00) (3.95)
Experience adjustments
on plan assets [Gain / (Loss)] 0.01 0.00 0.39 (0.12) (0.19)

		  c.	 Other Long Term Employee Benefits - Leave Encashment

 (`in Crores)

Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Total Actuarial Liability 15.26 15.43
Fund Balance 0.56 0.00
Net Actuarial Liability 14.70 15.43
Assumptions
Discount Rate 7.52% 7.23%
Salary Escalation Rate 4.00% 4.00%
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	 9.	 Primary Segment Reporting (By Business Segments) – AS 17

 (`in Crores)

Particulars  Treasury  Corporate / 
Wholesale Banking 

 Retail Banking  Other Banking 
Business 

 Total 

 CY  PY  CY  PY  CY  PY  CY  PY  CY  PY 
Revenue 390.10 346.74 522.55  580.09 564.29 484.33 745.15 497.37 2,222.09 1,908.53
Cost 253.01 288.58 399.94 455.83 431.88 380.59 615.86 374.72 1,700.69 1,499.72

Result 137.09 58.16 122.61 124.26 132.41 103.74 129.29 122.65 521.40 408.81
Unallocated Expenses 308.40 324.53
Operating Profit (PBT) 213.00 84.28
Income Taxes 61.59 18.37
Extraordinary profit / loss -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   
Net Profit / Loss (-) 151.41 65.91
OTHER INFORMATION
Segment Assets        5044.99 4,380.09 5,860.10 7,115.58 7,143.86  5,086.40 3,381.32 3,811.27 21,430.27 20,393.34
Unallocated Assets 342.06 272.42
Total Assets 21,772.33 20,665.76
Segment Liabilities   99.57  283.65 5,324.77 8,617.92 6,491.25 7,896.38 7,556.98 1,861.30 19,472.57 18,659.25
Unallocated Liabilities 2,299.76 2,006.51
Total Liabilities 21,772.33 20,665.76

	 * FY 2021-22 Office Accounts having Outstanding balance `-52.27 is not classified under above 3 category

	 **FY 2022-23 Office Accounts having outstanding balance `45.30 is not classified under above 3 category

	 These segments have been reported considering the nature of products or services, the class of customers for the products 
or services, different risks and returns attributable to them, organizational structure and internal management information 
system.

	 Secondary Segment Information: Bank operates only in one geographical area, hence separate information regarding 
secondary segment i.e. geographical segment is not given.

	 10.	 Related Party Disclosures - AS 18

		  a.	 Details of Related Parties:

Sr. No. Name of the Related Parties Description of Relationship
1 Cosmos E Solutions & Services Pvt. Ltd. Wholly owned Subsidiary Company

		  b.	 Related Party disclosures:

(`in Crores)

Sr. No. Items / Related Party 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Transactions-

1 Availment of services / Capital Purchases
 Towards Services (Including GST) 1.42 3.01
2 Interest paid & accrued by bank on Fixed Deposit during the 

year
0.40 0.37

3 Dividend received 0.25 0.25
Balances-

1 Current account with Bank 0.24 0.44
 Maximum Balance maintained in Current account with Bank  0.73 1.01
2 Investment in Subsidiary 0.25 0.25
3 Term Deposits 7.60 6.92
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		  c.	 The Bank is a Co-operative Society registered under the Multi–State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and there 
is no requirement of related party disclosure under Accounting Standard 18 (AS-18) issued by The Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India, related to Key Management Personnel, Mrs. Apekshita Thipsay, Managing Director, 
in terms of RBI Master Direction on Financial Statement – Disclosure and Presentation dated 30th August, 2021 
as Managing Director of branches of foreign Banks in India is considered KMP only. Therefore no further details 
thereon need to be disclosed.

	 11.	 Operating lease comprises leasing of office premises, ATM and data center site storage equipment - AS 19

(`In Crores)

Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Minimum lease payments payable at the end of the year:

- Not later than one year             33.16 28.39

- Later than one year and not later than five years 113.63 102.58

- Later than five years 85.74 98.95

Total minimum lease payments recognized in the Profit and Loss Account for the 
year.

37.60 37.18

Total of minimum sub-lease payment expected to be received under non-cancelable 
sub-lease

NIL NIL

Sub-lease payments recognized in the Profit and Loss Account for the year. NIL NIL

	 The terms of renewal and escalation clauses are those normally prevalent in similar agreement.

	 12.	 Earnings Per share - AS 20

(Amount in `)

Sr. 
No. Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

A Profit/Loss for the year attributable to shareholders (`)  1,51,40,47,499.00 65,91,27,793.37 

B Total number of shares at the end of year    3,32,76,937.00   3,35,33,930.00 

C Weighted avg. number of shares of `100/- each for the purpose of 
computing Basic Earnings per share

   3,36,47,057.25  3,34,05,481.83 

D Basic Earnings per share (A / C) (`)              45.00              19.73 

E Weighted avg. number of shares of `100/- each for the purpose of 
computing diluted Earnings per share

      3,36,47,057.25   3,34,05,481.83 

F Diluted Earnings per share (A / E) (`)              45.00              19.73 

G Nominal Value per share (`)                 100                 100 

	 13.	 Consolidated Financial Statements (AS 21)

		�  There is no requirement to present Consolidation Financial Statements under the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 
2002.
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	 14.	 Deferred Tax (AS – 22)
		  The major components of Deferred Tax for the year are as under:	 (`In Crores)

Deferred Tax Assets 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
1. Provision for BDDR 376.01 262.55
2. Provision for Standard Asset 0.00 41.63
3. Provision for Re-structured Assets 9.02 12.65
4. Provision for Investment Diminution 0.01 0.01
5. Leave encashment Provision           14.63 15.44
6. Expenses disallowed U/s 40(a)(ia) (0.16) 1.23
Sub Total (A) 399.51 333.51
Deferred Tax Liability
7. Difference in W.D.V.           38.97 40.09
Sub Total (B)           38.97 40.09
Total (A-B)         360.54 293.42
Deferred Tax Asset           90.74         73.76 

		  The application of Deferred Tax has resulted in a net credit of `16.50 Crores to the Profit and Loss Account for the year 
ended 31st March, 2023. The closing Deferred Tax Asset (net) of `90.26 Crores shown separately in the Balance Sheet.

	 15.	 Details of computer software other than internally generated- (AS– 26):
		  i) 	� The details of computer software included in the Property, plant and equipment block as “Intangible assets” are as 

follows:
 (`In Crores)

Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Opening Balance of Software (Intangible assets)                      2.83                    2.17 

Add: Additions during the year                      2.35                    2.21 

Less: Deletion / Amortization during the year                      1.77                    1.55 

Closing Balance of Software (Intangible assets)                      3.41                    2.83 

	 16.	 Impairment of Assets - AS 28

		  The Bank has ascertained that there is no material impairment of any of its assets and as such no provision under 
Accounting Standard 28 Impairment of Assets issued by the ICAI is required.

	 17.	 Contingent Liabilities AS -29:
		  a)	 Contingent liabilities in respect of Bank guarantees, Letters of credit, Forward contracts etc.	 (`In Crores)

Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Bank Guarantees                1,012.81     1,012.81 
Letters of Credit ( LC + Buyer’s Credit)                   112.48 158.37 
Forward Exchange contracts Purchase / Sale                   407.22          417.47 
Others – Depositors’ Education Awareness Fund                     64.62 53.50
Total                1,597.13 1,642.15 

		  b)	 Claims not acknowledged as debts:	
(`In Crores)

	 Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

On account of Income Tax Demand (Gross) 71.29 67.78
On account of Service Tax 7.41 7.41
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			   The Bank has paid `67.71 crore (Previous Year: `67.71 crore) against the above Income Tax demands raised by 
the Income Tax Department for various assessment years. The Bank has contesting these demands at various 
appellate levels and Bank is hopeful of getting substantial relief in respect thereto.

			   The Bank has paid `0.55 crore against the above demand of Service Tax demands.
		  c)	 Contingent Liabilities – Others

			�   In terms of DBOD Circular No. DEAF Cell.BC.114/30.01.002/2013-14 dated 27th May, 2014, the Bank has transferred 
all credit balances amounting to `9.96 Crores (as mentioned in sub-clause i) to viii) in Clause 3 of DEAF Scheme 
2014) maintained with the Bank which have not been in operation for 10 years or more. The required disclosure as 
per the said circular is as under:

 (`In Crores)

Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Opening balance of amounts transferred to DEAF                     53.50            44.36 
Add: 1) Amounts transferred to DEAF during the year                       9.96            10.08 
         2) Amount of Erst. SSSBL merged Bank 1.95 -
Less: Amounts reimbursed by DEAF towards claims 0.80              0.94 
Closing balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 64.61            53.50 

			   The Bank has paid `0.14 Crores to the claimants and the said amount has been claimed by way of reimbursement 
from RBI.

IV. 	 Disclosure Requirements as Per RBI Guidelines -
	 Disclosure as per RBI Master Direction DOR.ACC.REC.No.45/21.04.018/2021-22 dated 30th August, 2021:
	 1. 	 Regulatory Requirement
		  a) 	 Composition of Regulatory Capital:

(`In Crores)

Sr. 
No. Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

i) Paid up share capital and reserves (net of deductions, if any) 1,337.89 969.41

ii) Other Tier 1 capital - -

iii) Tier 1 capital (i + ii) 1,337.89 969.41

iv) Tier 2 capital 454.99 673.74

v) Total capital (Tier 1+Tier 2) 1,792.88 1,643.15

vi) Total Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs) 13,245.98 12,461.74

vii) Paid-up share capital and reserves as percentage of RWAs 10.10% 7.78%

viii) Tier 1 Ratio (Tier 1 capital as a percentage of RWAs) 10.10% 7.78%

ix) Tier 2 Ratio (Tier 2 capital as a percentage of RWAs) 3.44% 5.41%

x) Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) (Total Capital as a 
percentage of RWAs)

13.54% 13.19%

xi) Amount of paid-up equity capital raised during the year 6.53 9.11

xii) Amount of Tier 2 capital raised during the year, of which:

a)     Perpetual Cumulative Preference Shares - -

b)     Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares - -
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		  b)	 There is no draw down from reserves during the current financial year.

	 2. 	 Asset liability management

		  a)	 Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as on 31.03.2023
(`in Crores)

Particulars Deposits Advances Investments Borrowings
Foreign 

Currency 
assets

Foreign 
Currency 
liabilities

Day 1   401.26 1522.55 88.63 5.64 -   -   

2 to 7 days 141.11 34.74 40.95 -   -   11.81              

8 to 14 days 140.67 46.98 29.75 -   -   -   

15 to 30 Days 232.82 120.68 40.31 -   -   - 

31 days to 2 months 849.32 358.29 145.57 -   -      11.31 

Over 2 months and up to 3 Months 971.31 436.99 172.45 -   -            0.14 

Over 3 months and up to 6 Months 1,794.24 903.68 406.51 144.98   -           0.96 

Over 6 months and up to 1 year 3,855.48 6,373.39 695.40 -          61.70          8.58 

Over 1 year and up to 3 years  8,633.26 1,682.64 1,567.05          162.35          25.52          7.20 

Over 3 years and up to 5 years  460.60 1,633.54 147.50 -            7.19   -   

Over 5 years  149.35 3.12 1,512.58  304.95   -   -   

Total 17,629.42   13,116.60   4,846.70   617.92          94.41        40.00 

		  b)	 Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as on 31.03.2022
(`in Crores)

Particulars Deposits Advances Investments Borrowings
Foreign 

Currency 
assets

Foreign 
Currency 
liabilities

Day 1   403.84 1445.94 85.98 6.83 -    0.00  

2 to 7 days 150.77 23.35 38.25 - -          10.67 

8 to 14 days 93.95 30.51 20.81 - -   -   

15 to 30 Days 182.71 97.19 32.74 - -            0.14 

31 days to 2 months 240.19 284.54 42.96 - -          10.13 

Over 2 months and up to 3 Months 179.83 351.77 62.42 147.56 -    0.39

Over 3 months and up to 6 Months 831.74 1,137.11 170.27 1.84 -            2.13 

Over 6 months and up to 1 year 1,059.46 5,986.99 199.59 - -            0.29 

Over 1 year and up to 3 years  12,696.50 1,314.24 2,455.67 157.98         69.48        14.51 

Over 3 years and up to 5 years  572.80 1617.56 152.85 149.35           6.63 -   

Over 5 years  110.58 3.71 966.97 255.62   -     -   

Total    16,522.37  12,292.91      4,228.51         719.18        76.11        38.26 
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	 3. 	 Investment

		  a) 	 Composition of Investment Portfolio as at 31.03.2023	 (`in Crores)

Issuer

Investments in India

Government 
Securities

Other 
Approved 
Securities

Shares 
(Shares of 

Co-op. Banks, 
Subsidiary Co. 

& MICs)

Bonds 
in PSUs

Others 
(Securities 
Receipts 

under ARC & 
Other Bonds)

Total 
investments 

in India

Held to Maturity
Gross 3,905.74 - 0.25 - - 3,905.99
Less: Provision for non-performing 
investments (NPI)

- - - - - -

Net 3,905.74 - 0.25 - - 3,905.99
Available for Sale
Gross 770.26 - 1.34 60.39 108.72 940.71
Less: Provision for depreciation and NPI 14.96 - 0.01 - 0.43 15.40
Net 755.30 1.33 60.39 108.29 925.31
Held for Trading
Gross - - - - - -
Less: Provision for depreciation and NPI - - - - - -
Net - - - - - -
Total Investments 4,676 - 1.59 60.39 108.72 4,846.70
Less: Provision for non-performing 
investments

- - - - - -

Less: Provision for depreciation and NPI 14.96 - 0.01 - 0.43 15.40
Net 4,661.04 - 1.58 60.39 108.29 4,831.30

		  Composition of Investment Portfolio as at 31.03.2022	 (`in Crores)

Issuer

Investments in India

Government 
Securities

Other 
Approved 
Securities

Shares 
(Shares of 

Co-op. Banks, 
Subsidiary Co. 

& MICs)

Bonds 
in PSUs

Others 
(Securities 
Receipts 

under ARC & 
Other Bonds)

Total 
investments 

in India

Held to Maturity
Gross       3,172.86 -              0.25 -   -    3,173.11
Less: Provision for non-performing 
investments (NPI)

-   -   -   -   -   -

Net       3,172.86 -              0.25 -   -   3,173.11
Available for Sale - - - - -   -
Gross          809.32 -              1.31    2.60        242.15 1,055.39
Less: Provision for depreciation and NPI            19.93 -                    0.01         -            176.82 196.77 
Net          789.39 -              1.30   2.60         65.33 858.62
Held for Trading                                                                                             -
Gross -   -   -   -   -   -   
Less: Provision for depreciation and NPI -   -   -   -   -   -   
Net -   -   -   -   -   -   
Total Investments       3,982.18 -              1.56   2.60        242.15 4,228.50 
Less: Provision for non-performing 
investments

-   -    - - - -   

Less: Provision for depreciation and NPI            19.93 -            0.01 -          176.82 196.77
Net       3,962.25 -              1.55    2.60         65.33  4,031.73 
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		  b)	 Movement of Provisions for Depreciation and Investment Fluctuation Reserve

(`In Crores)

Sr.  
No. Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

i) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
a) Opening balance 196.76       144.58 
b) Add: Provisions made during the year 42.31         52.18 
c) Less: Write off / write back of excess provisions during the year 237.19 0.00
d) Add: Incorporation of IDR of Merged Bank 13.52 0.00
e) Closing balance 15.40       196.76

ii) Movement of Investment Fluctuation Reserve
a) Opening balance 44.16         56.16 
b) Add: Amount transferred during the year -   -   
c) Less: Drawdown -   12.00
d) Closing balance 44.16 44.16

iii) Closing balance in IFR as a percentage of closing balance of 
investments in AFS and HFT/Current category

5.08% 5.03%

		  Note: Carrying value less net depreciation (ignoring net appreciation) i.e. the net amount reflected in the balance sheet.

		  c)	� Bank has not made any Sales and transfers of securities to/ from HTM category excluding one-time transfer of 
securities to/from HTM category with the approval of Board of Directors undertaken at the beginning of the year as 
per RBI guidelines.

		  d) 	 Non-SLR investment portfolio

			   i) 	 Non-performing non-SLR investments
(`in Crores)

Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Opening Balance             0.01              9.83 
Add: Additions during the year -   -   
Less: Reductions during the above period -                9.82 
Closing Balance             0.01              0.01 
Total provisions held             0.01              0.01 

			   ii) 	 Issuer composition of non-SLR investments as on 31.03.2023
(`in Crores)

Sr. 
No. Issuer Amount

Extent of 
Private 

Placement

Extent of 
‘below 

Investment 
grade’ 

Securities

Extent of 
‘unrated 

securities’

Extent of 
‘unlisted’ 
securities

1 PSUs 60.39 Nil Nil Nil Nil
2 FIs 27.2 Nil Nil Nil Nil
3 Public & Private Banks 10 Nil Nil Nil Nil
4 Mutual Fund Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
5 Others-(Shares `1.59 Crores) 1.59 1.59 Nil Nil 1.59

Total (Excl. CD ̀ 70.74 Crores & SIDBI 
MSE Refinance Fund `0.78 Crores) 99.18 1.59 Nil Nil 1.59

6 Provision held  towards depreciation 0.44 0.01 Nil Nil 0.01
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			   Issuer composition of non-SLR investments as on 31.03.2022
(`in Crores)

Sr. 
No. Issuer Amount

Extent of 
Private 

Placement

Extent of 
‘below 

Investment 
grade’ 

Securities

Extent of 
‘unrated 

securities’

Extent of 
‘unlisted’ 
securities

1 PSUs 2.60 Nil Nil Nil Nil
2 FIs 37.33 Nil Nil Nil Nil
3 Public & Private Banks 10.00 Nil Nil Nil Nil
4 Mutual Fund Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

5
Others-(Security Receipts under ARC 
`194.83 Crores and Shares `1.56 
Crores)

196.39 196.39 Nil   *178.19    1.56

Total 246.32 196.39 Nil 178.19 1.56
6 Provision held  towards depreciation 176.83 176.82 Nil Nil 0.01

			   *Note: During the F.Y. 2021-22, 100% provision of `.178.19 Crores was done towards outstanding balance of 
Security Receipts of Pegasus Nineteen Trust II ARC & JMF ARC.. During F.Y. 2022-23 there was recovery of `5.76 
Crores from JMF Finance. Balance Security Receipts of `172.43 Crores was written off against 100% provision. 
Security Receipts with ACRE-XV-TRUST amounting to `16.64 Crores were redeemed fully during F.Y.2022-23.

			   During the F.Y. 2021-22, Pegasus Nineteen Trust II ARC & JMF ARC Book Value of  `178.19 Crores. are unrated 
securities due to its maturity. Hence 100% provision of the same is done on 31.03.2022.

		  e) 	 Repo transactions (in face value terms) as on 31.03.2023	 (`in Crores)

Particulars

Minimum 
Outstanding 
during the 

year

Maximum 
outstanding 
during the 

year

Daily Average 
outstanding 
during the 

year

As on 31st 
March, 2023

Securities sold under REPO (CROMS+RBI)
i. 	 Govt. Securities Nil  499.91 136.07 Nil
ii. 	 Corporate Debt Securities Nil Nil Nil Nil
iii. 	 Any Other Securities Nil Nil Nil Nil
Securities purchased under Reverse REPO / 
LAF / TREPS
i. 	 Govt. Securities Nil 1,339.00 145.60 Nil
ii. 	 Corporate Debt Securities Nil Nil Nil Nil
iii. 	 Any Other Securities Nil Nil Nil Nil

			   Repo transactions (in face value terms) as on 31.03.2022	 (`in Crores)

Particulars

Minimum 
Outstanding 
during the 

year

Maximum 
outstanding 
during the 

year

Daily Average 
outstanding 
during the 

year

As on 31st 
March, 2022

Securities sold under REPO (CROMS+RBI)
i. Govt. Securities Nil 315.90 37.17 Nil
ii. Corporate Debt Securities Nil Nil Nil Nil
iii. Any Other Securities Nil Nil Nil Nil
Securities purchased under Reverse REPO / 
LAF / TREPS
i. 	 Govt. Securities 35.00 1,564.00 631.97 818.96
ii. 	 Corporate Debt Securities Nil Nil Nil Nil
iii. 	 Any Other Securities Nil Nil Nil Nil
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	 4. 	 Asset Quality:

		  a) 	 Classification of advances and provisions held as on 31.03.2023	 (`in Crores)

Particulars

Standard Non-Performing

TotalTotal 
Standard 
Advances

Sub- 
standard Doubtful Loss

Total Non-
Performing 
Advances

Gross Standard Advances and NPAs

Opening Balance 11,449.74 138.40 704.77 0 843.17 12,292.91

Add: Additions during the year 212.89 212.89

Less: Reductions during the year 426.82 426.82

Closing balance 12,487.36 118.45 510.79 0 629.24 13,116.60

Reductions in Gross NPAs due to:

Up gradation 137.91 137.91

Recoveries (excluding recoveries from upgraded a/c's) 100.68 100.68

Write-offs 188.23 188.23

Provisions (excluding Floating Provisions)

Opening balance of provisions held 41.63 22.91 242.73 0 265.64 307.27

Add: Fresh provisions made during the year 327.37 327.37

Less: Excess provision reversed / Write-off loans 188.23 188.23

Closing balance of provisions held 43.54 19.24 385.54 0 404.78 448.32

Net NPAs

Opening Balance 115.49 453.85 0 569.34

Add: Fresh additions during the year 212.89

Less: Reductions during the year 561.43

Closing Balance 99.21 121.59 0 220.80

Floating Provisions

Opening Balance

Add: Additional provisions made during the year

Less: Amount drawn down15 during the year

Closing balance of floating provisions

Technical write-offs and the recoveries made thereon

Opening balance of Technical / Prudential written-off ac-
counts

94.95

Add: Technical / Prudential write-offs during the year 0.00

Less: Recoveries made from previously technical / 
prudential written-off accounts during the year

13.08

Closing balance 81.87
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Classification of advances and provisions held as on 31.03.2022
(`In Crores)

Particulars

Standard Non-Performing

TotalTotal 
Standard 
Advances

Sub- 
standard Doubtful Loss

Total Non-
Performing 
Advances

Gross Standard Advances and NPAs

Opening Balance 10,573.47 430.56 876.63 0.00 1,307.20 11,880.67

Add: Additions during the year            163.26 163.26

Less: Reductions during the year            627.29 627.29

Closing balance  11,449.74   138.40    704.77   0.00        843.17 12,292.91

Reductions in Gross NPAs due to:       

Upgradation            175.09 175.09

Recoveries (excluding recoveries from 
upgraded a/c's)

           171.98 171.98

Write-offs            280.22 280.22

Provisions (excluding Floating Provisions)

Opening balance of provisions held         38.37 44.00 234.07 0.00        278.07 316.44

Add: Fresh provisions made during the year            261.92 261.92

Less: Excess provision reversed / Write-off 
loans

           274.35 274.35

Closing balance of provisions held         41.63 22.91 242.73 0.00 265.64 307.27

Net NPAs

Opening Balance 383.52 629.78   0.00 1,013.30

Add: Fresh additions during the year    163.26

Less: Reductions during the year    607.22

Closing Balance 115.47 453.87 0.00 569.34

Floating Provisions

Opening Balance  Nil

Add: Additional provisions made during the 
year

 Nil

Less: Amount drawn down15 during the year  Nil

Closing balance of floating provisions  Nil

Technical write-offs and the recoveries 
made thereon

Opening balance of Technical / Prudential 
written-off ac-counts

95.08 

Add: Technical / Prudential write-offs during 
the year

0.00 

Less: Recoveries made from previously 
technical / prudential written-off accounts 
during the year

0.13 

Closing balance 94.95 
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Ratios (in per cent) 31st March, 
2023

31st March, 
2022

Gross NPA to Gross Advances 4.80% 6.86%
Net NPA to Net Advances 1.74% 4.74%
Provision coverage ratio 64.91% 32.48%

		  b) 	 Sector-wise Advances and Gross NPAs

(`In Crores)

Sr. 
No.

Sector@
Current Year Previous Year 

(as at March 31, 2023) (as at March 31, 2022)

Particulars
Outstand-
ing Total 

Advances

Gross 
NPAs

% of Gross 
NPAs 

to Total 
Advances of 

sector

Outstand-
ing Total 

Advances

Gross 
NPAs

Percentage 
of Gross 

NPAs 
to Total 

Advances in 
that sector

A Priority Sector
1 Agriculture and allied activities 147.15 2.43 1.65 63.17 2.49 3.94

Agriculture And Allied Activity 145.53 2.43 1.67 56.41 2.50 4.43
2 Advances to industries sector 

eligible as priority sector lending 3,963.86 241.91 6.10 3,811.34 309.49 8.12

Textile (Cloth)-Ginning, 
Spinning,Weaving 1,512.08 18.37 1.21 1,450.85 96.62 6.66

3 Services 2,070.30 53.00 2.56 1,785.36 49.00 2.74
Pharmaceuticals 212.36 1.99 0.94 192.14 0.22 0.11
Infrastructure Civil Construction 279.83 0.03 0.01 279.95 0.13 0.05

4 Personal loans 944.97 9.12 0.97 793.17 19.80 2.50
Home Loan & Civil Repairs 874.68 8.91 1.02 754.51 17.58 2.33
Sub-total (A) 7,126.28 306.46 4.30 6,453.04 380.18 5.89

B Non Priority Sector
1 Agriculture and allied activities 353.82 0.00 0.00 392.26 0.00 0.00

Sugar 264.16 0.00 0.00 331.94 0.00 0.00
Agriculture and allied activity 51.73 0.00 0.00 52.67 0.00 0.00

2 Advances to industries sector 1,185.76 96.40 8.13 1,406.39 110.78 7.88
Automobile & Spares 213.12 0.00 0.00 226.01 0.00 0.00
Steel & Iron 400.30 0.00 0.00 559.98 0.00 0.00
Textile (Cloth)-Ginning, 
Spinning,Weaving

279.49 41.47 14.84 230.90 43.43 18.81

3 Services 1,788.69 183.51 10.26 1,995.50 327.85 16.43
Schools & Educational Institutions 409.69 60.16 14.68 575.05 117.66 20.46
Jewellers 239.72 0.60 0.25 285.81 3.23 1.13
 Lease Rent Discounting 163.12 40.03 24.54 0.00 0.00 0.00

4 Personal loans 2,662.05 42.87 1.61 2,045.73 24.35 1.19
 Home Loan & CIVIL Repairs 1,317.61 16.28 1.24 787.89 6.04 0.77
Consumption of Person-al/Vehicle/
Education Loan

745.43 14.52 1.95 526.37 10.01 1.90

Sub-total (B) 5,990.32 322.78 5.39 5,839.87 462.98 7.93
TOTAL (A+B) 13,116.60 629.24 4.80 12,292.91 843.16 6.86

@ - Sub-sectors where the outstanding advances exceeds 10% of the outstanding total advances to that sector is disclosed 
separately
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		  c)	� Overseas Assets, NPAs and revenue: Bank does not having overseas assets, NPA and Revenue during FY 2021-
22 and FY 2022-23.

		  d) 	 Particulars of resolution plan and restructuring

			   Details of accounts subjected to restructuring

(`In Crores)

Particulars
Agriculture and 
allied activities

Corporates (ex-
cluding MSME)

Micro, Small and 
Medium Enter-
prises (MSME)

Retail (excluding 
agriculture and 

MSME)
Total

*C.Y. *P.Y. C.Y. P.Y. C.Y. P.Y. C.Y. P.Y. C.Y. P.Y.
Standard 31.03.23 31.03.22 31.03.23 31.03.22 31.03.23 31.03.22 31.03.23 31.03.22 31.03.23 31.03.22 
No. of Borrowers Nil Nil Nil 3 7 8 3 1 10 12

Gross Amount Nil Nil Nil 191.82 50.12 81.08 3.58 1.34 53.70 274.24

Provision held Nil Nil Nil 8.12 0.63 0.51 0.02 0.01 0.65 8.64

Sub-standard
No. of Borrowers Nil Nil Nil 3 Nil Nil 3 2 3 5

Gross Amount Nil Nil Nil 69.88 Nil Nil 1.97 2.13 1.97 72.01

Provision held Nil Nil Nil 6.99 Nil Nil 0.20 0.21 0.20 7.20

Doubtful
No. of Borrowers Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Gross Amount Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Provision held Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total
No. of Borrowers Nil Nil Nil 6 7 8 6 3 13 17

Gross Amount Nil Nil Nil 261.70 50.12 81.08 5.55 3.47 55.67 346.25

Provision held Nil Nil Nil 15.11 0.63 0.51 0.22 0.22 0.85 15.84

		  Note: Provisions held include Standard Asset provisions @ 0.40 %, FITL provisions @ 100 % and BDDR provisions, as 
applicable.

		  Information of borrowers whose limits were restructured under UCB guidelines is given in above table while information 
of borrowers whose limits were restructured under MSME or Covid guidelines is given in tables below. These restructured 
loans constitute about 0.67 % (Previous Year: 3.89 %) of the total advances as at 31-03-2023. 

		  Amount and number of accounts in respect of which applications received and under process, but the restructuring 
packages have not yet been approved NIL (Previous Year: NIL) as on 31-03-2023.
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		  e) 	 Disclosure of transfer of loan exposures

			   Investments in Security Receipts (SRs) as on 31.03.2023:

(`In Crores)

Sr. 
No. Particulars

SRs issued 
within past 5 

years

SRs issued 
more than 5 

years ago but 
within past 8 

years

SRs issued 
more than 8 
years ago

a) Book value of  SRs  where NPAs sold by the bank are 
the underlying

-   -   -   

Provision held against (a) -   -   -   
b) Book value of SRs where NPAs sold by other banks / 

financial institutions / non- banking financial companies 
are the underlying

-   - -

Provision held against (b) -   - -   
Total (a) + (b) -   -   -   

		  Investments in Security Receipts (SRs) as on 31.03.2022:

(`In Crores)

Sr. 
No. Particulars

SRs issued 
within past 5 

years

SRs issued 
more than 5 

years ago but 
within past 8 

years

SRs issued 
more than 8 
years ago

a) Book value of  SRs  where NPAs sold by the bank are the 
underlying

-                16.64       178.19 

Provision held against (a) -   -         178.19 
b) Book value of SRs where NPAs sold by other banks / 

financial institutions / non- banking financial companies 
are the underlying

-   -   -   

Provision held against (b) -     -   -   
Total (a) + (b) -                16.64       178.19 

		�  Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold from / to other banks / Financial Institutions / 
NBFCs (excluding ARCs)  

(`In Crores)

Sr. 
No. Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

a) Number of accounts purchased during the year  Nil  Nil
b) Aggregate outstanding  Nil  Nil
a) Of these number of accounts restructured during the year  Nil  Nil
b) Aggregate outstanding  Nil  Nil

	 	 Details of non-performing financial assets sold:

(`In Crores)

Sr. 
No. Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

a) No. of accounts sold  Nil Nil 
b) Aggregate outstanding  Nil Nil 
c) Aggregate consideration received  Nil Nil 
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		  f) 	� Banks shall make disclose details on the number and amount of frauds as well as the provisioning thereon 
as per template given below:

(`In Crores)

Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Number of frauds reported            * 46.00              40.00 
Amount involved in fraud (Crores) * 14.35                9.39 
Amount of provision made for such frauds (Crores)             *  8.14 **12.74
Amount of Unamortised provision debited from other reserves as at the end 
of the year. (Crores)

 Nil  Nil 

		  * �One fraud case of `8.50 Lakh was detected and reported by erstwhile Shree Sharada Sahakari Bank Ltd. during 2022-
23 is considered.

		  ** 18 fraud cases were detected in March 2022 and reported in April 2022. But provision was made in March 2022.

	 g) 	 Disclosure under Resolution Framework for COVID-19-related Stress

		�  A] MSME Restructuring proposals sanctioned as per RBI Circular Ref No. DBR.No.BP.VC.18/21.04.048/2018-19 dated 
01.01.2019 (extended under Resolution Framework 1.0 of Aug’20 and Resolution Framework 2.0 of May’21) are as 
under:

(`In Crores)

No. of accounts restructured Outstanding Loan 
Amount as on 31.03.2023

Under Aug’20 package - 1 13.14                                     
Under May’21 package - 5 4.37
Total (6) 17.51
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		�  B] Restructuring proposals sanctioned as per RBI Circular Ref. No. DOR.No.BP.BC/3/ 21.04.048/2020-21 dated August 
6, 2020 and RBI Circular Ref. No. DOR.STR.REC.11/21.04.048/2021-22 dated May 5, 2021 are as under

Format - B
(`In Crores)

Type of borrower

Exposure 
to accounts 
classified 

as Standard 
subject to im-

plementation of 
resolution plan 
– Position as at 
the end of the 

previous half-year 
31.03.2022 (A)

Of (A), 
aggregate 
debt that 

slipped into 
NPA during 

the half-
year

Of (A), 
amount 

written off 
during the 
half-year

Of (A) 
amount 

paid by the 
borrowers 
during the 
half-year

Exposure 
to accounts 
classified 

as Standard 
consequent to 

implementation 
of resolution 

plan – Position 
as at the end of 
this half-year 

30.09.2022
Aug’20 package
Personal Loans {1} 26.95 Nil Nil 1.29 0.00
Corporate persons*{2} 13.95 Nil Nil 1.53 13.26
Of which,MSMEs Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Others {2} 4.41 Nil Nil 0.32 4.28
Total - A {5} 45.31 Nil Nil 3.14 17.54
May’21 package
Individual Loans {8} 1.27 Nil Nil 0.54 0.78
Individual Loans – Busi-ness 
Purpose {2}

0.29 Nil Nil 0.01 0.29

Small Business Loans {3} 25.05 Nil Nil 1.96 16.45
Total - B {13} 26.61 Nil Nil 2.51 17.52
A + B {18} 71.92 Nil Nil 5.65 35.06

		  *As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

Type of borrower

Exposure to ac-
counts classified 

as Standard 
subject to im-

plementation of 
resolution plan 
– Position as at 
the end of the 

previous half-year 
30.09.2022 (A)

Of (A), 
aggregate 
debt that 

slipped into 
NPA during 

the half-
year

Of (A), 
amount 

written off 
during the 
half-year

Of (A) 
amount 

paid by the 
borrowers 
during the 
half-year

Exposure to ac-
counts classified 

as Standard 
consequent to 

implementation of 
resolution plan – 
Position as at the 
end of this half-
year 31.03.2023

Aug’20 package
Personal Loans {1} 0.00 Nil Nil 0.00
Corporate persons*{2} 13.26 Nil Nil 1.73 12.35
Of which,MSMEs Nil Nil Nil Nil
Others {2} 4.28 Nil Nil 0.38 2.57
Total - A {5} 17.54 Nil Nil
May’21 package
Individual Loans {8} 0.78 Nil Nil N.A.* 0.00
Individual Loans – Busi-ness 
Purpose {2}

0.29 Nil Nil N.A.* 0.00

Small Business Loans {3} 16.45 Nil Nil N.A.* 0.00
Total - B {13} 17.52 Nil Nil N.A.* 0.00
A + B {18} 35.06 Nil Nil 2.11 14.92

		  *Total 18 accounts had been restructured under both the Resolution Frameworks (other than those restructured under 
the Covid MSME Resolution Frameworks). Of these accounts, 12 accounts have demonstrated satisfactory performance 
during specified period while 3 accounts have been closed. Accordingly these 15 accounts have been deleted from the 
disclosure list while the remaining 3 accounts in the disclosure list as on 31.03.2023 are shown in table above.	
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5. 	 Exposure

		  (a) 	 Exposure to real estate sector
(`In Crores)

Sr. 
No. Category 31st March, 

2023
31st March, 

2022
I) Direct exposure

a) Residential Mortgages

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be 
occupied by the borrower or that is rented. (i)

2,372.40 1,505.02

Individual housing loans eligible for inclusion in priority sector advances shall 
be shown separately.

912.71 732.03

Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits. (ii) NIL NIL
b) Commercial Real Estate (iii)

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estate (office buildings, 
retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, multifamily residential 
buildings, multi tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse 
space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, etc.).

321.98 355.62

Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits 7.12 7.14
c) Investments in Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitized 

exposures(iv)
NIL NIL

i. Residential

ii. Commercial Real Estate

A. 	 Total of Direct Exposure ( i to iv) 2,701.50 1,860.64
II) 	 Indirect Exposure

Fund based and non-fund-based exposures on National Housing Bank and 
Housing Finance Companies.

 NIL  NIL

B. 	 Total of Indirect Exposure NIL NIL
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector (A+B) 2,701.50 1,860.64

		  (b) 	 Exposure to capital market
	 (`In Crores)

Sr. 
No. Particulars 31st March, 

2023
31st March, 

2022

i)
Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures 
and units of equity oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively 
invested in corporate debt;

 Nil  Nil

ii)

Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean 
basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IP-Os / ESOPs), 
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity oriented mutual 
funds;

 Nil  Nil

iii)
Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or 
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as 
primary security;

1.66 0.77

iv)

Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral 
security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of 
equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares 
/ convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual 
funds does not fully cover the advances;

 Nil  Nil
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Sr. 
No. Particulars 31st March, 

2023
31st March, 

2022

v)
Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on 
behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;

 Nil  Nil

vi)
Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds 
/ debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting pro-moter s 
contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising resources;

 Nil  Nil

vii) Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues;  Nil  Nil

viii)
Underwriting commitments taken up by the banks in respect of primary issue 
of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity 
oriented mutual funds;

 Nil  Nil

ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading;  Nil  Nil

x) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unreg-istered)  Nil  Nil

Total exposure to capital market 1.66 0.77

		  c) 	 Bank does not have any foreign country exposure.

		  d) 	 Unsecured advances	 (`In Crores)

Particulars 31st March, 
2023

31st March, 
2022

Total unsecured advances of the bank 295.87  201.74

Out of the above, amount of advances for which intangible securities such as 
charge over the rights, licenses, authority, etc. have been taken

 Nil  Nil

Estimated value of such intangible securities  Nil  Nil

	 6. 	 Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs

		  Concentration of deposits	 (`In Crores)

Particulars 31st March, 
2023

31st March, 
2022

Total deposits of the twenty largest depositors 673.51 939.50

Percentage of deposits of twenty largest depositors to total deposits of the bank 3.82% 5.69%

		  Concentration of advances  	�  (`In Crores)

Particulars 31st March, 
2023

31st March, 
2022

Total advances to the twenty largest borrowers 2,152.71 2,204.81

Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the bank 11.88% 14.06%

		  Concentration of exposures � (`In Crores)

Particulars 31st March, 
2023

31st March, 
2022

Total exposure to the twenty largest borrow-ers/customers 2,152.71 2,246.49

Percentage of exposures to the twenty largest bor-rowers / customers to the total 
exposure of the bank on borrowers / customers 

11.81% 14.11%
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		  Concentration of NPAs � (`In Crores)

Particulars 31st March, 
2023

31st March, 
2022

Total Exposure to the top twenty NPA accounts 417.51 574.36
Percentage of exposures to the twenty largest NPA exposure to total Gross NPAs. 66.35% 68.12%

	 7. 	 Derivatives

		  Bank does not have transaction in derivatives in the current and previous financial years.

	 8. 	 Disclosure of complaints

		  a) 	� Summary information on complaints received by the bank from customers and from the Offices of Banking 
Ombudsman (OBOs)

Sr. No. Particulars 31st March, 
2023

31st March, 
2022

Complaints received by the bank from its customers

1 Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year 7 7

2 Number of complaints received during the year 58 121
3 Number of complaints disposed during the year 65 121

3.1 Of which, number of complaints rejected by the bank 0 0

4 Number of complaints pending at the end of the year 0 7

Maintainable complaints received by the bank from OBOs   

5 Number of maintainable complaints received by the bank from OBOs 80 54

5.1. Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the bank by BOs 78 53

5.2 Of 5, number of complaints resolved through concilia-tion/mediation/
advisories issued by BOs

2 1

5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by BOs 
against the bank

0 0

6 Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other 
than those appealed)

0 0

		  Note: Maintainable complaints refer to complaints on the grounds specifically mentioned in BO Scheme 2006 and 
covered within the ambit of the Scheme.

		  b) 	 Top five grounds of complaints received by the bank from customers
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Ground
Grounds of com-
plaints, (i.e. com-
plaints relating to)

Number of 
complaints 
pending at 
the begin-
ning of the 

year

Number of 
complaints 

received 
during the 

year

% increase / 
decrease in 
the number 

of complaints 
received over the 

previous year

Number of 
complaints 
pending at 
the end of 
the year

Of 5, 
number of 
complaints 

pending 
beyond 30 

days

1 2 3 4 5 6
Current Year      

1 Loans and advances 2 10 (69%) 0  0
2 Staff behaviour 1 8 (50%) 0 0
3 Internet / Mobile / 

Elec-tronic Banking
0 4 (69%) 0 0

4 Account opening / dif-
ficulty in operation of 
accounts

0 11 22%  0  0

5 Levy of charges with-
out prior notice / 
exces-sive charges / 
foreclosure charges

0 7 17%  0  0

6 Others 4 18 (60%) 0 0
Total 7 58 52% 0 0
Previous Year

1 Internet / Mobile / 
Electronic Banking

2 13 (32)% 0 0

2 Loans and advances 0 32 113% 2 0
3 Staff behaviour 0 16 60% 1 0
4 Levy of charges with-

out prior notice / 
exces-sive charges / 
foreclosure charges

2 6 (40)% 0 0

5 Account opening / dif-
ficulty in operation of 
accounts

1 9 13% 0 0

6 Others 2 45 18% 4 0
Total 7 121 21% 7 0

	 9. 	 No penalty has been imposed by RBI on the Bank during the year.

	 10. 	Other Disclosures

		  a) 	 Business ratios:

Sr. 
No. Particular 31st March, 

2023
31st March, 

2022
i) Interest Income as a percentage to Working Funds 7.20% 7.24%
ii) Non-interest income as a percentage to Working Funds 1.37% 0.99%
iii) Cost of Deposits 4.49% 4.73%
iv) Net Interest Margin 3.80% 3.49%
v) Operating Profit as a percentage to Working Funds 2.52% 1.92%
vi) Return on Assets 0.73% 0.38%
vii) Business (deposits plus advances) per employee (in Crores)             11.35 10.85
viii) Profit per employee (in Crores)               0.06 0.02
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		  b) �	 The income for Bancassurance business for the period April’ 2022 to March’ 2023 is as follows -

(`In Crores)

Sr. No. Nature of Income 31st March, 
2023

31st March, 
2022

1. Commission from selling Life Insurance Policies 3.46 3.09

2. Commission from selling Non-Life Insurance Policies 0.80 0.64

Total 4.26 3.73

		  c)	 The income for Bank from Marketing & Distribution function for the period April’ 2021 to March’ 2022 is as follows -

(`In Crores)

Sr. No. Nature of Income 31st March, 
2023

31st March, 
2022

1. Commission from Mutual funds 0.71 0.55
Total 0.71 0.55

		  d)	 Disclosures regarding Priority Sector Lending Certificates (PSLCs) purchased during the year

(`In Crores)

Sr. No. PSLC Category 31st March, 
2023

31st March, 
2022

1 PSLC General 700.00 -   
2 PSLC  Micro 150.00              685.00 

3 PSLC Small and Marginal Farmer  715.00               360.00 

Total 1,56,5.00 1,04,5.00

		  No Priority Sector Lending Certificates (PSLCs) sold during the year

		  e) 	 Provisions and contingencies:

(` In Crores)

Sr. No. Provision debited to Profit and Loss Account 31st March, 
2023

31st March, 
2022

i) Provisions for NPI - 0.01
ii) Provision towards NPA 305.70 261.92
iii) Provision made towards Income tax 61.59 18.37
iv) Other Provisions and Contingencies (with details)   

Provision for Standard Assets              1.91                 3.26 
Investment Depreciation Reserve (175.23)               51.35 
Provision for Restructured Assets (3.63)                   7.16 
Provision for Investment Diminution -                   0.84 

		  f) 	 Payment of DICGC Insurance Premium

(` In Crores)

Sr. No. Particulars 31st March, 
2023

31st March, 
2022

1 Payment of DICGC Insurance Premium 23.66 22.90
2 Arrears in payment of DICGC premium Nil Nil

		  The above amount includes payment of DICGC including GST and Proportionate DICGC premium of Shree 
Sharada Sahakari Bank Ltd., which is merged with the bank w.e.f. 29/10/2022.
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		  g) 	� Advances of ̀ 13,116.60 Crores (31st March, 2022: ̀  12,292.91 Crores) shown in the Balance Sheet include Advance 
to Directors, their relatives and Companies/Firms in which they are interested.

(` In Crores)

Sr. 
No. Particulars 31st March, 

2023
31st March, 

2022
1. Fund Based: Directors 1.95 1.90

Fund Based: Director’s Relatives 17.25 21.20
2. Non-Fund Based 0.00 0.00

		  h)	 Investments:
			   Interest Rate Future (as per RBI Circular UBD (PCB)BPDCirNo.17/13.01.000/2009-10 October 28, 2009) - The 

bank has not undertaken any transaction during the Financial Year 2022-23.

			   i)	 Capital charge on market risk:
				    Market Risk in Trading Book-Standardized Modified Duration Approach.
				    Qualitative Disclosures:
				    Strategies and Processes:-
				    i) � Investment Policy which includes Market Risk Management is in line with the RBI regulations vide circular 

UBD.BPD. (PCB).Cir. No. 42 /09.11.600/2009-10 dated 08th February, 2010 and business requirements.

				    ii) � The overall objective of market risk management is to enhance profitability by improving the bank’s 
competitive advantage and reducing loss from all types of market risk loss events.

				    Scope and Nature of Risk Reporting / Measurement Systems:-
				    i)  The Bank has regulatory/internal limits for various Instruments in place.

				    ii) � Various exposure limits for market risk management such as Overnight limit, VaR limit, Daylight limit, 
Aggregate Gap limit, Investment limit etc. are in place.

				    iii) � The portfolio covered by Standardized Modified Duration Approach for computation of Capital Charge for 
Market Risk includes investment portfolio held under HFT and AFS and Forex Open positions.

			   Quantitative Disclosures:
(` In Crores)

Particulars
Amount of Capital required
31st March, 

2023
31st March, 

2022
Interest Rate Risk 27.14 30.30
Equity Position Risk 0.00 0.00
Foreign Exchange Risk 0.41 0.41

		  j)	 Previous year’s figures have been re-grouped / re-arranged wherever necessary to conform to the 
presentation of current year.

FOR M/s. G. D. APTE & CO. FOR THE COSMOS CO-OPERATIVE BANK LTD.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
F.R.NO.100515W

SANTOSH B. RASHINKAR APEKSHITA THIPSAY
PARTNER MANAGING DIRECTOR
M. NO: 103483
STATUTORY AUDITOR

FOR M/s. M. P. CHITALE & CO. ARCHANA V. JOSHI
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS DY. GENERAL MANAGER
F.R.NO.101851W

SANAT ULHAS CHITALE
PARTNER PLACE:  PUNE
M. NO: 143700 DATE: 20 / 05 / 2023



90

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST  MARCH, 2023

(`In Crores)
Sr. 
No. PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST 

MARCH, 2023
AS AT 31ST 

MARCH, 2022
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before Income Tax  213.00  84.28 
Adjustments for -

1 Depreciation on Property Plant and Equipment  23.26  22.39 
2 Amortisation of Premium on Securities  31.47  28.59 
3 (Profit) / Loss on sale of NBA (Net)  6.08 -   
4 Provisions for BDDR  305.70  261.92 
5 Provisions for Standard Assets  1.91  3.26 
6 Provisions for Provision for Investment Diminution -    0.84 
7 Provisions for Lease Rent Equalization Fund  0.78  -   
8 Bad Debts wriiten-off  188.23  280.22 
9 ARC Receipt wriiten-off  172.43  -   
10 Cyber Security Receivable Write-off  93.92  -   
11 Amaravati Bank Securities Write-off  8.00  -   
12 Death Benevolent Fund Provision  1.25  -   
13 Unnati & Nahata Bank coll A/c bal. trf to Gen reserve  2.34  -   
14 (Profit) / Loss on sale of PPE (Net)  (0.14)  (0.02)
15 Reversal of excess provisions of Merge Bank  (0.29)  (1.26)
16 Reversal of ARC Surplus  (0.18)  (37.41)
17 Provisions for Restructured Assets  (3.63)  7.16 
18 Provisions for Investment Depreciation Reserve  (186.92)  51.35 
19 Reversal of excess provisions  (0.04)  (0.30)
20 Cyber Security Provision Written Back  (93.92)  -   
21 Amaravati Bank Securities Provision Written Back  (8.00)  -   
22 Provisions for Other Receivable (Net)  (4.22)  4.41 
23 Reversal of BDDR provisions due to write-off  (188.23)  (274.35)
24 Dividend Received from Subsidiary Company  (0.25)  (0.25)
25 Interest paid on Funds (Staff Development, Members etc.)  -    0.28 
26 Entrance fees, Excess cash & Surplus ARC money etc.  -    0.44 
27 Medical Assistance to members/staff /Death Benevolent  (0.75)  (0.0003)
28 Amortisation of Deferred Capital Expenditure -    0.21 
29 Excess Amount of Education Fund  (0.60)  (0.57)
30 Reversal of interest income on account of FITL provision  8.49  2.71 
31 Unpaid Dividend transferred to General Reserve  -    0.15 

Operating profit before working capital changes  569.69  434.03 
Adjustments for working capital -

32 (Increase) / Decrease in Investment  (939.53)  (650.60)
33 (Increase) / Decrease in Advances  (1,011.92)  (692.46)
34 Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings  (101.26)  47.18 
35 Increase / (Decrease) in Deposits  1,107.05  371.92 
36 (Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets  (28.72)  23.12 
37 Increase / (Decrease) in Other Liabilities  72.26  22.40 
38 Taxes paid  (73.55)  (9.34)

 (975.66)  (887.78)
Net cash generated from Operating Activities  (405.97)  (453.74)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

39 Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangibles  (18.51)  (10.79)
40 Property, Plant and Equipment acquired in Amalgamation  (3.01)
41 Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangibles  -    0.44 
42 Dividend Received from Subsidiary Company  0.25  0.25 
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(`In Crores)
Sr. 
No. PARTICULARS AS AT 31ST 

MARCH, 2023
AS AT 31ST 

MARCH, 2022
Net Cash Flow from Investing activities  (21.27)  (10.10)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

43 Issue of share capital during the year  6.53  9.11 
44 Refund of share capital during the year  (9.10)  (7.36)
45 Dividend Paid  (24.15)  (0.02)
46 Reserves (including against Assets) of Amalgamated Bank  43.36 -   

Net Cash Flow from financing activities  16.64  1.73 
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents  (410.60)  (462.11)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year  1,818.04  2,280.15 
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year  1,407.44  1,818.04 

NOTES AS AT 31ST 
MARCH, 2023

AS AT 31ST 

MARCH, 2022
Cash & Cash Equivalents
1. Cash  79.08  74.24 
2. Balances with RBI Current Account & SDF  1,180.04  757.34 
3. Balances with other Banks Held In Current Accounts  133.32  165.46 
4. Fixed Deposits maturing within 3 months  15.00  2.04 
5. Money at Call and Short Notice -    818.96 

 1,407.44  1,818.04 

Cash & Cash Equivalents include cash in hand, balances with RBI and with Other Bank and an investment has a short maturity of, 
say, three months or less from the date of acquisition. These Cash & Cash Equivalents are included in Schedule H & I of Financial 
Statement.			 

	 *Above cash flow statement has been Prepared using indiret method.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST  MARCH, 2023

FOR M/s. G. D. APTE & CO. FOR THE COSMOS CO-OPERATIVE BANK LTD.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
F.R.NO.100515W

SANTOSH B. RASHINKAR APEKSHITA THIPSAY
PARTNER MANAGING DIRECTOR
M. NO: 103483
STATUTORY AUDITOR

FOR M/s. M. P. CHITALE & CO. ARCHANA V. JOSHI
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS DY. GENERAL MANAGER
F.R.NO.101851W

SANAT ULHAS CHITALE
PARTNER PLACE:  PUNE
M. NO: 143700 DATE: 20 / 05 / 2023
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CLASSIFICATION OF OVERDUES - TERMWISE AS ON 31ST MARCH  2023

LekeÀyeekeÀer oMe&efJeCeeje lekeÌlee 31 cee®e& 2023 DeKesj

Sr. 
No.
De.
¬eÀ.

Type of Loan
keÀpe& ÒekeÀej

No. of 
a/cs

keÀpe&oej 
mebK³ee

Outstanding 
Balance

³esCes keÀpe& yeekeÀer
`

No. of Defaulters
 LekeÀyeekeÀeroej

Overdue Amount
LekeÀyeekeÀer jkeÌkeÀce

% to 
out-standing

LekeÀyeekeÀer MeskeÀ[e 
he´ceeCe

1 Short Term 
Advances  

Deuhe cegole keÀpex 

11,528 43,51,20,59,668.65 0 109 0 109 0.00 2,70,39,64,484.91 0.00 2,70,39,64,484.91 2.06

2 Medium Term 
Advances 

ceO³ece cegole keÀpex

24,033 24,13,39,81,528.39 0 1,596 0 1,596 0.00 1,26,92,22,261.58 0.00 1,26,92,22,261.58 0.97

3 Long Term Advances 

efoIe& cegole keÀpex 
23,425 63,51,99,32,597.09 0 1,622 0 1,622 0.00 1,80,78,60,478.02 0.00 1,80,78,60,478.02 1.38

Total / SketÀCe 58,986 1,31,16,59,73,794.13 0 3,327 0 3,327 0.00 5,78,10,47,224.51 0.00 5,78,10,47,224.51 4.41

Statement showing particulars of Loans & Advances to Directors and their Relatives outstanding as on 
31st March 2023 [As per Multi-State Co-op. Society Act 2002 Section 39(3)]

31 cee®e& 2023 DeKesj meb®eeuekeÀ Je l³eeb®es veelesJeeF&keÀebvee efouesu³ee keÀpee&®eer ³esCes yeekeÀer oMe&efJeCeeje lekeÌlee 
(ceequìmìsì keÀes-Dee@he. meesmee³eìer S@keÌì 2002 keÀuece 39 (3) DevJe³es meeoj)

Sr. 
No.

 De.¬eÀ.

Particulars
leheMeerue

Amount of Loan outstanding at the end of the year 
31-03-2023

Je<e& DeKesjerme keÀpe& ³esCes jkeÌkeÀce 
(31.3.2023)

`

1. Directors / meb®eeuekeÀ 1,95,28,139.21

2. Directors Relatives / meb®eeuekeÀeb®es veelesJeeF&keÀ 17,24,75,764.34

Total /  SketÀCe ` 19,20,03,903.55

Note: Outstanding Credit balance is not considered.
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AMOUNT-WISE CLASSIFICATION OF THE DEPOSITORS AS ON 31ST MARCH 2023
þsJe jkeÀcesvegmeej þsJeeroejeb®es JeieeakeÀjCe MeskeÀ[e he´ceeCe 31 cee®e& 2023

Deposit Amount
þsJe jkeÌkeÀce 

` 0.00 to  
10000.00

` 10000.01 
to 50000.00

` 50000.01  to     
100000.00

` 100000.01 
and above

Total
SketÀCe

Depositor / þsJeeroej 6,31,155 1,48,485 62,152 2,03,230 10,45,022

Percentage(%) to total Depositors
SketÀCe þsJeeroejebMeer MeskeÀ[e he´ceeCe

60.40% 14.21% 5.95% 19.45% 100.00%

*Above information is furnished using unique customer ID. 

OUTSTANGING AMOUNT-WISE CLASSIFICATION OF ACCOUNT AND BORROWERS & ITS 
PERCENTAGE TO TOTAL ACCOUNT AND BORROWERS AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2023

keÀpe& ³esCesyeekeÀer jkeÀcesvegmeej Keelesoejeb®eer mebK³ee Je l³eeb®es SketÀCe keÀpe&oejebMeer MeskeÀ[e he´ceeCe 31 cee®e& 2023 DeKesj 

Loan Amount
keÀpe& jkeÌkeÀce 

` 1 to  
` 50000/-

` 50001/- to 
` 100000/-

` 100001/- to 
` 1000000/-

` 1000001/- to 
` 2500000/-

` 25000001 to 
` 5000000/-

` 5000001/-  
& above

Total
SketÀCe

No. of Accounts
SketÀCe Keeles mebK³ee

8,171 4,216 25,662 10,612 4,612 5,713 58,986

Percentage to total accounts
SketÀCe Keel³eebMeer MeskeÀ[e he´ceeCe

13.85 7.15 43.51 17.99 7.82 9.69 100%

No. of Borrowers
SketÀCe Keeles mebK³ee

7,507 3,999 23,155 8,373 3,450 3,199 49,683

Percentage to total borrowers
SketÀCe Keel³eebMeer MeskeÀ[e he´ceeCe

15.11 8.05 46.61 16.85 6.94 6.44 100%

PURPOSE-WISE CLASSIFICATION OF LOANS AS ON  31-03-2023
keÀpe& lekeÌlee 31 cee®e& 2023 DeKesj

(Amount in Lakh)

Particulars
leheMeerue

No. of Accounts
Keeles mebK³ee

Amount of Loans
keÀpe& jkeÌkeÀce `

% to Total Loans
MeskeÀ[e he´ceeCe

Industrial / DeewÐeesefiekeÀ 5248 519256.01 39.59

Trade / J³eeheejer 3106 154953.95 11.81

Allied to Agriculture / MesleerhetjkeÀ GÐeesie 260 48749.22 3.72

Service Industry / mesJeemegefJeOee GÐeesie 3170 173291.45 13.21

Builders / yeebOekeÀece J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ 122 23339.58 1.78

Housing Construction & Repairs / IejyeebOeCeer Je ogªmleer 17525 238781.14 18.20

Consumption / Jew³eeqkeÌlekeÀ 26504 122326.81 9.33

Professional & Self Employed / mJe³ebjespeieej 2301 23959.78 1.83

Transport Operator / JeenletkeÀ J³eJemee³e 343 2470.87 0.19

Other 407 4530.91 0.35

Total / SketÀCe 58986 1311659.73 100.00
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(A fully owned subsidiary of The Cosmos Co-op. Bank Ltd.)
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16th  Annual Report  2022–2023

To, 

The Shareholders: 

Your Board of Directors are pleased to present the Sixteenth 
Annual Report on the business operations of the Company 
and the audited financial statements for the period ended  
31st March, 2023.

Particulars
 For the year 
ended March 
31, 2023 (in `)

 For the year 
ended March 
31, 2022 (in `)

Revenue from operations 126.91 349.78

Other income 118.56 39.58

Total income 245.47 389.36
Operating expenses excluding 
depreciation and amortization

120.11 188.83

Profit before depreciation 
and tax

125.36 200.53

Depreciation and amortization 15.74 18.19

Profit before tax excluding 
prior period expenses

109.63 182.34

Prior Period Expenses 78.60 0

Profit before tax 31.03 182.34
Current Tax 28.35 41.10

Prior Period Taxes 0.00 (1.46)

Deferred Tax (24.99) 28.41

Exceptional Items Gain / (Loss) 0.00 0.00

Profit after tax 27.67 114.29
Share Capital 25.00 25.00

Reserves and Surplus 1,007.87 1,005.21

Dividend

Considering the profits of the Company, the Board of Directors 
have recommended a Final Dividend at a rate of 100% on 
Equity Shares i.e. `100.00 per Equity Share amounting to total 
`25,00,000/-. In the Annual General Meeting for Financial Year 
2022-23 to the members as on 21st April, 2023. The Board 
of Directors did not declare any Interim Dividend during the 
financial year under report.

Transfer to reserves 

No amount was transferred to any reserves from the current 
year’s profit.

Deposits

Your Company has not accepted any deposits from the public 
during the year under review.

Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The state of the Company’s affairs and Future Outlook
The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Limited, the parent 
organisation of the Company continues to be Company’s 
principal client. Cosmos e-Solutions always endeavours to 
deliver smart and reliable solutions to the banks to cater the 
needs of their customers. We envision the needs of various 
banks and design innovative products and services that fulfil 
current and future banking requirements with ease. Your 
company work with variety of fields and provide multi-platform 
application solutions. 

Your company continued to provide best technology-intensive 
and definitive solutions that build true value for clients by 
innovative business and technology strategies. To enhance 
user experience and next generation security features in our 
Internet Banking solution, we have revamped earlier developed 
NetBank application with latest technology and features of next 
generation banking. 

Your Company continues to be the Finacle (Core Banking 
Solution) implementation partner of Infosys. Company has 
initiated projects related to Digital Lending which will be useful 
for Client Banks to enhance Retail Loan portfolio. These 
products are designed to maximize automation and reduce 
operational efforts.

Your Directors expect to better the Company’s performance.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements made with related 
parties
There are no contracts or arrangements made with related 
parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013. The transactions with The Cosmos Co-operative Bank 
Limited were at arm’s length basis.

The change in the nature of business, if any

There have been no material changes in the nature of business 
of the Company in the financial year 2022-23.  

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the 
financial position of the company, which have occurred 
between the end of the financial year of the company to 
which the financial statements relate and the date of the 
report
There are no instances of any material changes and 
commitments affecting the financial position of the company.

The names of companies which have become or ceased to 
be its Subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies 
during the year

The Company has no subsidiaries or associate companies.

Board Meetings
During the financial year 2022-23, four meetings were held on 
1st July, 2022, 12th August, 2022, 24th November, 2022 and 24th 
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March, 2023. The gap between two Board meetings did not 
exceed the maximum gap of 120 days.

The details of directors or key managerial personnel who 
were appointed or have resigned during the year

As per Articles of Association of the Company, none of the 
Directors are liable to retire by rotation.

There were following changes in the composition of Board of 
Directors:

•	 Mr. Prashant Pansare (DIN: 10361146), Mr. Arvind 
Tavare (DIN: 02459224) were appointed as an Additional 
Directors w.e.f. 24th March, 2023 till the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. They vacate their office of Directorship 
on the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting. Their 
appointment as Directors has been put before the 
members for their approval in ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. You are requested to pass necessary resolution 
for the same.

•	 Ms. Shubhangi Medhekar (DIN: 10090790) appointed 
as an Additional Director w.e.f. 27th March, 2023 and 
a Managing Director w.e.f. 30th March, 2023 till the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. She vacates her office 
of Directorship on the date of ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. Her appointment as Directors has been put 
before the members for their approval in ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. You are requested to pass necessary 
resolution for the same.

•	 Ms. Arti Dhole (DIN: 07670787) resigned from the post of 
CEO and Managing Director w.e.f. 29th March, 2023 and 
continued to be as Director.

•	 Mr. Rajesh Prasad (DIN: 10172991), was appointed 
as an Additional Director w.e.f. 25th May, 2023 till the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. He vacates his office 
of Directorship on the date of ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. His appointment as Director has been put before 
the members for their approval in ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. You are requested to pass necessary resolution 
for the same.

The Company was not required to appoint KMP.

Audit Committee 

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 
relating to constitution of Audit Committee are not applicable 
to the Company.

Maintenance of Cost Records

Provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 
regarding maintenance of cost records are not applicable to 
the Company. Hence there is no disclosure under this head.

Statutory Auditors

M/s S. A. Damle & Associates (FRN: 102089W), Chartered 
Accountants have been appointed as the Statutory Auditors of 
the Company for a period of 5 years i.e. up to the conclusion of 
the Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2026.

Remarks, Qualifications, Comments by Auditors in Audit 
Report

There was no qualification, reservations or adverse remarks 
made by the Auditors in their report except the following 
observations:

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 37 in the financial statements, which 
describes the effect of prior period items in the Company’s 
Financial Statement. Our opinion is not modified in respect of 
this matter

Management Reply:

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped, reclassified & 
rearranged wherever necessary.

Significant and material orders 

There are no significant or material orders passed by the 
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern 
status and Company’s operations in future. 

Weblink of annual return

As the Company does not have its website, there is no 
disclosure under this head.

Internal financial controls with reference to the Financial 
Statements

The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of accounting records, and timely 
preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

Human Resource

The Company is recruiting employees at a gradual pace. All 
employees to perform key functions of the company and the 
support staff has been appointed. 

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013 

As per the provisions of the Act, the Company was not required 
to form Internal Committee. Further, there was no case filed 
pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition, and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Details of application if any under Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016

There are no applications filed / pending by or against the 
Company under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

Details of difference in valuation for borrowings

There was no one time settlement or Loan availed from any 
Bank or Financial Institution during the year under report. Hence 
disclosure of difference between amount of the valuation done 
during the said two transaction is not required.
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Matters required to be reported upon as per the Section 
134(1)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 

In pursuance of the above requirements, we report as follows:

a) 	 Conservation of Energy

	 The Company is engaged in rendering services in 
Information Technology field and electricity cost is not a 
major component of total cost. The Company recognizes 
the need and importance of conservation of energy. The 
Company uses energy efficient electrical and electronic 
equipment.

b) 	 Technology absorption, adoption and innovation

	 As the Company is not engaged in any manufacturing 
activities, this section does not apply to the Company. The 
Company’s employees keep upgrading their professional 
skills and are aware of the latest developments in the 
financial markets.

c) 	 Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:-

	 Foreign exchange outgo during the year		   NIL

	 Foreign exchange earnings during the year	   NIL

A statement indicating development and implementation 
of a risk management policy for the company including 
identification therein of elements of risk, if any, which in 
the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the 
company

Management has taken appropriate measures for identification 
of risk elements related to the industry, in which the Company 
is engaged, and is always trying to reduce the impact of such 
risks.

Internal Control and Risk Management Policy Statement:

The Company has put in place adequate systems of internal 
controls commensurate with its size and nature of its 
operations. These have been designed to provide reasonable 
assurance with regard to recording and providing reliable 
financial and operational information, complying with applicable 
statutes, safeguarding assets from unauthorized use or losses, 
executing transactions with proper authorization and ensuring 
compliance of corporate policies. 

For each critical activities, the Company has documented areas 
of risks and required checks for these activities and functions. 
This list is reviewed and updated on annual basis to ensure the 
risk profiling of all the activities are up-to date and in line with 
the actual/updated process flow. 

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments

Your Company has not granted loans, issued guarantees or 
made investments in terms of provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Statement on declaration given by Independent Directors                 

The Company is not required to appoint independent directors. 
Therefore, there is no requirement of including a statement on 

declarations given by independent directors under sub-section 
(6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and 
remuneration

There is no requirement to constitute the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee as provided in Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, thus the policy in that regard is not 
determined by the Board of Directors. 

Report on Corporate Social Responsibility

As the Company does not fall under the criteria prescribed 
under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, disclosure 
under this head is not required.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to the Directors’ 
Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed;

a.	 that in the preparation of the annual accounts for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2023, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed;

b.	 that the Directors have selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the 
Company for the year under review;

c.	 that the directors have taken proper and sufficient care 
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d.	 that the Directors have prepared the annual accounts 
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023 on a ‘going 
concern’ basis.

e.	 that the directors have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of applicable laws and that 
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
Cosmos E-Solutions and Services Private Limited
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Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

OPINION

1.	 We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements 
of COSMOS E-SOLUTIONS & SERVICES PRIVATE 
LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at  
31st March, 2023, the statement of Profit and Loss and 
statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as “Financial 
Statements”).

2.	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by 
the Act, gives a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2023, its 
profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

3.	 We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

4.	 We draw attention to Note 37 in the financial statements, 
which describes the effect of prior period items in the 
Company’s Financial Statement. Our opinion is not 
modified in respect of this matter

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT FOR 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 
the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of 
these financial statements that give a true and fair view 

of the financial position and financial performance of the 
Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

6.	 This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the financial statement 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

7.	 In preparing the financial statements, management 
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

	 The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing 
the Company’s financial reporting process. 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF 
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

8.	 Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

9.	 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

	 a.	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures 
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responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.

	 b.	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has 
internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements in place and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls.

	 c.	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

	 d.	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. 

	 e.	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

10.	 We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. We also provide those charged 
with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUIREMENTS

11.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 

of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’ a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 
of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

12.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

	 a.	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

	 b.	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.

	 c.	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
and of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

	 d.	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements 
comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2021.

	 e.	 On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors as on 31st March, 2023 and taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 
(2) of the Act.

	 f.	 As per section 143 (3) (i) of companies Act, 2013 
requirement relating to report on the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls is not applicable.

	 g.	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 
2021 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

		  i.	 The Company has no pending litigations 
impacting its financial position;

		  ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses;

		  iii.	 There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company, during the 
year. 

		  iv.	 As regards other matters,

			   1.	 The Management has represented that, 
to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
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funds (which are material either individually 
or in the aggregate) have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or share premium or any other sources 
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any 
other person or entity, including foreign entity 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly 
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries.

			   2.	 The Management has represented, that, 
to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are material either individually 
or in the aggregate) have been received 
by the Company from any person or entity, 
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 

provide any guarantee, security or the like 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

			   3.	 Based on the audit procedures that 
have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 
has come to our notice that has caused us to 
believe that the representations made by the 
management under sub-clause (i) and (ii) 
above, contain any material mis-statement;

		  v.	 The Company has declared and paid dividend 
of `25,00,000/- during the year which is in 
compliance with section 123 of the Act. and

13.	 In our opinion, according to information, explanations 
given to us, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act and 
the rules thereunder are not applicable to the Company as 
it is a private Company.

	 For S. A. Damle & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration No. 102089W

Place: Pune
Date: April 21, 2023

S. A. Damle
Proprietor

Membership No. 039048
(UDIN NO: 23039048BGXAMT/9779)
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Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited
Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

With reference to the Annexure referred to in paragraph 10 
under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements” of the Independent Auditors’ Report to the 
members of the Company on the financial statements for the 
year ended 31st March, 2023, we report that:

i.	 As regards assets,

	 a)	 The Company is maintaining proper records showing 
full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

		  The Company is maintaining proper records showing 
full particulars and situation of Intangible Assets.

	 b)	 The Company has a regular program of physical 
verification of its property, plant & equipment by which 
its property, plant & equipment are verified at each 
year end. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical 
verification is reasonable having regard to the size 
of the Company and the nature of its business. 
No material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification.

	 c)	 According to the information and explanation given 
to us and on the basis of verification of relevant 
record evidencing title deeds provided to us, the title 
deeds relating to the immovable properties, which 
are freehold and owned by it, are held in name of the 
Company as at the balance sheet date.

	 d)	 As per the information and explanation given to us, 
the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant 
and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)or 
Intangible assets during the year.

	 e)	 As per the information and explanation given to us and 
verification of relevant record,no proceedings have 
been initiated or are pending against the Company 
for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and 
rules made thereunder.

ii.	 The Company is engaged in the business of rendering 
Information Technology related services in the banking 
sector. Major portion of inventory comprises of software 
licenses which is in intangible form. Hence reporting under 
Clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company 
to the extent of inventory of software licenses.

iii.	 The Company has not made any investments in or 
provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans 
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured 
to companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships or other 
parties during the year.

iv.	 In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not granted 
any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in 
whom the director is interested, in accordance with the 
provisions of section 185 of the Act. It has not given or 
provided any guarantee and security during the year. It 
has not made investments through more than two layers 
of investment companies and complied with provisions of 
section 186 of the Act.

v.	 As per the information and explanation given to us, the 
Company has not accepted any deposits from the public 
and there are also no amounts deemed to be deposits.

vi.	 The Central Government has not prescribed the 
maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the 
Act, for any of the products or services rendered by the 
Company.

vii.	 As regards statutory dues,

	 a)	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued 
in the books of account in respect of undisputed 
statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, 
Provident fund, Income tax, cess and any other 
material statutory dues have generally been regularly 
deposited during the year by the Company with the 
appropriate authorities.

	 b)	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
these statutory dues were in arrear, as at 31st March, 
2023, for a period of more than six months from the 
date they became payable.

	 c)	 As per the information and explanation given, there 
are no material statutory dues outstanding which 
have not been deposited with government authorities 
on account of any dispute.

viii.	 As per the information and explanation given to us, there 
are no such transactions whichare not recorded in the 
books of account which was surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix.	 As regards loan or borrowing,

	 a)	 As per information and explanation given, the 
Company has not availed any loan or borrowing 
from banks, financial institution, Government and 
Debenture holders. Thus, reporting under clause 3(ix) 
of the order is not applicable.
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x.	 As regards raising of funds,

	 a)	 Based upon the audit procedures performed and 
the information and explanations given by the 
management, the Company did not raise any 
money by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer including debt instruments during the year. 
Accordingly, the particulars in clause 3 (x)(a) of the 
Order are not applicable.

	 b)	 Based upon the audit procedures performed and 
the information and explanations given by the 
management, the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or 
optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, 
the particulars in clause 3(x)(b) of the Order are not 
applicable.

xi.	 As regards fraud,

	 a)	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, no material fraud on or by the Company has 
been noticed or reported during the course of our 
audit.

	 b)	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, no report under sub-section (12) of section 
143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the 
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 
2021 with the Central Government.

	 c)	 As per information given, a requirement relating to 
whistle-blower complaints is not applicable to the 
Company.

xii.	 In our opinion and as per the information and explanation 
given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company. 
Accordingly, the particulars in clause 3 (xii) of the Order 
are not applicable.

xiii.	 According to the information and explanations given to us, 
all transactions of the Company with the related parties are 
in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies 
Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed 
in the financial statements, etc., as required by the 
applicable accounting standards.

xiv.	 The Company being a private limited company having 
turnover less than Rs. 200 crore and outstanding loans 
or borrowings less than Rs.100 crore at any point of 
time during the preceding financial year, is exempt from 
requirement of getting internal audit as per the provisions 
of Section of 138 of Companies Act. Accordingly, the 
particulars in clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable.

xv.	 Based on the audit procedures performed and the 
information and explanations given by the management, 
the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with him. 
Accordingly, the particulars in clause 3 (xv) of the Order 
are not applicable.

xvi.	 In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered 
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934. Accordingly, the particulars in clause 3 (xvi) of the 
Order are not applicable.

xvii.	According to the information explanation provided to us, 
the Company has not incurred cash losses in the current 
financial year and in the immediately preceding financial 
year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 
(xvii) of the Order are not applicable.

xviii.	As per the information and explanation given to us, there 
has been no case of resignation of statutory auditor during 
the year.

xix.	 On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected 
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of 
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the 
financial statements, audit procedures performed and the 
information and explanations given by the management, 
we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists 
as on the date of the audit report and that the Company is 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing as at the date of 
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date.

xx.	 The Company being a private limited company meets 
the exemption criteria specified under the Act and is thus 
exempt from compliance with provisions of the Companies 
Act pertaining to CSR activity. Accordingly, the particulars 
in clause 3 (xx) of the Order are not applicable.

xxi.	 A requirement relating to preparation and presentation of 
Consolidated Financial Statements is not applicable to the 
Company.

For S. A. Damle & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration No. 102089W

Place: Pune
Date: April 21, 2023

S. A. Damle
Proprietor

Membership No. 039048
(UDIN NO: 23039048BGXAMT/9779)
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Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited
 BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2023

(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars Note 
No.

31 March 2023
(₹)

31 March 2022
(₹)

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders’ funds
   (a) Share Capital 3 25.00 25.00
   (b) Reserves and Surplus 4 1,007.87 1,005.21
Total 1,032.87 1,030.21
(2) Non-current liabilities
   (a) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net)  - 16.63
   (b) Long-term Provisions 5 .43 .29
Total .43 16.93

(3) Current liabilities
   (a) Trade Payables 6
       - Due to Micro and Small Enterprises - -
       - Due to Others 4.44 119.07
   (b) Other Current Liabilities 7 2.74 10.94
   (c) Short-term Provisions 8 70.38 41.10
Total 77.56 171.11
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,110.86 1,218.24

II. ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
   (a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment 9 110.28 125.02
(ii) Intangible Assets  1.49 133.49
(iii) Capital Work-in-progress  - 37.60

   (b) Deferred Tax Assets (net)  8.36 -
   (c) Long term Loans and Advances 10 73.71 48.82
   (d) Other Non-current Assets 11 140.00 100.00
Total 333.84 444.93

(2) Current assets
   (a) Inventories 12 74.96 9.25
   (b) Trade Receivables 13 40.64 72.87
   (c) Cash and cash equivalents 14 644.32 635.76
   (d) Other Current Assets 15 17.10 55.43
Total 777.02 773.31

Total Assets 1,110.86 1,218.24

See accompanying notes to the financial statements	
As per our report of even date attached

As per our report of even date
For S A Damle & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 102089W

	 For and on behalf of the Board

S A Damle
Proprietor  
Membership No: 039048   

Mrs. Arti Dhole
Director
DIN: 07670787

Mrs. Shubhangi Medhekar
Managing Director
DIN: 10090790

Dr. Mukund Abhyankar
Director
DIN: 00881021

Place: Pune
Date: 21 April 2023

Place: Pune
Date: 21 April 2023
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Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited
 STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars Note 
No.

Year ended  
31 March, 2023 

(₹)

Year ended  
31 March, 2022 

(₹)

Revenue from Operations 16 126.91 349.78

Other Income 17 118.56 39.58

Total Income 245.47 389.36

Expenses

Cost of Operating Activity 18 142.27 88.47

Change in Inventories of work in progress and finished goods 19 -65.71 33.30

Employee Benefit Expenses 20 3.07 7.81

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 9 15.74 18.19

Other Expenses 21 40.47 59.25

Total expenses 135.85 207.02

Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional and Extraordinary Item and Tax 109.63 182.34

Exceptional Item  - -

Profit/(Loss) before Extraordinary Item and Tax 109.63 182.34

Extraordinary Item  - -

Prior Period Expenses 37 78.60 -

Profit/(Loss) before Tax 31.03 182.34

Tax Expenses 22

   -  Current Tax 28.35 41.10

   -  Deferred Tax -24.99 28.41

   -  Prior Period Taxes - -1.46

Profit/(Loss) after Tax 27.67 114.29

Earnings Per Share (Face Value per Share `100 each)

    	 - Basic 23 110.67 457.17

	 - Diluted 23 110.67 457.17

See accompanying notes to the financial statements	

As per our report of even date attached

As per our report of even date
For S A Damle & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 102089W

	 For and on behalf of the Board

S A Damle
Proprietor  
Membership No: 039048   

Mrs. Arti Dhole
Director
DIN: 07670787

Mrs. Shubhangi Medhekar
Managing Director
DIN: 10090790

Dr. Mukund Abhyankar
Director
DIN: 00881021

Place: Pune
Date: 21 April 2023

Place: Pune
Date: 21 April 2023
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Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars Note
Year ended  

31 March, 2023 
(₹)

Year ended  
31 March, 2022 

(₹)
A. Cash Flow from operating activities

Net Profit after tax 27.67 182.34
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 15.74 18.19
Provision for tax 3.36 -
Interest Income -40.44 -37.21
Finance Costs - -
Operating Profit before working capital changes 6.33 163.32
Adustment for:
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory -65.71 33.30
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade receivables 32.23 -14.36
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 38.33 11.50
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payable -114.63 33.26
Increase/(Decrease) in Other current liability -8.20 8.20
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provision 29.28 21.65
Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Provision .13 -.08
(Increase)/Decrease in Short term loan and advances - .57
(Increase)/Decrease in Long Term Loans & Advances -24.89 -22.48
Cash generated from Operations -107.13 234.88
Tax paid(Net) 28.35 39.64
Net Cash from Operating Activities -135.48 195.24

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
 Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 168.60 -168.60

Investment in Term Deposits -40.00 -
Interest received 40.44 37.21
Net Cash (Used in) Investing Activities 169.04 -131.39

C. Cash flow from Financing activities
Dividends Paid (including Dividend Distribution Tax) -25.00 -25.00
Net Cash (Used in) / Generated from Financing Activities -25.00 -25.00
Net (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 8.56 38.86
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 635.76 596.91
Exchange difference of Foreign Currency Cash and Cash equivalents - -
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 14 644.32 635.76

Notes:
The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Accounting Standard 3 (AS-3), 
“Cash Flow Statements”.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

As per our report of even date
For S A Damle & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 102089W

	 For and on behalf of the Board

S A Damle
Proprietor  
Membership No: 039048   

Mrs. Arti Dhole
Director
DIN: 07670787

Mrs. Shubhangi Medhekar
Managing Director
DIN: 10090790

Dr. Mukund Abhyankar
Director
DIN: 00881021

Place: Pune
Date: 21 April 2023

Place: Pune
Date: 21 April 2023
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Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

1	 COMPANY INFORMATION							     

	 Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited (‘the Company’) has been incorporated on 23rd March, 2007 under the 
Companies Act, 1956 which is now the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), and is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Cosmos 
Co-operative Bank Limited.

	 The Company is primarily engaged in the business of rendering Information Technology related services in the banking 
sector.							     

2	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES							     

2.1	 Basis of Preparation							    

	 These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
(GAAP) under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis of accounting and on going concern basis. 
GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the Act. The 
Company has prepared these financial statements to comply, in all the material aspects with Accounting Standards. 
 
Accounting policies have been consistently applied over the periods.						    

2.2	 Use of estimates							     

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (‘GAAP’) requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure 
of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 
the reported period. Management believes that the estimates made in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent 
and reasonable.  Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods.				  

2.3	 Revenue recognition							    

	 Revenue is primarily derived from Information Technology (IT) Support and related services. Arrangements with the customers 
are either on fixed price, fixed time frame or on a time and material basis. Revenues from the end of last billing to the Balance 
Sheet date are recognised as unbilled revenues.

	 Annual Technical Services revenue and revenue from fixed-price maintenance contracts are recognized rateably over the 
period in which services are rendered.

	 Revenue from the sale of software application user licenses is recognised on transfer of the title of such user license, 
except in case of multiple element contracts, which require significant implementation services, where revenue for 
the entire arrangement is recognised over the implementation period based upon the percentage completion method. 
 
Revenue from client training support and other services arising due to the sale of software products is recognised as and 
when the related services are performed.

	 Revenue from sale of software products, client support and other services is recognized as and when the services are 
performed. 

	 Interest income is recognized using the time proportionate method, based on rates implicit in the transaction.

	 The Company presents revenue net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and Loss.			 

2.4	 a. Tangible assets and capital work-in-progress							     

	 Tangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost comprises of purchase price 
and any attributable cost such as duties, freight, borrowing costs, erection and commissioning expenses incurred in bringing 
the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
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	 Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date

	 Borrowing costs, if any, attributable to assets, are capitalized in accordance with provisions of AS -16

b. 	 Impairment							     

	 The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the 
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling 
price and value in use.  In assessing value in use, the Company has measured its ‘value in use’ on the basis of undiscounted 
cash flows of next five years projections estimated based on current prices.

2.5	 Intangible assets 							     

	 Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

	 Research costs are debited to statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred. 

	 Software product development costs are expensed as incurred unless technical and commercial feasibility of the project is 
demonstrated, future economic benefits are probable, the Company has an intention and ability to complete and use or sell 
the software and the costs can be measured reliably.							     

2.6	 Depreciation and amortisation							     

	 In respect of tangible assets acquired during the year, depreciation is provided on written down value method so as to write 
off the cost of the assets over the useful lives in the manner specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

	 For assets acquired prior to April 1, 2014, the carrying amount as on April 1, 2014 is depreciated over the remaining useful 
life. Additions made to an asset up to 15th of a month are subjected to pro-rata depreciation for the period commencing from 
that month and those made after 15th of a month are subjected to pro-rata depreciation from the start of the subsequent 
month keeping in view the materiality of amounts involved.      

	 Intangible assets (Mobile Banking, Internet Banking Software Product-developed by the company) are amortised over their 
respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date they are available for use. The management 
estimated useful life for Software Products at 30 months. 

	 Other intangible assets are amortised @ 40% on written down value method. 

	 Depreciation and amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically, including at each financial 
year end, by the management.	

2.7	 Inventory valuation							     

	 Inventory (software licenses) is valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. Costs are ascertained using FIFO 
method. The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to its present location and condition including taxes, other than those subsequently recoverable by the enterprise 
from the taxing authorities.

2.8	 Employee benefits

	 (i) 	 Short term employee benefits

		  Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term 
employee benefits. These benefits include salaries, bonus and incentives. The undiscounted amount of short-term 
employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognized as an expense as the related service 
rendered by employees. The company does have a policy for payment of leave encashment.”

	 (ii) 	 Post-employment benefits

		  Contribution to provident fund and superannuation for are accounted for on accrual basis. 

		  The company provides for a gratuity, covering eligible employees. The plan provides a lump sum payment to vested 
employees at retirement of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and tenure of the employment with 
the Company. Liability for Gratuity as at the period end is provided on the basis of valuation done by actuary and is fully 
funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India.
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2.9	 Accounting for taxes on income							     

	 Income tax expense comprises of current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the applicable 
income tax law) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income 
and taxable income for the period).

	 Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities using applicable tax 
rate and tax laws.

	 Deferred tax is recognised in respect of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income i.e. differences 
that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. The deferred tax charge or 
credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; 
however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are 
recognised only if there is a virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be 
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

	 Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or written up to reflect the amount that is 
reasonable/virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realised.

2.10	Operating leases 							     

	 Lease rentals in respect of assets acquired on operating leases are recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term except in case of immovable property wherein, having considered the materiality of 
amount involved, the operating leases are recognized on accrual basis by the management. 

2.11	Earnings per share (EPS)							     

	 The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit/loss attributable to the equity shareholders for the year/
period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting year/ period.

2.12	Goods and service Tax (GST)							    

	 The input tax credit in respect of inward supplies are availed as per the provisions of law and are adjusted against the tax 
payable on outward suppliers and any excess of tax payable over and above input tax credit is recognized as current liability. 

	 Pre-GST regime Taxes and GST paid on advances as received from customers against services that are yet to be rendered 
are recognized as current assets. These are adjusted against the accruing tax liability as and when billed.

	 Tax and duty credits availed by way of input tax credit under the laws existing prior to commencement of GST regime have 
been claimed as transition credits eligible as input tax credit under the GST regime.

2.13	Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets							     

	 The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an 
outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  A disclosure for a contingent 
liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow 
of resources.  When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of 
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

	 Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable 
that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. Loss contingencies arising 
from claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties etc are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and 
the amount can be reasonably ascertained.

	 Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and 
if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which 
the change occurs.							     
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Note 3 - Share Capital

	 (Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2023

As at  
31 March, 2022

 No. `

Authorised Share Capital		

Equity Shares, `100 par value, 25000 (Previous Year -25000) Equity Shares 25.00 25.00

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up Share Capital 25.00 25.00

Equity Shares, `100 par value 25000 (Previous Year -25000) Equity Shares paid up

Total 25.00 25.00

(i)	 Reconciliation of number of shares				  

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2023

As at  
31 March, 2022

Equity Shares
No. of 
shares

(Amounts 
in Lacs)

No. of 
shares

(Amounts in 
Lacs)

Opening Balance  25,000 25.00 25,000 25.00
Issued during the year  -    -    -    -   
Deletion during the year  -    -    -    -   
Closing balance  25,000  2,500,000  25,000  2,500,000 

(ii)	 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share 
in the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The Company 
declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in 
proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of shares on 
which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid.

Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares.

On winding up the Company, the holders of equal shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company.

(iii)	 Shares held by Holding company, its Subsidiaries and Associates					   

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2023

As at  
31 March, 2022

No. of 
shares

(Amounts 
in Lacs)

No. of 
shares

(Amounts in 
Lacs)

The Cosmos Co-op Bank Limited *  25,000 25.00  25,000 25.00

*One  Shares are held in the name of Nominee

(iv)	 Details of Shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Equity Shares As at  
31 March, 2023

As at  
31 March, 2022

Name of Shareholder No. of 
shares

In % No. of 
shares

In %

The Cosmos Co-op Bank Limited 25000 100.00% 25000 100.00%
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(v)	 Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year 31 March 2023	

Name of Shareholder Class of 
Shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares

% Change 
during the 

year

The Cosmos Co-op Bank Limited  Equity 25000 100.00% 0.00%

Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year 31 March 2022

Name of Shareholder Class of 
Shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares

% Change 
during the 

year

The Cosmos Co-op Bank Limited  Equity 25000 100.00% 0.00%

The Company has not allotted any shares without payment being received in cash in 5 years immediately preceding year ended 
March 31, 2023								      

Note 4 -	Reserves and Surplus

	 (Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2023

As at  
31 March, 2022

` `

General Reserve	
    Opening Balance 13.00 13.00
    Closing Balance 13.00 13.00
Statement of Profit and loss
    Balance at the beginning of the year 992.21 902.92
    Add: Profit during the year 27.67 114.29
    Less: Appropriation
    Dividend on Equity Shares (Incl. DDT) 25.00 25.00
    Balance at the end of the year 994.87 992.21
Total 1,007.87 1,005.21

Note 5 - Long term provisions		

	 (Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2023

As at  
31 March, 2022

` `

Provision for employee benefits .43 .29
Total .43 .29

Note 6 -	Trade payables

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2023

As at  
31 March, 2022

` `

Due to MSME  -   -   
Due to others 4.44 119.07
Total 4.44 119.07
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Note 6.1	 - Trade Payable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023

	 (Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 

3 years
Total

MSME  -    -    -    -    -   
Others 3.24  -    -    -   3.24
Disputed dues- MSME  -    -    -    -    -   
Disputed dues- Others  -    -    -    -    -   
Sub total      3.24
MSME - Undue -  -    -    -   
Others - Undue  -    -    -    -   1.20
Total       4.44

Note 6.2	 - Trade Payable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023

(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 

3 years
Total

MSME  -    -    -    -    -   
Others 119.07  -    -    -   119.07
Disputed dues- MSME  -    -    -    -    -   
Disputed dues- Others  -    -    -    -    -   
Sub total 119.07
MSME - Undue -  -    -    -    -   
Others - Undue  -    -    -    -    -   
Total   119.07

Note 7 - Other Current Liabilities
	 (Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2023

As at  
31 March, 2022

` `

Other payables
   -GSLI To Employees .03 .03
Statutory dues payable 2.71 10.91
Total 2.74 10.94

Note 8 - Short term provisions

	 (Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2023

As at  
31 March, 2022

` `

Others 
   -Provision for Income Tax 70.38 41.10
Total 70.38 41.10
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Note 9 - Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets
(Amounts in Lakhs)

Name of Assets Gross Block Depreciation and Amortization Net Block Net Block

As on 
1-Apr-22 Addition Deduction /

Adjustment
As on  

31-Mar-23
As on 

1-Apr-22
for the  
year

Deduction /
Adjustment

As on  
31-Mar-23

As on  
31-Mar-23

As on 
1-Apr-22

(`) (`) (`) (`) (`) (`) (`) (`) (`) (`)

(i) Property, Plant 
and Equipment

Buildings 233.50  -    -   233.50 111.83 14.66  -   126.50 107.00 121.67

Computer System 
- Hardware

59.14  -    -   59.14 56.14  -    -   56.14 3.00 3.00

Furniture and 
Fixtures

2.39  -    -   2.39 2.07 .08  -   2.15 .24 .32

Office Equipments .46  -    -   .46 .45  -    -   .45 .01 .01

Vehicles .53  -    -   .53 .51  -    -   .51 .02 .02

Total 296.02 -   -   296.02 171.00 14.75  -   185.75 110.28 125.02

Previous Year 296.02 - - 296.02 154.47 16.53 - 171.00 125.02 141.56

(ii)  Intangible 
Assets

Computer 
Software - Internet 
Banking

190.42  -   131.00 59.42 59.42  -    -   59.42  -   131.00

Computer 
Software - Mobile 
Banking

23.17  -    -   23.17 23.17  -    -   23.17  -   -   

Computer System 
- Software

36.05  -    -   36.05 35.73 .13  -   35.85 .19 .32

Oracle E-Business 
Suite Software

201.90  -    -   201.90 199.73 .87  -   200.60 1.30 2.16

Total 451.53  -   131.00 320.53 318.04 .99  -   319.03 1.49 133.49

Previous Year 320.53 131.00 451.53 309.12 1.66 318.04 133.49 4.14

  (iii) Capital Work-in-progress  -   37.60

  (iv) Intangible Assets under Development  -   -   

Capital Work-in-Progress Ageing Schedule
(Amounts in Lakhs)

Capital Work-in-Progress

Amount in CWIP for a period of 31 March 
2023 Amount in CWIP for a period of 31 March 

2022
Less 

than 1 
year

1 -2 
Years

2-3 
Years

More 
than  

3 Years

Total Less 
than  

1 year

1 -2 
Years

2-3 
Years

More 
than  

3 Years

Total

Projects in progress  -    -    -    -    -   37.60  -    -    -   37.60
Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -  

*In respect of Intangible Assets, it is Amortization of assets.								      
The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets during the year.					  
The tittle deeds and Lease deeds of immovable properties are in name of the Company.
There is no capital work in progress pending at the year end in respect of property plant and equipment and also no intangible asset is in progress at the year end.	
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Note 10 - Long term loans and advances
(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2023

As at  
31 March, 2022

` `

Advance Income Tax (Net of provision for taxes) 73.71 48.82
Total 73.71 48.82

Note 11-	Other non current assets

(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2023

As at  
31 March, 2022

` `

Bank Deposit having maturity of greater than 12 months 140.00 100.00
Total 140.00 100.00

Note 12 - Inventories

(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2023

As at  
31 March, 2022

` `

Finished goods 74.96 9.25
Total 74.96 9.25

Note 13 - Trade receivables
(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2023

As at  
31 March, 2022

` `

Unsecured considered good 40.64 72.87
Total 40.64 72.87

Note 13.1 - Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023

(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars
 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Total Less than 
6 months 

6 months- 
1 year

 1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 
3 years

Undisputed Trade receivables- considered 
good

 -    -   34.52  -   6.12 40.64

Undisputed Trade Receivables- considered 
doubtful

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed Trade Receivables considered 
good

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed Trade Receivables considered 
doubtful

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Sub total      40.64
Undue - considered good
Total   40.64
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Note 13.2 - Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022

(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars
 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Total Less than 
6 months 

6 months- 
1 year

 1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 
3 years

Undisputed Trade receivables- considered 
good

69.03  -   .04  -   3.80 72.87

Undisputed Trade Receivables- considered 
doubtful

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed Trade Receivables considered 
good

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Disputed Trade Receivables considered 
doubtful

 -    -    -    -    -    -   

Sub total      72.87
Undue - considered good  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total   72.87

Note 14	 - Cash and cash equivalents

(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars As at  
31 March, 2023

As at  
31 March, 2022

` `

Cash on hand .08 .06
Balances with banks in current accounts 24.16 43.55
Cash and cash equivalents - total 24.24 43.61
Other Bank Balances
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 620.08 592.15
Total 644.32 635.76

Note 15 - Other current assets

(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

31 March, 2023
As at  

31 March, 2022
` `

Balance with revenue authorities 8.19 10.67
Deposits .25 .75
Interest Accrued But Not Due 7.90 5.74
Prepaid Expenses  -   5.29
Provision for Income Tax
Unbilled Revenue	 .76 32.99
Total 17.10 55.43
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 Note 16	 - Revenue from operations
(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

31 March, 2023
As at  

31 March, 2022
` `

Sale of products 15.00 58.50
Sale of services 111.91 291.28
Total 126.91 349.78

Note 17	 - Other Income
(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

31 March, 2023
As at  

31 March, 2022
` `

Interest Income 40.44 39.14
Others
   -Excess Provisions Written Back (Net) 78.08 .38
   -Miscellaneous Income .04 .06
Total 118.56 39.58

Note 18 - Cost of Operating Activity
(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 March, 2023
For the year ended 

31 March, 2022
` `

Project Expesnes 7.49 6.67
Software Technical Support Cost 134.79 81.79
Total 142.27 88.47

Note 19	 - Change in Inventories of work in progress and finished goods
(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2023

For the year ended 
31 March, 2022

` `

Opening Inventories
Finished Goods 9.25 42.55
Less: Closing Inventories
Finished Goods	 74.96 9.25
Total -65.71 33.30

Note 20	 - Employee benefit expenses
(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

31 March, 2023
As at  

31 March, 2022
` `

Salaries and wages
   - Others 2.59 7.12
Contribution to provident and other funds
   - Others .47 .69
Staff welfare expenses  -   .0
Total 3.07 7.81
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Note 21	 - Other expenses
(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

31 March, 2023
As at  

31 March, 2022
` `

Auditors’ Remuneration .60 .75
Professional fees 36.11 6.26
Rent .61 .39
Repairs to machinery .04 .06
Total 37.36 7.46

Other expenses 
(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

31 March, 2023
As at  

31 March, 2022
` `

Total continued from previous page 37.36 7.46
Rates and taxes .03 .23
Telephone expenses .05 .10
Travelling Expenses -   .01
Miscellaneous expenses 2.50 .55
Sundry Balances Written Off .54 50.91
Total 40.47 59.25

22	 Tax Expenses
(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

31 March, 2023
As at  

31 March, 2022
` `

Current Tax 27.85 41.10
Deferred Tax -25.15 28.41
Prior Period Taxes -   -1.46
Total 2.70 68.05

23	 Earning per share
(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 March, 2023
For the year ended 

31 March, 2022
` `

Profit attributable to equity shareholders 27.67 114.29
Weighted average number of Equity Shares  25,000  25,000 
Earnings per share basic (`)  110.67  457.17 
Earnings per share diluted (`)  110.67  457.17 
Face value per equity share (`)  100  100 
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24	 Auditors’ Remuneration
(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 March, 2023
For the year ended 

31 March, 2022
` `

Payments to auditor as
 - Auditor .45 .45
 - for taxation matters .0 .15
 - for other services .15 .15
Total .60 .75

25	 Commitment
(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 March, 2023
For the year ended 

31 March, 2022
` `

The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 
account (net of advances) and not provided for at the year / period end

 -  - 

Total  -  - 

26	 Contingent liability
(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 March, 2023
For the year ended 

31 March, 2022
` `

Other claims not acknowledged as debts  -  - 

Total

27	 Deferred tax asset (net)
(Amounts in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 
31 March, 2023

For the year ended 
31 March, 2022

Deferred Tax (Liability)/Asset (A)
Difference in depreciation as per books of account and tax 8.25 -16.70
Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) (B)
Disallowance of Gratuity Provision S. 43B of IT Act, 1961 .11 .07
Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) (B-A) 8.36 -16.63

28	 Related Party Disclosure

In accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 18 - Related Party transactions as prescribed under the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, the details of related party transactions are given below.					   
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29	 List of Related Parties

Nature of Relationship Name of Related Party

Holding Organisation The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Ltd

Key Managerial Persons Mrs. Arti Dhole, Managing Director & CEO as of 29.03.2023. 
Mrs. Shubhangi Medhekar Managing Director  w.e.f 30.03.2023. 
Mr. Ashutosh Joshi, Director 
Dr. Mukund Abhyankar, Director

Transactions with related party
								         (Amounts in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31 March 2023  31 March 2022 
Holding Organisation
Revenue and Expense Items
Rendering of Services (Net of Taxes and Credits) 120.67 256.47
Interest Received on Term Deposit 40.44 37.21
Dividend Paid on Equity Shares 25.00 25.00
Closing Balances
Trade receivable (net) .0 .0
Balance in Current Accounts with Bank 24.16 43.54
Balance in Term Deposits with Bank 760.08 692.15
Dr. Mukund Abhyankar
Directors Meeting Fees .10 .12
Mr. Ashutosh Joshi
Directors Meeting Fees .10 .12
Total

30	 Dues to micro and small suppliers

Under the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) which came into force from 2nd October 2006, 
information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the 
Company:
								         (Amounts in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31 March 2023  31 March 2022 

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end  -    -   

Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end  -    -   

Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of the 
MSMED, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier 
beyond the appointed day during the accounting year

 -    -   

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during 
the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED

 -    -   

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the 
accounting year

 -    -   

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as 
a deductible

 -    -   
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31	 Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis)
								         (Amounts in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31 March 2023  31 March 2022 
Travelling Expenses  -    -   
Total  -    -   

Note 32	 - Provision for Gratuity

Defined Benefit Plan: The Group provides for its liability towards gratuity as per the actuarial valuation. The present value of the 
accrued gratuity minus fund value is provided in the books of accounts.

I) Changes in benefit obligation for the Company:
								         (Amounts in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31 March 2023  31 March 2022 
Assumptions
Discount Rate 7% 6%
Expected Return on Plan Assets 7% 7%
Salary Escalation 5% 5%

Table Showing Changes in Present Value of Obligations    
Present Value of Obligations as at Beginning of Year .29 .38
Interest Costs .02 .02
Current Service Costs .13 .13
Benefits Paid .0 .0
Actual (Gain) / Loss on Obligations -.01 -.23
Past Service Costs .0 .0
Present Value of Obligations as at end of year .43 .29
Table Showing Changes In Fair Value of Plan Assets
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at beginning of year 4.81 4.51
Expected Return on Plan Assets .35 .33
Transfer In/(Out) .0 -
Contributions .01 .01
Benefits Paid .0 .0
Morality Charges & Taxes .0 -.01
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Plan Assets -.02 -.02
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at end of year 5.15 4.81
Funded Status .0 .0
Actual Return on Plan Assets .33 .31
Actual Gain / Loss Recognized
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) For the Year – Obligation -.01 -.23
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) For the Year - Plan Assets .02 .02
Total Gain / (Loss) for The Year .0 -.22
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) Recognized in The Year .0 -.22
Amounts to be Recognized in the Balance Sheet  
Present Value of Obligations as at the end of the year .43 .29
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end of the year 5.15 4.81
Funded Status Surplus / (Deficit) 4.72 4.52
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Particulars  31 March 2023  31 March 2022 
Non-Current Liability .43 .29
Amount Not Recognised as an Asset 4.08 3.94
Net Assets / (Liability) Recognized in Balance Sheet .64 .58
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss 
Current Service Cost .13 .13
Interest Cost .02 .02
Expected Return on Plan Assets -.35 -.33
Net Actuarial (Gain) / Loss recognized In the Year .0 .0
Past Service Cost .0 .0
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss recognized in the period .0 -.22
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss -.05 -.01
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss as Prior Period 
Item

.0 .0

Item

33	 Operating lease	

	 The Company had taken office premise under operating lease which were vacated FY 2018-19. The Company has given 
refundable security deposit in accordance with the agreed terms. Lease payments of  `  NIL ( Previous Year NIL) in respect of 
such premise are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss under ‘Rent’ in Note no. 23 forming part of these financial 
statements on accrual basis. 

(Amounts in Lakhs) 

Particulars  31 March 2023  31 March 2022 
Not Later than one year  Nil  Nil 
Later than one year and not later than five years  Nil  Nil 
More than 5 years  Nil  Nil 

34	 Goods and service tax (GST)

	 The management of the Company is in process of reconciling GST Input Tax Credits as per the books of account with credit 
appearing on GST portal in Form GSTR 2A. Pending the same, credit reflecting in the books of account has been considered 
for preparation of the financial statements. 								      

35	 Additional disclosure required for Financial Statement				 

1	 During the year, there is no change in method of depreciation.							     

2	 During the year, there is no amount of loan & advances given to or received from director, KMP, Promotor and their 
relative.							     

3	 The Company does not have any undisclosed income which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered 
or disclosed as income during the year (previous year) in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, 
search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

4	 As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company is not meeting the applicability threshold, hence no CSR activity 
conducted by company.							     

5	 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

6	 The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company 
for holding any Benami property.							     
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7	 All properties held by company are in own name, there is no title deeds which are not held in the name other than the 
Company.							     

8	 During the year, company is not a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

9	 The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or 
section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.							     

10	 The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory 
period.							     

Additional disclosure required for Financial Statement								      

11	 The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.							     

12	 During the year, there is no scheme of arrangement in which company enters.					   

13	 The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

	 a. 	 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

	 b. 	 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

14	 The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the 
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

	 a. 	 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

	 b. 	 provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,	

15	 There is no misutilisation of funds borrowed by company, if any, during the year.

16	 During the year, there is no Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets is done by company.

17	 During the year, there is no acquisition of any Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets by way of business 
combination.							    

36	 Other information		

	 Information relating to other matters specified in Division I, revised Schedule III  to the Act, is either nil or not applicable to the 
Company for the year/ period.								      

37	 Prior Period Items		

	 Prior period adjustment of `78,60,000/- disclosed in statement of profit and loss represent cost of software license 
sold in FY 2021-22. The Company has incurred software license development cost of `1,31,00,000/- in the FY 2021-
22 and also sold certain software licenses amounting to `1,31,00,000/-. Cost of sale of such software licenses of 
`78,60,000/- was inadvertently capaitalised and debited to intangible asset in balance sheet instead of debiting it to 
expenditure on cost of sale in the statement of profit and loss. This cost has been erroneously identified as asset and 
thus remained to be recognised as expense. The balance cost of `52,40,000/- was inadvertently carried forward to 
next year as intangible asset which should have been disclosed as closing inventory of license development cost. 
During the year, the said expenditure of `78,60,000/- is debited to cost of goods sold and expensed 
out, while the balance cost of `52,40,000/- is disclosed as part of inventory. Since the cost of sale of 
`78,60,000/- pertained to FY 2021-22, it is disclosed as prior period expenditure in profit and loss account. 
In view of the aforesaid, the profit and reserves for the year are lower by `78,60,000/-,the Intangible Assets lower by  
`1,31,00,000/- and the Inventory is higher by `52,40,000/-.
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38	 Previous year comparatives

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped, reclassified & rearranged wherever necessary.			 

39	 Ratio Analysis	

Particulars Numerator/Denominator 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 Change in %

(a) Current Ratio    Current Assets 
Current Liabilities

10.02 4.52 121.69%

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio    Total Debts 
Shareholder’s Equity

- - 0.00

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earning available for Debt Service 
Debt Service

 -    -   0.00

(d) Return on Equity Ratio Profit after Tax 
Average Shareholder’s Equity

2.68% 11.60% -76.87%

(e) Inventory turnover ratio	 Total Turnnover 
Average Inventories

0.31 0.14 126.77%

(f) Trade receivables turnover ratio	 Total Turnover 
Average Account Receivable

2.24 5.32 -58.00%

(g) Trade payables turnover ratio	 Total Purchases 
Average Account Payable

 -    -   0.00

(h) Net capital turnover ratio Total Turnover 
Net Working Capital

35.09% 58.08% -39.58%

(i) Net profit ratio    Net Profit  
Total Turnover

11.27% 32.68% -65.51%

(j) Return on Capital employed    Earning before interest and taxes   
Capital Employed

3.00% 17.42% -82.76%

(k) Return on investment Return on Investment 
Total Investment

3.64% 11.09% -67.19%

Ratio Analysis	

Due to decrease in Trade Payables  and short term provisions							     

Due to lower profit after tax for the year								      

Due to reduction in inventories								      

Due to decrease in Turnover								      

Due to decrease in profit is less than decrease in turnover								      

Due to decrease in profit before interest and taxes	 							     
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